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Date: 12 September 2014

AGENDA

TO: THE MEMBERS OF THE JOINT AUDIT AND STANDARDS COMMITTEE

CUMBRIA POLICE & CRIME COMMISSIONER AND CUMBRIA CONSTABULARY JOINT
AUDIT AND STANDARDS COMMITTEE AND THE POLICE & CRIME COMMISSIONER’S
EXECUTIVE BOARD

A joint meeting of the Joint Audit & Standards Committee and the Police and Crime
Commissioner’s Executive Board will take place on Monday 22™ September 2014 at
Penrith Rugby Club, Penrith, at 10.15 am.

S Edwards
Chief Executive

Please note — there will be a private external audit meeting between the members and
Grant Thornton 09.30am to 10.00am

COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP

Mr Patrick Everingham (Chair)
Mrs Fiona Daley

Mr Andy Hampshire

Mr Jack Jones
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AGENDA

PART 1 —ITEMS TO BE CONSIDERED IN THE PRESENCE OF THE PRESS AND
PUBLIC

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

2. URGENT BUSINESS AND EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC
To consider (i) any urgent items of business and (ii) whether the press and public
should be excluded from the Meeting during consideration of any Agenda item
where there is likely disclosure of information exempt under s.100A(4) and Part |
Schedule A of the Local Government Act 1972 and the public interest in not
disclosing outweighs any public interest in disclosure.

3. DISCLOSURE OF PERSONAL INTERESTS
Members are invited to disclose any personal/prejudicial interest which they may
have in any of the items on the Agenda. If the personal interest is a prejudicial
interest, then the individual member should not participate in a discussion of the
matter and must withdraw from the meeting room unless a dispensation has
previously been obtained.

4, MINUTES OF MEETING
To receive and approve the minutes of the committee meeting held on 23 June
2014 (copy enclosed)

5. AUDIT FINDINGS REPORT
To receive from Grant Thornton the Audit Findings Report 2013/14 — (Committee
to consider)

6. ANNUAL STATEMENT OF THE ACCOUNTS — POLICE AND CRIME COMMISSIONER
To receive reports from the Chief Finance Officer (To be presented by the
Commissioner’s Chief Finance Officer)

(i) Report of the Chief Finance Officer: Assurance Framework
(ii) Annual Statement of Accounts

7. ANNUAL STATEMENT OF THE ACCOUNTS — CHIEF CONSTABLE
To receive reports from the Chief Finance Officer (To be presented by the Chief
Constable’s Chief Finance Officer)
(i) Report of the Chief Finance Officer: Assurance Framework
(ii) Annual Statement of Accounts



10.

11.

12,

13.

14.
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MONITORING OF AUDIT, INTERNAL AUDIT AND OTHER RECOMMENDATIONS
AND ACTION PLANS

To receive an updated summary of actions implemented in response to audit and
inspection recommendations (copy enclosed) — To be presented by the Chief
Constable’s Chief Finance Officer

INTERNAL AUDIT — PROGRESS REPORT
To receive a report from the Management Audit Unit regarding the progress of the
Internal Audit Plan (copy enclosed) — To be presented by Ms E Toyne

INTERNAL AUDIT REPORTS

To receive reports from the Management Audit Unit regarding audits undertaken
(copy enclosed)

i Project Management Arrangements for the new Barrow Police Station

The following Internal Audit reports have also been completed within the last
quarter and have been reviewed by the Committee members. Copies of these
audit reports will be available to view on the OPCC website.

i Police Absence Management

TREASURY MANAGEMENT ACTIVITIES 2014-15 — APRIL TO JUNE 2014
To receive a report on treasury management activities for April to June 2014 (copy
enclosed) — To be presented by the Deputy Chief Finance Officer

FUTURE MEETING REQUIREMENTS
To receive a report on the proposed new schedule of meetings for 2015/16 (copy
enclosed) — To be presented by the Commissioner’s Chief Finance Officer

OPCC STRATEGIC RISK REGISTER
To receive the OPCC Strategic Risk Register (copy enclosed) — To be presented by
the Governance and Business Services Manager

CONSTABULARY RISK MANAGEMENT UPDATE

To receive a report from the Constabulary on their management of risk, including
an updated Strategic Risk Register (copy to follow) — To be presented by the Deputy
Chief Constable
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CUMBRIA POLICE & CRIME COMMISSIONER AND CUMBRIA CONSTABULARY
JOINT AUDIT & STANDARDS COMMITTEE

Minutes of a Meeting of the Joint Audit & Standards Committee held on
Monday 23rd June 2014 in Conference Room 2, Police Headquarters,
Carleton Hall, Penrith, at 10.30 am

PRESENT

Mr Patrick Everingham (Chair)
Mrs Fiona Daley

Mr Andy Hampshire

Mr Jack Jones

Also present:

Audit Manager, Cumbria Shared Internal Audit Service, Cumbria County Council (Emma Toyne)
Chief Internal Auditor, Management Audit Unit, Cumbria County Council (Niki Riley)
Engagement Lead, Grant Thornton (Fiona Blatcher)

Assistant Chief Constable (Michelle Skeer)

Constabulary Chief Finance Officer (Roger Marshall)

Commissioner Chief Finance Officer (Ruth Hunter)

Deputy Chief Finance Officer (Michelle Bellis)

Budget & Finance Assistant (Dawn Cowperthwaite)

PART 1 - ITEMS CONSIDERED IN THE PRESENCE OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

93. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

No apologies for absence were received as all members were present.

94. DISCLOSURE OF PERSONAL INTERESTS

Andy Hampshire declared a personal, but not prejudicial interest in Agenda Item No 12, as he
sits on the decision panel for both the Community and Innovation Funds.

Fiona Daley declared a personal, but not prejudicial interest in Agenda Item No 6, as she has
been offered a contract by the Local Government Association (LGA) to help set up a Limited
Company to take on the residual role of the Audit Commission when it closes in April 2015.

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED
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95. URGENT BUSINESS AND EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC
There are no items of urgent business to be considered by the Committee.

RESOLVED, that under section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, (as amended), the
press and public be excluded from the meeting during consideration of the following items on
the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in the
paragraph indicated in Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act-

Item No Item Paragraph No
17 Risk Management Update — 7
Constabulary

96. MINUTES OF MEETING
The minutes of the meeting held on 31° March 2014 had been circulated with the agenda.

RESOLVED, that, the minutes of the meeting held on 31st March 2014 be approved,

97. ARRANGEMENTS FOR GOVERNANCE 2013 - 14

The chair suggested that the committee deal firstly with the Commissioners governance
documents then the Constabulary’s, giving feedback separately to both suites of papers, this
was agreed by all members.

Governance papers for the Commissioner

The Commissioner’s Chief Finance Officer took members through the reports providing an
overview of the governance arrangements for 2013-14. Members were asked to provide
feedback on the series of papers regarding the content and presentation of the documents.

The Commissioner’s Chief Finance Officer advised that the ‘Effectiveness of Arrangements for
Audit’ and the ‘Annual Report of the Joint Audit and Standards Committee’ were the start of a
suite of documents that set out a high level review of how the governance documents were
pulled together and gives an overall conclusion on the arrangements for governance.

A member commented that there were several actions still ongoing, notably the development
of an Internal Audit Manual and asked if the committee would receive further updates on these
actions throughout the course of the year. The Chief Internal Auditor confirmed that their plan
was to come back to this in September.

The chair mentioned the highlighted section in paragraph 2.8 and asked if the wording from the
Grant Thornton report was still pending. The Commissioner’s Chief Finance Officer confirmed
that the complete wording had been received and would be added to the document.

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED
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Another member cited that the Joint Audit and Standards Committee Annual report identified
that the committee were doing a reasonable job but they were concerned that there were still
areas they didn’t know a sufficient amount about. In a couple of the conclusions the term ‘fully
compliant’ was used and the member felt that it would be more accurate for these items to be
amended to ‘compliant’ to more accurately reflect the facts. The chair agreed. The
Commissioners Chief Finance Officer advised that the requested changes would be made.

The Commissioner’s Chief Finance Officer advised that the remaining documents within the
Commissioners suite of governance documents provided an overview of how the governance
arrangements were approached and asked for any recommendations and comments on the
papers. The CFO added that the previous year the committee had discussed the differences in
the information set out in the Annual Governance Statement and the Code of Corporate
Governance in order to determine what should be in each document. This year the approach
taken had incorporated the outcome of that discussion resulting in a more detailed framework
document for the Code with the Governance Statement focusing on work undertaken during
the year in compliance with the Code. This has resulted in less duplication and a clearer
relationship between the Code and the AGS.

A member commented that these were difficult documents to produce and that the difference
in approach to their creation was clear from the previous year although the Annual Governance
Statement was still a larger document than would be normal. The Commissioner’s Chief
Finance Officer confirmed that during the course of producing the document staff within the
OPCC were given the opportunity to feedback on certain areas which had improved the quality
of the document but meant that it was still quite significant in terms of size.

The chair asked if the Internal Auditors had any comments on the papers. The Internal Audit
Manager highlighted that their report confirmed that the Commissioner’s Annual Governance
Statement was accurate and had been prepared in line with the correct processes

A member commented that the documents were very good but that they were confused by the
schematic in the Corporate Code of Governance and suggested that it would be worth looking
at the documents produced by other OPCC's for comparison. The Commissioner’s Chief
Finance Officer agreed with this suggestion but due to time restraints recently this had not
been feasible this year but that it would be a useful activity over the next 12 months, especially
in relation the Annual Governance Statements and Audit and Standards Committee reports.

A member highlighted Appendix A of the Annual Governance Statement and asked for
confirmation on what if any assurance the committee would be expected to provide with
regards to the Charitable Trust which was to be established. The Commissioner’s Chief Finance
Officer advised the although the Charitable Trust had been announced publically they were
unsure as to how far along the project was and suggested that the Chief Executive may be able
to provide further information.

The chair assured that they were very respectful of the work being done and noted their
approval of the quality of the documents. They also stated that the papers concerning the
arrangements for governance as presented to the JASC on 23" June had been fully reviewed by
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members. The documents were comprehensive, well written and covered those arrangements
as presented in the discussions of item 5 of the Committee's Agenda. Assurance was given to
the Commissioner that these arrangements for Governance were adequate and effective, being
compliant with the relevant standards and codes.

The Commissioner should note that the JASC has recommended to the Constabulary that the
production of their arrangements for the Risk Management and the Strategic Risks Register
should have greater openness and transparency.

Governance papers for the Constabulary

The Chief Constables Chief Finance Officer advised that the Constabulary’s documents were
largely a mirror image of those of the Commissioner and that although there were cross overs
there were significant differences reflected between the two organisations.

A member commented that the documents were very thorough and that they were pleased to
see that progress had been made on the action points from the previous year. Another
member commented that they found page 21 of the Constabulary’s Annual Governance
Statement to be confusing and suggested that it would benefit from being looked at again. The
Chief Constable’s Chief Finance Officer agreed that they would take a further look at the
document.

A member advised that they had concerns around there being a lack of transparency in the Risk
Management reports and believed that there were changes that could be made to make the
documents more transparent both internally and externally. The Chief Constable’s Chief
Finance Officer confirmed that the Assistant Chief Constable was going to be looking into these
issues.

Another member asked if the committee could receive an update report in December on the
Development and Improvement plan included in the Annual Governance Statement. It was
confirmed that this would be provided.

The chair stated that the papers concerning the arrangements for governance as presented to
the JASC on 23™ June had been fully reviewed by members. The documents were
comprehensive, well written and cover those arrangements as presented in the discussions of
item 5 of the Committee's Agenda. Assurance was given to the Commissioner that these
arrangements for Governance were adequate and effective being compliant with the relevant
standards and codes.

The Chief Constable should note that the JASC has recommended to the Constabulary that the
production of their arrangements for the Risk Management and the Strategic Risks Register
should have greater openness and transparency.

RESOLVED, (i) that, the report be noted; and
(ii) the comments made by the committee be passed on to the
Commissioner and the Chief Constable
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Due to the Assistant Chief Constable having to leave the meeting early, the members agreed
that items requiring their feedback be brought forward to this point in the meeting.

98. MONITORING OF AUDIT, INTERNAL AUDIT AND OTHER RECOMMENDATIONS AND
ACTION PLANS

The Chief Constable’s Chief Finance Officer advised that they were now starting to see the
results of the wider scope of the audit plan. Most of the financial based recommendations had
been completed, the only outstanding one being on Oracle data security. Work had been
progressing on this recommendation and the Finance department were liaising closely with ICT.
There was a plan in place to be enacted from the end of June, in particular to deal with issues
around the system administration role and the changing of bank accounts on the system.
Further work was planned around suppliers from September.

A review of procurement procedures were in place largely as a result of the findings from the
South Wales investigation and will be implemented from 1°** July 2014.

The Assistant Chief Constable gave the committee an update on several of the ongoing
recommendations.

e Seized/held property — New operating procedures were now in place for dealing with
seized/held property and a policy had just been signed off. The long-term goal would
be to implement an electronic tracking system for all property although this would not
be in the immediate future. The key priority was to move the emphasis away from
keeping property long term to moving it along as soon as possible.

e Data Quality — Anti-social behaviour — Work is still ongoing with this recommendation as
improvements had been made to improve accuracy of reporting but they are still not up
to acceptable levels. The emphasis is now on getting it right first time.

The chair commented that he had concerns that at the last meeting there had been eight
ongoing actions and there were now 21. The Chief Constable’s Chief Finance Officer advised
that they were not unduly concerned about this as there has recently been a change to the
audit process and that many of the recommendations were inter-related. The Commissioner’s
Chief Finance Officer commented that they saw this as a measure that internal audit process
was good as they were now auditing areas that had never traditionally been audited. Asthe
breadth of the audit widens it would be expected to see more recommendations made.

RESOLVED, that, the report be noted

99. INTERNAL AUDIT REPORTS

In the last quarter four internal audits have been completed. The committee had received
copies of each of these and asked that only ‘Data Quality: Victim Satisfaction — Crime’ be
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brought to the meeting for further discussion. The other reports are listed below and will be
viewable on the OPCC website.

I.  Debtors Income and Banking
II.  Budget Management and the Main Accounting System
Ill.  Police Creditors and Petty Cash

The Assistant Chief Constable gave an update on the recommendations made in the Data
Quality audit report.

I.  Recommendation 1 - following the procurement review this recommendation would be
implemented as part of the process changes identified.

.  Recommendation 2 —this recommendation has only been partially agreed by
management. It was not felt that it was a worthwhile exercise to contact victims again
(after they had already spoken to officers and been contacted by SMSR) to quality check
the work done by Social and Market Strategic Research SMSR.

A member noted that there was no signed contract with suppliers regarding the data received
from SMSR and asked if this was a concern. The Chief Constable’s Chief Finance Officer
confirmed that as a result of the implementation of new procedures following the procurement
review this was not a situation that should occur again providing officers were operating within
the procedures. The Commissioner’s Chief Finance Officer added that procurement might be a
good area for audit review in the future given the changes to the regulations.

The chair commented that they felt there were issues around the acceptance of specific
recommendations by managers whilst another member voiced concerns that
recommendations were not being fully actioned. A discussion ensued around what would
happen in instances where management would not agree a recommendation. The Chief
Internal Auditor agreed to draft a protocol setting out what would happen. The
Commissioner’s CFO advised that this may need to include the role of the Commissioner in
circumstances where there may be a significant risk in respect of assurance given the
Commissioner’s responsibility to hold the Chief Constable to account

RESOLVED, that, the report be noted
That a protocol is developed setting out the approach in respect of a
failure to agree significant recommendations.

As there were no members of the press or public present and to enable the Assistant Chief
Constable to attend a meeting, the Committee agreed to take agenda item 17 at this point in
the meeting.
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PART 2 — ITEMS CONSIDERED IN THE ABSENCE OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC
100. CONSTABULARY RISK MANAGEMENT UPDATE

The Assistant Chief Constable summarised the changes to the Constabulary’s strategic risk
register and advised that the strategic register went to the Chief Officer Group (COG) on a
regular basis for review of all strategic risks.

A member commented that after reading the document they had concerns as to how well
objectives were understood throughout the force and asked what was being done to improve
this. The Assistant Chief Constable felt that information may not be getting disseminated
through the force as well as it could. The member suggested that if the strategic risk register
was re-graded as a Part 1 item this problem could be eased. The Assistant Chief Constable
confirmed that the better dissemination of information would be looked into and re-iterated
that the issues around the risk register being a Part 2 item would be discussed at a COG
meeting.

Following further discussions the chair suggested that if the strategic risk register were to be
re-worded it should be able to become a Part 1 item. The Assistant Chief Constable agreed that
they would bring this up in COG for discussion.

RESOLVED, that, the
(i) report be noted; and
(ii) Chief Officer Group discuss the committee’s recommendation to

have the strategic risk register considered in the open part of the
committee meeting.

(Note: There was a break in the meeting from 11.45am to 11.50 am. Assistant Chief Constable
Skeer left the meeting at this point.

PART 1 - ITEMS CONSIDERED IN THE PRESENCE OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC
101. GRANT THORNTON FEES 2014-15

The Engagement Lead presented the audit fees and payment schedule letters for both the
Commissioner and the Constabulary. A key point noted was that the fees for 2014-15 were the
same as for the previous year, a figure set by the Audit Commission. They also confirmed that
the audit team in the current year would be the same as last year.

A member asked that as the cost was the same as the previous year, did this mean that there
would be a reduced level of service. The Engagement Lead confirmed that the service would
remain the same but that the Audit Commission would take a smaller percentage of the
charge.

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED
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At this point Fiona Daley raised that she potentially had a conflict with this agenda item as she
had been offered a contract with the Local Government Association (LGA) to set up a Limited
Company to take over the residual work of the Audit Commission when it closed in April 2015.
The chair confirmed that having discussed this previously with Fiona, they were happy that
there was no prejudicial conflict.

RESOLVED, that, the report be noted

102. INTERNAL AUDIT CHARTER

The Audit Manager advised the committee that this document dealt with the performance
measures that the committee had felt were missing from the original Audit Charter which had
been presented to the March meeting.

A member commented on the ‘Recommendations agreed’ KPI (Key Performance Indicator) and
stated that it seemed to be a perverse incentive that might encourage auditors to make weak
recommendations in order to ensure having them agreed by management. The Chief Internal
Auditor agreed that individual auditors may be tempted to give simple recommendations but
felt that they had rigorous enough monitoring in place to ensure that this didn’t happen and
that they felt this was a useful measure as a management tool. Another member agreed that
this sounded reasonable so long as it was monitored over a period of time. It was also
suggested that the heading ‘Target’ be changed to ‘Benchmarking’, the Chief Internal Auditor
felt that this was a very good suggestion.

A member asked if Internal Audit made use of post audit questionnaires. The Chief Internal
Auditor advised that currently this was not the case but that work was currently being
undertaken to devise a customer satisfaction questionnaire.

RESOLVED, that, the report be noted, with the above suggested amendments

103. INTERNAL AUDIT — PROGRESS REPORT

The Audit Manager presented a progress report which summarised the outcomes of the work
of internal audit for 2013/14. They were satisfied that enough audit work had been completed
to provide their opinion. The key points of the report are given below:

e Atotal of 17 audits have been carried out

e Overall levels of assurance are considered to be reasonable with 82% of audit reviews
concluding at least a reasonable level of assurance

e Several service development projects have been undertaken during the year to
implement the improvements identified through internal and external consultation

RESOLVED, that, the reports were considered and reviewed.

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED
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(Note: The Chief Executive and the Governance and Business Services Manager joined the
meeting at this point.)

104. TREASURY MANAGEMENT ACTIVITIES 2013-14 — JANUARY TO MARCH 2014

The Deputy Chief Finance Officer presented to members the Treasury Management Activities
for January to March 2014, along with the Annual Report which gave an overall summary for
the year. They highlighted that the security of investments was of paramount importance.

The total interest earned from investments in the period January to March 2014 was £40k,
bringing the total for 2013/14 to £148k, which was £5k more than had been estimated. The
Deputy Chief Finance officer also highlighted Appendix 5, a scatter diagram showing how the
OPCC benchmarked against other organisation with relation to average rates of investments.
This had previously been requested by the committee.

RESOLVED, that, the reports were considered and reviewed

105. GRANT REGULATIONS

The Commissioner’s Chief Finance Officer advised the committee that the grant regulations
document had been formulated as the Commissioner now issued an extended range of grants
to help meet the objectives of the Police and Crime Plan; it was felt that there was a benefit to
having clear governance arrangements specifically for the issue of grants. In addition the
committee were advised that legal advice had been sought during the preparation of this
document and the guidance was currently in use with a delegation to the Chief Executive in
place to make any required amendments.

The committee asked for a précis of what type of grants and for what amounts the
Commissioner was dealing with. The Commissioner’s Chief Finance Officer gave a brief
description of the grants available with their amounts and expected uses.

A member suggested that it may be useful to draw attention to whistleblowing practices within
the document whilst another member commented that they thought that both internal and
external auditors may be in a better position to advise as they will come across these issues
more frequently. They also asked if the OPCC had capacity to monitor the grant schemes. The
Commissioner’s Chief Finance Officer advised that the new staff structure of the OPCC placed
the responsibility of monitoring grants on the Head of Partnerships and Commissioning, a post
which was currently being recruited to.

A member cited the Innovation and Community Funds and suggested that there was a
potential reputation risk in relation to the grant payments as organisations that were awarded
funds may not end up using the money for the purpose they had originally applied for. The
Commissioner’s Chief Finance Officer advised that these issues had been considered at the
start and that although there would remain the potential for abuse of the system they believed
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that the application process mitigated a lot of this. Also, the application process made it clear
from the outset that payment of only 80% of the awarded grant would be made up front in the
case of the Community Fund, as the organisations would have to cover the additional 20% cost
themselves until they had submitted monitoring updates. This would go some way to ensuring
that funding was committed on the basis of the application.

RESOLVED, that, the reports were considered and reviewed

106. OPCC ANTI-FRAUD AND CORRUPTION ACTIVITY MONITORING

The Chief Executive presented to the committee the OPCC Anti-Fraud and Corruption Activity
Monitoring report which had been produced to give assurance to the committee on the OPCC's
monitoring of fraud and corruption activity.

A member commented that the overall picture was good but that they would like to see
statistics in the report next year, such as the number of whistleblowing incidents. Another
member felt that the sections on expenses and register of interests should contain reference to
the committee as they also submit claims and complete registers. The Chief Executive agreed
that this information would be added to future reports.

RESOLVED, that, the contents of the report be noted.

107. MONITORING AND EFFECTIVENESS OF THE PCC/OFFICER PROTOCOL AND CODE OF
CONDUCT

The Chief Executive presented the Monitoring and Effectiveness of the PCC/Officer Protocol
and Code of Conduct report to the committee. This report focused on the ethics and culture of
the PCC and his office. The report provided assurance to the committee of the Chief
Executive’s monitoring of the PCC/Officer Protocol and Code of Conduct.

RESOLVED, that, the reports were considered and noted

108. OPCCRISK MANAGEMENT MONITORING

The Governance and Business Services Manager introduced the Risk Management Monitoring
Report and reminded that this was the first annual report. The OPCC have a Risk Management
Strategy in place with both strategic and operational risk registers. The committee were
advised that all staff were to receive training on risk management in a bid to aid understanding
and responsibilities.

The strategic risk register was presented to the committee on a quarterly basis and prior to this
all risks were reviewed and actively monitored. The members were advised that the OPCC
were currently involved with a SARC (Sexual Assault Referral Centre) project and that a
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member of staff had been seconded to the project. There was also a new member of staff that
had been taken on as a victim’s advocate. As a result of these new posts work was ongoing to
identify the potential risks associated with both posts and these will be added to the risk
registers as they were identified.

A member highlighted that the report referred to the Commissioner having sight of the
Constabulary’s risk register, this was now not the case and as it will only be going to the JASC
who will then be able to provide feedback to both the Chief Constable and the Commissioner.

RESOLVED, that, the reports were considered and noted.

109. OPCC STRATEGIC RISK REGISTER

The Governance and Business Services Manager guided members through the OPCC strategic
risk register highlighting a couple of small changes that had been made to the register, these
were:

e A section on all decision forms that highlight any HR/Diversity issues

e A quarterly meeting between the Commissioner and the Constabulary’s lead for
diversity when any issues can be raised and discussed

e An annual report has been presented to the committee on risk management

e Arisk workshop is to be held for all OPCC staff during the summer to ensure their
knowledge and understanding is up to date

RESOLVED, that, the report was considered and noted

Meeting ended at 1.20pm

Signed: Date:
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The contents of this report relate only to those matters which came to our
attention during the conduct of our normal audit procedures which are
designed primarily for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial
statements. Our audit is not designed to test all internal controls or identify all
areas of control weakness. However, where, as part of our testing, we identify
any control weaknesses, we will report these to you. In consequence, our work
cannot be relied upon to disclose defalcations or other irregularities, or to
include all possible improvements in internal control that a more extensive
special examination might identify.

We do not accept any responsibility for any loss occasioned to any third party
acting, or refraining from acting on the basis of the content of this report, as
this report was not prepared for, nor intended for, any other purpose.
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Executive summary

Executive summary

Purpose of this report

As the external auditor appointed to both the PCC and the Chief Constable for
Cumbria we are required by the Audit Commission's Code of Audit Practice to
report our audit findings to the PCC and the Chief Constable as the individuals
charged with governance for the office of the PCC and Chief Constable
respectively. This report (our Audit Findings Report) highlights the key findings
and recommendations from our audits of the PCC and the Chief Constable for the
year ended 31 March 2014 in one place. It is also used to report our audit findings
to management and those charged with governance in accordance with the
requirements of International Standard on Auditing 260 (ISA).

Under the Audit Commission's Code of Audit Practice we ate required to report
whether, in our opinion, the PCC's and Chief Constable's financial statements for
the year ended 31 March 2014 present a true and fair view of the financial position,
their expenditure and income for the year and whether they have been propetly
prepared in accordance with the CIPFA Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting. We issue separate audit opinions on the financial statements of the
PCC and the Chief Constable.

We also required to report whether the PCC and Chief Constable have put in place
proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in their use
of resources for the year ended 31 March 2014, referred to as the Value for Money
conclusion. We issue separate conclusions for the PCC and the Chief Constable
based on our assessment of the arrangements each has established.
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Introduction
In the conduct of our audit we have not had to alter or change our planned

audit approach, which we communicated to you in our Audit Plan dated 31
March 2014.

Our audit is substantially complete although we are finalising our work in the
following areas:

* final audit completion and review processes

* review of the final version of the financial statements

¢ review of PFI asset arrangements

* obtaining and reviewing the final management letter of representation

* review of final version of the Annual Governance Statement and

* updating our post balance sheet events review, to the date of signing the
opinion

*  Whole of Government Accounts

We received draft financial statements and accompanying working papers at the
start of our audit, in accordance with the agreed timetable.



Executive summary

Executive summary

Key messages - audit of the Police and Crime
Commissioner

Financial statements opinion

We expect to issue an unqualified opinion on the PCC's financial statements,

including the group accounting statements which consolidate the financial
activities of the Chief Constable, by 30 September 2014.

The finance team have made significant presentational changes to the financial
statements in 2013/14 with a view to decluttering supporting notes and improving
the readability of the accounts. In our view these have worked well in providing a
clearer and easier to read set of accounts. Working papers remain of a good
standard, and responses to audit queries have been prompt and satisfactory.

Our audit identified several minor adjustments to the PCC's financial statements
which management has agreed to make. The majority of amendments related to
required updates to IAS19 presentation and associated accounting terminology
which also affected the Prior Period Adjustment disclosure note. In addition
amendments to disclosures around the PFI arrangement have been agreed to
clearly state the judgements which have been made in preparing the accounts in
respect to this arrangement and more correctly state the full liabilities recognised
over the life of the arrangement. No amendments that alter reported financial
performance were required.

We have included further details of our financial statements audit findings,
including details of the adjustments referred to above, in section 2 of this report.
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Value for money conclusion

We are pleased to report that, based on our review of the PCC's arrangements to
secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in their use of resources, we expect to give
an unqualified value for money conclusion.

The PCC continues to show strong financial resilience and good financial planning and
management. Revenue reserves remain high and the medium term financial plan
(MTFP), includes plans for future investment to enable the PCC and CC to achieve
efficiencies whilst also responding to the police and crime needs of Cumbria. Priorities
are based on a clear understanding of the local community needs and investment is
being targeted into key areas, such as domestic violence. The PCC and CC have worked
effectively together in responding to the report received in 2013 following allegations
about the former Temporary Chief Constable and have made appropriate changes to
improve their systems and processes.

We have set out further details of the findings and recommendations from the work
supporting our Value for money conclusion in section 3 of this report.

Whole of Government Accounts (WGA)
We will complete our work in respect of the Whole of Government Accounts in
accordance with the national timetable.



Executive summary

Executive summary

Key messages - audit of the Chief Constable
Financial statements opinion
We expect to issue an unqualified opinion on the Chief Constable's financial

statements, including the police officer pension fund accounting statements, by 30
September 2014.

As is the case with the PCC Group and Single entity accounts, the financial
statements of the Chief Constable have undergone commendable presentational
changes in 2013/14 to declutter supporting notes and improving the readability of
the accounts. Working papers remain of a good standard, and responses to audit
queries have been prompt and satisfactory.

No significant issues were identified and no amendments that alter the reported
financial performance. Many of the amendments which were required to be made
in the PCC group accounts also related to the Chief Constable accounts. The
majority of amendments related to required updates to IAS19 presentation and
associated accounting terminology which also affected the Prior Period
Adjustment disclosure note.

We have included further details of our financial statements audit findings,
including details of the adjustments referred to above, in section 2 of this report.
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Value for money conclusion

We are pleased to report that, based on our review of the PCC's arrangements
to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in their use of resources, we
expect to give an unqualified value for money conclusion.

The CC is working closely with the PCC to ensure that its finances are
effectively managed and has a good track record of delivering savings plans. Its
new workforce strategy is designed to help it to meet its operational objectives
whilst meeting challenging financial targets. Despite recent increases in crime,
overall crime levels remain relatively low. The CC is targeting key areas identified
as priorities for improvement including improving the consistency of service
provided to victims of domestic abuse.

We have set out further details of the findings and recommendations from the
work supporting our Value for money conclusion in section 3 of this report.



Executive summary

Controls

The PCC and the Chief Constable are responsible for the identification,
assessment, management and monitoring of risk, and for developing, operating
and monitoring the system of internal control. Management has operated a
common set of financial systems and controls to produce both sets of financial
statements for 2013/14. Our work on material financial systems used to prepate
the financial statements has therefore supported our audits of both the PCC and
the Chief Constable. Our audit is however not designed to test all internal controls
or identify all areas of control weakness. However, where, as part of our testing,
we identify any control weaknesses, we report these to the PCC and to the Chief
Constable.

Our work has not identified any control weaknesses which we wish to highlight for
your attention.

We have provided further details of our findings in relation to internal controls in
section 2 of this report.
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The way forward

The findings and recommendations contained in this report have been
discussed and agreed with the Chief Finance Officer and Deputy Chief
Executive for the PCC and the Chief Finance Officer for the Chief Constable.

Acknowledgment

We would like to thank finance staff and other officers in both the office of the
PCC and the Chief Constable for their assistance over the course of this yeat's
audits.

Grant Thornton UK LLP
September 2014
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Audit findings

Audit findings

In this section we present our findings in respect of matters and risks identified at
the planning stage of the audits and additional matters that arose during the course
of our work. We set out on the following pages the work we have performed and
findings arising from our work in respect of the audit risks we identified in our
audit plan, presented to the Joint Audit and Standards Committee on 31 March
2014. We also set out the adjustments to the financial statements arising from our
audit work and our findings in respect of internal controls.

Audit opinion

We expect to issue an unqualified opinion on both the PCC's financial statements,
including the group accounting statements which consolidate the financial
activities of the Chief Constable; and the Chief Constable's financial statements,
including the police officer pension fund accounting statements, by 30 September
2014.

© 2014 Grant Thornton UK LLP
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Audit findings

Audit findings against significant risks

"Significant risks often relate to significant non-routine transactions and judgmental matters. Non-routine transactions are transactions that are unusual, either due to size
or nature, and that therefore occur infrequently. Judgmental matters may include the development of accounting estimates for which there is significant measurement
uncertainty” (ISA 315).

In this section we detail our response to the significant risks of material misstatement which we identified in the Audit Plan. As we noted in our plan, there are two
presumed significant risks which are applicable to all audits under auditing standards.

Risks identified in ~ Relevantto?
our audit plan PCC/CC/Both Work completed Assurance gained and issues arising
1. Improper revenue Both Both PCC and Chief Constable PCC audit
recognition audits Our audit work has not identified any issues in respect of revenue recognition.
Under ISA 240 there e review and testing of revenue
is a presumed risk recognition policies Chief bl di
ief Constable audit
that revenue may be e testing of material revenue . S . . 3
misstated due to streams Our audit work has not identified any issues in respect of revenue recognition.

improper recognition ] o
e review of unusual significant

transactions

2. Management Both Both PCC and Chief Constable PCC audit

override of audits Our audit work has not identified any evidence of management override of controls. In

controls * review of accounting estimates,  particular the findings of our review of journal controls and testing of journal entries has
Under ISA 240 there judgements and decisions made not identified any significant issues.

is a presumed risk of by management We set out later in this section of the report our work and findings on key accounting
management over- .

. testing of journals entries estimates and judgments.
ride of controls

e review of unusual significant
transactions Chief Constable audit

Our audit work has not identified any evidence of management override of controls. In
particular the findings of our review of journal controls and testing of journal entries has
not identified any significant issues.

We set out later in this section of the report our work and findings on key accounting
estimates and judgments.
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Audit findings

Audit findings against other risks

In this section we detail our response to the other risks of material misstatement which we identified in the Audit Plan.

Transaction Relevant to:
cycle PCC/CC/Both
Operating Both
expenses

Employee Both

remuneration

© 2014 Grant Thornton UK LLP

Description of risk

Creditors understated
or not recorded in the
correct period

Employee
remuneration
accrual understated

Work completed

PCC and Chief Constable audits

We have undertaken the following work in relation to
this risk:

documented our understanding of processes and
key controls over the transaction cycle

undertaken walkthrough of the key controls to
assess the whether those controls are designed
effectively

Sample testing of year end creditor balances.
Review for unrecorded liabilities.

Cut-off testing of the expenditure stream.
Review of year end reconciliations

PCC and Chief Constable audits

We have undertaken the following work in relation to
this risk:

documented our understanding of processes and
key controls over the transaction cycle

undertaken walkthrough of the key controls to
assess the whether those controls are designed
effectively

Reviewed of year end reconciliations
Reviewed for unrecorded liabilities

Assurance gained & issues arising

PCC audit

Our audit work has not identified any significant issues in
relation to the risk identified.

Chief Constable audit

Our audit work has not identified any significant issues in
relation to the risk identified.

PCC audit

Our audit work has not identified any significant issues in
relation to the risk identified.

Chief Constable audit

Our audit work has not identified any significant issues in
relation to the risk identified.

12



Audit findings

Audit findings against other risks continued

Transaction Relevant to:
cycle PCC/CC/Both
Property Plant PCC

and Equipment

Pensions Both

Benefits

Payable
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Description of risk

Revaluation
measurement not
correct

Benefits improperly
computed / Claims
liability

understated

Work completed

PCC audit

We have undertaken the following work in relation to
this risk:

documented our understanding of processes and
key controls over the transaction cycle

undertaken walkthrough of the key controls to
assess the whether those controls are designed
effectively

Sample tested revaluations

Considered revaluation treatment against the
requirements of the Code

PCC and Chief Constable audits

We have undertaken the following work in relation to
this risk:

documented our understanding of processes and
key controls over the transaction cycle

undertaken walkthrough of the key controls to
assess the whether those controls are designed
effectively

Sample tested the accuracy and validity of new

pensions in payment (including lump sum values).
Compared the movements on membership statistics

to material transactions in the accounting records.

Review of movements in pensions figures for
unusual trends

Assurance gained & issues arising

PCC audit

The PCC operates a five year rolling programme of asset
valuation, designed to cover all asset held by the PCC
over this period. In our view, however, this rolling
programme does not meet the Code’s requirement in
paragraph 4.1.2.35 to value items within a class of
property, This is explained further on page 16.

Assurance has been gained that the values at 31/3/14 are
materially correct.

PCC audit

Our audit work has not identified any significant issues in
relation to the risk identified.

Chief Constable audit

Our audit work has not identified any significant issues in
relation to the risk identified.



Audit findings

Accounting policies, estimates & judgements

In this section we report on our consideration of accounting policies, in particular revenue recognition policies, and key estimates and judgements made and included with the PCC's and
p g p >, 10 P gt p > y juag

the Chief Constable's financial statements.

Relevant to?
Accounting area PCC/CC Both Summary of policy

Revenue Both PCC

recognition e The PCC has adopted the standard revenue

recognition policies as set out in the Code of
Practice.

Chief Constable

* The Chief Constable receives no income
directly but is funded by a contribution from
the PCC.

Cost recognition Both PCC

e The PCC has adopted the standard cost
recognition policies for Local Government as
set out in the Code of Practice.

e The policies for cost recognition are set out in
accounting policy 2.

Chief Constable

* The policies for cost recognition are set out in
accounting policy 2.

Assessment
® Marginal accounting policy which could potentially attract attention from regulators
@ Accounting policy appropriate and disclosures sufficient
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Comments

PCC audit

e The PCC's policies are in accordance with the requirements of
the Code of Practice for Local Government.

Chief Constable audit

e The CC's policy reflects the actual and expected revenue
recognition arrangements in place.

PCC audit

e The PCC's policies are in accordance with the requirements of
the Code of Practice for Local Government.

Chief Constable audit

e The CC's policies are in accordance with the requirements of
the Code of Practice for Local Government.

Accounting policy appropriate but scope for improved disclosure

Assessment

Green

Green
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Audit findings

Accounting policies, estimates & judgements

Relevant to?
Accounting area PCC/CC Both Summary of policy

Judgements and Both PCC
estimates
Key judgements and estimates are set out in
notes 1 and 3 respectively and include:
* PPE valuations
» Treatment of assets and liabilities under PFI
contracts
* provisions
* Pensions liability.

Chief Constable

Key judgements and estimates are set out in
notes 1 and 3 respectively and include the
estimation of provisions and the pension

liability.

Other accounting Both PCC and Chief Constable

policies
We have reviewed the Police and Crime
Commissioner's and the Chief Constable's
policies against the requirements of the
CIPFA Code and accounting standards.

Assessment

® Marginal accounting policy which could potentially attract attention from regulators
@ Accounting policy appropriate and disclosures sufficient

© 2014 Grant Thornton UK LLP

Comments Assessment

PCC audit ‘

We have reviewed the PCC judgements and estimates against the
requirements of the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting. Green

*  Where the PCC has made judgements or estimates in the financial
statements these have been supported with robust methodologies
and clear explanation of the assumptions applied.

*  We have recommended additional disclosures around the key
judgements made in respect of the PFI scheme (see page 18 for
further detail).

Chief Constable audit

Pension liability calculations have been reviewed and agreed to
supporting evidence. No issues have been noted.

PCC audit .

Our review of accounting policies has not highlighted any significant
issues . Green

Chief Constable audit

Our review of accounting policies has not highlighted any issues which
we wish to bring to your attention.

Accounting policy appropriate but scope for improved disclosure
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Audit findings

Accounting policies, estimates & judgements

Relevant to?
Accounting area PCC/CC Both Summary of policy

Judgements and PCC PCC

estimates - PPE * Note 6 to the accounts sets out the
authority’s rolling programme of
revaluations. This shows that the date of
valuations vary between 31 March 2010
and 31 March 2014.

* In our view, however, this rolling
programme does not meet the Code’s
requirement in paragraph 4.1.2.35 to value
items within a class of property, plant and
equipment simultaneously.

» This paragraph of the Code, which is based
on IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment,
does permit a class of assets to be
revalued on a rolling basis provided that:

- the revaluation of the class of assets is
completed within a ‘short period’
- the revaluations are kept up to date.

Assessment
® Marginal accounting policy which could potentially attract attention from regulators
@ Accounting policy appropriate and disclosures sufficient
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Comments

PCC audit

This approach is similar to many other authorities and we are
satisfied that the carrying value of Property, Plant and Equipment
(based on these valuations) does not differ materially from the fair
value at 31 March 2014. The valuer has provided relevant
assurances in this respect. These are supported by the application
of national indices relating to property value movements in recent
years.

The PCC may wish to consider an alternative approach to
valuations to achieve full compliance with the requirements of the
code as currently stated.

Accounting policy appropriate but scope for improved disclosure

Assessment

Green
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Audit findings

Misstatements

Impact of misstatements
We have not identified any misstatements affecting the principal statements within the PCC, CC and Group accounts.
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Audit findings

Misclassifications & disclosure changes

The table below provides details of misclassification and disclosure changes to the PCC's and CC's financial statements ,including the group consolidation, we identified during the audit

and which management have adjusted for.

1 Disclosure

2 Disclosure

© 2014 Grant Thornton UK LLP

2,911

N/A

PFI

Various

The PCC's accounts reflect the PFI arrangement for Workington
Police station. This arrangement has a number of options at the end
of the contract for the asset which does not automatically transfer to
the PCC at this stage. There are a variety of ways of accounting for
such an arrangement under IAS17. The accounts have been
amended to clearly state the judgements which have been made
about the likely end scenario and the impact this has on the
accounting entries. Additionally the disclosure note dealing with
future minimum lease payments has been amended to reflect the
assumed final payment to transfer ownership of the asset to the

PCC.

Various minor changes were made to supporting notes to improve

presentation and ensure consistency, including:

* Amendments to Accounting Standards issued but not adopted

* C(larification to Police Pension Fund membership contribution
rates

* Some minor additional explanations such as further narrative
concerning movement between usable and unusable reserves

* Minor amendments to various wording and terminology
including accounting policies

* An additional disclosure note to support the cash flow statement
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Audit findings

Misclassifications & disclosure changes continued

3  Disclosure N/A Exit
Packages

4 Disclosure N/A Pensions
disclosures -
various

5 Disclosure N/A Annual
Governance
Statement

© 2014 Grant Thornton UK LLP

Note 26 (PCC) and note 16 (CC) Exit Packages disclosure for cost band
0-20k has been amended from 13 to 12 individuals.

Various disclosure amendments required in relation to IAS19 changes

including:

* Rewriting accounting policy 8.1 to reflect IAS19 changes and
applicability to the group accounts, and amending the employee
benefits accounting policy accordingly

* Amending terminology in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Account to refer to 'Remeasurement of the net defined
benefit liability'

* Amending Prior Period Adjustment description to take into account
that the expected return on assets excluding amounts included in net
interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset) is now part of the
'remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability'

Minor changes in relation to the Annual Governance Statement with
additional disclosures on role of monitoring officer and confirmation of
compliance with the CIPFA Guidance on the role of the Chief Finance
Officer.

N/A
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Audit findings

Internal controls

The purpose of an audit is to express an opinion on the financial statements. Our audit included consideration of internal controls relevant to the preparation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control. We have not identified any significant control deficiencies which merit being reported to the PCC and to the Chief Constable via you
in accordance with auditing standards.
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Audit findings

Other communication requirements

We set out below details of other matters which we are required by auditing standards to communicate to the PCC and to the Chief Constable before we conclude our audits.

Issue

1. Matters in relation to fraud

2. Matters in relation to laws and
regulations

3. Written representations

4, Disclosures

5. Matters in relation to related
parties

6. Going concern

© 2014 Grant Thornton UK LLP

Commentary

e We have previously communicated with the PCC and CC on the risk of fraud

e We have not been made aware of any other incidents in the period and no other issues have been identified during the course of our
audit

e We are not aware of any significant incidences of non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations.

* A letter of representation has been requested from the PCC and from the CC
e Our review found no material omissions in the financial statements

e We are not aware of any related party transactions which have not been disclosed

e Our work has not identified any reason to challenge the PCC's and the CC's decision to prepare the financial statements on a going
concern basis.
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Value for Money

Value for Money

Value for money conclusion
The Code of Audit Practice 2010 (the Code) desctibes the PCC's and the Chief
Constable's responsibilities to put in place propet arrangements to:

* secutre economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources;
* ensure proper stewardship and governance; and
* review regularly the adequacy and effectiveness of these arrangements.

We are required to give our VEM conclusion based on two criteria specified by the
Audit Commission which support our reporting responsibilities under the Code.
These criteria are:

The PCC and the Chief Constable each has proper arrangements in place
for securing financial resilience - the PCC and the Chief Constable each has
robust systems and processes to manage effectively financial risks and
opportunities, and to secute a stable financial position that enables then to
continue to operate for the foreseeable future.

The PCC and the Chief Constable each has proper arrangements for
challenging how they secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness - the
PCC and the Chief Constable are prioritising their resources within tighter
budgets, for example by achieving cost reductions and by improving efficiency and
productivity.

Key findings - PCC

Securing financial resilience

We have considered the PCC's arrangements to secure financial resilience against
the following themes:

* Key financial performance indicators

* Financial governance

* Financial planning

* Financial control
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Overall our work highlighted the PCC has appropriate systems and processes in
place to manage financial risks effectively. This has helped it secure a stable
financial position that enables it to continue to operate for the foreseeable future.
The process for producing the 2014/15 budget was well controlled and involved
consultation with the public, Chief Constable and the Police and Crime Panel
(PCP). The PCC had difficult choices to make in setting a deliverable 2014/15
budget and has also been challenged by the PCP. The financial assumptions in the
budget appear reasonable and the required savings achievable.

The Executive Board was established in December 2012 to make the strategic
decisions such as the budget. The Executive Board comprises of the
Commissioner, Chief Constable, PCC Chief Executive and PCC Chief Financial
Officer. The Executive Board considers actual expenditure (revenue and capital)
compared to budget and treasury management activities on a quarterly basis. These
sets out the current position, a forecasted year end position and the reasons for
variances and are used as part of the decision making in terms of main financial
risks and any action required.

The PCC has reported an underspend of £0.14 million for 2013/14 for the
Commissionet's directly managed revenue budget. However, when the
Constabulary underspend is considered the combined group revenue underspend
is £3.195 million of which £2.59 million related to lower than planned expenditure
on police officers and PCSOs.

The capital budget for 2013/14 was underspent by £5.65 million. Around half of
the slippage in the programme has been caused by the timing of the awarding of
the contract for the building of the new South Territorial Police Area
Headquarters at Barrow (£2.91 million). The payment profile has been revised but
completion date for the scheme remains on target. Other slippage relates to ICT
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Value for Money

Key findings - PCC

Securing financial resilience continued

schemes (£1.63 million) due to delays in national specifications and development
of detailed business cases.

At the 31 March 2014 total available reserves which have been funded from
cumulative revenue underspends was £32.81 million which represents over 25% of
budget gross revenue expenditure for 2014/15. When the 2014/15 budget was
agreed in February 2014 total reserves were estimated as £29.46 million but at
outturn were actually £32.81 million, an increase of £3.35 million. There is a clear
strategy to use reserves over the term of the MTFP to support the capital
programme, to meet the cost of commissioned services and to meet the 'one-off’
costs from restructuring the Constabulary.

During 2013/14 South Wales Police completed their investigation into allegations
made against the former Temporary Chief Constable. The report included 36
recommendations to improve arrangements and these were included within an
action plan challenged and monitored by the Joint Audit and Standards
Committee. Many of these actions were implemented and a subsequent Internal
Audit report on integrity within the Constabulary confirmed that improved
arrangements were in place with only a small number of areas for further
improvement.

Challenging economy, efficiency and effectiveness

We have considered the PCC's arrangements to challenge economy, efficiency and
effectiveness against the following themes:

* Prioritising resources

* Improving efficiency & productivity.
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Overall our work highlighted that the PCC's priorities are set out in the Police and
Crime Plan 2013 to 2017 and progress has been monitored throughout the year
with updates to the Police and Crime Panel. The Plan was updated in March 2014

and in the PCC's view confirmed that the priorities in the Plan were the right ones.

The PCC has retained certain funding to consider whom this would be best spent
with e.g. the Constabulary or voluntary sector. Progress made during the year has
included agreeing a county wide CCTV network to be implemented in 2014,
funding to support an Independent Domestic Violence Advocacy and Support
Setvice and established a 'Community and Innovation Fund'.

In terms of savings the bulk of this will come from the Constabulary's 'Change
Strategy 2013-15". The PCC receives updates on progress of delivery of the
strategy to assure himself that the programme remains on track.

Overall VFM conclusion - PCC

On the basis of our work, and having regard to the guidance on the specified
criteria published by the Audit Commission, we are satisfied that in all significant
respects the PCC has put in place proper arrangements to secure economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in his use of resources for the year ending 31 March
2014.
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Value for Money

Key findings - Chief Constable

Securing financial resilience

We have considered the Chief Constable's arrangements to secute financial
resilience against the following themes:

* Key financial performance indicators

* Financial governance

* Financial planning

* Financial control

Opverall our work highlighted the CC has appropriate systems and processes in
place to manage financial risks effectively. The MTFS 2014/15 to 2017/18 is
linked to the PCC's policing priorities and is underpinned by a workforce plan,
estates, ICT and fleet strategies which reflect also the Constabulary's priorities and
operational needs. There is also a cleat link to the Constabulary's 'Change Strategy
2013-15" which is its strategic approach to delivering spending reductions.

The Constabulaty's senior management have a good understanding of the financial
position and receive regular budget monitoring reports. The CC Revenue reports
focus on subjective analysis e.g. police officers pay, premises, transport, etc and
then the reasons for any variances are explained. The Constabulary's revenue
budget was underspent by £3.05 million. The main areas of underspending were
Police Officer Pay & Allowances (£2.175 million) and PCSOs (£0.42 million) as a
result of operating below establishment. Further underspending has related to
transport costs (£0.32 million) due to lower fuel costs and actively managing travel
cost and general underspending on supplies and services. There is clear evidence of
in year re-forecasting particulatly on police officer costs i.e. level of underspending.

Within the Constabulary there has been an emphasis on improving workforce
planning and a workforce strategy for police officers and PCSOs has been
developed covering the period of the (MTTEP). The workforce strategy is regularly
scrutinised at both strategic and tactical levels.
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Challenging economy, efficiency and effectiveness

We have considered the Chief Constable's arrangements to challenge economy,
efficiency and effectiveness against the following themes:

* Prioritising resources

* Improving efficiency & productivity.

Overall our work highlighted the Constabulaty's 'Change Strategy 2013-15" has
provided a good basis for its strategic approach to delivering spending
reductions. Progress is closely monitored throughout the year by the
Constabulary to ensure it remains on track with regular updates to the PCC.
The focus is long term recurring savings and the PCC has also recognised that
some initiatives will need up front funding before savings or improved services
delivery are achieved. The Constabulary has used Her Majesty's Inspectorate of
Constabulary (HMIC) VEM profiles to identify where it was an outlier in terms
of most similar forces and nationally and used this to help to identify potential
savings and required actions.

The Constabulary has a good record of delivering savings and efficiencies
which has continued in 2013/14. The PCC's MTFP 2014/15 to 2017/18
indicates savings of over £9.1 million will be required between 2015/16 to
2017/18 with savings of £4.5 million still to be identified from the end of
2015/16. HMIC stated in July 2014 "Cumbria Constabulary is achieving the
required savings today while planning for the future. The Constabulary has
performed well in the first three years of the spending review — achieving
savings, protecting the front line and maintaining high levels of satisfaction".
Delivering future savings will remain a challenge for the Constabulary.

In overall terms crime rose by 4.8% (1,090 crimes) during 2013/14. This
follows a generally decreasing level of crime since 2009/10 and Cumbria has
the 2nd lowest number of reported crimes in England and Wales. Violence
against the person has increased by 803 (+18%) including increases in domestic
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Value for Money

Value for Money

Key findings - Chief Constable

Challenging economy, efficiency and effectiveness (continued)

violence and alcohol related violence. Cumbria has the lowest levels of violence
against the person of its most similar forces although above the average per violent
crime per 1,000 population. Across all types of crime Cumbria performed well
with comparatively low numbers of crimes reported.

HMIC reported in March 2014 that a lot of effective work was being done to
tackle domestic abuse in Cumbria but there were several areas for improvement to
ensure that a consistently good service is provided to victims of domestic abuse
across the whole of Cumbria. The CC is focused on addressing the continuing
challenge to protect and maximise visible frontline policing whilst facing the
challenge of reducing officer numbers. Arrangements are in place to work together
with the PCC to respond to this challenge.

Overall VFM conclusion - Chief Constable

On the basis of our work, and having regard to the guidance on the specified
criteria published by the Audit Commission, we are satisfied that in all significant
respects the Chief Constable has put in place proper arrangements to secute

economy, efficiency and effectiveness in his use of resources for the year ending
31 March 2014.
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Section 4: Fees, non audit services and independence

01. Executive summary There are no significant facts or matters that impact on our
02. Audit findings independence as auditors

03. Value for Money

Fees, non audit services and independence

05. Communication of audit matters
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Fees, non audit services and independence

Fees, non audit services and independence

We confirm below our final fees charged for the audits and confirm there were no fees for the provision of non-audit services.

Fees

Per Audit plan Actual fees

£ £
Police and Crime 40,450 40,450
Commissioner audit
Chief Constable audit 20,000 20,000
Total audit fees 60,450 60,450
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Fees for other services
Service Fees £

None Nil

Independence and ethics

Ethical standards and International Standards on Auditing (ISA) 260 require us to give you full and fair
disclosure of matters relating to our independence. In this context we disclose the following to you.

We have agreed to provide non-audit services relating to tax advisory services to the PCC. From
2014/15 for three years, the provision of a helpline has been agteed at an annual cost of /2,500 with the
option to take up additional consultancy services if desired.

For 2014/15, an additional piece of work has been agtreed to assist with the updating of the notice of
dispensation for the PCC and CC. The fee for this work is £4,000.

We are satisfied that this work does not impact on our independence and appropriate safeguards are in
place to ensure that this continues to be the case.
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Section 5: Communication of audit matters

01. Executive summary We have delivered out audit in accordance with planned
02. Audit findings timescales and the requirements of Auditing Standards.
03. Value for Money We expect to give our opinions by the statutory deadlines.

04. Fees, non audit services and independence

05. Communication of audit matters
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Communication of audit matters

Communication of audit matters to the Police and Crime Commissioner and

to the Chief Constable

International Standard on Auditing (ISA) 260, as well as other ISAs, prescribe matters
which we are required to communicate with those charged with governance, and which
we set out in the table opposite.

The Audit Plan outlined our audit strategy and plan to deliver the audit, while this Audit

Findings report presents the key issues and other matters arising from the audit, together

with an explanation as to how these have been resolved.

Respective responsibilities

The Audit Findings Report has been prepared in the context of the Statement of
Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies issued by the Audit Commission

( )

We have been appointed as the PCC's and the Chief Constable's independent external
auditors by the Audit Commission, the body responsible for appointing external auditors
to local public bodies in England. As external auditors, we have a broad remit covering
finance and governance matters.

Our annual work programme is set in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice (‘the
Code') issued by the Audit Commission and includes nationally prescribed and locally
determined work. Our work considers the Council's key risks when reaching our
conclusions under the Code.

It is the responsibility of the PCC and the Chief Constable to ensure that proper
arrangements are in place for the conduct of their business, and that public money is
safeguarded and properly accounted for. We have considered how the PCC and the
Chief Constable are fulfilling these responsibilities.

© 2014 Grant Thornton UK LLP

Our communication plan

Respective responsibilities of auditor and management/those
charged with governance

Overview of the planned scope and timing of the audit. Form, timing
and expected general content of communications

Views about the qualitative aspects of the entity's accounting and
financial reporting practices, significant matters and issues arising
during the audit and written representations that have been sought

Confirmation of independence and objectivity

A statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, relationships and other
matters which might be thought to bear on independence.

Details of non-audit work performed by Grant Thornton UK LLP and
network firms, together with fees charged

Details of safeguards applied to threats to independence
Material weaknesses in internal control identified during the audit

Identification or suspicion of fraud involving management and/or
others which results in material misstatement of the financial
statements

Compliance with laws and regulations

Expected auditor's report

Uncorrected misstatements

Significant matters arising in connection with related parties

Significant matters in relation to going concern

Audit Audit
Plan  Findings
v
v
v
v
v
v
v
v

30


http://www.audit-commission.gov.uk/
http://www.audit-commission.gov.uk/
http://www.audit-commission.gov.uk/

Appendices
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Appendices

Appendix A: Audit opinion for the Group and the Police and Crime

Commissioner for Cumbria

We anticipate we will provide the PCC with an unmodified audit report

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE POLICE AND CRIME COMMISSIONER
FOR CUMBRIA

Opinion on the financial statements

We have audited the financial statements for the Police and Crime Commissioner for Cumbria for the year
ended 31 March 2014 under the Audit Commission Act 1998. The financial statements comptise the Police
and Crime Commissioner Single Entity and Group Movement in Reserves Statement, the Police and Crime
Commissioner Single Entity and Group Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, the Police and
Crime Commissioner Single Entity and Group Balance Sheet, the Police and Crime Commissioner Single
Entity and Group Cash Flow Statement , the related notes and Annex A and include the police pension fund
financial statements comprising the Pension Fund Account, the Net Assets Statement and the related notes.
The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and the
CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authotity Accounting in the United Kingdom 2013/14.

This report is made solely to the Police and Crime Commissioner for Cumbria in accordance with Part 1T of
the Audit Commission Act 1998 and for no other purpose, as set out in paragraph 48 of the Statement of
Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies published by the Audit Commission in March 2010. To the
fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Police
and Crime Commissioner for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of the Chief Finance Officer and auditor

As explained more fully in the Statement of the Chief Finance Officer’s Responsibilities, the Chief Finance
Officer is responsible for the preparation of the Statement of Accounts, which includes the financial
statements, in accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on
Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom, and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair
view. Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require us to
comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors.

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements
sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement,
whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of: whether the accounting policies are
appropriate to the Police and Crime Commissioner Single Entity and Group's circumstances and have been
consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
the Chief Finance Officer; and the overall presentation of the financial statements.
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In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the PCC Chief Finance Officer
Introduction and Summary of Accounts to identify material inconsistencies with the audited financial
statements and to identify any information that is appatently materially incorrect based on, or materially
inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing the audit. If we become aware
of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report.

Opinion on financial statements

In our opinion the financial statements:

e give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Police and Crime Commissioner for Cumbria as
at 31 March 2014 and of its expenditure and income for the year then ended;

e give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2014 and of its
expenditure and income for the year then ended; and

*  have been propetly prepared in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local
Authotity Accounting in the United Kingdom 2013/14 and applicable law.

Opinion on other matters

In our opinion, the information given in the PCC Chief Finance Officer Introduction and Summary of
Accounts for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the
financial statements.

Matters on which we report by exception

We report to you if:

* in our opinion the annual governance statement does not reflect compliance with ‘Delivering Good
Governance in Local Government: a Framework’ published by CIPFA/SOLACE in June 2007;

*  weissue a report in the public interest under section 8 of the Audit Commission Act 1998;

*  we designate under section 11 of the Audit Commission Act 1998 any recommendation as one that
requires the Police and Crime Commissioner to consider it at a public meeting and to decide what action
to take in response; or

* we exercise any other special powers of the auditor under the Audit Commission Act 1998.

We have nothing to report in these respects.
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Appendices

Appendix A: Audit opinion for the Group and the Police and Crime

Commissioner for Cumbria (continued)

Conclusion on the Police and Crime Commissioner's arrangements for securing economyj, efficiency
and effectiveness in the use of resources

Respective responsibilities of the Police and Crime Commissioner and the auditor

The Police and Crime Commissioner is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements to secure
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources, to ensure proper stewardship and governance,
and to review regularly the adequacy and effectiveness of these arrangements.

We are required under Section 5 of the Audit Commission Act 1998 to satisfy ourselves that the Police and
Crime Commissioner has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in
its use of resources. The Code of Audit Practice issued by the Audit Commission requites us to report to you
our conclusion relating to proper arrangements, having regard to relevant criteria specified by the Audit
Commission.

We report if significant matters have come to our attention which prevent us from concluding that the
Police and Crime Commissioner has put in place proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in its use of resources. We are not required to consider, nor have we considered, whether all
aspects of the Police and Crime Commissioner’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in its use of resources are operating effectively.

Scope of the review of arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of
resources

We have undertaken our audit in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice, having regard to the guidance
on the specified criteria, published by the Audit Commission in October 2013, as to whether the Police and
Crime Commissioner has proper arrangements for:

¢ securing financial resilience; and

¢ challenging how it secures economy, efficiency and effectiveness.

The Audit Commission has determined these two criteria as those necessary for us to consider under the
Code of Audit Practice in satisfying ourselves whether the Police and Crime Commissioner put in place
proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year
ended 31 March 2014. We planned our work in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice. Based on our
risk assessment, we undertook such work as we considered necessary to form a view on whether, in all
significant respects, the Police and Crime Commissioner had put in place proper arrangements to secure
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.

© 2014 Grant Thornton UK LLP

Conclusion

On the basis of our work, having regard to the guidance on the specified criteria published by the Audit
Commission in October 2013, we are satisfied that, in all significant respects, the Police and Crime
Commissioner for Cumbria put in place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 31 March 2014.

Certificate

We certify that we have completed the audit of the financial statements of the Police and Crime
Commissioner for Cumbria in accordance with the requirements of the Audit Commission Act 1998 and the
Code of Audit Practice issued by the Audit Commission.

Fiona Blatcher
Engagement Lead

for and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK LLP, Appointed Auditor
4 Hardman Square,

Spinningfields,

Manchester

M3 3EB

September 2014
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Appendices

Appendix B: Audit opinion for the Chief Constable for Cumbria Police

We anticipate we will provide the Chief Constable with an unmodified audit report

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE CHIEF CONSTABLE OF CUMBRIA
POLICE

Opinion on the financial statements

We have audited the financial statements of the Chief Constable for Cumbria Police for the year ended 31
March 2014 under the Audit Commission Act 1998. The financial statements comprise the Movement in
Reserves Statement, the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, the Balance Sheet, the Cash
Flow Statement , the related notes and Annex A and include the police pension fund financial statements
comprising the Pension Fund Account, the Net Assets Statement and the related notes. The financial
reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and the CIPFA/LASAAC
Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2013/14.

This report is made solely to the Chief Constable for Cumbria Police in accordance with Part II of the Audit
Commission Act 1998 and for no other purpose, as set out in paragraph 48 of the Statement of
Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies published by the Audit Commission in March 2010. To the
fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Chief
Constable for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of the Chief Finance Officer and auditor

As explained more fully in the Statement of the Chief Finance Officer’s Responsibilities, the Chief Finance
Officer is responsible for the preparation of the Statement of Accounts, which includes the financial
statements, in accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on
Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom, and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair
view. Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require us to
comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors.

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements
sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement,
whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of: whether the accounting policies are
appropriate to the Chief Constable's circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately
disclosed; the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the Chief Finance Officer and the
overall presentation of the financial statements.
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In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the CC Chief Finance Officer
Introduction and Summary of Accounts to identify matetial inconsistencies with the audited financial
statements and to identify any information that is appatently materially incorrect based on, or matetially
inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing the audit. If we become aware
of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report.

Opinion on financial statements

In our opinion the financial statements:

*  give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Chief Constable for Cumbria Police as at 31
March 2014 and of its expenditute and income for the year then ended; and

*  have been properly prepared in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2013/14 and applicable law.

Opinion on other matters

In our opinion, the information given in the CC Chief Finance Officer Introduction and Summary of
Accounts for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the
financial statements.

Matters on which we report by exception

We repott to you if:

* in our opinion the annual governance statement does not reflect compliance with ‘Delivering Good
Governance in Local Government: a Framework’ published by CIPFA/SOLACE in June 2007;

*  we issue a report in the public interest under section 8 of the Audit Commission Act 1998;

¢ we designate under section 11 of the Audit Commission Act 1998 any recommendation as one that
requires the Chief Constable to consider it at a public meeting and to decide what action to take in
response; or

* we exercise any other special powers of the auditor under the Audit Commission Act 1998.

We have nothing to report in these respects.

Conclusion on the Chief Constable’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in the use of resources

Respective responsibilities of the Chief Constable and the auditor

The Chief Constable is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency
and effectiveness in its use of resources, to ensure proper stewardship and governance, and to review
regularly the adequacy and effectiveness of these arrangements.
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Appendices

Appendix B: Audit opinion for the Chief Constable for Cumbria Police
(continued)

We are required under Section 5 of the Audit Commission Act 1998 to satisfy ourselves that the Chief
Constable has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of
resources. The Code of Audit Practice issued by the Audit Commission requires us to report to you our
conclusion relating to proper arrangements, having regard to relevant criteria specified by the Audit
Commission.

We report if significant matters have come to our attention which prevent us from concluding that the Chief
Constable has put in place proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use
of resources. We are not required to consider, nor have we considered, whether all aspects of the Chief
Constable’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources are
operating effectively.

Scope of the review of arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of
resources

We have undertaken our audit in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice, having regard to the guidance
on the specified criteria, published by the Audit Commission in October 2013, as to whether the Chief
Constable has proper arrangements for:

*  securing financial resilience; and

* challenging how it secures economy, efficiency and effectiveness.

The Audit Commission has determined these two criteria as those necessary for us to consider under the
Code of Audit Practice in satisfying ourselves whether the Chief Constable put in place proper arrangements
for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 31 March 2014.

We planned our work in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice. Based on our risk assessment, we
undertook such work as we considered necessary to form a view on whether, in all significant respects, the
Chief Constable had put in place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its
use of resources.
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Conclusion

On the basis of our work, having regard to the guidance on the specified criteria published by the Audit
Commission in October 2013, we are satisfied that, in all significant respects, the Chief Constable for
Cumbria Police put in place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use
of resources for the year ended 31 March 2014.

Certificate

We certify that we have completed the audit of the financial statements of the Chief Constable for Cumbria
Police in accordance with the requirements of the Audit Commission Act 1998 and the Code of Audit
Practice issued by the Audit Commission.

Fiona Blatcher
Engagement Lead

for and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK LLP, Appointed Auditor
4 Hardman Square,

Spinningfields,

Manchester

M3 3EB

September 2014

35



o Grant Thornton

© 2014 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

‘Grant Thornton' means Grant Thornton UK LLP, a limited
liability partnership.

Grant Thornton is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd
(Grant Thornton International). References to 'Grant Thornton' are
to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms operate
and refer to one or more member firms, as the context requires.
Grant Thornton International and the member firms are not a
worldwide partnership. Services are delivered independently by
member firms, which are not responsible for the services or activities
of one another. Grant Thornton International does not provide
services to clients.

grant-thornton.co.uk



cOWMBR/,
) ' Cumbria Office of the Police and Crime
Commissioner

FPE Y
0 \\g\‘é\ Agenda Item Number - 6i
Mg c©

@ 30|7O°,
’Ss1oNEY

Annual Statement of Accounts 2013-14: Assurance Framework

Report to the Police and Crime Commissioner and Audit and Standards Committee 22nd September 2014

Report of the Chief Finance Officer

1. Introduction and Background

1.1 This report sets out for the Commissioner, and members of the Audit and Standards Committee, those
areas of governance and audit pertaining to scrutiny and formal approval of the 2013-14 Statement of
Accounts. This report covers the single entity financial statements of the Police and Crime Commissioner and
the Group financial statements. The report sets out the opinion of the Commissioner’s appointed auditor and
amendments made to the Accounts, and accompanying governance statement, as a consequence of the
findings of the audit. It also sets out information provided to Ms Blatcher, of Grant Thornton UK LLP, the

Commissioner’s appointed auditor, as part of the regulatory requirement for a letter of representation.

1.2 The report includes an appendix that provides a narrative on the financial statements (appendix a).
The appendix aims to support members of the Audit and Standards Committee in undertaking their assurance
role by providing a narrative in respect of the sources of assurance available to them and on the substantive
issues that have been considered in respect of the production of the financial statements. It also sets out how
the Commissioner has responded to CIPFA’s November 2013 publication’ setting out good practice in respect of

the financial statements.

2. Formal Approval of the Audited Statements

2.1 The Statement of Accounts were authorised by the Chief Finance Officer on 25th June 2014 in
accordance with the 2011 Accounts and Audit Regulations. The audit having now been completed, the Chief
Finance Officer is required to again certify the statements and present them to the Commissioner for formal
approval.  Prior to certification the Commissioner will take into consideration the Audit Findings Report from

Ms Blatcher. The Commissioner will also take into consideration the views of members of the Audit and

1 The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy: financial statements\a good practice guide for
local authorities
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Standards Committee. The Committee will receive the Statement of Accounts and the Audit Findings Report.
They will consider whether appropriate accounting policies have been followed and whether there are concerns
arising from the financial statements or from the audit that need to be brought to the attention of the

Commissioner.

3. Appointed Auditor’s Audit Findings Report

3.1 Preceding this item on your agenda is the Audit Findings Report from Ms Blatcher, of Grant Thornton
UK LLP, the Commissioner’s appointed auditor. Ms Blatcher reports on her completion of the annual audit of
the Statements of Account for 2013-14. The Commissioner and members of the Audit and Standards
Committee will be pleased to see her intention, based on her findings to date, to issue an unqualified audit
opinion in respect of the Statement of Accounts for the year to 31 March 2014 and in respect of the

Commissioner’s arrangements to secure Value for Money.

3.2 The principal financial statements are the movement in reserves statement (MIRS), the comprehensive
income and expenditure statement (CI&ES), the balance sheet and cash flow statement. The auditors have not

identified any misstatements in respect of the principle statements within the PCC, CC or group accounts.

3.3 The auditors have considered internal controls that are relevant to the preparation of the financial
statements. They have not identified any significant control deficiencies that they wish to bring to the attention

of the Commissioner.

3.4 There have been several minor adjustments to financial statements, the majority of which are
amendments related to the wording of disclosures in respect of the local government pension fund and
amendments to disclosures around the PFl arrangement. Further detail of these amendments are referred to in
the Auditor’s report. The changes are also highlighted within the copy of the financial statements presented to
the Joint Audit and Standards Committee. No amendments that alter reported financial performance were

required.

3.5 The appointed auditor has noted one instance where the Commissioner is not fully compliant with the
Code of Practice in respect of asset valuations. The wording of The Code has been amended with an implication
for annual valuations. The Commissioner operates a five year rolling programme of valuations. The auditors
have confirmed that whilst the programme is not compliant with The Code, they are satisfied that the value of

assets is materially correct.

3.6 The Commissioner and members of the Committee will also be pleased to note the auditor’s positive

conclusion in respect of the presentational changes to the financial statements made to de-clutter supporting
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notes and improve the readability of the accounts. They note that these changes have worked well in providing
a clearer and easier to read set of accounts. The auditor’s further conclude that working papers remain of a

good standard, and responses to audit queries have been prompt and satisfactory

4 Post Balance Sheet Event

4.1 A post balance sheet event is an event, subsequent to the date of the financial statements, and for which
International Financial Reporting Standards and the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting (COPLAA)
require adjustment or disclosure. There have been no post balance sheet events following authorisation of the

financial statement by the Chief Finance Officer on 25" June and to the issuing of this report.

5 2013-14 Governance Statements

5.1 The Police and Crime Commissioner approved his 2013-14 Annual Governance Statement (AGS) on
24th June 2014. Minor changes to the AGS were made following recommendation from the external auditors.
Specifically, the action point (CP1/6), within core principle 6, engaging with local people and other stakeholders
to ensure robust public accountability, has been further developed to provide more detail on work that has
been delivered and is planned in response to the new CIPFA guidance2 on the financial statements. The action
plan in respect of the 2013-14 actions has been reformatted to set out completed actions in a column
independently from the original action description. There have been changes to wording to explicitly confirm
that the Commissioner’s CFO has operated in accordance with the 2012 CIPFA guidance on the Role of the Chief
Finance Office and to further explain the role of the Monitoring Office. The changes are highlighted for

members in the copy of the AGS appended to the financial statements.

6 Letter of Management Representation

6.1 At the conclusion of the audit of the Statement of Accounts, but before an opinion can be given, a
‘Letter of Management Representation’ is provided to the appointed auditors by the Chief Finance Officer on
behalf of the Commissioner. The underlying purpose of the letter is to confirm that the financial statements
reflect a true and fair view in accordance with international financial reporting. The letter sets out that relevant
codes, standards and statutory directions have been complied with and that we have made reasonable
estimates and judgements in undertaking accounting entries and disclosures. The letter also confirms that

there has been full disclosure of all matters requiring disclosure to our auditors. The Letter of Management

2 The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy: financial statements\a good practice guide for
local authorities
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Representation is attached at appendix b.

7 Acknowledgements

7.1 The work undertaken in preparing the Statement of Accounts and supporting the audit for the year
places very significant demands on staff within the finance services team. Key amongst those has been
Michelle Bellis, Deputy Chief Finance Officer and Lorraine Holme, Principal Financial Services Officer, who have
once again secured for the Commissioner another clean audit. This report also acknowledges the work

undertaken by our colleagues in external audit headed by Fiona Blatcher and Richard McGahon.

8 Recommendations

8.1 Following consideration of the findings and conclusions of the Appointed Auditor it is recommended

that:

= Members of the Audit and Standards Committee determine whether there are any issues in respect of

governance or the statement of accounts that they wish to report to the Commissioner

=  The Commissioner signs the audited Statement of Accounts and authorises for publication the Accounts

and accompanying Governance Statement.
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Appendix A

1 Introduction and Background

1.1 The Police and Crime Commissioner will sign the annual statement of accounts following audit and the
review process by the Audit and Standards Committee. Members of the Audit and Standards Committee will
receive a copy of the audited accounts and accompanying governance statement for which they have a review
and assurance role. The Statement of Accounts are highly complex technical documents. They take a number
of weeks to produce and a similar period of time to audit by a team of technical and experienced staff. The
audit process will typically involve support from national technical teams who assess and advise on accounting
treatment for complex transactions against the requirements of international financial reporting standards and

codes of practice. Within the finance profession, the Statement of Accounts is a very specialist field.

1.2 In this context, this narrative aims to provide a guide to the considerations that the Commissioner and
Members of the Audit and Standard Committee can reasonably be expected to take account of, in carrying out a
review process and undertaking to approve the Statement of Accounts. It covers two main areas, sources of
assurance for the financial statements and key challenges. These are the areas that influence the dialogue and
engagement between the finance staff preparing the accounts and those undertaking the audit. In doing this,
the narrative aims to ensure that members have sufficient information to fulfil their assurance role and that the

Commissioner can place reliance on this assurance in approving the Statement of Accounts.

2 Sources of Assurance

2.1 The Statement of Accounts consolidates financial transactions for a financial year and records the
position as at 31" March in respect of assets and liabilities including reserves and cash flow. They include a
number of year end accounting entries that ensure income and expenditure is presented on an accruals basis,
that assets and liabilities are recorded in accordance with accounting standards and codes and that the financial
implications of those assets and liabilities are adjusted such that net expenditure reflects the actual cost funded
by external financing (government grants and the council tax payer). They are accompanied by accounting
policies that explain how those transactions and balances have been accounted for and a set of notes that

provide further detail on amounts included within the main financial statements.
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2.2 Those undertaking a review of the accounts will not usually be in a position to determine whether the
presented figures are correct based on a reading of the financial statements and notes. The review processes
must therefore place reliance on wider sources of assurance from which it is reasonable to make a judgement
that the accounts present a true and fair view. The main sources of assurance that support this process are the
opinion of the Chief Finance Officer (CFO), the opinion of the Chief Internal Auditor and the opinion of the
Appointed Auditor. These opinions are supported by the statements made by the Commissioner’s Chief Finance
Officer, on behalf of the Commissioner, with the letter of representation and by the Commissioner’s Annual
Governance Statement, signed by the Commissioner, the Commissioner’s Monitoring Officer and the

Commissioner’s CFO.

2.2.1  The Chief Finance Officer’s (CFO) Annual Review of Internal Audit: The CFO will annually provide to
members a report on the effectiveness of the arrangements for audit. In presenting this opinion, the CFO will

take into account the opinion of the external auditors on the quality of the internal
Sources of Assurance
audit function. The CFO will also consider how well the function complies with the

Public Sector Audit Standards (PSIAS) introduced with applicability from 1% April 2013, “Internal audit work
contributes to an

effective control
Commissioner within their annual audit plan, 31% March 2014, that ‘the internal audit ~ environment at both
entities” Grant
Thornton, the

the Chief Constable and that internal audit work contributes to an effective control ~ Commissioner and
Chief Constable’s
appointed auditor.

The external auditors advised members of the Audit and Standards Committee and the
service continues to provide an independent and satisfactory service to the PCC and

environment at both entities’. The Commissioner has approved an Internal Audit

Charter in compliance with the PSIAS and members of the Committee have received
“There are no material

reports from the Head of Internal Audit on the implementation of actions that ensure shortcomings in the

the full compliance of the audit service with the Charter and Standards. The Chief  effectiveness of the
entirety of the Internal

Finance Officers 2013-14 review included a review of the effectiveness of the audit Audit arrangements for

committee in fulfilling its assurance function. The review concluded that “there are no ~ the year to 31 March
2014.” Commissioner’s

material shortcomings in the effectiveness of the entirety of the Internal Audit  cpief Finance Officer

arrangements for the year to 31 March 2014.” This assurance enables the

Commissioner and members of the Audit and Standards Committee to place reliance

on the opinion of the Chief Internal Auditor and the findings of internal audit.

2.2.2  The opinion of the Chief Internal Auditor (CIA): The CIA provides an annual opinion on the internal
control environment. The opinion is based on the audit reviews undertaken over the course of the financial
year. Audits are risk based and include cyclical reviews of the material financial systems. The findings of the CIA
are set out in an annual report. The CIA’s opinion for 2013/14 is that “I am satisfied that sufficient internal audit
work has been undertaken to allow me to give a reasonable conclusion on the adequacy and effectiveness of
risk management, governance and internal control. | can also report that there has been no threat to the

independence of internal audit that would impact on the provision of my annual opinion statement. In my
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Sources of Assurance

“In my opinion, the PCC and
Constabulary’s frameworks
of governance, risk and
internal control is
reasonable and audit
testing has confirmed that
controls are generally
working effectively in
practice” the Commissioner
and Chief Constable’s Chief
Internal Auditor.

11 financial audits

opinion, the PCC and Constabulary’s frameworks of governance, risk and internal
control is reasonable and audit testing has confirmed that controls are generally

working effectively in practice”.

The opinion is based on 17 audits. 9 of those have concluded that compliance
with controls is ‘good’, of the remaining reports 5 have been awarded a
‘satisfactory’ conclusion, 2 received a ‘fair’ conclusion and 1 has received a ‘weak’
conclusion. All 9 audit reports receiving a conclusion of Good were in relation to
financial audits. This audits have covered the main financial system, payroll,

pensions, the capital programme, treasury management, income and banking and

undertaken during 2013/14
with 9 receiving the highest
audit conclusion ‘good’,
including the audit of the
main financial system.

budget management. 2 financial audits (debtors and financial administration with
the Territorial Policing Areas (TPA’s)) received a satisfactory audit conclusion.
There were no financial audits receiving a conclusion below the level of
satisfactory. Collectively, the findings of financial audits reported to the Audit and
Standards Committee and the overall opinion of the Chief Internal Auditor will
provide assurance to members and the Commissioner on the integrity of the underlying financial transactions

and their representation within the financial ledger that is used to produce the financial statements.

2.2.3  The opinion of the Appointed Auditor: The Appointed Auditor will provide  Sources of Assurance

an independent external opinion on the financial statements following the audit “We have not identified any
adjustments affecting the
Police and Crime
Commissioner's or the Chief
Constable's financial
position and we are
expecting to issue an
unqualified opinion on the
financial statements.”

process. In forming this audit opinion they will undertake a range of audit work. This
will include reconciling the figures within the accounts to the financial ledger,
undertaking a computer based analytical review to validate the accuracy of material
transactions and undertaking further systems based sample testing of ledger
amounts back to the primary financial transaction. The external auditors will also
review accounting policies and ensure accounting estimates, manual entries and the

The opinion of the
Commissioner’s appointed
auditors, Grant Thornton.

presentation of financial information is consistent with policy, financial reporting
standards and codes of practice. The external audit is typically undertaken by a team
of professionally qualified staff who will audit a number of public and/or private
sector clients. They will have access to national technical support and quality

controls at a regional and national level to support the integrity of the audit and ensure specialist advice and
input is given to the treatment of complex transactions of a technical nature. The annual audit findings report
of the Appointed Auditor is made to the Commissioner and Members preceding this item on the agenda and
presents the Appointed Auditors intention to issue an “unqualified audit opinion” on the financial statements.
2.2.4  The Letter of Representation: The letter of representation is provided at appendix b and referenced in

the main body of this report. The letter provides assurances from the Commissioner to the Appointed Auditor.

The letter is written on behalf of the Commissioner by the Chief Finance Officer. That officer, as required under
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legislation, must be financially qualified. Within the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner, that officer is
a member of the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy with a requirement to abide by codes of
practice, standards and ethics. These arrangements provide assurance that members can place reliance on the
representations made by the Chief Finance Officer in the letter of representation on behalf of the
Commissioner. There have been no specific matters raised by the Commissioner in the letter of representation

for 2013/14 and all appropriate assurances have been provided to the external auditors.

2.2.5 The Annual Governance Statement: The Annual Governance Statement (AGS) is presented to
members in June with a number of supporting governance papers including the Code of Corporate Governance.
The Code of Corporate Governance sets out the Commissioners arrangements for Governance including
financial governance. The AGS details how the Commissioner has complied with the governance framework set
out within the Code. The Statement is signed by the Commissioner and the Commissioner’s statutory
Monitoring Officer and Chief Finance Officer. The Annual Governance Statement is submitted for examination
by the Commissioner’s Internal Auditors. Collectively the Code and AGS provide members with assurance that
the Commissioner has in place appropriate arrangements for financial and wider governance matters including

arrangements for managing risks and internal controls.

2.3 Collectively, these sources of assurance, where they are operating to the satisfaction of members, can
support conclusions in respect of the extent to which the committee is reasonably able to provide the related

assurance to the Police and Crime Commissioner in reviewing the financial statements.

3 Key Challenges

3.1 The Police Reform and Social Responsibly Act 2011 (PRSRA) established the Police and Crime
Commissioner (PCC) and the Chief Constable (CC) as separate corporate entities on the 22" November 2012.
The implications of this change are that there is a requirement for the PCC and the CC to have single entity
Statement of Accounts and for a consolidated group Statement of Accounts. To achieve this, consideration
needs to be given to whether income and expenditure and assets and liabilities should be disclosed within the
single entity statements of the PCC or the CC. On consolidation any inter-entity transactions must be written

out of the group statements.

3.2 During 2013/14 all staff were employed by the Commissioner and the Commissioner had ownership
and control of all assets. Staff are however managed by the Chief Constable and/or the Commissioner and the
Commissioner’s assets are used to deliver police services directed by the CC. The Commissioner holds and
operates all arrangements for banking and treasury activity, including the raising of orders and payment of
invoices. The significant proportion of these transactions are for supplies and services consumed by the
Constabulary. Staff under the management of the Chief Constable carry out the financial administrative

support. These arrangements mean that the allocation of income and expenditure and assets and liabilities
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between the single entity financial statements are complex. This paper sets out the key accounting
considerations and the rationale that influences decision making in respect of how these matters are presented

within the statements.

Group Accounts: Determining that the relationship between the PCC and CC is one of control such that the CCis a
subsidiary and there is a requirement for group accounts.

Determining the The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting defines a subsidiary as an entity that is

relationship between
the PCC and CC

controlled by another entity. Control is defined in a number of ways, including the power

to govern financial and operating policies under statute or an agreement, and the power to

Conclusion: the
relationship is one of
control such that the

appoint or remove the governing body.

CCis considered a With regard to the relationship between the PCC and CC in respect of governing operating
subsidiary of the PCC

and there is a policies, the relationship was considered to be more accurately defined as one where the
requirement for group PCC has significant influence rather than control. This is because the PCC influences

accounts.
operational policy by setting the strategic direction for policing through the Police and

Crime Plan. It is however difficult to make a case that the relationship is one of control or
joint control over those policies because the CC has operational independence. Control is stronger over finance
policy as a result of the PCC’s decision making autonomy in respect of the budget, and the controls that operate
through a funding agreement between the PCC and CC. In addition and significantly, the PCC has the power to
appoint or remove the CC (the governing body). Collectively this was considered to amount to a relationship of

control and as such the CCis considered a subsidiary with a requirement for group accounts.

Disclosure of Resources: The extent to which police officers, civilian members of police staff, other police staff and
assets should be disclosed with their associated liabilities within the PCC or CC financial

statements. Determining whether

employee costs and

Within the Accounts, expenditure on staffing resources and assets within the  associated liabilities
should be disclosed
within the PCC or CC

and liabilities on the Balance Sheet. The liabilities include issues such as pension fund single entity statements.

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is matched by respective assets

deficits (staff) and depreciation (assets) that are accounted for on an IFRS basis and Conclusion: Police Officer

adjusted through the statutory override. In producing the accounts for the single entity  and Civilian Police Staff
costs/liabilities are
included in the accounts
of the CC. The
costs/liabilities of Police
Staff not employed solely
where the primary disclosures should be made to assist the force
(primarily support staff)
are included in accounts

statements this means that decisions have to be taken on:
= the balance of control and economic benefit over resources in order to establish
= an appropriate means of charging some of the expenditure from the primary

disclosure to the other entity to reflect the shared use of some assets and staff ~ of the PCC.

resources
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Decision making is primarily underpinned by the respective statutory duties and responsibilities of the PCC and
CC as set out in the PRSRA 2011 and the Policing Protocol Order (PPO). This is further supported by the
Commissioner’s governance arrangements. The significant governance documents are the scheme of

delegation and the funding agreement.

Of most significance in regard to the treatment of assets and staffing resources is the issue of control and

receipt of economic benefit. The following statutory points are considered to be relevant:

= The Commissioner’s functions in relation to policing are to secure the maintenance of the force and ensure
that it is efficient and effective. The Commissioner holds the CC to account for his/her functions and the
functions of persons under the direction and control of the CC. The Commissioner is also responsible for

setting the strategic direction of the force and policing objectives through the Police and Crime Plan.

= The CC has a number of statutory functions, of significance of which is responsibility for maintaining the
Queen’s peace through the exercise of police powers. Police officers and civilian staff (defined in the PRSRA
2011 as employed solely to assist the force) are directed and controlled by the CC towards policing activity
to fulfil these functions. The CC is accountable for supporting the PCC in the delivery of the strategy and

objectives set out in the Police and Crime Plan.

= Whilst the Commissioner holds the CC to account in respect of having regard to the Police and Crime Plan,
the CC must be consulted by the Commissioner on The Plan. It is the CC who will largely determine how
those objectives are delivered and the allocation of resources to meet them. The CC is also responsible for
having regard to the Strategic Policing Requirement as set by the Home Secretary when exercising and
planning policing functions. Overall resource allocations therefore take account of the statutory function of
maintaining the Queen’s peace, the priorities within the Police and Crime Plan (set by the Commissioner
but in consultation with the CC) and the Strategic Policing Requirement. The CC has direction and control

of Police Officers and all operational staff in making those decisions.

= |n respect of economic benefit, both the Commissioner and the CC obtains benefit from the staffing and
assets under the CC’s direction and control. The argument for economic benefit, given that staffing
resources can only be in one set of accounts, would appear to be stronger in respect of the Chief Constable
given the duty to maintain the Queen’s peace. This is further supported by Constables holding office under
the crown and the CC being accountable to the law for the exercise of police powers. The CC is also
responsible to the public. Further to this, the Police and Crime Plan is now a multi-agency strategy through
which services are commissioned across a number of partnerships. The assets and resources of wider
partners are not being included on the PCC’s balance sheet. The Policing Protocol Order states that, ‘at all
times the Chief Constable, their constables and staff, remain operationally independent in the service of the

communities they serve”.
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= Public management of the Police Fund rests with the PCC. The PCC and CC share responsibility for effective
management of the policing budget and securing value for money. The CC has day to day responsibility for
managing allocated budgets and ensuring financial management is consistent with PCC
objectives/conditions. Both operationally and financially the PCC has a strategic and accountability role but
the CC has operational control within that strategic framework. The CC is responsible for assisting the PCC
in planning the force budget. This provides the PCC with control but the CC will have substantial influence.
Influence is likely to be more effectively exercised where the force is performing well and meeting strategic
objectives, which is the case in Cumbria. In practice most of the objectives will be shared and heavily
influenced by the professional opinion of the CC. These matters will be taken into account by the PCC in

exercising the statutory responsibility for the Police and Crime Plan.

= Police officer and civilian staff of the force are required statutorily to be under the direction and control of
the Chief Constable irrespective of the legal employer. The CC must exercise his/her powers of direction
and control in a way to assist the Commissioner but direction and control rests with the Chief Constable
and the requirement to delegate control of those resources is statutory. The PCC must not fetter the
operational independence of the Police Force and the Chief Constable who leads it. Information required by
the PCC from the CC must not fetter the CC’s direction and control of the Force. The requirement to
consult with the PCC on staffing matters only applies to officers/staff above the rank of Chief
Superintendent/police staff equivalents. The PPO also requires the CC to explain to the public the
operational actions of officers and staff under their command. The issues of command and direction and
control combined with the requirements around operational independence appear to support the CC as the

entity that is controlling the majority of staffing resources.

As a result of the statutory requirements to vest direction and control with the CC, the scheme of delegation for
Cumbria policing area identifies all police staff that are considered to fall within the definition of civilian staff.
The PCC must and has vested all decision making in respect of these staff with the CC. The funding agreement
between the PCC and CC passes budget responsibly in respect of these staff to the CC and provides the CC with
autonomy of decision making in respect of those budgets. On the basis of direction and control, and on the
basis that the primary purpose of these staff and Constables is to maintain the Queen’s peace, the costs of
police officers and civilian staff are included in the accounts of the CC. Matching principles require related

pension liabilities to be treated in the same way.

Police staff that are not employed solely to assist the force (primarily support staff) are identified within the
Commissioner’s Scheme of Delegation as resources for which the PCC and PCC’s Chief Executive have ultimate
decision making responsibility. The scheme of delegation does not give direction and control to the CC for this
group of staff although the CC may have responsibility for line management. Decision making rests with PCC

and the Chief Executive. The budgets for these staff are retained by the PCC under the terms of the funding

1l1|Page



agreement between the PCC and the CC. The CC has no autonomy in respect of budgets, structures, terms etc
in respect of these staff. With regard to the accounts, this staff group is recognised as expenditure within the

accounts of the PCC with matching pension fund liabilities.

The single entity accounts are charged with a recharge to reflect the cost of services provided by one entity to
another entity where a single team provides support on a shared service basis. This is primarily in respect of
support staff expenditure, with costs initially disclosed in the accounts of the PCC, but where services are
provided to both the PCC and the CC. A charge is made to the CC to reflect the cost of service to the

Constabulary.

Capital assets for the balance sheet fall into three main areas, land and property, fleet and ICT. The treatment
of these assets is based on the requirements of the Code of Practice for Local Authority Accounting (COPLAA) in

respect of non-current assets. The relevant considerations have been:

= Asset recognition: assets are recognised on the balance sheet if it is probable that the future economic
benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the entity.

B Finance lease: transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset. Title
may or may not be eventually transferred.

= QOperating lease: a lease other than a finance lease

= Whether the lease is a finance lease or operating lease depends on the substance of the transaction rather

than the form of the contract.

A review of the control of assets and the risks and rewards pertaining to assets has determined that assets will

be disclosed on the balance sheet of the PCC. This has been based on:

= land and property assets: the PCC effectively acts as a landlord and is the recipient of the economic benefit

from the asset in terms of appreciation in value and the capital receipt from disposal.

Determining whether

The PCC makes all decisions with regard to property disposal and acquisition. The PCC  capijtal assets and

formally approves the capital strategy and property strategy and retains the budgets  /abilities should be

disclosed within the PCC

for estate management and maintenance. The CC can only enter into contracts to o €€ single entity

acquire property with the express consent of the PCC and may not own land. No  Statements.

such consents have been given.

Fleet and ICT assets are controlled by the PCC. The CC has no autonomy to act in
respect of any capital budgets or purchases. These are all retained by the PCC. The
PCC makes all decisions on capital strategy and capital acquisitions are subject to
approval by the PCC through a business case. The CC presents to the PCC asset

management strategies in respect of ICT and Fleet but has no independence of action

Conclusion: all capital
assets meet the definition
of an operating lease
with the PCC as the
lessor. Capital assets are
included within the
balance sheet of the PCC.
A charge is made to the
CC for their use.
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or any authority to enter into contracts without the approval of the PCC. No approval to enter into any
contracts has been given. On disposal of assets the PCC is the beneficiary of sale proceeds and funds from

his budget any acquisitions.

These arrangements are set out within the scheme of delegation and the funding agreement that governs the
relationship between the PCC and CC. A charge is made from the PCC to the CC to reflect the CC's use of PCC
assets. On the basis of these arrangements, all assets are considered to meet the definition of an operating

lease with the PCC as the lessor and the CC as lessee.

Debtors, Creditors and Cash

The arrangements between the PCC and CC do not provide any authorisation for the CC to enter into contracts.
The PCC operates a bank account and makes all arrangements for the procurement of supplies and services.
The making of creditor payments, recovery of debt and management of cash is transacted by the PCC on behalf
of both the PCC and the CC. The CC undertakes a number of activities that generate income. The PCC

statutorily is the recipient of all income and as such income collection and
Determining the

amounts of debtors,
creditors and cash within
the PCC and CC single
entity statements.

Conclusion: all external
debtor, creditor and cash
balances are shown
within the accounts of the
PCC. The single entity
statements show debtor
and creditor liabilities
between the PCC and CC.
The CC will have a single
cash flow transaction for
the net deficit on the
CI&ES.

generation activities are undertaken on behalf of the PCC and all income is
receipted to the PCC’s bank account. The CC is unable to borrow and has no
powers to undertake treasury transactions. The funding agreement between
the PCC and CC is made on the basis of cash flow. This means that the CC
receives a funding amount up to a maximum level of defined budget but can
only claim what has been spent. The PCC makes all payments on behalf of the

CC and as such the CC will not have any cash balances.

To reflect these arrangements within the statement of accounts, the PCC’s
financial statements disclose all external debtor and creditors, reflecting the
PCC’s liability in respect of these transactions. Both the PCC and CC’s financial
statements disclose any associated debtor and creditor liability between the

entities. These transactions are primarily in respect of the CC’s liability to the

PCC for external debtors where the CC has utilised the supply or service or the PCC’s liability to the CC to fund

accrued expenditure under the terms of the funding agreement. The PCC’s financial statements show all cash

transactions other than the movement through the CC’s cash flow statement for the net deficit on the C&IES.

2013/14 Financial Year Significant Accounting Changes
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The CC’s accounts contain staffing expenditure for police officers and operational staff and a
matched pension liability irrespective of their being employed by the PCC. This presentation
resulted in a high level of negative usable reserves within the 2012/13 financial statements of
the CC and the group. This was as a result of the absence of statutory powers to enable the
CC to enact a number of accounting transactions that are made to ensure that income and
expenditure, accounted for according to IFRS and codes of practice, impact on the statements
only at the amounts that would be a charge to income during the financial year.  The Anti-
Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014 conferred on the CC the necessary powers to
enact those transactions. The impact of this change in legislation is that a number of

transactions have been made within the 2013/14 financial statements to move those

amounts treated in the 2012/13 statements as negative usable reserves to unusable reserves.

Presentation of the Commissioner’s Group and Single Entity Financial Statements

2013/14 Financial
Year Significant
Accounting Changes

The CC has powers of
statutory override for
the 2013/14 financial
statements.
Transactions treated as
negative useable
reserves in 2012/13
have been moved to
unusable reserves in
2013/14 consistent
with the accounting
treatment applied with
the override powers.

As part of the process for producing the financial statements a significant amount of work has been undertaken

to consider how improvements could be made to financial reporting in the context of the 2013 CIPFA guidance,

financial statements\ a good practice guide for local authorities. The guidance explores a number of the factors

that influence the technical presentation of the financial statements and that impact on the extent to which the

financial statements communicate with the reader in a clear, understandable, interesting and engaging way.

The guidance advocates a de-cluttering approach that robustly challenges the need for the volume of

information provided within the statements on the grounds of materiality. It also encourages more substantive

debate on this issue between those producing the statements and their auditors.

Audit requirements are

considered to be a significant driver in respect of some of the more detailed information disclosures.

In taking account of this guidance, a number of changes have been made to the presentation of the financial

statements. The significant changes include:

Presentation of the PCC group and single entity financial statements as a single interrelated set of accounts.

The main financial statements are presented side by side and the notes to the accounts where practicable show

in a single table, but represented in separate columns, the group and single entity transactions. The accounting

policies are a single document but separately identify where the policy may not apply to the single entity. This

approach has a significant impact on reducing the volume of the statements by reducing the total number of

financial notes and simplifying the disclosures to a single narrative where this applies consistently to the single

entity and group.

Reducing the notes to the financial statements on the grounds of materiality, following discussions with the

appointed auditors. A number of areas of the financial statements were reviewed to determine the value of the

disclosures in communicating the material elements of the overall financial position. As a result of this work the

following notes have been substantially reduced or removed from the financial statements: agency fees,
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inventories/stocks and trust funds. In other notes such as financial instruments, intangible assets and
segmental reporting, changes to the presentation have been made to improve the readability of the

accounts. Both of these measures have been well received by the audit team.

Integration of the Introduction to the Financial Statements and the Summary Accounts into a single simplified
narrative that is presented at the start of the financial statements and that can also be used as a standalone
summary statement. The document sets out the financial positon on the basis of the management accounts,
provides a high level financial summary of each of the key financial statements and gives consideration to the

financial outlook for future years.

The incorporation of text boxes throughout the statements to highlight and explain a number of the more
regularly used technical terms. References to technical terms in the main text are shown in a different font
colour and are underlined to highlight for the reader that that the term is explained within the glossary.
Pictures of our HQ assets (Durranhill, Working and Barrow (artist’s impression) have been incorporated into
relevant sections of the statements to support the narrative. The narrative has been reviewed and simplified
where possible. The narrative is however largely reliant on the example notes within the Code of Practice
practitioner’s guidance. There is an audit expectation that the financial statements will closely follow the

example notes and these notes can be highly technical in their use of language.

This concludes the substantive matters considered as part of the production of the statement of accounts.
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Appendix B

cOMER,

> &
Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner Carleton Hall Penrith Cumbria CA10 2AU = .‘* ‘;
= o
Police & Crime Commissioner for Cumbria R Rhodes 2 M &
Chief Executive S Edwards Chief Finance Officer/Deputy Chief Executive R Hunter CPFA “90 &
. - . A
Call 01768 217734 email commissioner@cumbria-pcc.gov.uk Mg CO@
Grant Thornton UK LLP In case of enquiry please
Mrs Fiona Blatcher contact: P Coulter
Associate Director Tel. 01768 217734
C/O Lancashire County Council e-mail:
Portacabin paula.coulter@cumbria.police.uk
County Hall www.cumbria-pcc.gov.uk
PRESTON
Lancashire
PR1 8RE

22 September 2014
Dear Mrs Blatcher,

This representation letter is provided in connection with the audit of the group financial statements of The
Police and Crime Commissioner for Cumbria and its subsidiary undertaking, The Chief Constable for Cumbria
Constabulary, for the year ended 31 March 2014 for the purpose of expressing an opinion as to whether the
group financial statements give a true and fair view in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards.

| confirm that to the best of my knowledge and belief having made such inquiries as | considered necessary for
the purpose of appropriately informing myself:

Group Financial Statements

i I have fulfilled my responsibilities for the preparation of the group financial statements in accordance with
proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in Great
Britain ("the Code") as adapted for International Financial Reporting Standards; in particular the financial
statements give a true and fair view in accordance therewith. In respect of asset valuations, | operate a
five year rolling programme. Whilst this is not fully compliant with the Code | am satisfied that there is no
material misstatement in the valuation of assets.

i | have complied with the requirements of all statutory directions and these matters have been
appropriately reflected and disclosed in the group financial statements.

16| Page


mailto:paula.coulter@cumbria.police.uk
http://www.cumbria-pcc.gov.uk/

iv

Vi

vii

viii

Xi

Xii

Xiii

Xiv

As The Police and Crime Commissioner for Cumbria | have complied with all aspects of contractual
agreements that could have a material effect on the group financial statements in the event of non-
compliance.

| acknowledge my responsibility for the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control to
prevent and detect fraud.

Significant assumptions used by me in making accounting estimates, including those measured at fair
value, are reasonable.

| am satisfied that the material judgements used by me in the preparation of the group financial
statements are soundly based, in accordance with the Code, and adequately disclosed in the group
financial statements. There are no further material judgements that need to be disclosed.

Except as stated in the group financial statements:
a. there are no unrecorded liabilities, actual or contingent
b. none of the assets of The Police and Crime Commissioner have been assigned, pledged or
mortgaged
c. there are no material prior year charges or credits, nor exceptional or non-recurring items
requiring separate disclosure.

| confirm that | am satisfied that the actuarial assumptions underlying the valuation of pension scheme
liabilities for IAS19 disclosures are consistent with my knowledge. | confirm that all settlements and
curtailments have been identified and properly accounted for. | also confirm that all significant retirement
benefits have been identified and properly accounted for.

Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in
accordance with the requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards and the Code.

All events subsequent to the date of the group financial statements and for which International Financial
Reporting Standards and the Code require adjustment or disclosure have been adjusted or disclosed.

Actual or possible litigation and claims have been accounted for and disclosed in accordance with the
requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards.

The group financial statements are free of material misstatements, including omissions.

| have no plans or intentions that may materially alter the carrying value or classification of assets and
liabilities reflected in the group financial statements.

| believe that the group financial statements should be prepared on a going concern basis on the grounds
that current and future sources of funding or support will be more than adequate for the group’s needs. |
believe that no further disclosures relating to the group's ability to continue as a going concern need to be
made in the group financial statements.

Information Provided

XV

| have provided you with:
a. access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation of the
group financial statements such as records, documentation and other matters;

b. additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of your audit; and

17| Page



XVi

XVii

Xviii

XiX

XX

XXi

XXil

XXiii

c. unrestricted access to persons within the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner from
whom you determined it necessary to obtain audit evidence.

| have communicated to you all deficiencies in internal control of which management is aware.

All transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the group financial
statements.

| have disclosed to you the results of my assessment of the risk that the group financial statements may be
materially misstated as a result of fraud.

| have disclosed to you all information in relation to fraud or suspected fraud that | am aware of and that
affects The Police and Crime Commissioner for Cumbria and involves:

a. management;

b. employees who have significant roles in internal control; or

c. others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements.

| have disclosed to you all information in relation to allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud, affecting The
Police and Crime Commissioner for Cumbria’s group financial statements communicated by employees,
former employees, regulators or others.

| have disclosed to you all known instances of non-compliance or suspected non-compliance with laws and
regulations whose effects should be considered when preparing group financial statements.

I have disclosed to you the identity of The Police and Crime Commissioner for Cumbria's related parties
and all the related party relationships and transactions of which we are aware.

| have disclosed to you all known actual or possible litigation and claims whose effects should be
considered when preparing the group financial statements.

Annual Governance Statement

XXiV

| am satisfied that the Annual Governance Statement (AGS) fairly reflects The Police and Crime
Commissioner for Cumbria's risk assurance and governance framework and we confirm that we are not
aware of any significant risks that are not disclosed within the AGS

Approval

The approval of this letter of representation was minuted by the Executive Board at its meeting on 22
September 2014.

Mr Richard Rhodes
The Police and Crime Commissioner for Cumbria
22 September 2014
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About this Publication

This publication contains both the single entity financial statements for the Police and Crime Commissioner for
Cumbria (the Commissioner) and the financial statements for the group position which incorporates those of the
Chief Constable for Cumbria Constabulary.

The Statement of Accounts for A The Statement of Accounts is
2013/14 is available on the also available in printed
Commissioner’s website at format from the office of the
www.cumbria-pcc.gov.uk. Police and Crime

Commissioner for a nominal
The corresponding accounts for fee of £15 per copy.
the Chief Constable can be found Vv W
on the Constabulary website at: o

www.cumbria.police.uk

Alternative Formats

You can get a copy of this document in different formats such

as Iarge print, Braille, audio, or in a different language by
calling 01768 217734

Bengali
9 01768 217734 <% A T S04, e Fann e 95 {2,
TAZH, TEE | GFH G o TETT 92 et aF 0 Fe 7o A

Cantonese

MBERIRAOGZCSUAFHIARFERRA » 41 0 RFERENR ~ 3~ SMECREESHOR - 1§80 © 01768 217734,

Lithuanian
Paskambine telefonu 01768 217734, galite uZsisakyti Sio dokumento kopijg jvairiais formatais, pavyzdZiui,
atspausdintg dideliu Sriftu, Brailio rastu, uZzsisakyti garso jrasg arba gauti dokumentgy, iSverstg j norima kalba.

Polish
Aby otrzymac kopie tego dokumentu w innych formatach, takich jak duzy druk, druk Braille'm, audio, lub w innym
jezyku prosze dzwoni¢ pod numer 01768 217734.

Portuguese
Pode obter uma cdpia deste documento em varios formatos, como por exemplo em Braille, dudio, ou numa outra
lingua. Para tal ligue para 0 01768 217734.

Turkish
01768 217734’u arayarak, bu dokiimanin bir kopyasini bliylk puntolu, korler icin kabartmali, ses dosyasi gibi degisik
formatlarda veya farkl bir dilde edinebilirsiniz
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| am pleased to introduce the financial Statement of
Accounts for the 2013/14 financial year. This is the
second set of accounts for the Police and Crime
Commissioner for Cumbria. On 22 November 2012 the
Police and Crime Commissioner (the Commissioner) and
the Chief Constable were established as separate legal
entities with a requirement for single entity accounts.
The funding and accountability relationship between the
entities meets the definition of a subsidiary for the Chief
Constable.  This results in a requirement for the
Commissioner to produce consolidated group accounts.
This financial statement sets out both the single entity
statements of the Commissioner and the consolidated
group position. They are published in accordance with

the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2011.

The statement provides a breakdown of net spending
during the year and shows the strong overall financial
position of the Commissioner as at 31 March 2014. The
reporting format is specifically designed to meet the
requirements of the Code of Practice on financial
reporting. A series of notes are provided to assist
readers in their understanding of the statement, whilst
the presentational format is designed to make for easier
reading by those who access the document through the
Commissioner’s website: www.cumbria-pcc.gov.uk.
This introduction aims to provide a simplified summary
of the financial statements as part of this publication. It
is also available as stand-alone Summary Statement
document on the same website, together with the single
entity statements of the Chief Constable for Cumbria

Constabulary.

The Commissioner was established as a statutory entity
under the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act
2011 (PRSRA 2011). The PRSRA 2011 provides that there
will be a Police and Crime Commissioner for each police
area with responsibility for ensuring the maintenance of
the police force for the area, securing that the police
force is efficient and effective and holding the Chief
Constable to account. The Commissioner has wider
responsibilities than those solely relating to the police
force. These include responsibility for the delivery of
community safety and crime reduction, the
enhancement of the delivery of criminal justice in their

area and providing support to victims.

The PRSRA 2011 also established the Chief Constable as
a separate statutory entity, distinct from the
Commissioner and with operational independence. The
Chief Constable is responsible for maintaining the
Queen’s peace and the exercise of police powers. The
Chief Constable is accountable to the Commissioner for
leadership of the force, the delivery of efficient and
effective policing and the management of resources and

expenditure for the police force.

The PRSRA 2011 sets out the statutory financial
framework for the Commissioner and Chief Constable.
The legislation provides for the Secretary of State to
issue a financial code of practice in relation to the proper
administration of financial affairs. The Home Office
under the legislation issues a Financial Management
Code of Practice for the Police Forces of England and
Wales. The Code supports the statutory framework
further setting out the financial relationships and

requirements for the Commissioner and Chief Constable.
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This  financial framework provides that the
Commissioner  receives all  funding, including
government grants, council tax income and other
sources of income related to policing and crime
reduction. All funding for the Chief Constable must
come from the Commissioner. This, in addition to the
powers of the Commissioner to set the strategic
direction for policing and appoint and dismiss the Chief
Constable, creates a subsidiary relationship between the
Commissioner and the Chief Constable. As such, the
Commissioner must publish a set of group consolidated
accounts in addition to single entity accounts. The Chief
Constable must publish single entity accounts and
provide information to the Commissioner to support the

publication of group accounts.

The Commissioner incurs both revenue and capital
expenditure, although revenue expenditure is by far the
larger amount. Revenue expenditure can broadly be
described as day to day running costs and includes most
of the costs of operational policing in addition to
expenditure with wider partners on community safety
and crime reduction. It is funded through a mixture of
government grants, the principle of which are the police
grant and formula grant, together with locally raised

income from Council Tax.

Capital expenditure is made up broadly of expenditure
on non-current or fixed assets. These are assets that
have a useful life of beyond one year and include
expenditure on property, vehicles, ICT and other
equipment. Capital expenditure is funded from a home
office grant, capital receipts generated from the sale of
capital assets and by direct contributions from revenue

income.

The combined net revenue budget for the Commissioner
and the Constabulary for 2013/14 of £98.771m was set
by the Commissioner on 22 February 2013. Funding of
this amount came from formula and capital grants
(£65.830m), income from Council Tax and the
Commissioner’s share of District Council’s collection
funds net surplus (£32.941m). The capital budget was
set at £11.961m and included provision for the new

South Territorial Policing Area headquarters at Barrow.

The budget was supported by an increase in Council Tax
of 1.95%, taking the Commissioner’s proportion of the
band D equivalent tax to £204.66 per annum. The effect
of the increase is to support the medium term financial
forecast and mitigate some of the impact of cost
increases and reductions in government funding. The
overall position on income supported by the Council Tax
enabled the Commissioner to maintain the existing
establishment of police officer and police and
community support officer (PCSO) numbers. The Chief
Constable was provided with a budget of £102m to
support policing. The income budget also provided
£4.35m for Commissioned Services, to provide funding
for partnership working across the Commissioner’s
wider community safety, crime reduction and victim

support responsibilities.

The table below shows the summary budget for 2013/14
as set on 22 February, the revised budget (taking into
account budget changes made during the year) and the
provisional outturn position (subject to audit).
References to the PCC relate to the Police and Crime
Commissioner, references to CC relate to the Chief

Constable.
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Constabulary Budget: 102,752 101,696 98,371 (3,325)
CC Managed Budgets 8,002 6,582 6,863 281
Office of the PCC 891 891 890 (1)
C issioned
ommissione 4353 4353 4,343 (10)
Services
PCC Other 2,239 6,679 9,746 3,067
Grants/
19,466 21,430 21,442 12
Contributions (19,466)  (21,430) (21,442) (12)
Net Expenditure 98,771 98,771 98,771 0
External Funding
Government Grants 65,830 65,830 65,830 0
Council Tax 32,941 32,941 32,941
Total External
. 98,771 98,771 98,771 0
Funding

The presentation above is as the figures are reported
throughout the year in the management accounts. At
the year-end a number of technical accounting
adjustments (required by proper accounting practice)
are made. For this reason, the outturn in the table
above will not reconcile directly to the Comprehensive

Income and Expenditure statement.

The constabulary budget is made up of funding for
employee costs (Police Officers £75.8m, PCSQO’s £2.88m,
Police Staff £13m), transport costs of £2.9m and
supplies/other costs of £11m. Chief Constable managed
budgets comprise premises expenditure of £3.7m with
the balance being support staff and other employee
costs including provision for redundancy. These budgets
are managed by the Chief Constable on behalf of the
Commissioner. PCC other budgets combine the costs of
technical accounting adjustments, capital finance costs

and movements in reserves.

The combined revenue
underspend during the year amounted to £3.195m and
of this sum £2.590m (81%) related to reduced
expenditure on police officers and PCSO’s as a result of
operating below establishment. The Chief Constable has
now developed a robust workforce plan which will see
police officer and PCSO numbers operating on or around

establishment throughout 2014/15.

The underspend for the year was forecast early in the
budget monitoring process. This enabled £3m of the
unutilised funding to be included within the 2014/15
budget to support investment in commissioned services.
A commissioned services strategy and programme has
been developed alongside grant regulations to provide a
governance framework that provides funding for
partnership working, supporting victims, community

safety and prevention.

The Commissioned Services budget for 2013/14
provided funding for initiatives in support of a number of
the priorities identified within the Police and Crime Plan.
Funding has been supplemented by contributions from
district councils that has focused on community safety
projects and includes a significant £1.5m Investment in
County Wide CCTV. Funding has also been provided to
Community Safety Partnerships, County Council Youth
Offending and Domestic Violence Advisory Services and
West Cumbria Rape Crisis. £50k has been provided to

Community Groups as part of the Community Fund.

The Commissioner also maintains the Police Property Act
Fund. This fund has been accumulated over a period of
time as a result of the disposal of property coming into

the possession of the police under the Police Property
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Act 1987 and the Powers of the Criminal Courts Act
1973. Community groups and individuals can submit
applications for funding on a quarterly basis. During
2013/14 awards totaling £12k were made. As at 31
March 2014 the Police Property Act fund balance stood
at £56k.

In 2013/14 Capital Expenditure
amounted to £3.311m. The original capital programme
was amended during the year to £8.962m to reflect
changes in respect of the prior year capital outturn, new
schemes approved and the re-profiling of some capital
projects. The final outturn of £3.311m represents only
37% of the adjusted budget being spent in the year with
63% of the budget being re-profiled into future years.
Almost half of the slippage relates to the construction of
a new South Territorial Policing Area headquarters at
Barrow where now that the contract to build the new
premises has been awarded, a revised profile of
payments has been developed. Whilst the payment
profile for the project has slipped the planned
completion date for the scheme remains on target. The
remaining slippage primarily relates to ICT schemes
which have been re-profiled for a combination of
reasons including delays in national scheme
specifications and the development of detailed business
cases to support the projects. Further work has been
undertaken with spending departments during the
budget setting process for 2014/15 with the aim of
reducing slippage and improving the budget forecast for

capital expenditure.

The aim of the financial statements are to demonstrate
to the reader the overall financial position of the
Commissioner at the end of the financial year together
with the cost of the services provided during the year
and the financing of that expenditure. This section of
the financial summary provides an explanation of the
various parts of the statement alongside a high level
summary and narrative on the financial position. The
financial statements for 2012/13 have been re-stated
due to a change in disclosure requirements in respect of
pensions. A full explanation is provided in note 34 to the

accounts on pages 86-88.

The key financial statements are:

The movement in reserves statement (MiRS)

The comprehensive income and expenditure
statement (CI&ES)

The Balance Sheet (BS)

The Cash Flow Statement (CFS)

The Police Officer Pension Fund Accounts
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This statement shows the different reserves held by the
Commissioner, analysed into ‘Usable Reserves’ that that
can be applied to fund expenditure or reduce taxation
and other (principally technical accounting) ‘Unusable
Reserves’. It shows the opening balance on all reserves
at the start of the year, movements in year and the
closing balance. The movements in year comprise
movements arising from the Surplus or Deficit on the
Provision of Services line within CI&ES, other CI&ES
adjustments, accounting adjustments and transfers to

and from earmarked reserves.

The accounting adjustments provide a mechanism
through which charges made within the accounts in
accordance with accounting standards are reversed,
leaving only the statutory amounts required to be
charged for council tax purposes. The Net
Increase/Decrease before Transfers to Earmarked
Reserves line shows the statutory Police Fund Balance
before any discretionary transfers to or from earmarked
reserves undertaken by the Commissioner. The
statement is shown in page 20 in the full statement of
accounts. The table below sets out a summary

movement in reserves statement.

Police Fund 5,149 0 5,149
Earmarked Revenue Reserves 12,705 4,090 16,795
Earmarked Capital Reserves 8,860 2,010 10,870
Capital Receipts 1,188 (145) 1,043
Capital Grant Unapplied 3,765 101 3,866
Constabulary Usable Reserves : (1,042,939) 1,042,939 0
Total Usable Reserves (1,011,272): 1,048,995 37,723
Unusable Reserves 43,011 (1,018,604) (975,593)
Total Reserves (968,261) 30,391 (937,870)

The Chief Constable’s financial statements for 2012/13
included a number of technical accounting reserves as
usable reserves that would normally be treated as
unusable reserves. This accounting treatment was
required as at the time the Chief Constable did not have
the powers of statutory override required to reverse
accounting entries through a movement in reserves
statement. These powers have now been granted and
as such the reserves are now shown as unusable
reserves and a movement between usable and unusable
reserves was effected as at 1 April 2013. This change
accounts for the largest movement in reserves in respect

of an amount of £1,042m.

Reserves are held to manage both planned expenditure
and provide a contingency against unplanned costs in
the future which cannot be accurately quantified at the
time of closing the accounts. The Reserves Statement
shows that the Commissioner’s Police Fund Balance at
31 March 2014 stands at £5.149m. This represents
approximately 5% of the net budget and will be held at
this level pending the 2015/16 grant settlement. In
addition a number of specific earmarked reserves are
maintained to address specific areas of expenditure,
usually of a non-recurring nature, which must be
incurred in future years. Earmarked reserves increased
by £6.100m during 2013/14, primarily as a result of the
underspend on funding provided by the Commissioner
to the Constabulary and the capital reserve for CCTV.
The underspend has been planned into the 2014/15
budget to provide commissioned services. More detail
on earmarked reserves is provided within note 5 to the

statement of accounts on pages 34-35.
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This statement shows the accounting cost in the year of
providing services in accordance with generally accepted
accounting practices, rather than the amount to be
funded from taxation and grant income. The
Commissioner prepares this statement in accordance
with the service expenditure analysis as required by the
Service Reporting Code of Practice (SERCOP). This
provides information on the cost of the different policing

services that have been provided over the financial year

The table below sets out a summary CI&ES statement.

Local policing 48,987 (1,972) 47,015
dealing with the public 7,445 (44) 7,401
criminal justice 9,133 (404) 8,729
arrangements

Road policing 6,953 (956) 5,997
Specialist operations 4,050 (458) 3,592
Intelligence 5,873 (231) 5,642
Investigations 14,012 (291) 13,721
Investigative support 3,142 (56) 3,086
National policing 1,465 (964) 501
Corporate and democratic 1172 2) 1,170
core

Non distributed costs 91 0 91
Exceptional items -

termination costs 671 0 671
Cost of Services 102,994 (5,378) 97,616
other operating expenditure 14,758 (14,838) (80)
Financing and investment 48,856 (3,708) 45,148

income

Taxation and non-specific
grantincome
(surplus)/deficit on the
provision of services
other comprehensive
income and expenditure
Total comprehensive
income and expenditure

0 (105,218): (105,218)

166,608 (129,142) 37,466

0 (67,857)  (67,857)

166,608 (196,999)  (30,391)

The statement shows a net cost of services of £98m,
based on proper accounting practices. This comprises
£103m of expenditure funded by £5m of specific grant
income and income from fees and charges. A further
£15m is spent on pension costs which are supported by
an equivalent amount of specific grant funding. The
overall position on the statement is a surplus of £30m
that is taken to reserves and reflects the accounting

surplus from the CI&ES.

The CI&ES is shown on page 22 of the full statement of
accounts. A subjective analysis that sets out what those
costs are (e.g. staffing, transport etc.) is provided in the
notes to the accounts (note 20b to the statement of

accounts on page 68).

Capital Financing costs on the CI&ES are extremely low
other than those that fund the PFl scheme. This reflects
the Commissioner’s decision to continue to fund the
borrowing requirement arising from the capital
programme internally. This is due to the Commissioner’s
level of cash reserves and the relatively low interest
rates available on investing such balances. At the end of
the financial year £17.357m (inclusive of PFI contract) of
the capital programme is funded by the use of cash
backed internal reserves rather than borrowing from the
open market. At some point during the forward interest
rate cycle, the Commissioner will need to consider taking

up external equivalent borrowings.
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The Balance Sheet shows the value as at the balance
sheet date (31° March 2014) of the assets and liabilities
recognised by the Commissioner. Assets comprise the
Commissioner’s  property, plant and equipment,
including software. These are termed long term assets
and have been valued at £61m. Current assets
comprising investments, debtors and cash have a value
of £34m. Current liabilities reflect amounts owed by the
Commissioner. They include creditors, PFI, pensions and
finance lease liabilities. They are split between short
term and long term liabilities, the short term liabilities
being those amounts due to be paid within 1 year. The
net assets (assets less liabilities) are matched on the
balance sheet by the Commissioner’s reserves. The
balance sheet reserves reflect the position at year end
and therefore match the final position shown in the
movement in reserves statement. The balance sheet is

shown in page 24 in the full statement of accounts.

The table below sets out a summary balance sheet.

Property, plant &
roperty, pian 59,569 60,850

equipment

Intangible assets 1,261 643
Current assets 28,052 34,208
Current liabilities (10,274) (10,822)

Long term liabilities (1,046,869): (1,022,749)

Net Assets (968,261). (937,870)
Usable reserves (1,011,272) 37,723
Unusable reserves 43,011 (975,593)

Total reserves (968,261) (937,870)

Reserves are reported on the balance sheet consistently

with the movement in reserves statement, across two

categories. Usable Reserves result from the
Commissioner’s activities and can be used to finance
future expenditure. The Usable Reserves comprise of
the Police Fund, Earmarked Reserves and Unapplied
Capital Receipts. Unusable Reserves are derived from
accounting adjustments and cannot be spent. The
Unusable Reserves include accounting reserves in
respect of revaluations, pensions, council tax,
accumulated absences and the capital adjustment
account. The movement between usable and unusable
reserves on the balance sheet is explained within the
narrative on the movement in reserves statement (page

7).

The Commissioner’s 2013/14 group balance sheet
includes a combined pensions deficit of £1,017m
(£1,040m in 2012/13) for the Local Government Pension
Scheme (LGPS) and the Police Pension Scheme to which
its employees and former employees belong. However,
statutory arrangements for funding the deficit, through
increased contributions over a period designed to
balance the pensions account and central Government
funding, mean that the financial position of the

Commissioner remains healthy.

The Commissioner has a good collection record in
respect of invoices raised for services provided. During
2013/14 only five sundry debtor invoices totalling
£12,010 were authorised to be written off as not
collectable. The Bad Debt Provision stands at £4,172
(£2,043 in 2012/13) against the future potential that not
all outstanding invoices will prove to be 100%
collectable. See note 12 to the statement of accounts

(Page 47).
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In the Commissioner’s 2012/13 Statement of Accounts, a
post balance sheet event was included in relation to the
continued suspension of Mr. Hyde the temporary Chief
Constable, on 13 September 2012. In September 2013,
Mr. Hyde returned to work in his substantive role as
Deputy Chief Constable. Mr. Lawson the temporary
Chief Constable (seconded from Merseyside Police)
continued in his role throughout 2013/14. Mr. Hyde
retired from his post in December 2013. In April 2014,
the Commissioner undertook a recruitment exercise to
appoint a permanent Chief Constable for Cumbria and
Mr. Graham (formerly the Deputy Chief Constable) was
appointed to the role following confirmation by the
Police and Crime Panel and will take up office on 1

August 2014.

The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and
cash equivalents of the Commissioner during the
reporting period. The statement shows how the
Commissioner generates and uses cash and cash
equivalents by classifying cash flows as operating,
investing and financing activities. The amount of net
cash flows arising from operating activities is a key
indicator of the extent to which the operations of the
Commissioner are funded by way of taxation and grant
income or from the recipients of services. Investing
activities represent the extent to which cash outflows
have been generated from resources which are intended
to contribute to the Commissioner’s future service
delivery. Cash flows arising from financing activities are
useful in predicting claims on future cash flows by

providers of capital (i.e. borrowing).

The statement is shown on pages 25-26 of the full

statement of accounts.

Balance 1 April (4,618) (10,680)
Net cash flow from:

- Operating activity (5,928) (8,453)
- Investing activities (274) 7,737
- Financing activities 140 86
Balance 31 March (10,680) (11,310)

This statement sets out the transactions on the Police
Officer pension fund account for the year. A page of
explanatory notes are also provided within the financial

statements to support the account.

Contributions - Employer (9,987) (9,772)
Contributions - Officers (4,939) (5,277)
Transfers In (180) (298)
Capital Equivalent - Ill Health (231) (469)
Benefits Payable 27,311 30,392
Refunds of Contributions 0 9
Transfers Out 84 173
Net Amount payable 12,058 14,758

Contribution from PCC/Home
Office top Up grant

Net Amount Payable 0 0

(12,058)  (14,758)

The statement identifies a net amount payable for the
year of £14.758m. This is the difference between the
amount due from employer, police officer and other

contributions into the fund and the pension benefits that
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are payable from the fund. The Police Officer Pension
Fund is an unfunded scheme. This means that there are
no investment assets built up to meet pension liabilities.
Any difference between the amounts received into the
fund and amounts to be paid are met by central

government grant.

The key financial statements are supplemented by an
explanation of the accounting polices used in preparing
the statements. They also contain a comprehensive set
of notes that explain in more detail a number of entries
in the primary financial statements. A glossary of terms
provides an explanation of the various technical
accounting terms and acronyms. The statements are
published alongside the Annual Governance Statement
for the Police and Crime Commissioner and the Chief
Constable in accordance with the 2011 Accounts and

Audit (England) Regulations.

The Annual Governance Statement of the Commissioner can be
found at www.cumbria-pcc.gov.uk/governance-
transparency/document-library.aspx or on pages 110-136 of the

full statement of accounts.

The financial statements provide a breakdown of net
spending during the year with the balance sheet
showing the strong overall financial position of the
Commissioner as at 31 March 2014. This has primarily

arisen as a result of underspend on the budget and

positive action on behalf of the Constabulary to reduce
costs in the context of future reductions in government
funding. Whilst the outlook is financially resilient in the
short term, it is expected to become significantly more

challenging over the next few years.

Significantly the budget set for 2014/15 was set in the
context of a four year medium term financial forecast
that is in deficit from 2016/17. Gross income, at the
time of setting the 2014/15 budget, was forecast to be
£122.3m but with an estimated reduction to £118.6m by
2017/18. Whilst income decreases cost will rise due to

the impact of inflation and pay awards.

The chart below illustrates for the next four years, the
current forecast of expenditure compared to funding

available to finance it.

104,000

102,000 —

100,000 /

98,000 —
96,000

= Net Expenditure
94,000

Total Funding

92,000
90,000

88,000

86,000 T T T ]
2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18

The 2015 spending review is expected to make further
reductions in the total level of resources available. At
least £10m of savings will need to be made over those
four years to balance the budget even with annual
increases in council tax. This will mean significant
reductions in police officers and staff at a time where

some crime figures are starting to increase.
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The current financial forecasts exclude the impact of a
£16m risk of funding loss arising from changes to central
government funding formula. The balance sheet
position on reserves is currently being maintained at a
higher than usual level to mitigate against the impact of
this risk. The Commissioner and Chief Constable are
developing a detailed change programme to consider
options that will address the future gap between

expenditure and income.

The financial statements were originally authorised for
issue by me as PCC Chief Finance Officer (CFO), on 25
June 2014. Following completion of the audit, they were
re-authorised by me on 22 September 2014 and were
formally approved by the Police and Crime
Commissioner at a joint meeting of the Executive Board

and Joint Audit and Standards Committee.

In closing, it is appropriate to acknowledge the
dedication and professionalism of Roger Marshall, the
Chief Constable’s Chief Finance Officer, Michelle Bellis,
Lorraine Holme and the wider finance team in again
achieving the closure of accounts and the publication of
these Statements against challenging deadlines and

complex financial reporting standards.

Ruth Hunter

PCC Chief Finance Officer/Deputy Chief Executive

The accounts present a true and fair view of the position of the Police and Crime Commissioner’s Group Accounts as at 31

March 2014 and its income and expenditure for the year there ended.

PCC Chief Finance Officer/Deputy Chief Executive

Ruth Hunter CPFA

Date 22 September 2014

The accounts present a true and fair view of the position of the Police and Crime Commissioner’s Group Accounts as at 31

March 2014 and its income and expenditure for the year there ended.

Police and Crime Commissioner for Cumbria

Richard Rhodes

Date 22 September 2014
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Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts

1 The Commissioner’s Responsibilities
The Police and Crime Commissioner (The Commissioner/PCC) is the recipient of funding relating to
policing and crime reduction and has statutory responsibility for the Police Fund. The Commissioner
is required to:
. Make arrangements for the proper administration of his financial affairs and to secure that one
of his officers has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs. In this organisation,

that officer is the PCC Chief Finance Officer (CFO).

. Manage his affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources and safeguard
its assets.

° approve the Statement of Accounts including annexes to the Statement of Accounts.

2 The Commissioner’s Chief Finance Officer's Responsibilities
The Commissioner’s CFO is responsible for the production of the Statement of Accounts of the
Commissioner, ensuring the receipt and scrutiny of the Statement of Accounts of the Chief Constable
and for ensuring the production of group accounts. The Commissioner’s CFO is responsible for the
preparation of the Commissioner’s Statement of Accounts and the group accounts in accordance
with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting
in the United Kingdom (the Code).
In preparing this Statement of Account, the Commissioner’s CFO has:
° selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently;

° made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

° complied with the local authority code.

The Commissioner’s CFO has also:

° kept proper accounting records which were up to date

° taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Commissioner’s CFO should sign and date the Statement of Accounts, stating that it presents a

true and fair view of the financial position of the organisation at the reporting date and its income
and expenditure for the year ended 31 March 2014.
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Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts

3 The Chief Constable’s Responsibilities
The Chief Constable (the CC) is accountable to the Police and Crime Commissioner for the
management of resources and expenditure by the police force. All funding for the Chief Constable
comes from the Police and Crime Commissioner. The Chief Constable is required to:
. Make arrangements for the proper administration of his financial affairs and to secure that one
of his officers has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs. In this organisation,

that officer is the CC Chief Finance Officer (CFO).

° Manage his affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources and safeguard
its assets.

° approve the Statement of Accounts including annexes to the Statement of Accounts.

4 The Chief Constable’s Chief Finance Officer's Responsibilities

The Chief Constable’s CFO is responsible for the production of the Statement of Accounts for the
Chief Constable and for providing information to the PCC CFO as required for the production of group
accounts. The Chief Constable’s CFO is responsible for the preparation of the Chief Constable’s
Statement of Accounts in accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (the Code).

In preparing the Chief Constable’s Statement of Account, the CC CFO has:

° selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently;

° made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

° complied with the local authority code.

The Chief Constable’s CFO has also:

° kept proper accounting records which were up to date

° taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Chief Constable’s CFO should sign and date the Chief Constable’s Statement of Accounts, stating

that it presents a true and fair view of the financial position of the organisation at the reporting date
and its income and expenditure for the year ended 31 March 2014.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

o Grant Thornton

Leave 4 blank pages for audit opinion
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Leave 4 blank pages for audit opinion
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Leave 4 blank pages for audit opinion
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Leave 4 blank pages for audit opinion
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Core Financial Statements

The Statement of Accounts includes four primary or core financial statements:

Movement in Reserves Statement - This statement shows the movement in the year on the different
reserves held by the Commissioner, analysed into ‘Usable Reserves’ (i.e. those that can be applied to fund
expenditure or reduce taxation) and other ‘Unusable Reserves’. The Surplus (or Deficit) on the Provision of
Services line shows the true economic cost of providing the Commissioner’s services, more details of which
are shown in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. These are different from the statutory
amounts required to be charged to the Police Fund Balance for Council Tax setting purposes. The Net
Increase/Decrease before Transfers to Earmarked Reserves line shows the statutory Police Fund Balance
before any discretionary transfers to or from earmarked reserves undertaken by the Commissioner.

Due to the size of the statements, the positions for the Group and the PCC are shown in separate tables, the
figures for 2013/14 and the comparators for 2012/13 are also shown in separate tables.

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement - This statement shows the accounting cost in the year
of providing services in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices, rather than the amount to
be funded from taxation. Authorities raise taxation to cover expenditure in accordance with regulations; this
may be different from the accounting cost.

Due to the size of the statements, the positions for the Group and the PCC are shown in separate tables.

Balance Sheet — This statement shows the value as at the balance sheet date of the assets and liabilities
recognised by the Commissioner. The net assets (assets less liabilities) are matched by the reserves held by
the Commissioner. Reserves are reported in two categories.

The first category of reserves are usable reserves, i.e. those reserves that the Commissioner may use to
provide services, subject to the need to maintain a prudent level of reserves and any statutory limitations on
their use (for example the capital receipts reserve that may only be used to fund capital expenditure or
repay debt).

The second category of reserves are unusable reserves and relate to those that the Commissioner is not able
to use to provide services. This category of reserves includes reserves that hold unrealised gains and losses
(for example the revaluation reserve), where amounts would only become available to provide services if the
assets are sold; and reserves that hold timing differences shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement
line’ Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under regulations’.

The balance sheet for the Group and PCC are shown side by side and include both 2013/14 figures and
2012/13 comparators.

Cash Flow Statement - This statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Commissioner
during the reporting period. The statement shows how the Commissioner generates and uses cash and cash
equivalents by classifying cash flows as operating, investing and financing activities. The amount of net cash
flows arising from operating activities is a key indicator of the extent to which the operations of the
Commissioner are funded by way of taxation and grant income or from the recipients of services. Investing
activities represent the extent to which cash outflows have been generated from resources which are
intended to contribute to the Commissioner’s future service delivery. Cash flows arising from financing
activities are useful in predicting claims on future cash flows by providers of capital (i.e. borrowing).

The cash flow statement for the Group and PCC are shown side by side and include both 2013/14 figures and
2012/13 comparators.
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Movement in Reserves Statement — Group

The figures for the group in 2013/14 are provided in the table below:

Group

<
u g i v E c S
Figures for 2013/14 > 4] 23 L3 255 2 223 = =4 N
s < 2 5 2 35 $csogw §% g2 52 2 5
5 e 25 3 5 2252 38, 22 g = 3 g
2 o2 T o 88 wZ g <o T v 8 = g o 2
< ol o X o X Q9 — g 5 > - o = o = o
— o Q o g T w® 2 U5 S & T - o —
4= c € o £ T T £ <9 g L9 v 29 v O =5 ™
2 2 S S § 5 EEwg & e G < 3 2
] i o ®© S @© 5 S £ @ @ 0 5 0 G ® &3 &
e S 5 o = @ 2383S S53 5o E c £ @ 3
K] o = 5 g £ 585 ® g [ £ 5 5 @ <
@ = 5 8 2 8 < © = < = o o E o S =
£ £ Zz o - o
£000s 000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s
Usable Reserves : : : : : : : : |
Police Fund Account 5,149: (37,466): 0: (37,466): 43,566: 0: 6,100: (6,100): 0 5,149|
Earmarked RevenueReserves i 12705, O 0 0 S S L0 4090 4090 16795
Earmarked Capital Reserves 8,860 0 0 0: 0 0 0 2,010 2,010 10,870
Capital Receipts Reserve 1,188 0 0 0 (145) 0 (145) 0 (145) 1,043]
Capital Grants Unapplied 3,765 0 0 0: 101 0 101 0 101 3,866
Chief Constable's Police Pension Reserve (1,010,490) 0 0 0: 0 1,010,490; 1,010,490; 0 101049: 0
Chief Constable's LGPS Pension Reserve (28,804) 0 0 0: 0 28,804 28,804 0 28,804 0
Chief Constable's Accumulated Absences Account (3,645) 0 0 1} 0 3,645 3,645 0 3,645 0
Total Usable Reserves (1,011,272) (37,466) 0 (37,466) 43,522  1,042,939) 1,048,995 0/ 1,048,995 37,723
Unusable Rese'ves .......................................................................... - A S
Revaluation Reserve 7,095 0 1,884 1,884 1 0 1,885 0 1,885 8,980
Capital Adjustment Account 36,460 0 0 0: (1,305) 0 (1,305) 0 (1,305) 35,155
Police Pensions Reserve [ 0: 51,350 51,350 (40,260); (1,010,490):  (999,400): 0 (999,400)  (999,400)|
LGPS PensionsReserve (966)! 0 14,623 14,623 (2,192);  (28,804);  (16,373); 0 (16373)]  (17,339)
Collection Fund Adjustment Account 447; 0 0; o (74); 0; (74); 0; 373
Accumulated Absences Account (25)i o} 0 o 308! (3,645) (3,337): o (3,362)
Total Unusable Reserves 43,011 o: 67,857; 67,857 (43,522); (1,042,939): (1,018,604): 0 (1,018604)  (975,593)
Total Reserves (968,261) (37,466) 67,857 30,391 0 0 30,391 0 30,391  (937,870)

The comparative figures for 2012/13 are provided in the table below:

Group -~ @ o o K] < € 3
o = f=4 o
Re-stated Figures for 2012/13 S =l ] 23 B $25% § 8293 =) = (]
~ c QO v 5 > 5 9 © T g ) QX S S [ <
= S 2 S 2 c 2 2ocg 2 525 25 2 2
2 g5 s s < 5 2822 £8 spd F8 5 s
- S0 [SAO] a @ 2 ws o O E S 4 T =] o ~
= o < € o £ T g £25 2o v 2e £ g - ™
= 8 S 5 © E £ ®3 o © © = QO = ~ s
3 2 © o o © s S5£® 2 QO 5 © h © o
= g3 5 2 5 2 383 8 5o E S E ® 3
© = 2 = B 2 £ S 8§ S» G £ 55 S5 o <
3 5 2 5 8 2 3 < © = = § B g @ L} = =2
[} £ £ [y =z o - o
£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s
Usable Reserves -
Police Fund Account 5,149 (1,064) 0 (1,064) 3,704 0 2,640 (2,640) 0 5,149,
Earmarked Revenue Reserves 9,465 0 0 1} 0 0 0 3,240 3,240 12,705
Earmarked Capital Reserves 9,460 0 0 0 0 0 0 (600) (600) 8,860
Capital Receipts Reserve 0 0 0 0 1,188 0 1,188 0 1,188 1,188
Capital Grants Unapplied 3,338 0 0 0 427 0 427 0 427 3,765
Chief Constable's Constabulary Fund 0 (37,898) (125,410) (163,308) 0 163,308 0; 0 0 0|
Chief Constable's Police Pension Reserve (854,730) 0 0 0 0 (155,760) (155,760) 0 (155,760): (1,010,490)
Chief Constable's LGPS Pension Reserve (21,190) 0 0 0 0 (7,614) (7,614) 0 (7,614) (28,804)
Chief Constable's Accumulated Absences Account (3,711) 0 0 0 0 66! 66 0 66! (3,645)
Total Usable Reserves (852,219) (38,962) (125,410) (164,372) 5,319 0/  (159,053) 0 (159,053); (1,011,272)
Unusable Reserves i i ; i i
Revaluation Reserve 7,7555 0 (603)§ (603)§ (57)§
Capital Adjustment Account 41,875! o} ; 0} (5,415) ;
Police Pensions Reserve 0 [ 0 [ oi 0
LGPS Pensions Reserve (712) 0 (210) (210) (44) 0 0
Collection Fund Adjustment Account ¢+ 2 255 (O 0 192 0 0
Accumulated Absences Account (30) 0 0 5 0 0
Total Unusable Reserves .2 /. (B3), 813) (5319 0 (6132 L0 (6132) 43,011
Total Reserves (803,076) (38,962) (126,223) (165,185) 0 0 (165,185) 0 (165,185) (968,261)
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Movement in Reserves Statement — PCC

The figures for the PCC Single Entity in 2013/14 are provided in the table below:

pcc o o @ g T 5 = =
Figures for 2013/14 > 4] 2 32 = 285 c2 ® Ly = = 5

~ L 23 5 S ¢ ® 35 g B 0= > S 2 (3 S

T E 5 55 £45% 23 gsg <3 5 :

g 2 s 2 13 s854 85¢ =58 T8 g =

— o a o a o Ew® 2 5§ =l b ] —

= c € o £ T s £2 5 5<uo 2 £ 8 £ 9 - ™

8 2 86 S & EEDS 2009 g 5% R > <

e 2 5 @ = o 83352 £3 e E EE % g

& s £ E gE 285% % e8s g8k g g

3 Eh O © = O < ® = = = g5 ¢ il S =

£ £ Zz o = o

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s
Usable Reserves ; : : : : : : |
Police Fund Account 5,149: 4,605: o: 4,605: 1,495 o: 6,100: (6,100) 0: 5,149
Earmarked Revenue Reserves 12,705 0 0 0 0 0 0 4,090 4,090 16,795
Earmarked Capital Reserves 8,860 0 0 0: 0 0 0: 2,010 2,010 10,870
Capital Receipts Reserve 1,188 0 0 0 (145) 0 (145) 0 (145) 1,043|
Capital Grants Unapplied 3,765 0 0 0. 101 0 101 0 101 3,866
Total Usable Reserves 31,667 4,605 0 4,605 1,451 0. 6,056 0 6,056 37,723
Unusable Reserves
Revaluation Reserve 1,884 1,884 1 0. 1,885 0 1,885 8,980
Capital Adjustment Account 0 [ (1,305) 0 (1,305) 0 (1,305): 35,155
LGPSPensionsReserve = 475 R f o [ (s63)
Collection Fund Adjustment Account i} o} 0 373|
Accumulated Absences Account 0 0 [ (26)|
Total Unusable Reserves 02,3590 (1,451); 0 43,919
Total Reserves 74,678 4,605 2,359 6,964 0 0: 6,964 0 6,964 81,642

PCC ~ o (9] L T E a
o = f=4 o
Re-stated Figures for 2012/13 b=y 8 23 L3 E25% © 223 =4 = ]
i e 25 2 5 go2e 3 £S5 = 3 5
= < T € El= 2 255 = g2 g =] © =
& 5 g8 £f 2822 2y 2:8 £ g g
< — S x o x 205> 2 -3 = S = o =
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g @ e S 9 73S0 % g5 g 2 8 3 °
5 8 £k i = 28 % 2EgE EE g g
8 oL 5 8 2 8 < © + = é 2 e @ = o S =
£ £ = =z Qo - o
£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s
Usable Reserves
Police Fund Account 5,149 (1,064) 0 (1,064) 3,704 0 2,640 (2,640) 0 5,149
Earmarked Revenue Reserves 9,465 0 0 0 0 0 0 3,240 3,240 12,705
Earmarked Capital Reserves 9,460 0 0 0. 0 0 0 (600) (600) 8,860
Capital Receipts Reserve 0 0 0 0 1,188 0: 1,188 0 1,188 1,188
Capital Grants Unapplied 3,338 0 0 0 427 0 427 0 427 3,765
Total Usable Reserves 27,412 (1,064) 0 (1,064) 5,319 (i} 4,255 0 4,255 31,667
Unusable Reserves i i i i ; i i i i
Revaluation Reserve 7,755: o (603) (603)¢ (57): o (660): o (660): 7,095
Capital Adjustment Account 41,875 0 0 (5,415) 0; (5,415) 0 (5,415) 36,460
Police Pensions Reserve 0. 0 [ 0 0 0 0 0. 0
LGPS Pensions Reserve (712) 0 (210) (210) (44) 0 (254) 0 (254) (966)
Collection Fund Adjustment Account 255 0 0: 192 0 192 0 192 447
Accumulated Absences Account (30) 0 1} 5 0 5 0 5 (25)
Total Unusable Reserves 49,143 0 (813) (813) (5,319) 0 (6,132) 0 (6,132) 43,011
Total Reserves 76,555 (1,064) (813) (1,877) 0 0 (1,877) 0 (1,877) 74,678
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Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement - Group

Group Group Group Group Group Group
2012/13 2012/13 2012/13 2013/14 2013/14 2013/14
Gross Gross \[:14 Gross Gross Net
Expendture Income  Expendture Expendture Income Expendture

Re-stated Re-stated Re-stated
£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

"""" 12088 (12058 o
12,058

| iCouncil Tax Grant (Freeze & Support) | | 0 5 0 (4944)i (4944
i _iDCLG Formula Funding P29 | 0/ (33,337)! (33,337); 0! (33,939)! (33,939)
i iRevenueSupportGrant L 29 ] 0 (683)i (663 o 0

| iHome Office Police Grant e o?w(30,544)§ (30,544), oT (31,891)  (31,891)

U SO

JE(SurpIus) or Deficit on Provision of Services 165,322

166,608/ (129,142): 37,466

iSurplus or Deficit on revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment Assets | ;

iRevaluation gains

.

I —

iRemeasurement of the net defined pension benefit (65“,;73)
liability/asset |
|Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure IETTCTE] I B BT )
S S SN e
:Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure S A o] i 165185, S . (30,391)
P | | [ : | s
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Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement - PCC

PCC PCC PCC PCC PCC PCC
2012/13 2012/13 2012/13 2013/14 2013/14 2013/14
Gross Gross Net Gross Gross Net
Expendture Income  Expendture Expendture Income Expendture
Re-stated Re-stated Re-stated
£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

(955):
(908)

103,613
100,141

73)i

SRR A St S SRR bl et 8

(12,058) 0

L@nﬂﬂaﬂm{ﬁ&ezjﬁﬂwﬂ,w___i__;__.QLM-_‘.T_,_@S‘@LW“M%A‘L?A&L_L@@

‘DCLG Formula Funding P29 | 0/ (33,337)! (33,337); 0! (33,939): (33,939)
| iRevenueSupportGrant 129 | 0o (663 (663 0 0 ¢
| {Home Office Police Grant | 29 | o (30,544);  (30,544) oT (31,891)!  (31,891)
| | f (638)
| ‘ (105,218)

R

JE(SurpIus) or Deficit on Provision of Services ) 139,817

iSurplus or Deficit on revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment Assets | ;

iRevaluation gains

iRemeasurement of the net defined pension benefit
iliability/asset

jOther Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

i E——

.Totalrr(-:vc;rr;prehénsivé Income and Expernditurre 1 { | : 1,877} - 7 (6,964)

AR [ o o I | :
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Balance Sheet — PCC & Group

PCC PCC Group Group
31 March 2013 31 March 2014 31 March 2013 31 March 2014
Re-stated Re-stated
Notes £000s

Property, Plant & Equipment

Assets held for sale
_{Inventories

_|Cashand Cash Equivalents T T T R P . - 11310
Current Assets i | 34,208

Short Term Creditors (amounts owed by PCC to CC re CC share of external debtors) !
Short Term Creditors (funding balance due from PCC to CC) i 0

_{PFI Finance Lease Liability Due within 1 Year (86)

7

. 15,220)
0

__{Usable reserves

Earmarked reserves (revenue)
Earmarked reserves (capital)

| i Chief CorT;E;)ble's AA-EZumuIaEEE Abseun‘ges Accc}j@ﬁt________

_{Unusable Reserves

Revaluation Reserve

Capital Adjustment Account

Collection Fund Adjustment Account

Accumulated Absences Account

I Total Reserves - : 81,642 (968,261)’ (937,870)
: { : ] !
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Cash Flow Statement — PCC & Group

See PCC PCC Group Group

Note 2012/13 2013/14 2012/13 2013/14
Re-stated Re-stated

Below £000s £000s £000s £000s

jNet (S
;Adjustment to net surplus or deficit on the provision of services for
inon-cash movements CF1 (4,307)

fAdjustment foritems included in the net surplus or deficit on the

E provision of services that are investing and financing activities | Cr2 | 1343 459 1343 459
| Netcashflows from OperatingActivites LG (59 (84S (598 (5459
............................................................................................................... Cra . ..(2 T3

inancing Activities CF5 - 86)

| [FinandngAethvitles oo

Net (increase) or decrease in cash and cash equivalents

..............................................................................................................................................................................................

(4,618)§ (10,680); (4,618)5 (10,680)
(10,680); (11,310); (10,680); (11,310)

_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

{Depreciation & Amortisation (5,395): (5,032)

_Impairment & Downward Valuations . _______ (2,993)i 500 (2993 500
Carrying amount of non current assets - sold i ' (1'205)5, (416)
_|Grants applied to the financingofcapexp 1 1 ;1059 889
|_{Pension Laibility (Contributions to/from Pensions Reserve) __(71)} (38008) (42,452)
Creditors - Change in Balance Sheet ; 9 (544)

Creditors - Change in Balance Sheet (Adjustment for Purchase of

FixedAssets) Lol (49 26 (149)] 226

fCreditors - Adjustment re CC Share of Debtors 44: (226): o} 0

|_|Creditors - Adjustment re Balance of Funding due fromPCCtoCC (845 (129 o0 0

:Debtors - Change in Balance Sheet 312 (115): 31?;0 (115)
Debtors - Change in Balance Sheet (Adjustment for Investment i

nterest) bl (8NP 33 (8 33

:Debtors - Adjustment re CC Share of Creditors 460: 291! 6Tm 0

| Debtors - Adjustment re Balance of Funding due from CCtoPCC (2) ,,,,,,,,, 23 00

Stock - Change in Balance Sheet 0 0 12! 24

| |Provisions - Change inBalance Sheet 1 (44); 4 (334 509
iAdjustment to net surplus or deficit on the provision of services for

| non-cashmovements e (8,335); _ (4307); (46233); (46,378)
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Cash Flow Statement — PCC & Group

See PCC PCC Group Group

Note 2012/13 2013/14 2012/13 2013/14
Re-stated Re-stated

Below £000s £000s £000s £000s

{CF2- The Adjustment for items included in the net surplus or deficit

on the provision of services that are investing and financing activities

Eare made up as follows:

...........................................................................................................................................................................................

7 glnte rest received (193) (107) (195? (1()‘“;)”

..............................................................................................................................................................................................

!Interest Paid 680: (669). 680: 669

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

{CF4 The cash flows from Investing Activities are made up as follows:
" urchase of property, plant and eauipment and intangible assets || 4028 3085 4078 3,08
...j_'_’}_’_@h??ﬁ? of short-termand long-term investments | | 104, _3{99 wwwwww 7 L%@ _______ 104, _3’99 ,,,,,,, 71,300

Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment and

(1 343) L (459) 5“__,7 u(,,l_é_‘}?li  (459)]
(106,200);  (65,300)} (106,200) _(65,300)
________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ (1, 059) (889): (1, 059): (889)
iNet cash flows from investing activities (274) 7, 737 (274) 7,737

|_jintangible assets

Proceeds from short term and long- term |nvestments
Other receipts  from investing activities

_____ a%h_r_e_c_e_'ﬂt_s_9_f__%h_qrt_an_d__'9_0_8__t_¢_rm_b_9rr9!v_m_g____________________________________ O 000
Cash payments for the reduction of the outstanding liabilities relating g
tofinance leases and on-balance sheet PFl contracts 1 1 24T - N 77 86
fRepayment of short and long-term borrowing 63 0} 63; 0
Net cash flows from financing activities - 140 86 140; 86
N e
;CFG The balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents is made up as T
(1) (1) (21)F (16)
(2,555): (89) (2,555)i (89)

e - T e e T e

(8,104); (11,205)  (8,104)! (11,205)
(10,680)! (11,310)) (10,680): (11,310)

||
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Notes to the Accounts

Index of Notes to the Accounts
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The notes to the accounts are provided to aid the understanding of material items within the core financial
statements. Where the figures provided are different for the Group and PCC Single Entity either separate notes will
be provided or a single note will show the respective figures in different columns, these will be headed Group or
PCC. Where the figures are the same for the group and single entity a single note is provided, this is headed up
PCC/Group. As a general rule, the column showing the figures for 2013/14 will be highlighted, whilst the
comparatives for 2012/13 (where provided) will not.

The notes sometimes include terms that may require further explanation. Where possible, explanations are
provided within the note, otherwise explanations are provided within the “glossary of terms” in pages 91-93. Terms
for which an explanation is provided will be depicted by text that is shown in teal coloured text and underlined.
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Notes to the Accounts

1 Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies
In applying the accounting policies as set out in pages 94 to 109 of this document, the Commissioner has had
to make certain judgements about complex transactions or those involving uncertainty about future events.
The critical judgements made in the Statement of Accounts are:

= There is a high degree of uncertainty about future levels of funding for policing. However, the
Commissioner has determined that this uncertainty is not yet sufficient to provide an indication that the
assets of the Commissioner might be impaired as a result of a need to close facilities and reduce levels of
service provision.

=  The Commissioner is deemed to control the services provided under the PFl agreement in relation to the
West Cumbria TPA HQ at Workington. The accounting policies for PFI schemes and similar contracts
have been applied to the arrangement. The Commissioner has a number of options regarding ownership
of the PFI building beyond the initial 25 year contract period including the right to purchase the asset for
half of its market value at that time. In accounting for the PFl contract it is assumed that there is
reasonable certainty that the Commissioner will exercise the right to purchase the building. Accordingly
the PFI land and building are recognised as property, plant and equipment in the Commissioner’s
balance sheet at full value of £7.7m. In addition, a liability for outstanding obligations to pay for the
building, which includes the cost of purchasing the asset for half its construction cost at the end of the
PFl period are also shown on the balance sheet. As the PFl contract approaches its end it may be
necessary to reflect an additional liability to recognise that the market value of the asset may exceed the
construction cost.

2 Events after the Balance Sheet Date
A post balance sheet event is an event, subsequent to the date of the financial statements, and for which
International Financial Reporting Standards and the Code require adjustment or disclosure. Consideration
has been given as to whether any events meet the requirement to be disclosed as a post balance sheet event
and it has been concluded that no such matters require disclosure.

The Statement of Accounts was authorised for issue by the Commissioner’s Chief Finance Officer on 22
September 2014. Events taking place after this date are not reflected in the financial statements or notes.

3 Assumptions made about the future and other Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
The statement of Accounts contains estimated figures that are based on assumptions made by the
Commissioner about the future or that are otherwise uncertain. Estimates are made taking into account
historical experience, current trends and other relevant factors. However, because balances cannot be
determined with certainty, actual results could be materially different from the assumptions and estimates.

The items in the Commissioner’s group balance sheet as at 31 March 2014 for which there is significant risk
of material adjustment in the forthcoming financial year are as follows:

Uncertainties Effect if Actual Results Differ from

Assumptions

Debtors

At 31 March 2014 the Commissioner had a
balance of debtors invoices raised of £698k. A
review of significant balances suggested that
an impairment of doubtful debts of £4k was
appropriate. However, in the current
economic climate it is not certain that such an
allowance would be sufficient.

If collection rates were to deteriorate, a
doubling of the amount of the impairment

of doubtful debts would require an
additional £4k to set aside as an allowance.

28| Page

Police and Crime Commissioner for Cumbria — Statement of Accounts 2013/14




Notes to the Accounts

Uncertainties

Effect if Actual Results Differ from
Assumptions

Property,
Plant and
Equipment

Assets are depreciated over useful lives that
are dependent on assumptions about the level
of repairs and maintenance that will be
incurred in relation to individual assets.

The current economic climate makes it
uncertain that the Commissioner will be able
to sustain its current spending on repairs and
maintenance, bringing into doubt the useful
lives assigned to assets.

Land and buildings assets are revalued on a
five year rolling basis. Therefore the value of
the assets that have not been subject to
valuation in the financial year may not reflect
the true value of that asset.

If the useful life of assets is reduced,
depreciation increases and the carrying
amount of the asset falls.

It is estimated that the annual depreciation
charge for buildings would increase by £26k
for every year that useful lives had to be
reduced.

Revaluation gains and losses or disposal
proceeds in future years may be
significantly different than anticipated.
However, as all land and building assets are
subject to an impairment review in the year,
the impact of this is thought to be
immaterial.

Provisions

The Commissioner has made a provision of
£495k for the settlement of insurance
liabilities for a number of eventualities which
are not covered by external insurers. The
provision is based on an actuarial estimate but
it is not yet certain that all valid claims have
yet been received by the Commissioner.

An increase over the forthcoming year of
10% in either the number of claims received
or the estimated average settlement would
each have the effect of adding £50k to the
provision needed.

The Commissioner has made a provision of
£45k in respect of termination costs
(redundancy and additional pensions) in
respect of redundancies to which the
Constabulary had made an offer and could no
longer withdraw as at 31 March 2014 which
will take place in 2014/15.

Throughout the period of re-organisation,
termination costs have been met from the
Management of Change Reserve established
for this purpose, any increase in the costs of
termination (over and above that in the
provision) will be met from the reserve.

Any increase or decrease in the actual
amount paid compared to the established
provision will fall to the revenue budget for
2014/15.

The Commissioner has made a provision of
£250k in respect of legal claims that are
currently ongoing.

Any increase or decrease in the actual
liability will need to be met from the
revenue budget.

Pensions
Liability

Estimation of the net liability to pay pensions
depends on a number of complex judgements
relating to the discount rate used, the rate at
which salaries are projected to increase,
changes in retirement ages, mortality rates
and expected returns on pension fund assets.
Two firms of consulting actuaries are engaged
to provide the Commissioner with expert
advice about the assumptions to be applied
for both the Police Pension Scheme
(Government Actuaries Department) and the
Local Government Pension Scheme (Mercer
Ltd).

The effects on the net pension liability of
changes in individual assumptions can be
measured. Examples of the impact of
changes in individual assumptions s
included in the sensitivity analysis provided
in note 15c (pages 56- 57).
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Notes to the Accounts

4 Adjustments between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis under Regulations
This note details the adjustments that are made to the total comprehensive income and expenditure
recognised by the Commissioner in the year in accordance with proper accounting practice to the resources
that are specified by statutory provisions as being available to the Commissioner to meet future capital and
revenue expenditure.

The figures for the Group for 2013/14 are set out in the table below:

Group Group Group Group Group Group
Police Capital Capital Total Total Total
Fund Receipts Grants Usable Unusable Reserves

Balance Reserve  Unapplied Reserves Reserves

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

Adjustments primarily involving the Capital Adjustment
Account

Reversal of items debited or credited to the

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
(CIES)

Charges for depreuatlon and |mpa|rment of non-current | : : ‘ :
assets

Revaluation (gains)/losses on Property, Plant &
Equipment

Amounts of non-current assets written off on disposal or :
5.?.'.?_?.?.E?_r_F_‘_’_f_F_h_?_8.?].’]/.'9.5_5__9_?_51_[?_99_5?_!.t?.ﬁhﬁ.‘;!_&_ﬁ_s________.E__________
Statutory provision for the financing of capital investment

Capital grants and contributions unapplied credited to the
CI&ES
Appllcatlon of grants to cap|ta| flna ncmg transferred to

the Capital Adjustment Account

Adjustments primarily involving the Capital Receipts i
RSV e
Transfer of cash sale proceeds credited as part of the
gain/loss on disposal to the CI&ES
Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to fin nance new ca pltal
expenditure P.32a

Contribution from the Capital Receipts Reserve towards !
administration costs of non currentassetdisposals i 6e/20f |

|

credited to the CI&ES %
Employer's pension contributions and direct payments to | |
¢

|

{

(28,583)|

pensioners payableintheyear ..
Adjustments primarily involving the Collection Fund
Adjustment Account i
Amount by which council tax income credited to the CI&ES |

is different from council tax in the year in accordance

with statutory requirements

Adjustments prlmarlly |nvolvmg the Accumulated g
Absences Account -
Amount by which offlcer remuneratlon charged to the g

!

l

|

CI&ES on an accruals basis is different from remuneration |
chargeablein the year in accordance with statutory i ! : H 3 H
(308) 0: 0: (308)! 308! 0

requirements 1 19d
Total Adjustments 43,566 (145): 101: 43,522} (43,522): 0
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The comparative figures for the Group for 2012/13 are set out in the table below:

Group Group Group Group Group Group
Police Capital Capital Total Total Total
Fund Receipts Grants Usable Unusable Reserves
Balance Reserve  Unapplied Reserves Reserves

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

n-current assets written off on disposal or salea
isposal to th ES

Application of grants to capital financing transferred to the Capital
Adjustment Account

Transfer of cash sale proceeds credited as part of the gain/loss on

disposal tothe CI&ES
Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new capital
expenditure 320 0L (139)

Contribution from the Capital Receipts Reserve towards
administration costs of non current asset disposals

Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or credited :
tothe CIES (Note19) |153/19¢

Employer's pension contributions and direct payments to pensioners
payablein the year

Adjustments primarily involving the Collection Fund Adjustment
Account

Amount by which council tax income credited to the CI&ES is
different from council tax in the year in accordance with statutory : :
requirements L__l?_@_/_is)__ e 192)

Amount by which officer remuneration charged to the CI&ES on an é
accruals basis is different from remuneration chargeable in the year ;
in accordance with statutory requirements

l 19d | (5)1 [} o (5)! 5! 0
Total Adjustments ; 3,704 1,188} 427! 5319:  (5,319)! 0
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Notes to the Accounts

The figures for the PCC for 2013/14 are set out in the table below:

PCC PCC PCC PCC PCC PCC
Police Capital Capital Total Total Total
Fund Receipts Grants Usable Unusable Reserves
Balance Reserve  Unapplied Reserves Reserves
£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s
Adjustments primarily involving the Capital Adjustment : : ; :
Account I b
Reversal of items debited or credited to the : :

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
(CI&ES)

Charges for depreciation and impairment of non-current | . {7777 ST R
assets 4 6 4395 0 L 4395,  (4395)

Revaluation (gains)/losses on Property, Plant & !
Equipment

Amounts of non-current assets written off on disposal or {
sale as part of the gain/loss on disposal to the CI&ES i\ 6e/10

Statutory provision for the financing of capital investment

Adjustments primarily involving the Capital Grants
Unapplied Account

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------- e

Adjustments primarily involving the Capital Receipts | | T
L= S I S S S S

Transfer of cash sale proceeds credited as part of the
gain/loss on disposal to the CI&ES

Contribution from the Capital Receipts Reserve towards
administration costs of non current asset disposals

credited tothe CI&ES (Note19)  15a/19% 168

Employer's pension contributions and direct payments to
pensioners payablein the year k 15a/19e

Adjustments primarily involving the Collection Fund
Adjustment Account o :
Amount by which council tax income credited to the CI&ES |
is different from council tax in the year in accordance i i i

with statutory requirements i 19¢/30 74 (74)§ 0

Adjustments primarily involving the Accumulated
Absences Account
Amount by which officer remuneration charged to the i
CI&ES on an accruals basis is different from remuneration |
chargeablein the year in accordance with statutory i

requirements i 19d ‘; 1| 0 o 1) (1)} 0
Total Adjustments i 1,495 (145): 101! 1,451  (1,451): 0
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Notes to the Accounts

The comparative figures for the PCC for 2012/13 are set out in the table below:

PCC PCC PCC PCC PCC PCC
Police Capital Capital Total Total Total
Fund Receipts Grants Usable Unusable Reserves
Balance Reserve  Unapplied Reserves Reserves

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

n-current assets written off on disposal or salea
isposal to th ES

Application of grants to capital financing transferred to the Capital
Adjustment Account

Transfer of cash sale proceeds credited as part of the gain/loss on
disposal to the CI&ES

Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new capital
expenditure 322 00 (189)

Contribution from the Capital Receipts Reserve towards
administration costs of non current asset disposals

Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or credited :
tothe CIES (Note 19) . 153/19¢

Employer's pension contributions and direct payments to pensioners
payablein the year

Adjustments primarily involving the Collection Fund Adjustment
Account

Amount by which council tax income credited to the CI&ES is
different from council tax in the year in accordance with statutory
requirements

Amount by which officer remuneration charged to the CI&ES on an é
accruals basis is different from remuneration chargeable in the year ;
in accordance with statutory requirements

s 5 o o ® s 0

Total Adjustments ; 3,704 1,188 427! 5319:  (5,319)! 0
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Transfers to/from Earmarked Reserves

5

This note sets out the amounts set aside from the Police Fund balances in earmarked reserves to provide
financing for future expenditure plans and the amounts credited to earmarked reserves to meet Police Fund

expenditure in 2013/14 (and for 2012/13).
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Notes to the Accounts

A narrative description of the purpose of each of the earmarked reserves is provided below for information:

= Insurance —to offset any insurance claims not specifically detailed in the insurance provision.
=  Management of Change —to help manage significant organisational change.

= Operational Contingency — to provide resources both to back up the annual operational contingency
and, in addition, to assist in funding unexpected major events, if necessary.

=  PFl Reserves — to equalise the impact on the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement of
changing levels of grant income and charges over the period of the contract

= Police and Crime Commissioner —to provide a dedicated reserve for the Commissioner’s responsibilities.

= Police and Crime Commissioner Transition — to help manage the potential costs associated with the
transition to Police Commissioners.

= Investment Fund — to invest in initiatives such as technology, equipment and training to meet the
Commissioner’s priorities and to increase the productivity of the Constabulary. Revenue Underspends
amounting to £3m were added to this reserve during the year.

= Past Service Cost LGPS — reserve established in 2013/14 to be used to help meet additional past service
costs chargeable in 2014/15 as a result of the decision to pay 3 years contribution upfront in order to
generate a saving.

= Mobile Data — to support the roll out in relation to the use, benefits and efficiencies offered by the use
of mobile data.

=  Police National Database - to offset the revenue costs associated with the implementation of the Police
National Database system.

= Public Holiday - to smooth peaks in overtime expenditure due when bank holidays fall across financial
years.

=  Budget Holders Funds —to support a variety of locally managed initiatives arising from unspent balances
in previous years, granted under the scheme of devolved resource management.

= Capital Reserve — direct contributions from revenue to fund capital schemes within the approved capital
programme. Capital reserves are set at a level to ensure that the programme is fully funded for the life
of the medium term financial forecast (4 years).
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Property, Plant and Equipment
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Notes to the Accounts

6.a

6.b

6.c

6.d

Valuations Rolling Programme

The Commissioner carries out a rolling programme that ensures that all Property, Plant and Equipment
required to be measured at fair value is revalued at least every five years. Valuations of land and buildings
are carried out on behalf of the Commissioner by Mr. C. Smith Bsc MRICS of Carigiet Cowen and were carried
out in accordance with the methodologies and bases for estimation set out in the professional standards of
the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors (RICS). Valuations of vehicles, plant, furniture and equipment are
based on historic cost as a proxy for fair value. The basis of the valuations is set out in the statement of
accounting policies on page 101. The table below sets out details of the land and buildings valuations
undertaken over the five year rolling programme.

PCC/Group Total
Land Vehicles IT Furniture Assets Property,
and Equipment Under Plant &
Buildings Technology & Plant Construction Equipment
£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

-31March2011 i 510i  0i 0 _0F. 510
Total Cost or Valuation ; 54,050 7,823: 23,170 2,950 709: 88,702

..................................................................................................................................................................

Impairment Review

The Commissioner’s professional valuer, Mr. C. Smith of Carigiet Cowen, has made an assessment of the
possible effects of material impairment to land and buildings during the financial year. His assessment was
based on a number of specific criteria, which, in his opinion, could affect the valuation of assets. The
outcome of the assessment process is that the valuer has concluded that there are no impairments.

Property, Plant and Equipment in the Ownership of the Police and Crime Commissioner
A brief analysis of the Commissioner's principal assets as at 31 March 2014 is set out below:

PCC/Group
As at 31 March
2013 2014
Number Number
HQ, TPA HQ & Larger Police Stations

Effects of Changes in Estimates
There have been no material changes in estimates in the 2013/14 accounts.
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6.e Gain / Loss on Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment
The table below analyses the (gain)/loss on sale of property, plant and equipment for the year ended 31
March 2014.

PCC/Group
Net Book Proceeds of
Value Costs of Sale Sale (Gain) / Loss
00003 00003 00003 £000s
Land and Buildings : (448) (29):
: ' (59) (51):
(507) (80):

The comparative figures for 2012/13 are set out in the table below:

PCC/Group
Net Book Proceeds of
Value Costs of Sale Sale (Gain) / Loss
E00103 £000s £000s

iLand and Buildings i (1,323)
: ‘ (88)

Note in 2013/14 £49k (£68k in 2012/13) of receipts from proceeds of sale included in the above table were
individually below the £10k threshold for recognition as capital receipts and have therefore been treated as
revenue income. This explains why the capital receipts recorded in note 4 show £458k (£1,343k in 2012/13)
rather than £507k (£1,411k in 2012/13) as above.

7 Capital Commitments
The Commissioner has outstanding contractual commitments amounting to £8,470k in respect of a number
of schemes from the 2013/14 capital programme (£235k in 2012/13). The capital budget outturn report for
2013/14 was presented to the Commissioner’s Executive Board on 04 June 2014 and is available on the
Commissioner’s website.

Outstanding Capital Commitments PCC/Group
As at 31 March

2013 2014
£000s

%F'”ancea”dBUS'”GSSSVStemSUpgradeProJeCt

| {HQ Roof Repairs
,{Tntffsxats_ﬁﬂu@mén99&1@2@}191&5&%@Uw,,wumwmwww R =1

Jadm Replacements

'South Estate - Barrow

mK/ehicIe Replacement
Jfl’otal

................................................................................................................................................................

{
;
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8 Intangible Assets
The Commissioner accounts for his computer software as intangible assets, to the extent that the software is
not an integral part of a particular IT system and accounted for as part of the hardware item within Property,
Plant and Equipment. The intangible assets include computer software development and acquisitions. All
software is given a finite useful life (5 years), based on assessments of the period that the software is
expected to be of use to the Commissioner. The carrying amount of intangible assets is amortised on a
straight line basis and is charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

A summary of the movements in intangible assets during the year and the position as at 31 March 2014
(with comparatives for 2012/13) is set out in the table below:

PCC/Group
2012/13 2013/14 Intangible Assets are
£000s £000s those which do not
have physical
Balance at start of year substance but are
- controlled as a result
- Gross carrying amount 4,756 4,997 of past events (e.g.
- Accumulated amortisation (3,033) (3,736) software licences)
Net carrying amount at start of year 1,723 1,261 where expenditure is
capitalised when it is
Reclassification Adjustment 0 (66) expected that future
Additions 241 86 economic benefits or
Disposals 0 0 service potential will
flow from the asset.
Amort!sat!ons fgr the period . (703) (637) Amortisation is the
Amortisation adjustment re disposals 0 0 practice of reducing
Net carrying amount at end of year 1,261 643 the value of assets to
reflect their reduced
Comprising worth over time. The
- Gross carrying amount 4,997 5,017 term means the same
- Accumulated amortisation (3,736) (4,374) as depreciation.
1,261 643

PCC/Group
Allocation of Amortisation 2012/13 2013/14 o
£000s £000s The amorfls'at'.‘n‘m in
. the year is initially
Local Policing 317 287 charged to the IT
Dealing with the Public 76 69 Services Department
Criminal Justice Arrangements 79 72 and is then allocated
Road Policing 46 42 across services on a
Specialist Operations 22 20 headcount basis. The
Intelligence 48 43 table to the left
Specialist Investigations 89 81 shows the amount of
Investigative Support 18 16 gmortisation
National Polici 3 = attributable to each
ational Policing service heading.
703 637
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9

10

Heritage Assets

A heritage asset is a tangible asset with historical, artistic, scientific, technological, geophysical or
environmental qualities that is held and maintained principally for its contribution to knowledge and
culture.

The code requires Heritage Assets, which are maintained principally for their contribution to knowledge or
culture, to be separately disclosed.

The Commissioner holds a small number of historical ephemera relating to policing in Cumbria which would
fall under the definition of heritage assets including: a ceremonial chair, four antique firearms, several
trophies, a commemorative plaque, two ceremonial swords and four portraits.

In the opinion of the Commissioner the assets do not have a material intrinsic value in the context of the
Commissioner’s accounts. Due to their historical origin no cost or valuation information is available and
because of their diverse nature specialist valuations would be required to obtain a reliable estimate of their
value. The Commissioner is of the opinion that the costs of obtaining the valuations for these items would
be disproportionate in terms of the benefits gained and therefore no values are included in the
Commissioner’s balance sheet.

Assets Held for Sale

Assets held for sale relate to land and buildings assets that are available for immediate sale in their present
condition subject to terms that are usual and customary for sales of such assets. The assets are being
actively marketed for a sale at a price that is reasonable in relation to its current fair value. The sale is
expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification.

The table below shows the movement on Assets Held for Sale in 2013/14 with comparative information for
2012/13.

PCC/Group
As at 31 March

2013 2014

£000s £000s
Balance outstanding at start of year 181 416
Newly classified as held for sale 2,427 0
Revaluation gains/(losses) (942) 0
Reversal of Impairment losses 72 0
Assets sold (1,204) (416)
De-classified as held for sale (118) 0
Balance outstanding at end of year 416 0
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11 Financial Instruments

Financial Instruments are contracts that give rise to a financial asset in one entity and a financial liability
in another. The term covers both financial assets such as loans and receivables and financial liabilities
such as creditors and borrowings.

11.a Categories of Financial Instrument
The following categories of financial instrument are carried in the balance sheet:

PCC PCC Group Group
Long Term Current Long Term Current

31March 31March 31March 31March 31March 31March 31March 31 March
2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014
£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

Financial Assets
§ Investments
§Loans and receiva

i De btors

12,206, 18,029

Credltors

IO
Flnanual liabilities carried at contract amounts | (7,431) (8,796)

|

]

: ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, \Azr ,,,,,,,,,,,,, F wwwww —— FUNS ,T._, ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,
Total Financial Liabilities i 5,309 1,349)| 1,586, 5,309 5,220 7,516)! 8,885
, e .gw_,: ,__(__,._)T__(_ )I ( ,L ) s (s

11.b Gains and Losses on Financial Instruments
The gains and losses recognised in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in 2013/14
relating to financial instruments are made up as follows:

PCC/Group 2012/13 PCC/Group 2013/14
Financial Financial Financial Financial
Liabilities Liabilities Financial Assets Liabilities Liabilities Financial Assets
Held at PFI/Finance Loans & Held at PFI/Finance Loans &
amortised cost [EL Receivables amortised cost Lease Receivables
£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s
InterestExpense L ' . T . A
mpairment Losses 0 (2)
Bad Debts Provision Increase) @ e
otrz;lrlré)rtr;;enses in (Surplus) or . 2 el o 60 (2 k9 0o 667
'Deficit on the Provision of Services !
nterestincome . 0 o0 (04 (104 0o 0 (148 (148)
Totallncome in (Surplus) or Deficit (148)
onthe Provision of Services i
| Net (Gain)/Loss for the Year ) s
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11.c Fair value of Assets and Liabilities Carried at Amortised Cost
Financial liabilities and assets represented by loans and receivables and long term debtors and creditors are
carried in the balance sheet at amortised cost. Their fair value can be assessed by calculating the present
value of the cash flows that will take place over the remaining term of the instruments, using the following
assumptions:

e Estimated interest rates at 31 March 2014 of 5% for loans from the Public Works Loans Board
(PWLB).

e No early repayment or impairment is recognised

e Where an instrument will mature in the next 12 months, carrying amount is assumed to be
approximate to fair value

e The fair value of trade and other receivables is taken to be the invoiced amount.

e In calculating the fair value of the PFI a discount rate based on the returns of a zero coupon AA
corporate bond have been used to discount future cash flows as this instrument has an estimated
risk profile equivalent to that of public sector PFl schemes.

The fair values calculated are as follows:

PCC PCC Group Group
31 March 2013 31 March 2014 31 March 2013 31 March 2014
Carrying E Carrying ET Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Value Amount Value Amount Value Amount Value
£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

.f._.w
Fnandalassets | L 1L
| iInvestments W_W_WLW  7,603] 7,603,  13,636] 13,636 7,603 7,603, 13,636 13,636
‘Debtors | 4,467 4,467 4,285 4,285 4,603] 4,603 : 4,393
T ARty Ryt ong by et e B : P
: | 12,070 12,070, 17,921, 17,921 12,206, 12,206 18,029: 18,029
15 e e B R S

i i | : |

For financial assets the fair value is shown to be the same as the carrying amount as the investments are for
a short period and there is no option to vary the amount or timing of repayment.

In relation to the PFI, the fair value exceeds the carrying amount as a result of the historically higher level of
interest rates prevailing at the inception of the PFl arrangement and the interest rate implicit within the PFI
agreement.

11.d Disclosure of the Nature and Extent of Risks Arising from Financial Instruments

The Commissioner’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks. The Commissioner’s annual Treasury
Management Strategy focuses on these risks and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the
resources available to fund services. The Commissioner provides written policies within its Treasury
Management Strategy covering interest rate risk, credit risk and the investment of surplus cash balances. A
copy of the current Treasury Management Strategy Statement can be found on the Police and Crime
Commissioner’s website at:
www.cumbria-pcc.gov.uk/media/25573/Treasury%20Management%20Strategy%20Statement%202014-

15.pdf
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Credit Risk

Credit Risk is the possibility that other parties might fail to pay amounts due to the Commissioner.

Credit risk arises from deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit exposures to the
Commissioner’s customers.

This risk is minimised through the application of policies set out in the annual Treasury Management
Strategy Statement (TMSS), which requires that deposits are not made with financial institutions unless they
meet identified minimum credit criteria, as laid down by Fitch and Moody’s ratings services. The annual
TMSS (approved by the Commissioner in February 2013), also imposes a maximum sum to be invested with a
financial institution located within each category. An amendment to the TMSS was subsequently approved
in June 2013 in light of revisions to the cash flow forecasts, which indicated that average balances available
for investment would be higher than anticipated, the change increased the maximum amounts which could
be invested with individual financial institutions and classes of financial institutions. All other investment
criteria remained unchanged.

The credit criteria as set out in the 2013/14 TMSS (and amendments approved in June 2013) in respect of
financial assets held by the Commissioner are detailed below:

Financial Asset Category Minimum Maximum
Criteria Investment
Deposits with major UK and non Short Term: F1/P1 The lower of £3m (per
UK Banks and Building Societies Long Term: A-/Al institution or group).
Support Rating: 3 Maximum of all deposits
£12m.

June 2013 increased to £4.5m
and £18m respectively.
Deposits with Money Market Long Term: AAA £2m per fund. Maximum of
Funds all deposits £10m.

June 2013 increased to £3m
and £15m respectively.

Deposits with Other Local Not credit rated but are legally £2m per authority. Maximum
Authorities required to set a balanced budget. of all deposits — No Limit.
Deposits with Debt Management | Not credit rated but deposits have No limit.

Agency Deposit Facility the best possible credit through the

HM Government guarantee

In February 2014, the annual update to the TMSS was agreed by the Commissioner. At which point, the
minimum investment criteria outlined in the table above was reduced from institutions with a minimum
short term credit rating of F1 to F2. The change was largely as a result of improved stability in economic
conditions, the fact that most banks have had their credit ratings downgraded and the view of the
Commissioner’s treasury advisors that an F2 risk profile would represent a prudent level of risk. The agreed
revised strategy for 2014/15 was implemented with immediate effect for the remainder of 2013/14.

The Commissioner’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its investments in banks, building
societies and other Local Authority’s of £14m at the balance sheet date cannot be assessed generally as the
risk of any institution failing to make interest payments or repay the principal sum will be specific to each
individual institution. Recent experience has shown that it is rare for such entities to be unable to meet their
commitments. A risk of irrecoverability applies to all of the Commissioner’s deposits, but there was no
evidence at the 31 March 2014 that this was likely to happen.
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The following analysis summarises the Commissioner’s potential maximum exposure to credit risk, on other
financial assets, based on experience of default and uncollectability over the last five financial years,
adjusted to reflect current market conditions.

PCC/Group Historical Estimated Comparative
Historical = Experience maximum Estimated
Amount Experience  Adjusted exposure maximum
at of for Market  to default and exposure

31/03/14 Default Conditions uncollectability at 31/03/13

£000s % at 31/03/14 £000s £000s
; ]

iCustomers - Operational Debtors 0.04%

- z

The Commissioner does not generally allow credit for customers. At the 31 March 2014, £231k of the
£1,362k balance of operational debt was past the due date for payment. This sum has increased from the
balance at 31 March 2013 (£74k out of £1,363k overdue), as a consequence the Commissioner has increased
the bad debt provision as at 31 March 2014 from £2k to £4k to reflect a degree of uncertainty around some
of the longer standing debts. The past due amount can be analysed by age as follows:

PCC/Group
As at 31 March
2013 2014
£000s £000s
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Liquidity Risk

Liquidity Risk is the possibility that the Commissioner might not have funds available to meet its
commitments to make payments.

As the Commissioner has ready access to borrowings from the PWLB and had at 31 March 2014 no actual
external debt having financed a number of recent projects through internal borrowing, there is no significant
risk that it will be unable to raise finance to meet its commitments under financial instruments. A more
pertinent risk is that the Commissioner will be required to replenish a significant proportion of its internal
borrowings at a time of unfavourable interest rates. At the balance sheet date the Commissioner is
confident that it has adequate working capital principally as a result of its reserves to mitigate this risk.
Nevertheless, prevailing money market rates are regularly monitored with a view to ensuring that long term
debt financing decisions are made at the optimum time.

All operational liabilities are due to be repaid within one year.

Market Risk

Market Risk is the possibility that financial loss might arise for the Commissioner as a result of changes in
such measures as interest rates and stock market movements.

The Commissioner is exposed to some risk due to movements in interest rates on its loans and investments.
These potential risks are:

e Anincrease in interest rates will result in a fall in the fair value of borrowings and investments.

e Adecrease in interest rates will result in a rise in the fair value of borrowings and investments.

e The value of interest received from investments will rise or fall depending on increases and
decreases in interest rates and will impact on the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement.

As all of the Commissioner’s existing borrowings and investments have been placed at fixed rates, this risk
has to a large extent been minimised.

Borrowings and investments are carried in the Balance Sheet at fair value, so nominal gains and losses on
fixed rate financial instruments have no impact on the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

The Commissioner carries out its borrowing and investment function within parameters set out in its
Treasury Management Strategy, which assesses interest rate exposure to feed into the budget process.
Forecasts are updated regularly throughout the year, which allows any significant changes to interest rates
to be reflected in current budget projections.

The Treasury Management Strategy also advises on the limits for new variable and fixed-rate borrowing for
the year. No new external borrowing was undertaken in 2013/14.
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Short-term Debtors

Debtors reflect amounts owing to the Police and Crime Commissioner but not yet received at the end of
the financial year.

A breakdown of the amounts owing to the Commissioner as at 31 March 2014 is set out in the table below:

PCC Group

2013
£000s

As at 31 March
2014
£000s

As at 31 March
2013
£000s

2014
£000s

Central Government Bodies 4,302 3,971 4,302 3,971
Other Police / Local Authorities 532 485 532 485
NHS Bodies 69 68 69 68
Public Corporations & Trading Funds 4 9 4 9
Other Entities and Individuals (*) 5,007 5,269 5,007 5,269
Impairment (Provision for Bad Debts) (863) (866) (863) (866)
Other Entities and Individuals (Net of Impairment) 4,144 4,403 4,144 4,403
Balances Owed From Chief Constable:

- Re CC Share of External Creditors 7,920 8,211 0 0
- Re balance of Funding 2,960 3,204 0 0
Total Debtors 19,931 20,351 9,051 8,936

* The amounts in respect of other entities and individuals are analysed further in the table below

information.

* Analysis of Other Entities and Individuals

PCC
As at 31 March

2013
£000s

2014
£000s

Group

As at 31 March
2013
£000s

2014
£000s

Police Pensioners Prepayment 1,906 2,018 1,906 2,018
Goods and Services 418 354 418 354
Prepayments/Payments In Advance 877 1,027 877 1,027
Employees (accumulating compensating absences) 103 109 103 109
Local Taxpayers (#) 1,703 1,761 1,703 1,761

5,007 5,269 5,007 5,269
Less - Provision for Bad Debts (Goods & Services) (2) (4) (2) (4)
Less - Provision for Bad Debts (Local Taxpayers) (#) (861) (862) (861) (862)

(863) (866) (863) (866)
Other Entities and Individuals (Net of Impairment) 4,144 4,403 4,144 4,403

# The debtors in respect of Local Taxpayers represent the Commissioner’s share of the debtors recorded by
the 6 Cumbrian District Councils in respect of Council Tax. This figure is reduced by the Commissioner’s

share of their respective bad debt provisions.
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13

Short-term Creditors

Creditors reflect amounts owed by the Police and Crime Commissioner for goods and services received
which had not been paid for at the end of the financial year.

An analysis of the amounts owed by the Commissioner as at 31 March 2014 is set out in the table below:

PCC

As at 31 March

2013
£000s

2014
200103

Group

As at 31 March

2013
£000s

2014
£000s

Central Government Bodies (1,913) (1,847) (1,913) (1,847)
Other Police / Local Authorities (897) (960) (897) (960)
NHS Bodies (3) (4) (3) (4)
Public Corporations & Trading Funds 0 0 0 0
Other Entities and Individuals (*) (7,376) (7,922) (7,376) (7,922)
Balances Owed to Chief Constable:

- Re CC Share of External & Employee Debtors (2,760) (2,986) 0 0
- Re balance of Funding (5,428) (5,557) 0 0
Total Creditors (18,377). (19,276) (10,189): (10,733)

* The amounts in respect of other entities and individuals are analysed further in the table below for

information.

PCC Group
As at 31 March

As at 31 March
2013 2014
£000s £000s

2013
00103

2014
£000s

Police and Crime Commissioner for Cumbria — Statement of Accounts 2013/14

* Analysis of Other Entities and Individuals
Goods and Services (2,731) (3,438) (2,731) (3,438)
Receipts In Advance (267) (338) (267) (338)
Employees (accumulating compensating absences) (3,773) (3,471) (3,773) (3,471)
Local Taxpayers (605) (675) (605) (675)
Other Entities and Individuals (7,376) (7,922) (7,376) (7,922)
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Provisions

The Commissioner is able to maintain provisions to meet expected future liabilities. The Code of Practice on
Local Authority Accounting advises that the value of any provisions be charged to the appropriate part of the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in anticipation of the liability having to be met in the
future. The classification of provisions is consistent with the Code of Practice.

A brief description of the purpose of the individual provisions as at 31 March 2014 is provided below:

= |nsurance liabilities — this provision has been established to meet a number of eventualities which are
not covered by external insurers. In particular, liability risks up to £25k (per event) are retained by the
Commissioner and met internally.
= Termination Payments - this employee related provision relates to a liability that exists in respect of
termination benefits as a result of a decision made during 2013/14 for which the actual payments will

fall into 2014/15.

= Legal Claims — this provision has been established to cover the potential costs relating to a number of
legal claims that are currently ongoing.

=  MMI Insurance Claims — this provision was established to meet the potential costs arising from the
scheme of arrangement put in place by the Commissioner’s former insurer Municipal Mutual Insurance
Ltd. During 2013/14 a sum of £45k was paid to the County Council in respect of the Commissioner’s
share of the liability arising to January 2014 (see note 31 contingent liabilities for further details).

The table below shows the movements during the year on each of the group provisions and the position as

at 31 March 2014.

Provisions

Balance
as at
01/04/13

£000s

Additional
Provisions
Made 2013/14

0003

£000s

Amounts
Used in
2013/14

£000s

Unused
Amounts
Reversedin
2013/14

Balance
as at
31/03/14

£000s

Insurance Liabilities (593) (52) 150 0 (495)
Termination Payments (532) (45) 194 338 (45)
Legal Claims (130) (250) 122 8 (250)
MMI Insurance Claims (45) 0 45 0 0
Total Provisions (1,300) (347) 511 346 (790)

The comparative information for year ended 31 March 2013 is as follows:

Additional
Provisions
Made 2012/13

Balance
as at
31/03/13

Unused
Amounts
Reversed in

Amounts
Used in
20112/13

Balance
as at
01/04/12

Provisions

2012/13

£000s

20003

£000s

£000s

£000s

Insurance Liabilities (593) (205) 205 0 (593)
Termination Payments (232) (532) 232 0 (532)
Pay Awards (141) 0 141 0 0
Legal Claims 0 (130) 0 0 (130)
MMI Insurance Claims 0 (45) 0 0 (45)
Total Provisions (966) (912) 578 0 (1,300)

The MMI Insurance Claim Provision is the only one included in the Single Entity Statements for the PCC.
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15
15.a

Pensions

Pension Schemes

As part of the terms and conditions of employment of its officers and other employees, the Commissioner
offers retirement benefits. Although these benefits will not actually be payable until employees retire,
under IAS 19 the Commissioner must recognise its future commitment to make payments, which need to be
disclosed at the time that employees earn their future entitlement. In addition, the financial statements
should contain adequate disclosure of the costs of providing benefits and related gains/losses.

The Commissioner participates in two pension schemes:

= The Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) for Police Staff employees, administered by Cumbria
County Council (outsourced to Lancashire County Council) — this is a funded defined benefit scheme,
meaning that the Commissioner and employees pay contributions into a fund. Contributions are
calculated at a level intended to balance the pensions liabilities with investment assets over the long
term. In 2013/14 the Commissioner made a contribution of 11.1% of pensionable pay supplemented by
a contribution to past service costs for the group of £799k (£279k for the PCC single entity statements).
The contribution rate was last reviewed in March 2013 with revised rates applicable from April 2014.

= The Police Pension Scheme is an unfunded scheme (i.e. there are no investment assets built up to meet
pension liabilities and cash has to be generated to meet actual pensions payments as they fall due). The
Commissioner and employees pay contributions into a separate pensions fund account administered by
the Commissioner from which on-going pensions liabilities are met. At the year-end any surplus or
deficit on the pensions fund account is paid to or met by the Commissioner who then repays or is
reimbursed by the Home Office. (2013/14 contribution rates for employers were 24.2% of pensionable
pay and was last reviewed in March 2007).

The principal risk to the Commissioner of the schemes are the longevity assumptions, statutory changes to
the scheme, structural changes to the scheme (i.e. large-scale withdrawals from the scheme), changes to
inflation, bond yields and the performance of the equity investments held by the scheme. These are
mitigated to a certain extent by the statutory requirements to charge the Police Fund the amounts required
by statute as described in the accounting policies note.

The cost of retirement benefits is recognised in the Cost of Services within the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement when employees earn them, rather than when the benefits are eventually paid as
pensions. However, the charge required to be made against Council Tax is based on the contributions in the
year, so the real cost of retirement benefits is reversed out of the Police Fund in the Movement in Reserves
Statement.
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The following transactions have been made in the Group Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
and Movement in Reserves Statement during the year:

Group Group Group Group
LGPS LGPS Police Scheme Police Scheme
Funded Benefits Unfunded Benefits Old Scheme 2006 Scheme
2012/13 2013/14 2012/13 2013/14 2012/13 2013/14 2012/13 2013/14
Re-stated Re-stated
£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement ] i ]

Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure
e Net interest expense

Total Post-employement Benefits charged to the
Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services

Other Post-employment Benefits charged to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability
COMPIISING: e

e Return on plan assets (excluding the amount
included in the net interest expense)

o Actuarial (galns) and losses arising on changes in |

demographic assumptions (380)§ (140)5 0 e

- S S-S S

140,560i (28,650); 4,000 (2,050)

e Actuarial (gains) and losses arising on changes in :
financial assumptions :

* Experience (gains) and losses on liabilities (3,665) (25,410): (19,830)§ 380 (670)
P SHE oi SHE oi oi ol 0
Total Post-employment Benefits charged to the {10,722 (9,549): 120; 71i 171,240; 12,550:  7,480: 1,990
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement !
Movementin Reserves Statement S S 5. _______________ SO S S A
e Reversal of net charges made to the Surplus or (51) (46) (56, 470) (61, 170) (3, 100) (4,720)
Deficit for the Provision of Services for post- ] ! ; : ; :
employment benefits in accordance with the Code. ! : : :
Actual amount charged against the General Fund | : i : i : i ;
Balance for pensions in theyear i : B S
e Employers' contributions payable to the scheme 65 65 0i 0 0! 0
« Retirements benefits payable to pensioners ~ :  0i 0 o 0 23,620] 26,600 '""""('é'e'é') """" (970)
Total amount charged against the Police Fund i 2,909 2,888 65! 65. 23620 26,600  (660)i  (970)
Balance for pensions in the year ; F : F : 5 : 5
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The following transactions have been made in the PCC Single Entity Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement and Movement in Reserves Statement during the year:

PCC PCC
LGPS LGPS
Funded Benefits Unfunded Benefits

2012/13 2013/14 2012/13 2013/14
Re-stated Re-stated
£000s £000s £000s £000s

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement . 4)
COStOF SEIVICES | e A
|
e Currentservicecost . 102 45
e Pastservice costs OE 0
. (Galn)/loss from settl ements 3} 0
F/nancmg and lnvestmentlncome and Expend/ture 1: 4’
* Net interest expense B B ! 31 40! 2 1
Total Post-employement Benefits charged to the Surplus or Deficit on | 139 167% 2!
the Provision of Services ; ’ f
i
Other Post-employment Benefits charged to the Comprehensive 1 ; E
Income and Expenditure Statement ; f
Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability comprising: ? ; ;
i ! :
e Return on plan assets (excluding the amountincluded in the net J; (192)s (90)1: 0 0
interest expense) ’ g :
e e e e e e e e e S ,uuuw,‘{,;u,y,u”,u,u.fww
o Actuarlal (gains) and losses arising on changes in demographic 37 80} 0: 0]
assumptions g | f
e Actuarial (gains) and losses arising on changes in financial ; 361 (349)? 2? ()
assumptions N ;
e Experience (galns) and Iosses on Ilabllltles ; 0 (120)7§ 0! 2
- e e e < R S PR .
+ Administration expenses 3 2 3 0: 0
Total Post-employment Benefits charged to the Comprehensive Income 347 (309)E 4! 2
and Expenditure Statement f
et SN (SN S
Movement in Reserves Statement R T o]
e Reversal of net charges made to the Surplus or Deficit for the 3 (139) (167)§ (2)5 (1)
Provision of Services for post-employment benefits in accordance with 3 Z !
the Code. ; s E
i
Actual amount charged against the General Fund Balance for pensions in | g
theyear S AU SR
e Employers' contributions payable to the scheme ; 95 94% 2 2
[ SRS o
e Retirements benefits payable to pensioners ; 0 05 0 0
Total amount charged against the Police Fund Balance for pensions in i 95; 94§ 2 2
the year ‘ } ]
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15.b Pensions Assets and Liabilities Recognised in the Balance Sheet
Under IAS 19, the financial statements should reflect at fair value the assets and liabilities arising from an
employer’s obligation to pay retirement benefits and the funding provided.

The underlying assets and liabilities for retirement benefits attributable to the Group at 31 March 2014 are
as follows:-

Group Group Group Group
LGPS LGPS Police Scheme Police Scheme
Funded Benefits Unfunded Benefits Old Scheme 2006 Scheme

2012/13 2013/14 2012/13 2013/14 2012/13 2013/14 2012/13 2013/14
£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s  £000s

(1, 103)z (988, 130)$ (974, 080) (22, 360); (25,320)
|

(1, 103); (988, 130)$ (974, 080) (22, 360) (25,320)

| | | |

The liabilities in the above table show the underlying commitments that the Commissioner has, in the long
run, to pay retirement benefits. The total group liability of £1.017m (£1.040m at 31 March 2013) has a
substantial impact on the net worth of the Commissioner as recorded in the group balance sheet, resulting
in a negative overall balance of £0.938m (£0.968m at 31 March 2013).

Present value of the defl ned (108 282)

(104,245);
beneflt obligation ]

'('iib'é'ii‘i

Net liability arising from (28,673)! (16, 236)5 (1 097)i
Idefmed benefit obligation |

However, statutory arrangements for funding the deficit mean that the financial position of the group
remains healthy, since:

e the deficit on the local government scheme will be made good by increased contributions and changes
to benefits over the remaining working life of employees, as assessed by the scheme actuary

e finance is only required to be raised to cover police pensions when the pensions are actually paid.

The underlying assets and liabilities for retirement benefits attributable to the PCC Single Entity at 31 March
2014 are as follows:

PCC PCC
LGPS LGPS
Funded Benefits Unfunded Benefits

2012/13 2013/14 2012/13 2013/14
£000s £000s £000s £000s

e

Teey T

.

1

fFairrvrarlLrlerorf plan assets » o0 0
U S S SN ]

| ! e

Net liability arising from defined benefit obligation 3 (930) (527)i (36) (36)
| i
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Reconciliation of present value of scheme liabilities for the group:

Group Group Group Group
LGPS LGPS Police Scheme Police Scheme
Funded Benefits  Unfunded Benefits Old Scheme 2006 Scheme
2012/13 2013/14 2012/13 2013/14 2012/13 2013/14 2012/13 2013/14
Re-stated Re-stated

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

Interest cost

Contributions by Scheme ' (1160): (1124)’ oi 0 (4330)? (4,470)! (610)  (810)
Participants i : :

Remeasurement gains and
(losses):

'
,,_,_,_”wu_,,_,,_,,_,,_,,_,,_,,_,,vywu,_,_,,,_,_,_,_,_,_u,;.uwy o

- Arising from changes in :
. . (1,151); (2,455)
demographic assumptions :

- Arising from changes in
financial assumptions

(6); 8) 3805 1405 0} 10

24} (140, 560)5 28, 6505 (4, 000)E 2,050

- Experiencegains/(losses) | | b'i """" é','éé'é """"""" 6 L) s5aiol 19830 o670

Pastservicecost b0 0 0 0 (20)000

Gains/(losses) on curtallment (181); (91); 0! 0 0i 0! 0

Benefits Paid/Transfers .| ... 20620 18521 63 e 65 27950: 31,070 (50)i __(160)

Balance at End of Year (108, 282) (104,245); (1,097); (1,103); (988, 130) (974, 030) (22, 350) (25,320)
: | | '

Reconciliation of present value of scheme liabilities for the PCC Single Entity:

PCC PCC
LGPS LGPS
Funded Benefits Unfunded Benefits
2012/13 2013/14 2012/13 2013/14 e el bitiras vl
Re-stated Re-stated both the LGPS and
£000s £000s  £000s £000s Police Pension Schemes
: have reduced during
2013/14. The Principal
reason for this

Interestcost f reduction is in relation
Contrlbutlons by Scheme :

{ i : to re-measurement
Participants ] .
S HER St ebiet ahiiehabiiebb- bttt et gains and losses.
Remeasurement gains and 3
(Iosses) { ! :
- Arlsmg from changes in (37)§ (80); 0% 0
demographic assumptions z
TfA?ising fro%ﬁgngesTru ”A(?G“) . 349 ”(2) a Nwi
financial assumptions l L :

- Experiencegains/(losses) | 0 120i O (2)
Pastservicecost w_,,,Q#mei L
)

Gains/(losses) on curtailment (6

Benef'tsPa'd/Transfersé """"" 6 '7'§ """ T 1
.B_a!ans_e_?_t__E_n_d_ef_x_eei_r________________1__ (3518)] __(3,387); ___(3_9)_%__________(_3_@

mu_,,wu_,“
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Reconciliation of fair value of the scheme assets for the group:

Balance at Start of Year

Beneﬁts Paid

Group
LGPS
Funded Benefits
2012/13 2013/14
Re-stated
£000s

Balance at End of Year ’

Group
LGPS
Unfunded Benefits
2012/13 2013/14
Re-stated
£000s £000s

Reconciliation of fair value of the scheme assets for the PCC single entity:

;Employer Contributions

PCC
LGPS
Funded Benefits
2012/13 2013/14
Re-stated
£000s £000s

PCC
LGPS
Unfunded Benefits
2012/13 2013/14
Re-stated
£000s £000s

Nioio

:Contributions by Scheme Participa nts38rmnnnnn§§‘0000m_wmg
_-Beneﬁts Paid (BT (80):(2)(2)
__,!?_a_'_a_n_cs_?_t__'_fnd_e_fle_ar _________________________________________________________ L 2,588 2860 0f . 0
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15.c

The Police Pension Scheme has no assets to cover its liabilities. The Commissioner’s share of assets in the
Cumbria County Council Pension Fund (LGPS) consists of the following categories, by proportion of the total
assets held:

Quoted PCC PCC Group Group
Y/N 2012/13 2013/14 2012/13 2013/14
LGPS Asset Breakdown £000s % £000s % £000s % £000s

_ Overseas Corporate Bonds i Y
Corporate Bonds Pooled

§7UK Government Indexed Pooled

_______________________________________________________ LR il OO0 OO [y defiibed Ity oGS

Property

| PropertyFunds
Alternatives

iCash Instruments
iCash Accounts

|_Net Current Assets

88,009 100.00%

2,860 100.00% 79,609 100.00%.

Basis for estimating assets and liabilities

Liabilities have been assessed on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method, which provides
an estimate of the pensions that will be payable in future years using assumptions about mortality rates,
salary levels, etc. William M Mercer, an independent firm of actuaries, has carried out the assessment on
the Local Government Pension Scheme. These accounts are based on the actuarial valuation undertaken on
31 March 2013. The Police Scheme estimates have been compiled using a valuation model devised by the
Government Actuaries Department.
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The principal assumptions used by the actuary have been:

LGPS Police Scheme
2012/13 2013/14 2012/13 2013/14

i - Other -

Mortality Assumptions: i

| iRateofInflation (CPI) . 1.240% i

4.15% |

Rateofincreaseinpensions e |.2:40% ;i 240% | 250% :..2:50%_ |
‘Rate for discounting scheme liabilities | 440% } 460% | 430% : 440%
iTake-up of option to convert annual pension into retirement lump sum 50% 50%

The estimation of the defined benefit obligations is sensitive to the actuarial assumptions set out in the table
above. The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the
assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period and assumes for each change that the assumption
analysed changes while all the other assumptions remain constant. The assumptions in longevity, for
example assume that life expectancy increases or decreases for men and women. In practice, this is unlikely
to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be interrelated. The estimations in the sensitivity
analysis have followed the accounting policies for the scheme, i.e. on an actuarial basis using the projected
unit credit method. The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis below
did not change from those used in the previous period.

Sensitivity Analysis — LGPS Pension Scheme

PCC Group
Impact on Impact on Impacton Impacton Impact on Impact on
Defined Projected Projected Defined Projected Projected
Benefit  Service Cost Interest Cost Benefit Service Cost Interest Cost
Obligation for Next Year for Next Year Obligation for Next Year for Next Year
£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

Local Government Pension Scheme

ate of Inflation (increase by 0.1%)
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15.d

Sensitivity Analysis — Police Pension Schemes

Group
Impact on Defined Benefit Obligation Police Police
Pensions Pensions
(o] [¢] 2006
Scheme Scheme
£000s £000s

___ERate of Increasein Salaries (increase by 0. 5%)
iRate for Discounting Scheme Liabilities (|ncrease by O 5%) ] 4

The above tables include the impact of an increase in assumptions, a reduction in assumptions will produce
approximately an equal and opposite change.

Impact on the Commissioner’s Cash Flows

The objectives of the LGPS scheme are to keep employers’ contributions at as constant a rate as possible.
The Commissioner has agreed a strategy with the scheme’s actuary to achieve a funding level of 100% over
the next 19 years. Funding levels are monitored on an annual basis. The next triennial valuation is due to be
completed on 31 March 2016.

The pension schemes will need to take account of the national changes to the scheme under the Public
Pensions Services Act 2013. Under the Act, the LGPS and the other main existing public service schemes in
England and Wales (which includes the Police Pension schemes) may not provide benefits in relation to
service after 31 March 2014 (after 31 March 2015 for other main public service schemes e.g. Police Pension
Schemes). This means that the LGPS will cease to be a final salary pension scheme from 31 March 2014 and
the Police Pension Scheme will cease to be a final salary pension scheme from 31 March 2015. The Act
provides for scheme regulations to be made within a common framework, to establish new career average
revalued earnings schemes to pay pensions and other benefits to certain public servants.

The total group contributions expected to be made to the Local Government Pension Scheme by the
Commissioner in the year to 31 March 2015 are £2,367k (PCC single entity £77k). Expected contributions for
the Police Pension Scheme in the year to 31 March 2015 are £10,070k.

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation for scheme members is shown in the table
below:

2012/13 2013/14
Years Years

Pensions Scheme
cal Government Pen5|on Scheme :
'Pollce Pension-Old Scheme i 921 2]

PoI|ce Pension -2006 Scheme 37 37
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16

Private Finance Initiative (PFI)

The former Police Authority entered an agreement for the construction and subsequent servicing of a TPA
Headquarters facility in West Cumbria in September 2001 under a PFl arrangement. Under the agreement
the PFI provider constructed the facility, and undertakes to make the building available to the Commissioner
in a specified condition for a 25 year period in return for a monthly unitary charge payment made by the
Commissioner. In addition the provider delivers a range of services in relation to the building which are
specified in the PFl contract. At the end of the contract period the Commissioner has the right to acquire the
building at 50% of its market value.

Prior to 2009/10 the monthly unitary charge payment was treated as revenue expenditure and appeared
within the service expenditure element of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. From
2009/10 in accordance with changes introduced by SORP 2009, the accounting treatment changed
significantly. The PFl asset is now recognised on the Commissioner’s balance sheet along with a
corresponding PFI finance lease liability which recognises the Commissioner’s outstanding liability to pay for
the asset. The PFl asset is depreciated and revalued in the same way as any other asset in accordance with
accounting policies. The unitary charge payment is now split into three components in the accounts as
follows:

e Service Charges — these continue to be charged to the service expenditure element of the CI&ES.

e Interest Payments — these are charged to the external interest payable heading on the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement.

e Repayment of Principal — this charge reduces the outstanding balance sheet liability for the asset.
However, a corresponding increase in the minimum revenue provision is made in accordance with the
Commissioner’s minimum revenue provision policy.

In accordance with the new accounting rules, lifecycle replacement costs are now recognised when they are
actually incurred. The Commissioner receives specific government funding from DCLG as a contribution to
the costs of financing the scheme.

Private Finance Initiatives
(PFI) are arrangements to
receive services where the
responsibility for making
available the property, plant
and equipment needed to
provide the services passes to
the PFI contractor.

West TPA HQ — Hall Brow, Workington
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The following information is disclosed in relation to the PFl asset.

16.a Movement on Fixed Assets
The value and movement in value of the asset held under the PFl agreement is analysed in note 6 above.

16.b PFI Finance Lease Liability
The value of Liabilities resulting from the PFI Agreement are shown in the table below:

PCC/Group
As at 31 March
2013 2014
£000s 00003

'Balance at the start of the year i (5, 449) (5, 382)

;

16.c Payments Due to be made under PFl Contract
An estimate of the future payments to be made under the PFI contract are shown in the table below. Where
applicable an estimated inflation index of 2% (linked to the GDP deflator) per annum has been applied to the
payments.

PCC/Group
Repayment Interest Service
of Liability Payments Costs
£000s

‘Repayable within one year

The repayment of liability figures include a sum of £2,911k between 11 and 15 years which recognises that
there is reasonable certainty that the Commissioner will exercise his right to purchase the PFI building at the
end of the PFI contract period. See critical judgement note 1 (page 28) for further explanation.
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17 Leases

17.a Finance Leases
The Commissioner has no material finance leases to be disclosed.

17.b Operating leases
The Commissioner utilises land and buildings and equipment assets under operating leases. The land and
buildings are typically short to medium term rentals of buildings. The figures do however include the lease
of land at Durranhill from Carlisle City Council upon which the North TPA HQ and custody suite was
constructed. This lease runs for a period of 125 years until March 2132 and the annual lease payments are
currently £30 p.a. The equipment includes livescan fingerprint machines and photocopiers.

The future minimum lease payments due under non-cancellable leases in future years are:

PCC/Group
As at 31 March
2013 2014
£000s £000s

The expenditure charged to the Net Cost of Police Services in relation to these leases was:

PCC/Group PCC/Group
2012/13 2013/14
000 £000s

‘Minimum Lease Payments

There are two categories of leases:
Operating leases are where the risks
and rewards of ownership stay with the
lessor and the annual rental charges are
charged through the CI&ES
Finance leases are where the risks and
rewards of ownership are transferred to
the lessee and where the assets are
recognised on the balance sheet of the
lessee.

North TPA HQ — Durranhill, Carlisle
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18

Usable Reserves

Usable reserves result from the Commissioner’s activities and are available to be spent in future years.

In addition to the Commissioner Police Fund, which the Commissioner aims to maintain at 5% of budgeted
expenditure, the following reserves are maintained and accounted for in line with the Code of practice.

= Capital Receipts Reserve — this reserve is used to hold capital receipts until they are utilised to finance
capital expenditure or reduce borrowing.

= Capital Grants Unapplied Account — this reserve is used to hold capital grants until they are utilised to
finance capital expenditure.

= Capital Reserve — this reserve is a revenue backed earmarked reserve that has been set aside to fund
capital expenditure.

= Earmarked Reserves - The Commissioner has a number of established earmarked reserves and has
created additional reserves at the end of 2013/14. Earmarked reserves exist both to provide a
contingency to cushion the effect of unexpected events and to provide a mechanism to build up funds to
meet expected liabilities. The Commissioner’s earmarked reserves have been formulated in conjunction
with the CIPFA guidance on Reserves and Provisions. Details of the earmarked reserves in existence and
a brief description as to their purpose is included in note 5 to the accounts (see pages 34-35).

The movement in the Commissioner’s Group and Single Entity Usable Reserves is detailed in the Movement
in Reserves Statement (see pages 20 and 21), and the disclosure notes relating to Adjustments between the
Accounting Basis and Funding Basis under regulations (Note 4) and Transfer to/from Earmarked reserves
(Note 5).

In the statement of accounts for 2012/13, in addition to the usable reserves described above, the group
accounts contained a number of negative usable reserves in respect of the Chief Constable. These reserves,
which would ordinarily be classed as unusable reserves had been treated as usable reserves as the Chief
Constable did not at the time have the statutory override powers in respect of certain transactions. The
powers for the Chief Constable to transact the statutory override were granted in the Anti-social Behaviour
Crime and Disorder Act 2014 and the reserves for the Chief Constable are now treated in the same way to
that of the Commissioner. In order to facilitate comparisons with the figures for the previous year, the notes
in respect of the unusable reserves (note 19) include those figures previous reported as usable in the
2012/13 statement of accounts.
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19 Unusable Reserves

Unusable reserves derive from accounting adjustments and are not available to be spent.

Certain reserves are kept to manage the accounting processes for non-current assets, financial instruments,
retirement and employee benefits and do not represent usable resources for the Commissioner. [l

19.a Revaluation Reserve
The Revaluation Reserve contains the overall gains made by the Commissioner arising from increases in the
value of Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible assets. The balance is reduced when assets with
accumulated gains are:

e revalued downwards or impaired and the gains are lost,
e used in the provision of services and the gains are consumed through depreciation, or
e disposed of and the gains are realised.

The Reserve records the unrealised net gain from the revaluation of non current assets accumulated since 1
April 2007, the date that the reserve was created. Accumulated gains arising before that date are
consolidated into the balance on the Capital Adjustment Account. The balance is made up of individual
credit balances associated with specific assets and will be equal to the difference between the current value
net book value (NBV) and the historic cost NBV for all assets.

The movements on the reserve during 2013/14 and the previous year are set out in the table below:-

PCC/Group PCC/Group
2012/13 2013/14

£000s
LBaIance at Start of Year
___;Recla55|f|cat|on Adjustment
Eerte out of Revalued Amount on Impairment
ol e e e e e nmnmnmmmm o n A nmn mn i m o m o m 8 R At et m o m o m i mmmmmmmn
| J
,,.,%A.A.A R r e ]
_._g_.9.".‘{?‘_@_@Y."E‘.'}.‘_"?‘F.'_‘?f.‘_.O_f_f"!:":‘f?'_‘:‘i._._._._._._._._____._._._._._._._._._._._._._._._._._._._._._._._._.____ ISR . M 2,173 |
gDownward revaluation of assets and impairment losses not charged to the (607)1 (289)§
__ESurpIus/Def|C|t on the Provision of Services i
ZSurpIus or deficit on revaluation of non-current assets not posted tothe (603)’ 1,884
_iSurplus/Deficit on the Provision of Servcies {} L
Eleference between fair value depreuatlon and historical cost depreC|at|on Oi 1}
! |
EAccumuIated gams on assets sold or scrapped 1 (198)T OE
" |Amount written off to Capital Adjustment Account ; """"" ( 'iéé)j """"""""" 1) |
S St S S
S S S o
BalanceatEndofYear L7°951 ____________ 8,980 |
f s a ?
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19.b Capital Adjustment Account

The Capital Adjustment Account (CAA) absorbs the timing differences arising from the different
arrangements for accounting for the consumption of non-current assets and for financing the acquisition,
construction or enhancement of those assets under statutory provisions. The Account is debited with the
cost of acquisition, construction or enhancement as depreciation, impairment losses and amortisations are
charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (with reconciling postings from the
Revaluation Reserve to convert fair value figures to a historical cost basis). The account is credited with the
amounts set aside by the Commissioner as finance for the costs of acquisition, construction and
enhancement. The account contains revaluation gains accumulated on Property, Plant and Equipment
before 1 April 2007, the date that the Revaluation reserve was created to hold such gains. Note 4 provides
details of the source of all the transactions posted to the account apart from those involving the revaluation
reserve.

The movements on the account during 2013/14 and the previous year are set out in the table below:-

PCC/Group PCC/Group
2012/13 2013/14

0/003 £000s
+Ba|ance at Start of Year
’Reclassmcatlon Adjustment
cReversal of items relating to capital expenditure debited or credited to the
cComprehenswe Income and Expendlture Statement

rCharges for depreC|at|on and |mpa|rment of non- current assets

""('Zr'éé"z')}r"_:
rRevaIuatlon gams/(losses) on Property, Plant and Equment

(2 993)§

- \Amort|sat|on of Intanglble assets (703)s

;galn orlosson dlsposal to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

gStatement §
...}, .......................................................................................................................................
B (9,592)1
7 . . .
cLAdJustlng amounts written out of the Revaluation Reserve 198 (l)t
INet written out amount of the cost of non-current assets consumed in the (9,394) (4,949);
i
tvear R { B 2
|
,,_) e S .
rCap|taI flnancmg applled inthe year ,
EUse of the Capltal Recelpts Reserve to finance new capltal expendlture 1 139r 600-§
! !
T I SN L]
ECapltaI grants and contributions credited to the Comprehensive Income and | 510 739;
]

{Expenditure Statement that have been applied to capital financing ‘ § ‘
0 SRR s S
;Application of grants to capital financing from the Capital Grants Unapplied 1221 49

{Account ?
U SO nnnnnvvmv_jL_y
cStatutory provision for the financing of capital investment charged against 377 383E
‘the General Fund ;
T e -
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19.c Collection Fund Adjustment Account
The Collection Fund Adjustment Account manages the differences arising from the recognition of Council Tax
income in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as it falls due from Council Tax payers
compared with the statutory arrangements.

The end of year balance on the account reflects the Commissioner’s aggregate share of the Surplus/(Deficit)
on the Collection fund operated by each of the 6 district councils (or billing authorities) that has yet to be
distributed. The movements on the account during 2013/14 and the previous year are set out in the table
below:

PCC/Group PCC/Group
2012/13 2013/14

ﬁBaIance at Start of Year L
cAmount by which council tax income credited to the Comprehensive { 192

glncome and Expenditure Statement is different from council tax income
Ecalculated for the year in accordance with statutory requirements

F

] 1EBleanc; at End of Year ”U“N“”““ %b “75"""""' ,Y317Y3* -
C
¢ { H

19.d Accumulated Absences Account
The short-term accumulated absences account absorbs the differences that would otherwise arise on the
Police Fund balance from accruing for compensated absences earned but not taken in the year, e.g. annual
leave, flexi leave, time off in lieu and rest day entitlements carried forward at 31 March. Statutory
arrangements require that the impact on the Police Fund Balance is neutralised by transfers to or from the
Account.

PCC PCC Group Group
2012/13 2013/14 2012/13 2013/14

£000s £000s 200103 £000s

tBaIance 31 March 2013 per 2012/13 Statement of : : ;
___cA_CEQH_r)_t_S__(_L_Jny_s_ab_'_e_r_e_se_rye_s)____._.____________________________i _______________ S ) L ( _39_) _______________ (25);

EAdJustment re reclassification of Chief Constable's
éreserves as outlined in note 18 (page 61)

cSettIement or cancellation of accrual made at the
I_end of the preceeding year

...................................................................................................................................................................

§Amount by which officer remuneration charged to
Ethe Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
§Statement on an accruals basis is different from :
'remuneration chargeable in the yearin accordance !

w | = | a
-jwithstatutory requirements B T30
_W;L O S SO S R
_BalanceatEndofYear i____________(_?_-‘_’_) _____________ (_2_6_)_ _______ (_3___6_?9_) ___________ ( 3__39_2)_

!

;
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19.e Pensions Reserve

The Pensions Reserves (LGPS and Police) absorb the timing differences arising from the different
arrangements for accounting for post-employment benefits and for funding in accordance with statutory
provisions. The Commissioner accounts for post-employment benefits in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement as the benefits are earned by employees accruing years of service, updating the
liabilities recognised to reflect inflation, changing assumptions and investment returns on any resources set
aside to meet the costs. However, statutory arrangements require benefits earned to be financed as the
Commissioner makes employer’s contributions to pension funds or eventually pays any pensions for which it
is directly responsible. The debit balance on the Pension Reserve therefore shows a substantial shortfall in
the benefits earned by past and current employees and the resources the Commissioner has set aside to
meet them. The statutory arrangements will ensure that funding will have been set aside by the time the
benefits come to be paid.

PCC Group Group
LGPS Pensions LGPS Pensions Police Pensions

2012/13 2013/14 2012/13 2013/14 2012/13 2013/14
Re-stated Re-stated Re-stated
£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

iBalance 31 March 2013 per 2012/13
iStatement of Accounts (unusable
iReserves)

o

S

gAdjustment re reclassification of Chief

i (28, 802) (854,730):
;Constable's reserves to usable as ] :
éoutlined in note 18 (page 62) § }

=, NS

:Adjustment re Prior Period Y

.2
=)

éAdjustment as outlined in note 34 : ]
§(page 86-88) é i

(966): (21 902) | (29, 770) (854,730).

....................................................................................................

_;.,,,\_;.,JA\_;.,,,\‘_., ,,,,,

:Remeasurement of the net defined (210) 14, 623 (129,150):

ipension benefit liability/asset

EReversaI of items relating to 1
éretirement benefits debited or '
icredited to the Surplus or Deficiton J
ithe Provision of Services in the J
§Comprehensive Income and :

Expenditure Statement L (141) (168)5 (4,372)! (5,145): (59,570); _

AT T AT ANy A . AT

‘Employer's pension contributions and J
dlrect payments to pensioners payable 97

N VNN s SOV

(65, 890)

e —— ,,n1"4,,,n1‘Y,,,nj\f,,,nji\;f,,njh S SR B S

96; 2,974, 2, 953 22,960

'
'
D
'
S

Balance at End of Year . (966) (563) (29, 770)’ 17 339) (1,010,490)}  (999,400] 400)
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Notes to the Accounts

20

20.a

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

This account summarises the resources that have been generated and consumed in providing policing and
crime reduction services during the year. It includes all day to day expenses and related income on an
accruals basis, as well as transactions measuring the value of fixed assets actually consumed and the real
projected value of retirement benefits earned by employees in the year.

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement Categories

The Code requires the Commissioner’s financial statements to show the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement in a form as recommended by CIPFA Service Reporting Code of Practice (SERCOP).
This is designed both to provide more meaningful information about how resources are utilised and also to
allow more meaningful comparison amongst policing organisations. SERCOP has reaffirmed the concept of
Total Cost, which requires consistent appropriation of support costs and overheads to defined areas of front
line policing activity. This is also consistent with the Police Objective Analysis (POA) that was introduced by
the Home Office and is used as a basis for reporting service expenditure. The defined areas, together with
some explanations as to their content, are set out below:

Police Services, this includes the following activities:

e Local Policing — neighbourhood policing, incident management, local investigation, community liaison,
local command team and support overheads.

e Dealing with the Public — local call centre/front desk, central communications unit.

e Criminal Justice Arrangements — custody/prisoner handling, criminal justice arrangements, Police
National Computer, civil disclosure/criminal records bureau, coroner assistance, fixed penalty
scheme/central ticket office.

e Roads Policing — traffic units, vehicle recovery, road safety partnership

e Specialist Operations — central operations command team and support overheads, underwater
search/marine support, dogs sections, level 1 advanced public order, firearms unit, civil contingencies.

e Intelligence — central intelligence command team and support overheads, intelligence/threat
assessments, covert policing.

e Specialist Investigation — crime support command team and support overheads, major investigations
unit, economic crime, serious and organised crime unit, public protection.

e Investigative Support — scenes of crime officers, external forensic costs, fingerprint/DNA bureau,
photographic image recovery, other forensic services.

e National Policing — secondments (out of force), counter terrorism/special branch, ACPO
projects/initiatives.

Corporate and Democratic Core Costs:

e Democratic Representation and Management — all member expenses; officer time spent on appropriate
advice activities; subscriptions to local authority associations etc.

e Corporate Management — costs of head of paid service; maintenance of statutory registers; statutory
returns and statistics; external audit and inspections; treasury management; bank charges.

Non Distributed Costs:
e Pension costs — past service costs, curtailments and settlements.

e Depreciation costs and impairment losses in relation to assets under construction and surplus assets
held for disposal.
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Notes to the Accounts

20.b Subjective Analysis of Income and Expenditure - Group
The revenue income and expenditure account is shown below on a subjective basis for information.

Group Group Group Group Group Group
2012/13 2012/13 2012/13 2013/14 2013/14 2013/14
Gross Gross Net Gross Gross Net
Expendture Income  Expendture Expendture Income  Expendture
Re-stated Re-stated Re-stated
Notes £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

Total Employee Costs

__iPremises
Transport

T

External Interest

A

Support Services

Gross Operating Expenditure
ncome from Fees & Charges

ncome from Grant & Contributions - Other

Gain of Loss on Sale of Non Current Assets
(688): (688)
Pensions Top Up grant (Home Office) ) - (14,758)§ (14,758)
t Operating Expenditure (24,612): 141,996
: 383
ensions Adjustment | (42,452)
Capital Financing Adjustment :
Revenue Contribution to Capital
Transfer to/(from) Earmarked Reserves (Revenue)
Transfer to/(from) Earmarke
ransfer to Capital Grant Un
Transfers to/(from) Collection Fund Adjustment A/c

ncome from Council Tax (32,867)
R e
neral Government Grants

(31,891)

CLG Formula Funding
Total

Police Fund Balance Brought Forward

Police Fund Balance Carried Forward
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Notes to the Accounts

20.c Segmental Income and Expenditure - Group
The income and expenditure of the Commissioner’s principal segments is recorded in the budget reports for
the year as follows:

The figures for 2013/14 are as follows:

Section/Department Expenditure Income
Employee Other Total Fees, Government Total
Expensses Operating Charges & Grants

Expenses Other
£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

Police and Crime Commissioner

Cumbria Constabulary

- Territorial Policing Command

zCrimeCommand o S L
- Corporate Support .87 _lagey
- Corporate Improvement SN NORIE S L
- Professional Standards BN T ey

8yl 633

 (L940)0 97,120

Total

sy

The comparative information for 2012/13 is as follows:

Section/Department Expenditure Income
Employee Other Total Fees, Government Total
Expensses  Operating Charges & Grants
Expenses Other

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

Police and Crime Commissioner

-OfficeofthePCC . L ............ 851
- PCCOther (including Transition) | 0 0 0 0 0 .0
- PCC Commissioned Services 0
Cumbria Constabulary e
- Territorial Policing Command 8,0545 61,1295 - - (1,327); 59,802

-CorporateSupport | 6975, 10123 17,098

- Corporate Improvement

Total 21,238 101,763
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Notes to the Accounts

20.d Reconciliation of Segmental Income and Expenditure to Cost of Services in the Comprehensive

20.e

Income and Expenditure Statement — Group

CcC cC
Restated

2012/13
£000s

2013/14
£000s

Net Expenditure in Service Analysis (above) 99,802; . 97,120
Add services not included in main analysis 765 3,488
Add technical accounting adjustments (not reported in management accounts ) 36,067 39,152
Remove amounts reported to management not included in Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (37,937) (42,144)
Net Cost o/f”;Services in Co}ﬁprehensive I;come and Expré;nditure State/l;;ent 98,69; 97,618

Reconciliation to Subjective Analysis - Group

This reconciliation shows how the figures in the analysis of segmental Income and Expenditure relate to a
subjective analysis of the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services included in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement.

The figures for 2013/14 are as follows:

Group
Service
Analysis

Group
Services not in
Analysis

Group
Technical
Adjustments

Group
Not included
in CI&ES

Group
Net Cost of
Services

Group
Corporate
Amounts

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s
Fees, charges & other service income (1,187) (2,815) 0 0 (4,002) (10) (4,012)
Interest and investment income 0 0 0 0 0 (148) (148)
Income from council tax 0 0 0 0 0 (32,866) (32,866)
Government grants and contributions (753) (622) 0 0 (1,375) (87,109) (88,484)
Total Income (1,940) (3,437) 0 0 (5,377) (120,133) (125,510)
Employee expenses 76,941 6,091 39,652 (42,144) 80,540 44,637 125,177
Other service expenses 22,119 834 0 0 22,953 14,757 37,710
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 0 0 (500) 0 (500) 0 (500)
Interest Payments 0, 0 0 0, 0 669 669
Gain or Loss on Disposal of Fixed Assets 0 0 0 0 0 (80) (80)
Total operating expenses 99,060 6,925 39,152 (42,144) 102,993 59,983 162,976I
(Surplus) or deficit on the provision of services 97,120 3,488 39,152 (42,144) 97,616 (60,150) 37,466|

The comparative information for 2012/13 is as follows:

Group
Service
Analysis

£000s

Group
Services not in
Analysis

£000s

Group
Technical
Adjustments

£000s

Group
Not included
in CI&ES

£000s

Group
Net Cost of
Services

£000s

Group
Corporate
Amounts

£000s

Police and Crime Commissioner for Cumbria — Statement of Accounts 2013/14

Fees, charges & other service income (1,859) (1,758) 0 0 (3,617) (7) (3,624)
Interest and investment income 0 0 0 0 0 (104) (104)
Income from council tax 0 0 0 0 0 (35,782) (35,782)
Government grants and contributions (102) (3,837) 0 0 (3,939) (79,207) (83,146)
Total Income (1,961) (5,595) 0 0 (7,556) (115,100) (122,656)
Employee expenses 80,525 5,146 33,074 (37,937) 80,808 42,800 123,608
Other service expenses 21,238 1,214 0 0 22,452 12,058 34,510
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 0 0 2,993 0 2,993 0 2,993
Interest Payments 0 0 0 0 0 680 680
Gain or Loss on Disposal of Fixed Assets 0 0 0 0 0 (173) (173)
Total operating expenses 101,763 6,360 36,067 (37,937) 106,253 55,365 161,618
(Surplus) or deficit on the provision of services 99,802 765 36,067 (37,937) 98,697 (59,735) 38,962,
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Notes to the Accounts

20.f Subjective Analysis of Income and Expenditure - PCC
The revenue income and expenditure account is shown below on a subjective basis for information.

PCC PCC PCC PCC PCC PCC

2012/13 2012/13 2012/13 2013/14 2013/14 2013/14
Gross Gross Net Gross Gross Net
Expendture Income  Expendture Expendture Income  Expendture
Re-stated Re-stated Re-stated
Notes £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s
) lice Staff Pay & Allowances ; : :
Other Employee Costs

|__iNon Cur Charges
Funding from PCC to reimburse expenditure by CC
Income from Fees & Charges
Income from Grant & Contributions - Other
Non Distributed Costs

PFl Grant
Pensions Top Up grant (Home Office)

Pensions Adjustment

Transfer to/(from) Earmarked Reserves (Revenue)
Transfer to Capital Grant Unapplied

Transfers to/(from) Accumulated Absences A/c

- Home Office Police Grant

- Revenue Support grant

DCLG Formula Funding

(Surplus)/Deficit for the Year

Capital Receipt Transferred to Police Fund
lice Fund Balance Carried Forward
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Notes to the Accounts

20.g Segmental Income and Expenditure - PCC
The income and expenditure of the Commissioner’s principal segments is recorded in the budget reports for

the year as follows:

Section/Department

Expenditure

Income
Total

Government

Police and Crime Commissioner

Employee
Expensses

£000s

Other
Operating
Expenses

£000s

Funding
provided by
PCCto CC

£000s

£000s

Fees,
Charges &
Other
Service

£000s

Grants

Net
Total

£000s

- Office of the PCC

- PCC Other (including Transition)

Cumbria Constabulary

- Corporate Support 203 531 0 734 0 0 0 734
- Legal Services 5 3 o} 8 0 7 0 0 s|
Total 764 1,609 103,613! 105,986 (4,003) (1,375); | (5,378): 100,608

The comparative information for 2012/13 is as follows:

Section/Department Expenditure Income
Employee Other Funding Total Fees, Government
Expensses Operating provided by Charges & Grants
Expenses  PCCto CC Other
Service
£000s £000s £000s £000s
Police and Crime Commissioner
- Office of the PCC 442 4% 0: 938; (4) (83) (87) 851
- PCC Other (including Transition) 0: 160 106,6185 106,778 (3,613): (3,856) (7,469) 99,309
Cumbria Constabulary B B B P B i o B e
- Corporate Support . vz 2200 O 397 0 ] 0 0 397
- Legal Services 4 6 o 10, i) ) o 10
Total 623 882 106,6185 108,123 (3,617) (3,939) (7,556): 100,567

20.h

Reconciliation of Segmental Income and Expenditure to Cost of Services in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement — PCC

Police and Crime Commissioner for Cumbria — Statement of Accounts 2013/14

PCC PCC
Restated
2012/13 2013/14
£000s £000s

______ 8
Add technical accounting adjustments (not reported in management accounts ) 3,040; (395)
Remove amounts reported to management not included in Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (41): (72)
Net Cost of Serv-i-t-:;s“in Comprehensive Inco-t-'r;c-e-;nd Expenditure Staten:v;l:i-t“ 103,566 100,141
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Notes to the Accounts

20.i

Reconciliation to Subjective Analysis - PCC
This reconciliation shows how the figures in the analysis of segmental Income and Expenditure relate to a
subjective analysis of the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services included in the Comprehensive

Income and Expenditure Statement.

The figures for 2013/14 are as follows:

PCC
Service
Analysis

PCC
Technical
Adjustments

PCC
Not included
in CI&ES

PCC
Net Cost of
Services

PCC
Corporate
Amounts

Fees, charges & other service income (4,003) 0 0 (4,003) (10) (4,013)
Interest and investment income 0 0 0 0 (148) (148)
Income from council tax 0 0 0 0 (32,866) (32,866)
Government grants and contributions (1,375) 0 0 (1,375) (87,109) (88,484)
Total Income (5,378) 0 0 (5,378) (120,133) (125,511)
Employee expenses 764 104 (72) 796 40 836
Other service expenses 1,609 0 0 1,609 14,758 16,367
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 0 (499) 0 (499) 0 (499)
Interest Payments 0 0 0 0 669 669
Funding provided by PCC to CC 103,613 0 0 103,613 0 103,613
Gain or Loss on Disposal of Fixed Assets 0 0 0 0 (80) (80)
Total operating expenses 105,986 (395) (72) 105,519 15,387 120,906
(Surplus) or deficit on the provision of services 100,608 (395) (72) 100,141 (104,746) (4,605)

The comparative information for 2012/13 is as follows:

PCC
Service
Analysis

PCC
Technical

Adjustments

PCC

Not included

in CI&ES

PCC

Net Cost of

Services

PCC

Corporate
Amounts

Police and Crime Commissioner for Cumbria — Statement of Accounts 2013/14

Fees, charges & other service income (3,617) 0 0 (3,617) (7) (3,624)
Interest and investment income 0 0 0 0 (104) (104)
Income from council tax 0 0 0 0 (35,782) (35,782)
Government grants and contributions (3,939) 0 0 (3,939) (79,207) (83,146)
Total Income (7,556) 0 0 (7,556) (115,100) (122,656)
Employee expenses 623 47 (41) 629 33 662
Other service expenses 882 0 0 882 12,058 12,940
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 0 2,993 0 2,993 0 2,993
Interest Payments 0 0 0 0 680 680
Funding provided by PCC to CC 106,618 0 0 106,618 0 106,618
Gain or Loss on Disposal of Fixed Assets 0 0 0 0 (173) (173)
Total operating expenses 108,123 3,040 (41) 111,122 12,598 123,720
(Surplus) or deficit on the provision of services 100,567 3,040 (41) 103,566 (102,502) 1,064
73| Page



Notes to the Accounts

21 Members Allowances and Expenses
The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting requires the disclosure of the total amount of members
allowances paid in the year. This is set out in the table below together with a comparative figure for the
previous year.

PCC/Group PCC/Group
2012/13 2013/14
£000s £000s
Basic Allowance '

From November 2012 the former Police Authority was abolished under the Police Reform and Social
Responsibility Act 2011. The above table includes for 2012/13 the part year effect of 17 Police Authority
members for the first part of the year (up to November 2012) and then 4 appointed members of the Joint
Audit and Standards Committee from that point and throughout 2013/14.

A full disclosure of allowances and expenses paid to individual members can be found on the Police and
Crime Commissioners website at:
http://www.cumbria-pcc.gov.uk/governance-transparency/allowances.aspx

22  Audit Fees
In 2013/14 the Commissioner and Chief Constable incurred the following fees relating to external audit
services provided by Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Group Group
2012/13 2013/14

£000s £000s

Amounts Relating to The Police and Crime Commissioner

'
B e e Tt L et e T R i e g

Fees payable to Grant Thornton UK LLP with regard to external audit : 45: 40!
services carried out by the appointed auditor. : : :

Rebate from Audit Commissioninyear. i (3)i  (6)

1{ a2, 3
Amounts Relating to The Chief Constable i
Fees payable to Grant Thornton UK LLP with regard to external audit : 205 20:
services carried out by the appointed auditor. : : '

{RebatefromAudltComm|SS|on inyear. 0T @b

S, NN _ . _
1

_________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Total External Audit Fees for Year : 615 52;
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Notes to the Accounts

23

24

Minimum Revenue Provision

Regulations 27 and 28 of the Capital Financing and Accounting Regulations 2003 require Authorities to make
a provision from revenue for the repayment of any undischarged credit liabilities. This is referred to as the
Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP). Additional voluntary contributions are permitted, which have the effect
of reducing an authority’s Capital Financing Requirement.

In line with the Capital Finance and Accounting regulations a Statement of MRP Policy was approved in
February 2012 as part of the Treasury Management Strategy Statement. The policy states that MRP will be
calculated using the regulatory method for debt incurred prior to 1 April 2008 and on the asset life basis for
debt incurred after this date. In respect of PFl assets brought onto the balance sheet under the 2009 SORP,
the MRP provision will match the annual principal repayment for the associated deferred liability.

The Minimum Revenue Provision charged for the year 2013/14 (and comparatives for 2012/13) is made up
as follows:

PCC/Group PCC/Group

2012/13 2013/14
£000s £000s

S U Sy Sy USSRy USROS U, SO USSR e —1

Minimum Revenue Provisions (MRP)

ECore MRP
PFIMRP v

I R IR e R

R I o R

Total MRP for Year 377 383;

Disclosure of Remuneration for Senior Employees

The following tables sets out the remuneration disclosures for Senior Officers and Relevant Police Officers
whose salary is less than £150,000 but more than £50,000 per year. The first table provides the information
for 2013/14 and the second provides comparatives for 2012/13.

The tables below include the costs of the temporary Chief Constable (A) who was suspended on full pay in
September 2012 and remained under suspension until September 2013, at which time he returned to his
substantive role as Deputy Chief Constable before retiring from service in December 2013.

A Temporary Chief Constable has been seconded from Merseyside Police to cover the role but continues to
be paid by the Police and Crime Commissioner for Merseyside. Merseyside have recharged costs of this
secondment amounting to £206k to the Police and Crime Commissioner for Cumbria for the period April
2013 to March 2014, these costs are included in the accounts of the Police and Crime Commissioner for
Cumbria as third party related expenditure rather than as employee costs and are therefore excluded from
the table below.
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The comparative PCC and Group figures for 2012/13 in £000s, are set out in the table below
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Notes to the Accounts

25 Employee Remuneration
The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting requires the disclosure of the number of employees and
senior police officers (defined as those holding a rank above that of superintendent) whose remuneration,
excluding pension’s contributions, exceeded £50,000 in 2013/14 in bands of £5,000. This is set out in the
table below:

2012/13 2013/14
PCC CcC CcC Group PCC CcC CcC Group
Remuneration Band Police  Police SnrPolice Police  Police SnrPolice
Staff Staff Officers Total Staff Staff Officers Total

oirio
oioio

£65,000 to £69,999

_ {£70,000 to £74,999

Q2.

oo
=)

A e A R A R A R A A R A R R AR R A R A R R AR ARG,
(=3=)

=

In the above table the PCC column includes staff employed by the Commissioner and for whom decision
making rests with the Commissioner’s Chief Executive. A number of these staff provide support on a shared
service basis to the Commissioner and Chief Constable and are recharged between the single entity
statements. From 1 April 2014, in accordance with the stage 2 transfer process the majority of these staff
transferred to the legal employment of the Chief Constable, where shared services are still provided (in
respect of support functions) a similar recharge process will occur between the single entities.

The table above includes those employees and senior police officers that are also required to be disclosed on
a more detailed individual basis. Please see note 24 for more information.
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26

27

Exit Packages
The numbers of exit packages with total cost per band and a total cost of the compulsory and other
redundancies are set out in the table below:

Exit package cost band Number of Number of other Total Number of Exit Total cost of exit
(including special payments) Compulsory Departures Agreed Packages by cost band packages in each band
Redundancies

2012/13 2013/14 2012/13 2013/14 2012/13 2013/14 2012/13 2013/14

Headcount Headcount Headcount Headcount Headcount Headcount £000s £000s
5
! !
l} {
| |
£40,001 - £60,000 | 1! 1 21 24 34 3 142/ 161
e o]
£60,001 - £80,000 | 1! 1} 0] 1 1 2 62 122
£80,001 - £100,000 ! 1 (o} o} o} 1 0 94/ 0
S USRS SR — SRS SNSRI USSR S—
£100,001 - £150,000 1 0 0f 0] 1 0 122§ 0
;v...w-W-WMMWAMWMMWMMMMM“T,WMM#MM WMWMMMTAMW~
| | | ;
: : - : l 2 :
Total 10| 17| 14] 21| 24§ 38! 833% 820

Termination Benefits

During 2013/14 the contracts of a number of employees were terminated incurring termination payments
amounting to £671k (£1,134k in 2012/13). As this amount is significant in terms of the 2013/14 accounts the
amount has been shown as a separate item on the face of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement (page 22).

This amount is made up exit packages paid in 2013/14, offset by the provision made in 2012/13 to fund
some of these costs and a provision for exit packages to be paid in 2014/15 where the decision to terminate
employment has been made in 2013/14.

The exit packages amounted to £820k (£833k in 2012/13). The exit packages can be further split into
compensation for loss of employment £645k (£389k in 2012/13) and enhanced pension benefits £175k
(£144k in 2012/13). The redundancies are as a result of the Constabulary’s change programme. The Exit
Packages note above (note 26) provides details of the number and total cost of exit packages per band and
include those exit packages paid in 2013/14 and those agreed for individuals in 2013/14 but paid in 2014/15
for which an_accrual was made in the 2013/14 accounts.

A further amount of £45k (£532k in 2012/13) has been set aside in a provision to pay termination costs as a
result of decisions made in principle in 2013/14 but where there was some uncertainty over the individual
staff or timing of the termination but for which a reasonable estimate can be made of amount of the
probable obligation. This amount is netted down by costs charged against the provision in respect of
2012/13 decisions provided for at the year-end where the payment was actually made in 2013/14 of £194k,
providing a net movement on the provision of -£149k.
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28

28.a

28.b

28.c

28.d

28.e

Related Party Transactions

The Commissioner is required to disclose material transactions with related parties — bodies or individuals
that have the potential to control or influence the Commissioner or to be controlled or influenced by the
Commissioner. Disclosure of these transactions allows readers to assess the extent to which the
Commissioner might have been constrained in his ability to operate independently or might have secured
the ability to limit another party’s ability to bargain freely with the Commissioner.

Chief Constable for Cumbria Constabulary

The Police and Crime Commissioner has direct control over the Chief Constable’s finances, providing funding
for all running costs and taking responsibility for funding of all pensions' liabilities. The Commissioner is
responsible for setting the Police and Crime Plan. The Chief Constable retains operational independence and
operates within the funding arrangement set by the Commissioner, to deliver the aims and objectives set
out in the Police and Crime Plan.

Central Government

Central government has effective control over the general operations of the Commissioner — it is responsible
for providing the statutory framework within which the Commissioner operates and provides the majority of
its funding in the form of grants. Grants received from government departments are set out in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (page 22). Government Grants included within the Net
Cost of Services are detailed in note 29 below, the extent to which these grants are outstanding at the end of
the year is recorded in short-term debtors note 12.

Members

The Commissioner now has 4 appointed Member’s who serve on the Joint Audit and Standards Committee
and are required to declare any direct financial relationship through outside bodies or companies with the
Commissioner. No material transactions have been reported in respect of the 2013/14 financial year. The
total members allowances paid in 2013/14 are shown in note 21.

Officers and Employees

Employees of the Commissioner and senior officers and staff of the Constabulary were asked to declare any
direct financial relationship through outside bodies or companies with the Commissioner. No material
transactions have been reported in respect of the 2013/14 financial year.

Other Public Bodies
The Commissioner’s transactions with the Cumbria Local Government Pension Scheme (administered by
County Council) are shown in note 15.

The amounts received in respect of council tax income from the 6 Cumbrian District Councils are detailed in
note 30.
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29

Grant Income
The Commissioner credited the following grants and contributions to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement in 2013/14.

PCC/Group
2012/13 2013/14

£000s £000s

I

nd contrlbutlons Moblle Data

": CPO Special Operations (ACPO)
ouncil Tax Reform (DCLG)

* Note the Home Office Police Community Support Officer grant has been merged into the general Home
Office Police Grant from 2013/14.
** Note the Revenue Support Grant is now incorporated within the DCLG Funding Formula amount.

8l|Page
Police and Crime Commissioner for Cumbria — Statement of Accounts 2013/14



Notes to the Accounts

30 Income from Council Tax

Precept- The demands made by the Police and Crime Commissioner on the district councils who are the
billing authority in relation to the collection of council tax.

The income from Council Tax for 2013/14 is received as precept from the six district councils as set out

below:
District PCC/Group
Precept Adjustment Income
Paid Re Debtors/ from
2013/14 (Creditors) Council Tax
£000s 00013
Allerdale District Council 6,110 (210) 5,900
Barrow Borough Council 3,609 87 3,696
Carlisle City Council 6,340 (12) 6,328
Copeland Borough Council 4,044 8 4,052
Eden District Council 3,932 11 3,943
South Lakeland District Council 8,906 42 8,948
32,941 (74) 32,867

The comparative information for 2012/13 is as follows:

District

Precept
Paid
2012/13
£000s

PCC/Group
Adjustment

Re Debtors/
(Creditors)

Income
from
Council Tax
£000s

Police and Crime Commissioner for Cumbria — Statement of Accounts 2013/14

Allerdale District Council 6,424 97 6,521
Barrow Borough Council 4,301 41 4,342
Carlisle City Council 6,993 9 7,002
Copeland Borough Council 4,486 26 4,512
Eden District Council 4,133 18 4,151
South Lakeland District Council 9,253 1 9,254

35,590 192 35,782
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Contingent Liabilities

Insurance Claims

A number of claims are being pursued against the Commissioner, the majority of which will be contested.
The Commissioner maintains provisions to meet the costs of uninsured liabilities and legal costs and
considers that there is no need to make further provision for these claims.

Prior to 1992, the former Police Authority was insured through Municipal Mutual Insurance Ltd (MMI) as
part of Cumbria County Council’s wider insurance contract. In September 1992, MMI ceased underwriting
operations and a scheme of arrangement was put in place to achieve a solvent run off of the company’s
assets in meeting future claims arising from the period where MMI provided insurance cover, in which
Cumbria County Council agreed to participate.

On the 13 November 2012 the directors of MMI announced that, following a supreme court judgement
against MMI relating to their liability for asbestos related claims where they were the insurance provider at
the time of exposure, achievement of a solvent run off would not be possible. As a result the directors
triggered MMI’s Scheme of Arrangement (the Scheme), which sets out the arrangements for the
administration of MMls liabilities in the event that a solvent run off was not achieved.

The Scheme provides that following a ‘trigger event’ a levy may be imposed on all claims settled on behalf of
Authorities since 1993 and that future claims will be settled at a reduced rate. Following an actuarial review
of potential liabilities, Ernst and Young, the Scheme’s administrators, have determined that an initial levy at
the rate of 15% will be imposed. Based on the position at the 31st March 2013 the Commissioner’s liability
was calculated at £45k, for which a provision was made in the 2012/13 accounts, during 2013/14 this liability
was settled with the result that the provision was fully extinguished.

An actuarial review of insurance liabilities as at 31 March 2014 has indicated that based on the latest claims
information the Commissioner has not incurred any further liability in relation to historic MMI claims.
However, the Commissioner will be liable for the levy of 15% from future claims attributable to him and
there is the potential that the levy percentage will need to be revised, dependent on the overall level of
future claims, which would further impact on the Commissioner’s liability. The Commissioner maintains an
insurance reserve to meet unknown insurance liabilities which, will be used, in part, to meet further
liabilities arising from the MMI Scheme.

Redundancy Costs

In response to future reductions in government funding it will be necessary to further reduce the number of
police staff. It is anticipated that the reduction will be primarily achieved through a combination of
voluntary and compulsory redundancies. Redundancy costs arising from decisions made up to 31 March
2014 have been recognised in the 2013/14 Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, however a
number of reviews are currently ongoing which could give rise to further redundancy costs, although no firm
decisions have been made as yet. It is anticipated that future redundancy costs will be met from the
earmarked reserve set up for management of change costs the balance of which stood at £1,677k at 31
March 2014.

Injury pensions

A tribunal case regarding the payment of injury pensions to a retired police officer has highlighted a conflict
between police (injury benefits) regulations and social security legislation. The implication of the ruling is
that police injury benefits should no longer be reduced by entitlement to social security benefits. At this
stage it is unclear if the decision will have a retrospective impact on police organisations or if the change will
be implemented on a future claims basis only. In the absence of further guidance from the Home Office and
Department for Work and Pensions, this matter has been treated as a contingent liability in the 2013/14
statement of accounts.
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32 Capital Expenditure and Capital Financing
The total amount of capital expenditure incurred in the year is shown in the table below.

PCC/Group

2012/13  2013/14
£000s £000s

Technology Schemes

Command and Control 20 45
Communications Centre ICT Upgrade 0 59
Computer Hardware & Infrastructure 703 994
CycComms (NW Regional Intelligence System) 0 36
Enhanced Video Conferencing 146 0
Executive Platform 5 44
Finance & Business Systems Upgrade 103 131
Holmes Il 9 0
ICCS - Integrated Command & Control System 81 0
ICT Delivery 85 26
Information Security 20 23
Mobile Working 122 49
Pentip (Fixed Penalty System) 0 36
Police National Database 8 28
Scanning & Retrieval 0 4
WiFi 0 49
1,302 1,524

Vehicles Replacement Scheme 988 636

Building Schemes

Allerdale Rural Deployment Centre 672 1
Fire Behavioural & Public Order Training Facility 4 1
Headquarters - Communications Centre Refurbishment 0 303
Headquarters - Central Services Refurbishment 1 0
Headquarters - Roof Repair/Replacement 28
Ambleside Police Station Alterations 18 0
South Estate - Kendal 136 50
South Estate - Barrow 430 590
Whitehaven Interview Suites 35
Miscellaneous Property Works 0 0
1,261 1,008
Equipment Schemes
Automatic Number Plate Recognition 27 19
CID Specialist Equipment 60 0
Promat (Custody Digital Identification) 0 39
87 58
Intangible Assets
ICCS - Integrated Command & Control System 117 0
Chronicle (Public Order System) 0 26
Computer Hardware & Infrastructure 61 7
Finance & Business Systems Upgrade 63
Mobile Working 0 0
Pentip (Fixed Penalty System) 0 48
Police National Database 0 1
WiFi 0 3
241 85
Total Capital Expenditure 3,879 3,311
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32.a Capital Financing

33

The table below illustrates the resources used to finance capital expenditure. Where capital expenditure is
to be financed in future years by charges to revenue as assets are used by the Commissioner, the
expenditure results in an increase in the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR), a measure of the capital

expenditure incurred historically by the Commissioner that has yet to be financed. The CFR is analysed
below:

PCC/Group
2012/13 2013/14
£000s £000s
Opening Capital Financing Requirement 17,931 17,690
Capital investment
Property, Plant and Equipment 3,638 3,226
Intangible Assets 241 85

Sources of Finance

Capital receipts (139) (600)
Government grants and other contributions (632) (788)
Sums set aside from revenue:

- Direct revenue contributions (2,972) (1,873)
- Minimum revenue provision (377) (383)
Closing Capital Financing Requirement 17,690 17,357

Explanation of Movements in Year

Increase in underlying need to borrow (unsupported by government
financial assistance) (241) (333)
Increase/(decrease) in Capital Financing Requirement (241) (333)

Accounting Standards that have been Issued but have not yet been Adopted
For 2013/14 the following accounting policy changes that need to be reported relate to:

e |FRS 13 Fair Value Measurement (May 2011) (implementation has been deferred until 2015/16);
e |FRS 10 (amendments) Consolidated Financial Statements (May 2011);

e |FRS 11 Joint Arrangements (May 2011);

e |FRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities (May 2011);

e |AS 27 Separate Financial Statements (as amended in May 2011);

e |AS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures (as amended in May 2011)

e |AS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation — Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (as
amended in December 2011) and

e |AS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements (as amended in May 2011).

In the Financial Statements for 2014/15, the effect of the change will be assessed and where necessary, the
comparative figures restated.
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34

Prior Period Adjustment
A prior period adjustment has been made to the Commissioner’s 2012/13 published financial statements
In relation to the following.

IAS19 Change to Accounting Standard

There have been several significant changes in relation to the international accounting standard IAS19
Employee Benefits. This has resulted in changes to accounting treatment for financial years starting after 1
January 2013. This means that the accounting statements for 2013/14 are presented on a revised basis and
as a consequence the comparators for 2012/13 have been re-stated. There is no impact on the balance
sheet however, the main changes are as follows:

Expected Return on Assets — Under IAS19, the expected return on assets is replaced with “Interest on
Assets”. This is the interest on assets held at the start of the year and cashflows occurring during the year,
calculated using the discount rate at the start of the year. The pension cost recognised in the CI&ES under
IAS19 sees the interest cost and expected return on assets replaced with “net interest cost”. This is
calculated as interest on pension liabilities (substantially the interest cost recognised previously) less the
interest on assets. The expected return on assets excluding amounts included in net interest on the net
defined benefit liability (asset) is now part of the “Re-measurement of the net defined pension benefit
liability/asset” which is a new line in CIES which also includes actuarial gains/losses.

Asset Disclosures - IAS19 requires a much more detailed breakdown of the pension fund assets. The values
of the assets, broken down into different classes that distinguish between the nature and risk now need to
be disclosed. A further breakdown is also needed showing those assets which have a quoted market price
and those which do not. The disclosure included in the Commissioner’s 2012/13 published financial
statements only showed the main categories of equities, bonds, property and cash as required. As a result
of the change some of these categories are split further (see note 15b, page 56).

Disclosure Presentation - In order to be consistent with the new requirements of IAS19 the disclosures in
relation to the Commissioner’s defined benefit pension scheme have changed from those published in
2012/13. By making these changes to the accounting standard, it is intended that the presentation of the
information is easier for the user to understand (see pension notes 15, pages 49-57).

In addition to the above changes in respect of a change to the IAS19 accounting standard, a change to adjust
a rounding discrepancy on the split of the Local Government Pension Scheme between the single entity
statements of the Commissioner and the Chief Constable has also been made. This change has seen the
Commissioner’s proportion of the LGPS scheme deficit as at 31 March 2013 reduce from £968k as reported
in 2012/13 to £966k and the Chief Constable’s share increase from £28,802k as reported in 2012/13 to
£28,804k.

The changes made impact on the core financial statements and the disclosure notes in relation to pensions
(note 15, pages 49-57). Where figures in the statements and notes have been amended, the relevant
column will include the word “re-stated” in the column heading.
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A summary of the changes made to the 2012/13 pension figures is shown below:

PCC
Amount per
Per 2012/13

Accounts
£000s

- Arising from changes in de
assumptions

graphic

- Arising from chnages in financial assumptions !

Administration Expenses
Employer Contributions

PCC PCC
Amount Change
Re-stated in
for 2012/13 Amount
£000s £000s

Group
Amount per
Per 2012/13

Accounts
£000s

Group Group
Amount Change
Re-stated in
for 2012/13 Amount
£000s

(1,160)
(12,318)

(1,160)5

(29,770)

A summary of the effect that the above changes have made on each of the core financial statements

shown below:

PCC
Net Exp
Per 2012/13
Accounts
£000s

Comprehensive Income & Expenditure
Statement

Corporate and democratic core
buted costs
Exceptional Item - Termination Costs
ided by PCC to CC
CostofServices
Net Interest on the net defined benefit liability !
(asset)

Total Comprehensive Income & Expenditure

for 2012/13

S

PCC PCC
Net Exp Change
Re-stated in
Amount
£000s

Group
Net Exp
Per 2012/13
Accounts
£000s

Group Group
Net Exp Change
Re-stated in
for 2012/13 Amount
£000s £000s

165,185
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PCC PCC
Amount per Amount
Per 2012/13 Re-stated

PCC
Change
in

Group
Amount per
Per 2012/13

Group
Amount
Re-stated

Group
Change
in

Accounts for 2012/13
£000s £000s

for 2012/13
£000s

Amount
£000s

Accounts
£000s

Amount
£000s

Net (Surplus)/Deficit on the provision of
Services b 059 1,064
Adjustments to net surplus or deficit on
the provision of services for non-cash

movements

Movement in Reserves Statement
Police Fund (Usable) i
Balance 1 April 2012

Surplus or (deficit on the Provision of
Services i (1,059)
Adjustments between accounting basis
under regulations

Net increase or decrease before transfers !
to earmarked reserves i
Transfer to Earmarked Resreves

Balance as at 31 March 2013

CC Constabulary Fund (Usable)
Balance 1 April 2012

Surplus or (deficit on the Provision of
Services e OO
Other Comprehensive Income &
Expenditure b0
Transfers to other Usable Resreves »
Net increase or decrease before transfers |

to earmarked reserves :

Balance as at 31 March 2013

CC LGPS Pension Fund (Usable)

Balance 1 April 2012
Transfers to other Usable Resreves

Net increase or decrease before transfers |
to earmarked reserves :

PCC LGPS Pension Fund (Unusable)
Balance 1 April 2012

Other Comprehensive Income &
Expenditure

Adjustments between accounting basis
under regulations

Net increase or decrease before transfers :
to earmarked reserves
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Police Officer Pension Fund Account

Fund Account

This statement provides information on transactions on the Police Pension Fund Account for the 2013/14 financial
year together with comparative information for 2012/13.

Group Group

2012/13 2013/14
301003 £000s

Contributions Receivable
Employer
_.-Contributions at 24.2% of PensionablePay L (9,987) ... (9,772)
Officers' Contributions
- 1987 Scheme Member Contributions (see narrative for rates) (4,325) (4,467)
..2.2006 Scheme Member Contributions (see narrative forrates) 1 (614) . (810)
(14,926) (15,049)
_Transferees infrom OtherSchemes (180) (298)
ECapitaI Equivalent charge forill-health schemes (231) (469)
(a11) (767)
Benefits Payable
‘Recurrent Pensions 21,515 22,791
‘Commutations and Lump Sums 5,796 7,601
27,311 30,392
Payments to and on Account of Leavers
Refund of Contributions 0 9
Transfer out to other schemes 84 173
84 182
Net Amount Payable for the Year 12,058 14,758
:Additional Contribution from the Police & Crime Commissioner (12,058) (14,758)
§Net Amount Payable (Receivable) for the Year 0 0

Net Assets Statement

This statement shows the net assets and liabilities of the scheme as at 31 March 2014.

Group Group
2012/13 2013/14
00003 £000s
CUTENEASSEES e
Pensions Benefits paid in advance 1,906 2,018
Current Liabilities
Amount due to the Police & Crime Commissioner (1,906) (2,018)
0 ol
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Notes to the Police Officer Pension Fund Account

Accounting Policies

The Police Pension Fund Accounts have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Police Pension
Fund Regulations 2007 (SI 2007 No 1932). The Pensions Fund Accounts are administered by the Police and Crime
Commissioner and have been prepared on an accruals basis.

Operation of Police Pensions Schemes

The Commissioner operates two Pensions Schemes for Police Officers. These are unfunded schemes, meaning that
there are no investment assets built up to meet the pensions liabilities, and cash has to be generated to meet actual
pension payments as they fall due. The second scheme was introduced in April 2006 with the intention that joint
contributions of employers and employees would finance the full costs of pension liabilities. All Police Officers
recruited from April 2006 onwards automatically become members of the new scheme and the previous scheme has
been closed to new members. Officers who are members of the old scheme are allowed by regulation to become
members of the new (2006) scheme if they so wish. Members’ contribution rates for 2013/14 were between 10.7%
and 12% (10.1%-10.75% in 2012/13) for the new scheme and between 13.5% and 14% (12.25%-12.5% in 2012/13)
for the old scheme. The financial statements for the Police Officer pension fund account do not take account of
liabilities to pay pensions and other benefits after the period end. Details of the Commissioner’s long term pensions
obligations can be found in the main accounting statements (see Balance Sheet page 24). Detailed disclosure notes
regarding the Police Pension schemes can be found in note 15 to the core financial statements (pages 49-57).

Funding of Police Pension Schemes

In 2006/07 a new arrangement was established to fund Police Pensions. This revised arrangement is for both new
and existing police officer schemes, but has no effect on the benefit structures of either scheme. The purpose of the
change is to smooth fluctuations in costs that would previously have been charged to the Commissioner’s
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on a ‘pay as you go basis’ and to more clearly show the effect of
the liability as opposed to current pension payments. Under the revised arrangements the liability for payment of
police pensions is removed from the Commissioner and replaced with an employers’ contribution, currently set at
24.2% of pensionable pay, which, along with the employee contributions and any transfer values, is paid into the
pensions account. The employees’ and employer’s contribution levels are based on percentages of pensionable pay
set nationally by the Home Office and are subject to periodic revaluation by the Government Actuary’s Department.
Pensions are then paid from this account. The pensions account is balanced to nil annually, with any shortfall met by
a top up from the Commissioner, or vice versa. However, the Home Office indemnify the Commissioner against any
financial liability arising from a deficit on the Pension Account by providing a grant to the Commissioner equal to the
Commissioner’s top up. Similarly, any surplus on the Pension Account is ultimately repayable to the Home Office.
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Glossary of Terms

Accruals

The concept that income and expenditure are
recognised as they are earned or incurred, not as money
is paid or received.

ACPO
The Association of Chief Police Officers.

Actuarial Valuation

A valuation of assets held, an estimate of the present
value of benefits to be paid and an estimate of required
future contributions, by an actuary, on behalf of a
pension fund.

Agency Costs

Services which are performed by or for another
authority or public body, where the agent is reimbursed
for the cost of the work done.

Amortisation

The practice of reducing the value of assets to reflect
their reduced worth over time. The term means the
same as depreciation, though in practice amortisation
tends to be used for the write-off of intangible assets,
such as goodwill.

Budget

A statement of the Police and Crime Commissioner’s
plans in financial terms. A budget is prepared and
approved by the Police and Crime Commissioner before
the start of each financial year and is used to monitor
actual expenditure throughout the year.

Capital Adjustment Account

The CAA records the balance of resources set aside to
finance capital expenditure (i.e. Capital Receipts,
Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP), Direct Revenue
Contributions (DRC) and Deferred Grants Account
(DGA)) and also the consumption of resources
associated with the historical cost of acquiring, creating
or enhancing non-current assets over the life of those
assets (i.e. depreciation/impairment).

Capital Expenditure

As defined in section 16 of the Local Government Act
2003 and regulation 25 of the Capital Finance and
Accounting Regulations 2003, but broadly expenditure
on the acquisition of a non-current asset or expenditure
which adds to and not merely maintains the value of an
existing non-current asset.

Capital Financing Requirement (CFR)

The CFR is a measure of the extent to which the
Commissioner needs to borrow to support capital
expenditure. It does not necessarily relate to the actual
amount of borrowing at any point in time.

Capital Receipt

Monies received from the sale of capital assets, which
may be used to finance new capital expenditure or to
repay outstanding loan debt as laid down within rules
prescribed by Central Government. Capital Receipts
cannot be used to finance revenue expenditure, with the
exception that up to 4% of sale proceeds may be
transferred to the General Fund to finance costs directly
associated with the disposal of the asset.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash is represented by cash in hand and in bank
accounts. Cash Equivalents include demand deposits
with financial institutions which are highly liquid in that
they are repayable without penalty on notice of not
more that 24 hours.

Ccc
The Chief Constable for Cumbria Constabulary.

CCCFO
The Chief Constable’s Chief Finance Officer.

Chief Constable
The Chief Constable for Cumbria Constabulary.

CIPFA
The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and
Accountancy. The main professional body for

accountants working in the public services.

Componentisation

Identifying and depreciating the components of an asset
separately if they have differing patterns of benefits
relative to the total cost of the asset.

Contingency
A sum set aside to meet unforeseen expenditure.

Creditors

Amounts owed by the Police and Crime Commissioner
for goods and services provided which had not been
paid for at the end of the financial year.
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Glossary of Terms

Debtors
Amounts owing to the Police and Crime Commissioner
but not received at the end of the financial year.

DCLG

The Department for Communities and Local
Government, responsible for funding elements of the
Police and Crime Commissioner’s specific and external
grant aid.

Depreciation

The measure of the wearing out, consumption, or other
reduction in the useful economic life of a non-current
asset, whether arising from use, passage of time or
obsolescence through technological or other changes.

Direct Revenue Contributions (DRC)

Resources provided from the Police and Crime
Commissioner’s revenue budget to finance the cost of
capital projects.

Earmarked Reserves
Those elements of the Police Fund that have been set
aside, “earmarked”, for specific purposes.

Fair Value

In accounting and economics, fair value is a rational and
unbiased estimate of the potential market price of a
good, service, or asset.

Hedge Funds

A hedge fund is a pooled investment vehicle
administered by a professional management firm, and
often structured as a limited partnership/ limited liability
company. Hedge funds invest in a diverse range of
markets and use a wide variety of investment styles and
financial instruments.

Heritage Assets

A tangible asset with historical, artistic, scientific,
technological, geophysical or environmental qualities
that is held and maintained principally for its
contribution to knowledge or culture.

HMIC

Her Majesty’s Inspectorate of Constabulary who are a
government agency responsible for monitoring the
standards and performance of Constabularies.

Impairment
A reduction in the value of a non-current asset below its
carrying amount on the balance sheet.

Leasing
A method of financing expenditure over a period of
time. There are two main types of lease:

e Finance Lease - where the risks of ownership are
transferred to the lessee and where the assets are
recorded in the Police and Crime Commissioner’s
balance sheet at a current valuation.

e Operating Lease - where the risks of ownership stay
with the leasing company and the annual rental
charges are made via the Revenue Account.

Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP)

The minimum amount which must be set aside in the
Revenue Account each year as a provision for credit
liabilities.

Non-current Assets
An asset, which will yield a benefit to the Police and
Crime Commissioner for a period of more than one year.

PCC
The Police and Crime Commissioner for Cumbria.

PCC CFO
The Police and Crime Commissioner’s Chief Finance
Officer.

Pension actuarial gains and losses
For a defined benefit scheme, the changes in actuarial
deficits or surpluses that arise because:

e events have not coincided with actuarial
assumptions made for the last valuation
(experience gains and losses) or

e the actuarial assumptions have changed.

Pension — current service costs

The increase in the present value of a defined benefit’s
liabilities expected to arise from employee service in the
current period.

Pension — defined benefit scheme

A pension or other retirement benefit scheme other
than a defined contribution scheme. The scheme rules
define the benefits independently of the contribution
payable, and the benefits are not directly related to the
investments of the scheme. The scheme may be funded
or unfunded.

92| Page

Police and Crime Commissioner for Cumbria — Statement of Accounts 2013/14


http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Collective_investment_scheme
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Limited_partnership
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Limited_liability_company
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Limited_liability_company

Glossary of Terms

Pension assets — expected rate of return

For a funded defined benefits scheme, the average rate
of return, including both income and changes in fair
value but net of scheme expenses, expected over the
remaining life of the related obligation on the actual
assets held by the scheme.

Pension — interest costs

For a defined benefit scheme, the expected increase
during the period in the present value of the scheme
liabilities because the benefits are one period closer to
settlement.

Pension - past service costs

For a defined benefit scheme, the increase in the
present value of the scheme liabilities related to
employee service in prior periods arising in the current
period as a result of the introduction of, or improvement
to, retirement benefits.

Police Objective Analysis (POA)

The Police Objective Analysis (POA) is a model
developed by the Home Office for analysing individual
policing areas expenditure. It has been developed to
support the need for understandable, accurate and
consistent costing information to allow internal and
inter-force comparisons.

Precept

The demands made by the Police and Crime
Commissioner on the district councils who are the billing
authority in relation to the collection of council tax.

Private Equity Funds

A private equity fund is a collective investment scheme
used for making investments in various equity (and to a
lesser extent debt) securities according to one of the
investment strategies associated with private equity.

Provision

An amount set aside to provide for a liability which is
likely to be incurred, although the amount and date of
that liability are uncertain.

Public Works Loan Board (PWLB)

A Government agency which provides longer term loans
to Local Authorities at interest rates which are only
slightly higher than those at which the government itself
can borrow.

Reserves

An amount set aside for a specific purpose and carried
forward to meet expenditure in future years. The Police
Fund represents accumulated balances which may be
used to support future spending.

Revaluation Reserve

The revaluation reserve records the unrealised net gain
from revaluation of non-current assets made after 1
April 2007. The balance is made up of individual credit
balances associated with specific assets and will be
equal to the difference between the current value net
book value (NBV) and the historic cost NBV for all assets.

Revenue Support Grant

A grant from the Department of Communities and Local
Government (DCLG) towards the cost of Police and
Crime Commissioner services.

SERCOP

The CIPFA Service Reporting Code of Practice. It was
introduced as part of the Best Value Regime to bring
about more consistent accounting treatment of costs
and to facilitate more meaningful financial comparisons
between Authorities.

The Commissioner
The Police and Crime Commissioner for Cumbria.

TPA
Territorial Policing Area.
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Annex A - Statement of Accounting Policies

1 General Principles

The Statement of Accounts summarises the financial transactions for the 2013/14 financial year and the
financial position at the 31 March 2014. The Police and Crime Commissioner and Chief Constable are each
required to prepare an annual Statement of Accounts (single entity) in accordance with the Accounts and
Audit Regulations 2011 which stipulate that the statements be prepared in accordance with proper accounting
practices. Those practices primarily comprise the CIPFA/LAASAC Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2013/14 (the Code) and the Service Reporting Code of Practice 2013/14
(SERCOP), supported by International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and statutory guidance issued
under section 12 of the 2003 act. The Commissioner is responsible for combining the single entity statements
to form a set of consolidated group accounts.

The accounting convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts is principally historical cost, modified by the
revaluation of certain categories of non-current assets.

2 Accruals of Income and Expenditure
Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash payments are made or received.
In particular:

° Revenue from the provision of services is recognised when the percentage completion of the
transaction can be reliably measured and that it is probable that economic benefits or service potential
associated with the transaction will flow.

° Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed — where there is a gap between the date
supplies are received and their consumption, they are carried as inventories (stock) on the Balance
Sheet.

° Expenses in relation to services received (including services provided by employees) are recorded as

expenditure when the services are received rather than when payments are made.

° Interest receivable on investments and payable on borrowings is accounted for respectively as income
and expenditure on the basis of the effective interest rate for the relevant financial instrument rather
than the cash flows fixed or determined by the contract.

° Where income and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been received or paid, a debtor
or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the Balance Sheet. Where debts may not be settled,
the balance of debtors is written down and a charge made to revenue for the income that might not be
collected.

° An accrual is made in respect of employee benefits payable during employment (see accounting policy 7
below for further details).

3 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash is represented by cash in hand, imprests (petty cash) and demand deposits with financial institutions
repayable without penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value. Cash and cash equivalents may also include overdrawn balances at the bank where
they are an integral part of cash management. Generally, cash and cash equivalents will comprise, cash in
hand, bank account balances, overnight deposits and deposits with Money Market Funds which are repayable
on demand without penalty or loss of interest.
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In accordance with the Commissioner’s funding arrangement with the Chief Constable, the Chief Constable is
funded on a cash basis, accordingly all cash and cash equivalent balances are recorded on the balance sheet of
the Commissioner.

In the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that are repayable on
demand or form an integral part of cash management.

4 Exceptional Items
When exceptional items of income and expense are material, their nature and value is disclosed separately,
either on the face of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement or in the notes to the accounts,
depending on how significant the items are to an understanding of financial performance.

5 Prior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Policies and Estimates and Errors
Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or to correct a material error.
Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively, i.e. in the current and future years affected
by the change and do not give rise to a prior period adjustment.

Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting practices or when the
change provides more reliable or relevant information about the effect of transactions, other events and
conditions on the financial position or performance. Where a change is made, it is applied retrospectively
(unless stated otherwise) by adjusting opening balances and comparative amounts and notes for the prior
period as if the new policy had always been applied.

6 Charges to Revenue for Non-Current Assets
The cost of services are debited with the following amounts to record the cost of holding non-current assets
during the year:

° Depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant services.

° Revaluation and impairment losses on assets used by the services where there are no accumulated
gains in the Revaluation Reserve against which the losses can be written off.

° Amortisation of non-current assets attributable to the services.

Council Tax is not required to be raised to fund depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses or
amortisations. However, an annual contribution from revenue is required towards the reduction in its overall
borrowing requirement equal to an amount calculated on a prudent basis and determined in accordance with
statutory guidance. This contribution is known as MRP (Minimum Revenue Provision). Depreciation,
revaluation and impairment losses and amortisations are therefore replaced by the contribution in the Police
Fund Balance, by way of an adjusting transaction with the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in
Reserves Statement for the difference between the two.

In accordance with the Commissioner’s funding arrangement with the Chief Constable, the Commissioner
holds all non—current assets. Accordingly, all depreciation, revaluations and impairments are recorded in the
Commissioner’s single entity financial statements. However, the Commissioner makes a charge to the Chief
Constable for the use of non-current assets, which is equivalent to his share of depreciation.
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7.2

Employee Benefits

Employee Benefits payable during Employment

Short-term employee benefits are those due to be settled within 12 months of the year-end. They include
such benefits as salaries, paid annual leave and paid sick leave, bonuses and non-monetary benefits (e.g. cars)
for current employees and are recognised as an expense for functions in the year in which employees render
service. An accrual is made for the cost of holiday entitlements, time off in lieu, flexi leave and rest days in lieu
earned by employees but not taken before the year-end, which employees can carry forward into the next
financial year. The accrual is made at the salary rate applicable at the balance sheet date. The employee
accrual is then reversed out through the movement in reserves statement so that it is not charged against
council tax.

Termination Benefits

Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision to terminate an individual’s employment
before the normal retirement date or an officer’s decision to accept voluntary redundancy and are charged
(on an accruals basis) to the relevant service line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Where termination benefits involve enhancement of pensions, statutory provisions require the Police Fund
balance be charged with the amount payable to the pension fund or pensioner in the year, not the amount
calculated according to the relevant accounting standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement,
appropriations are required to and from the pensions reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for
pension enhancement termination benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the pension
fund and any such amounts payable but unpaid at the year-end.

Post Employment Benefits

General

There are two pension schemes for police officers and a single scheme for police staff. They are all defined
benefits schemes.

All accounting entries relating to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and the subsequent
liability for Police Officer pensions are wholly recorded in the single entity statements of the Chief Constable.
For Police Staff all Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement entries and subsequent balance sheet
liabilities in relation to pensions are apportioned between the Commissioner and the Chief Constable single
entity statements on a head count basis. All accounting entries for Police Officer pensions and Police Staff
pensions are consolidated in the group statements.

The liabilities of each of the pension funds are included in the Balance Sheet on an actuarial basis using the
projected unit method —i.e. an assessment of the future payments that will be made in relation to retirement
benefits earned to date by employees, based on assumptions about mortality rates, employee turnover rates
etc and projections of earnings for current employees. Liabilities are discounted to their fair value at current
prices using a discount rate (see assumptions set out in note 15c, page 56).

The change in the net pensions liability is analysed into the following components:
° Current service costs — the increase in liabilities as a result of years of service earned this year —

allocated in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement to the services for which the
employee worked.

° Past service cost — the increase in liabilities as a result of a scheme amendment or curtailment whose
effect relates to relates to years of service earned in earlier years — debited to the Surplus or Deficit on
the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of Non
Distributed Costs.
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° Net interest on the net defined pension benefit liability (asset) — i.e. the net interest expense for the
organisation — the change during the period in the net defined pension benefit liability (asset) that
arises from the passage of time charged to the financing and investment income and expenditure line of
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement — this is calculated by applying the discount rate
used to measure the defined pension benefit obligation at the beginning of the period to the net
defined pension benefit liability (asset) at the beginning of the period — taking into account any changes
in the net defined pension benefit liability (assets) during the period as a result of contribution and
benefit payment.

Remeasurements comprising:

° Return on plan assets-excluding amounts included in the net interest on the net defined pension liability
(asset) — charged to the pensions reserve as Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.
° Actuarial gains and losses — changes in the net pensions liability that arise because events have not

coincided with assumptions (demographic and financial) made at the last actuarial valuation or because
the actuaries have updated their assumptions —charged to the Pensions Reserve as Other
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.

° Contributions paid to the pension fund — cash paid as employer’s contributions to the pension fund in
settlement of liabilities; not accounted for as an expense.

In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the Police Fund to be charged with the amount
payable to the pension funds in the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting
standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement, this means that there are transfers to and from the
Pensions reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for retirement benefits and replace them with
debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable but unpaid at the
year-end. The negative balance that arises on the Pension Reserve thereby measures the beneficial impact to
the Police Fund of being required to account for retirement benefits on the basis of cash flows rather than as
benefits are earned by employees.

Note 15 to the primary financial statements provides further information about the pension schemes.

Police Officers

As outlined above, the single entity statements of the Commissioner do not include any accounting entries in
relation to the Police Officer Pensions funds as these are wholly recognised by the Chief Constable. The group
accounts however include all relevant accounting entries in relation to Police Pension Funds.

The original Police Pension Scheme (PPS) is governed by the Police Pension Regulations 1987 (as amended)
and related regulations that are made under the Police Pensions Act 1976. The new Police Pensions Scheme
(NPPS) is also governed by the Police Pensions Act 1976 (as amended by the Police Pension Regulations 2006).

Both schemes are unfunded which means there are no investment assets built up to meet pensions liabilities
from pensions or other retirement benefits for former employees.

The funding arrangements for police officers pensions changed on 1st April 2006. Before April 2006 pensions
of former employees were required to be met on a ‘pay as you go’ basis with the cost charged to the revenue
account. From April 2006 onwards there is an employer’s contribution rate set by the Home Office (currently
24.2% of pensionable salary), which is charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Also from 1st April 2006 legislation required the operation of a Pension Fund Account (shown on pages 88-89).
The amounts that must be paid into and out of the fund are specified by regulation. Officers’ contributions
and the employer’s contributions are paid into the pension fund account from which pension payments are
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made. Any shortfall on the pension fund account is met by a contribution from the police fund. A Home
Office Grant is received to cover this contribution. Conversely, a surplus on the Pension Fund Account would
result in a contribution to the police fund, which would then be recouped by the Home Office.

Police Staff

Police staff, subject to certain qualifying criteria, are eligible to join the Local Government Pension Scheme
(LGPS), which is a funded defined benefit scheme. Pensions and other retirement benefits are paid from the
fund. Employers and employees make regular contributions into the fund so that the liabilities are paid for
evenly over the employment period.

Actuarial valuations of the fund are undertaken every three years to determine the contribution rates needed
to meet its liabilities.

The assets of the LGPS pension fund are included in the Balance Sheet at their fair value:

° Quoted securities — current bid price

° Unquoted securities — professional estimate
° Unitised securities — current bid price

° Property — market value

The Accounts show the full implementation of IAS19 (Employee Benefits). IAS19 requires organisations to
recognise retirement benefits in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement when they are
earned, even though the benefits will not be payable until employees retire. However, as statutory procedures
require the charge against Council Tax to be based on the amounts payable to the pension fund during the
year, an appropriation is made within the pensions reserve equal to the net change in the pensions liability
recognised in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The neutralising entry is made through
the Movement in Reserves Statement. The Balance Sheet discloses the net liability in relation to retirement
benefits. The figures are based on the Actuary’s latest estimate.

There are restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement benefits in the event of early
retirements. Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an award to any member of staff are accrued in
the year of the decision to make the award and are accounted for using the same policies as applied to the
LGPS.

Events after the Balance Sheet Date

Events after the balance sheet date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur between
the end of the reporting period and the date the Statement of Accounts is authorised for issue which have an
impact on the financial statements and are treated as follows. Two types of events can be identified:

° Those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period — the
Statement of Accounts is adjusted to reflect such events

° Those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period — the Statement of
Accounts is not adjusted to reflect such events, but where a category of events would have a material
effect, disclosure is made in the notes of the nature of the event and their estimated financial effect.
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Financial Instruments - Financial Liabilities

Financial Liabilities are initially measured at fair value and carried at their amortised cost. Annual charges to
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for interest payable are based on the carrying amount
of the liability, multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument. For borrowings this means that
the amount presented on the Balance Sheet is the outstanding amount of principal repayable and interest
charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is the amount payable for the year in the
loan agreement. Borrowing is undertaken and accounted for in accordance with the Treasury Management
Strategy. Where a payable (i.e. creditor) has a maturity of less than 12 months the fair value is taken to be the
principal outstanding, or the billed/invoiced amount. In accordance with the funding arrangement between
the Commissioner and the Chief Constable, all financial instrument liabilities, including borrowing and trade
creditors are held by the Commissioner.

Financial Instruments - Financial Assets
Financial assets are classified into two types:

° Loans and Receivables — assets that have fixed or determinable payments but are not quoted in an
active market. Trade debtors and investments are classified as loans and receivables.

° Available-for-sale assets — assets that have a quoted market price and/or do not have fixed or
determinable payments. There are no available-for-sale assets.

Loans and receivables are initially measured at fair value and carried at their amortised cost. Annual credits to
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for interest receivable are based on the carrying
amount of the asset multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument. Where a receivable (i.e.
debtor) has a maturity of less than 12 months, the fair value is taken to be the principal outstanding or the
billed/invoiced amount. Investments are shown in the balance sheet at cost. Where investments are fixed
term deposits, accrued interest owing at the balance sheet date is included in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement.

Where assets are identified as impaired because of a likelihood arising from a past event that payments due
under the contract will not be made, the asset is written down and a charge made to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement. An example of such a charge would be the adjustment made to the
debtors balance as a provision for bad debts (see note 12, page 46).

Investments are undertaken and accounted for in accordance with the Treasury Management Strategy.

In accordance with the Commissioner’s funding arrangement with the Chief Constable all financial instrument
assets including investments and trade debtors are held by the Commissioner.

Government Grants and Contributions
Whether paid on account, by installments or in arrears, government grants and third party contributions and
donations are recognised as due when there is reasonable assurance of:

° compliance with the conditions attached to the payments, and

° the grants or contributions will be received.

Amounts recognised as due are not credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement until
conditions attached to the grant or contribution have been satisfied. Conditions are stipulations that specify

that the future economic benefits or service potential embodied in the asset acquired using the grant or
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contribution are required to be consumed by the recipient as specified, or future economic benefits or service
potential must be returned to the transferor.

Monies advanced as grants or contributions for which conditions have not been satisfied are carried on the
balance sheet as creditors. When conditions are satisfied, the grant or contribution is credited to the relevant
function line (attributable revenue grants and contributions) or Taxation and Non-Specific Grants Income
(non-ringfenced revenue grants and all capital grants) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement.

Where capital grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, they are
reversed out of the Police Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. Where the grant has yet to
be used to finance capital expenditure, it is posted to the Capital Grants Unapplied reserve. Where it has been
applied, it is posted to the Capital Adjustment Account. Amounts in the Capital Grants Unapplied reserve are
transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account once they have been applied to fund capital expenditure.

In accordance with the statutory responsibility of the Commissioner to maintain the Police Fund contained
within the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011, all grants are recognised in the accounts of the
Commissioner.

Intangible Assets

Expenditure on non-monetary assets that do not have physical substance but are controlled as a result of past
events (e.g. software licences) is capitalised when it is expected that future economic benefits or service
potential will flow from the intangible asset. Intangible assets are initially measured at cost amounts and are
only revalued where the fair value of the asset can be determined by an active market. The depreciable
amount of an intangible asset is amortised over its useful life (usually 5 years) to the relevant function(s) in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Where expenditure on intangible assets qualifies as capital expenditure for statutory purposes, amortisation,
impairment losses and disposal gains and losses are not permitted to have an impact on the Police Fund
Balance. The amortisation, impairment and gains and losses on disposal are therefore reversed out of the
Police Fund in the Movement in Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital Adjustment Account and (for
any sale proceeds over £10,000) the Capital Receipts Reserve. An asset is tested for impairment, whenever
there is an indication that the asset might be impaired — any losses recognised are posted to the relevant
service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

In accordance with the terms of the Commissioner’s funding arrangement with the Chief Constable, all
intangible assets are held by the Commissioner.

Inventories

Inventories (stocks) are included in the balance sheet at historic cost. This is a departure from IAS2 which
requires inventories to be valued at the lower of cost or net realisable value. However, for many stock items,
particularly uniforms, net realisable value would be minimal and would not accurately reflect the value of
holding these assets. As inventories predominantly relate to operational stocks (uniform and consumables)
these are reported in the single entity statements of the Chief Constable and as such are consolidated into the
Commissioner’s group accounts.

Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of the property, plant or equipment from the lessor to the lessee. All other
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15.2

15.3

15.4

leases are classified as operating leases.

Where a lease covers both land and buildings, the land and building elements are considered separately for
classification. Agreements that do not have the legal status of a lease but convey a right to use an asset in
return for payment are accounted for under this policy where fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on
the use of specific assets.

Finance leases (as Lessee)

Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases is recognised on the Balance Sheet at the
commencement of the lease at its fair value measured at the lease’s inception (or the present value of the
minimum lease payments, if lower). The asset recognised is matched by a liability for the obligation to pay the
lessor. Initial direct costs are added to the carrying amount of the asset. Premiums paid on entry into a lease
are applied to writing down the lease liability. Contingent rents are charged as expenses in the periods in
which they are incurred.

Lease payments are apportioned between:

° A charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property, plant or equipment — applied to write down
the lease liability, and

° A finance charge (debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement).

Property, plant and equipment recognised under finance leases is accounted for using the policies applied
generally to such assets, subject to depreciation being charged over the lease term if this is shorter than the
asset’s estimated useful life (where ownership of the asset does not transfer at the end of the lease period).

Council tax is not required to be raised to cover depreciation or revaluation and impairment losses arising on
leased assets. Instead, a prudent annual contribution is made from revenue funds towards the deemed
capital investment in accordance with statutory requirements. Depreciation and revaluation and impairment
losses are therefore substituted by a revenue contribution in the Police Fund balance, by way of an adjusting
transaction within the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement for the difference
between the two.

Operating Leases (as Lessee)

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as
an expense of the functions benefitting from use of the leased property, plant or equipment. Charges are
made on a straight line basis over the life of the lease.

Finance Leases (as Lessor)
There are currently no finance leases as a lessor.

Operating Leases (as Lessor)

Rentals received under operating leases are credited to the other operating expenditure line within the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, except where the property has been classified as an
investment property, in which case the income is shown in the financing and investment income and
expenditure line.
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17.1

17.2

Treatment of Overheads

The costs of overheads and support services are charged to those that benefit from the supply or service in
accordance with the costing principles of the CIPFA Service Reporting Code of Practice 2013/14 (SERCOP). The
total absorption costing principle is used — the full cost of overheads and support services are shared between
users in proportion to the benefits received, with the exception of:

° Corporate and Democratic Core — costs relating to the status as a democratic organisation.

° Non Distributed Costs — the cost of discretionary benefits awarded to employees retiring early and
impairment losses chargeable on assets held for sale.

The two cost categories are defined in the Service Reporting Code of Practice (SERCOP) and accounted for as

separate headings in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of Cost of Services.

Under the Commissioner’s funding arrangement to the Chief Constable premises costs (except where they are
directly attributable to the Chief Constable) are initially recorded in the accounts of the Commissioner and a
recharge is made to the Chief Constable in the single entity Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statements on an appropriate basis. Transport and supplies and services costs (except where they are directly
attributable to the Commissioner) are initially recorded in the accounts of the Chief Constable and a recharge
is made to the Commissioner in the single entity Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statements on an
appropriate basis.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the production or supply of goods and services, for
rental to others, or for administrative purposes and that are expected to be used during more than one
financial year are classified as Property, Plant and Equipment.

Recognition

Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of Property, Plant and Equipment is capitalised on an
accruals basis, provided that it is probable that the future economic benefits or service potential associated
with the item will flow and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Expenditure that maintains but
does not add to an asset’s potential to deliver future economic benefits (i.e. repairs and maintenance) is
charged to revenue as an expense through the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement when it is
incurred.

De-minimis levels have been set for capital projects at £25,000. No de-minimis level is set for individual items
within capital projects.

Measurement
Assets are initially measured at cost, comprising:

° The purchase price

° Any costs attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable
of operating in the manner intended by management

Borrowing costs incurred are not capitalised whilst assets are under construction.
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Assets are then carried in the Balance Sheet using the following measurement basis:

Category \ Basis of Valuation

Land and Buildings (Specialised) Depreciated Replacement Cost

Land and Buildings (Non Specialised) Existing Use Value

Vehicles, Plant, Furniture and Equipment Depreciated Historic Cost (as a proxy for fair value)
Assets Held for Sale Market Value (or carrying amount if lower)

Assets Under Construction Historic Cost

Assets included in the Balance Sheet at fair value (i.e. not valued at historic cost) are revalued sufficiently
regularly to ensure that their carrying amount is not materially different from their fair value at the year-end,
but as a minimum every five years. Increases in valuations are matched by credits to the Revaluation Reserve
to recognise unrealised gains. Gains are to be credited to the relevant function line(s) in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement where they arise from the reversal of a loss previously charged to a
function up to the amount of the original loss, adjusted for depreciation (if material) that would have been
charged if the loss had not been recognised. Valuations are carried out by Mr. C. Smith BSc MRICS, Carigiet
Cowen, Telford House, Riverside, Warwick Road, Carlisle CA1 2BT.

Where decreases in value are identified, they are accounted for as follows:-

° Where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the carrying
amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the accumulated gains).

° Where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the carrying amount of
the asset is written down against the relevant function lines(s) in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement.

The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April 2007 only, the date of its formal
inception. Gains arising before that date have been consolidated into the Capital Adjustment Account.
Revaluation gains and losses are not permitted to have an impact on the Police Fund. The gains and losses are
therefore reversed out of the Police Fund in the Movement in Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital
Adjustment Account.

Impairment

Assets are assessed at each year-end as to whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired.
Where indications exist and any possible differences are estimated to be material, the recoverable amount of
the asset is estimated and, where this is less than the carrying amount of the asset, an impairment loss is
recognised for the shortfall.

Where impairment losses are identified, they are accounted for as follows:-

° Where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the carrying
amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the accumulated gains).

° Where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the carrying amount of
the asset is written down against the relevant function line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement.

Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently by a revaluation gain, the reversal is credited to the
relevant function line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, up to the amount of the
original loss, adjusted for depreciation (if material) that would have been charged if the loss had not been
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17.4

17.5

recognised.

Impairment losses are not a charge against Council Tax. The balance on the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement arising from an impairment loss is appropriated to the Capital Adjustment Account
through the Movement in Reserves Statement.

The impairment reviews are carried out by Mr. C. Smith BSc MRICS, Carigiet Cowen, Telford House, Riverside,
Warwick Road, Carlisle CA1 2BT.

Depreciation

Depreciation is provided for on all Property, Plant and Equipment assets by the systematic allocation of their
depreciable amounts over their useful lives. An exception is made for assets without a determinable finite
useful life (i.e. freehold land) and assets that are not yet available for use (i.e. assets under construction).
Depreciation is calculated on the following bases:

° Land and Buildings - straight-line allocation over the useful life of the property as estimated by the
valuer up to a maximum of 50 years

° Vehicles — straight line allocation over the estimated useful life (3 to 10 years)
° IT Equipment — straight line allocation over the estimated useful life (5 to 8 years)

No depreciation charge is made however in the year of acquisition but a full year charge is made in the year of
disposal. A full year’s depreciation charge is made in the year of revaluation of any asset.

Depreciation also has to be calculated on revaluation gains and is represented by the difference between
depreciation calculated at current cost and depreciation calculated at historic cost. The difference between
the two values is transferred each year from the Revaluation Reserve to the Capital Adjustment Account.

Where an item of Property, Plant and Equipment asset has major components whose cost is significant in
relation to the total cost of the item, the components are depreciated separately (see accounting policy 17.7
below).

Disposal and Non-Current Assets Held for Sale

When it becomes probable that the carrying amount of an asset will be recovered principally through a sale
transaction rather than through its continuing use, it is reclassified as an Asset Held for Sale. The asset is
revalued immediately before reclassification and then carried at the lower of this amount and fair value less
costs to sell. Where there is a subsequent decrease to fair value less cost to sell, the loss is posted to the
Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Gains in fair
value are recognised only up to the amount of any losses previously recognised in the Surplus or Deficit on
Provision of Services. Depreciation is not charged on Assets held for Sale.

If assets no longer meet the criteria to be classified as Assets Held for Sale, they are reclassified back to non-
current assets and valued at the lower of their carrying amount before they were classified as held for sale;
adjusted for depreciation, amortisation or revaluations that would have been recognised had they not been
classified as Held for Sale, and their recoverable amount at the date of the decision not to sell.

Assets that are to be abandoned or scrapped are not reclassified as Assets Held for Sale.

When an asset is disposed of or decommissioned, the carrying amount of the asset in the Balance Sheet
(whether Property, Plant and Equipment or Assets Held for Sale) is written off to the Other Operating
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or loss on
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17.7
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disposal. Disposal costs are shown in other operating expenditure in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement. Receipts from disposals (if any) are credited to the same line in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement also as part of the gain or loss on disposal (i.e. netted off against the
carrying value of the asset at the time of disposal). In line with Statutory Instrument 2010 No 454, disposal
costs of up to 4% of the sale proceeds are financed from capital receipts. Any revaluation gains accumulated
for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account. The written-off
value of disposals is not a charge against Council Tax, as the cost of non-current assets is fully provided for
under separate arrangements for capital financing. Amounts are appropriated to the Capital Adjustment
Account from the Police Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

Capital Receipts

Amounts received for a disposal in excess of £10,000 are categorised as Capital Receipts. The balance of
receipts is required to be credited to the Capital Receipts Reserve, and can then only be used for new capital
investment or set aside to reduce the underlying need to borrow (the capital financing requirement). Receipts
are appropriated to the reserve from the Police Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

Component Accounting

Under the IFRS based code, separate recognition, depreciation and derecognition of parts of assets is
required. This is often referred to as componentisation. Componentisation is a change that has to be applied
prospectively which means that it only needs to be considered for any non-current assets, acquired, improved
or revalued after 1 April 2010. A componentisation policy has been established whereby all land and building
assets with a value in excess of £1m will be assessed to see if they contain a significant component. A
significant component is defined in the policy as one which exceeds £200k in value and has a different life to
the remainder of the asset. Where a component of a non-current asset is replaced or restored, the carrying
amount of the old component shall be derecognised and the new component reflected in the carrying
amount. Each significant component of an item of property, plant or equipment is depreciated separately.
Depreciation is calculated on the balance brought forward at the start of each year. Depreciation on the
componentised assets will therefore only become effective in the year following revaluation and subsequent
split for componentisation.

Under the terms of the Commissioners funding arrangement to the Chief Constable all property, plant and
equipment is held by the Commissioner. Accordingly, all accounting entries in relation to the acquisition,
enhancement, revaluation, impairment, depreciation and sale of such assets are recorded in the single entity
accounts of the Commissioner. As noted in policy 6 the Commissioner makes a charge to the Chief Constable
for the use of such assets which is equivalent to the Chief Constable’s share of depreciation.

Investment Property

Investment properties are those that are used solely to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation. The
definition is not met if the property is used in any way to facilitate the delivery of services or production of
goods or is held for sale.

Investment properties are measured initially at cost and subsequently at fair value, based on the amount at
which the asset could be exchanged between knowledgeable parties at arm’s length. Properties are not
depreciated but are revalued annually according to market conditions at the year-end. Gains and losses on
revaluation are posted to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement. The same treatment is applied to gains and losses on disposal.

Rentals received in relation to investment properties are credited to the Financing and Investment Income line
and result in a gain for the Police Fund Balance. However, revaluation and disposal gains and losses are not
permitted by statutory arrangements to have an impact on the police fund balance. The gains and losses are
therefore reversed out of the police fund balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement and posted to the
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Capital Adjustment Account and (for any sale proceeds greater that £10,000) the Capital Receipts Reserve.

Investment assets are not generally held, however, in some circumstances where a surplus property no longer
meets the strict criteria to be classified as “held for sale”, it must be classified as an investment property.

Private Finance Initiative (PFI) and Similar Contracts

PFl and similar contracts are agreements to receive services, where the responsibility for making available the
property, plant and equipment needed to provide the services passes to the PFl contractor. As the services
that are provided under the PFlI scheme are deemed under the PFl contract to be controlled, the asset is
carried on the Balance Sheet as part of Property, Plant and Equipment.

The original recognition of these assets at fair value (based on the cost to purchase the property, plant and
equipment) was balanced by the recognition of a liability for amounts due to the scheme operator to pay for
the capital investment.

Non-current assets recognised on the Balance Sheet are re-valued and depreciated in the same way as
property, plant and equipment.

The amounts payable to the PFl operator each year are analysed into four elements:

° Fair value of the services received during the year — debited to the relevant function in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

° Finance cost — an interest charge on the outstanding Balance Sheet liability, debited to the Financing
and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

° Payment towards liability — applied to write down the Balance Sheet liability towards the PFl operator
(the profile of write downs is calculated using the same principles as for a finance lease).

° Lifecycle replacement costs — a proportion of the amounts payable is posted to the Balance sheet as a
prepayment and then recognised as additions to Property, Plant and Equipment when the relevant
works are eventually carried out.

There is currently one PFI scheme recognised on the Balance Sheet and this relates to the West Cumbria TPA
HQ at Workington. Under the terms of the Commissioner’s funding arrangement to the Chief Constable the
Commissioner controls all property and, accordingly, the PFI building is recorded on the Balance Sheet of the
Commissioner. A charge is made by the Commissioner to the Chief Constable in the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement for the Chief Constable’s use of the building and the services provided. Further
details of the arrangement and accounting treatment can be found in note 16 (pages 58-59) of the notes to
the accounts.

Heritage Assets

There are a small number of items that fall under the definition of heritage assets. Due to their diverse nature
and lack of historical cost information specialist valuations would be required in order to obtain a reliable
estimated value to include in the accounts. The cost of obtaining such valuations would outweigh the benefits
gained and therefore no values are included in the balance sheet.
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Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
Provisions

Provisions are made when an event has taken place that gives a legal or constructive obligation that probably

requires settlement by transfer of economic benefits or service potential, and a reliable estimate can be made
of the amount of the obligation. For instance, involvement in a court case that could eventually result in the
making of a settlement or the payment of compensation.

Provisions are charged as an expense to the appropriate function line in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement in the year that awareness of the obligation arises, and are measured at the best
estimate at the balance sheet date of the expenditure required to settle the obligation, taking into account the
relevant risks and uncertainties. Details of provisions made during the year are shown in the notes to the
accounts (note 14, page 48).

When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision carried on the Balance Sheet.
Estimated settlements are reviewed at the end of each financial year where it becomes less than probable
that a transfer of economic benefits will subsequently be required (or a lower settlement than anticipated is
made), the provision is reversed and credited back to the relevant function.

Where some or all of the payment required to settle a provision is expected to be recovered from another
party (e.g. from an insurance claim), this is only recognised as income for the relevant service if it is virtually
certain that reimbursement will be received if the obligation is settled.

Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives a possible obligation which will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events which cannot wholly be controlled.
Contingent liabilities also arise in circumstances where a provision would otherwise be made but it is either
not probable that an outflow of resources will be required or the amount of the obligation cannot be
measured reliably.

Contingent liabilities are not recognised on the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the accounts.

Contingent Assets
A contingent asset arises where an event has taken place that gives rise to a possible asset which will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events which cannot wholly be controlled.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the accounts where it is
probable that there will be an inflow of economic benefits or service potential.

Reserves

Specific amounts are set aside as reserves for future policy purposes or to cover contingencies. Reserves are
created by appropriating amounts out of the Police Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement.
When expenditure to be financed from a reserve is incurred, it is charged to the appropriate function in that
year to score against the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement. The reserve is then appropriated back into the Police Fund balance in the Movement
in Reserves Statement so that there is no net charge against Council Tax for the expenditure.

Reserves are classified in the Balance Sheet and the Movement in Reserves Statement as either ‘usable’ (those
that can be applied to fund expenditure or reduce local taxation) and ‘unusable’ (those held for technical
accounting purposes). Under the Commissioner’s funding arrangement to the Chief Constable all usable
reserves are controlled by the Commissioner and recorded in the balance sheet of the Commissioner.
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Material Estimation Techniques

IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements requires disclosure of any estimation techniques applied, such that
if a different methodology had been used a material variance in the amounts disclosed would have been
arrived at. The only material estimation techniques used are as follows:

Pension Disclosure Note:
Where the projected unit method of valuation has been applied and which is consistent with the required
methodology in IAS 19. This is a valuation method in which the scheme liabilities make an allowance for
projected earnings. An accrued benefits valuation method is one in which the scheme liabilities at the
valuation date relate to:

(a)  the benefits pensioners and deferred pensioners (i.e. individuals who have ceased as active
members but are entitled to benefits payable at a later date) and their dependents, allowing
where appropriate for future increases, and

(b)  the accrued benefits for members in service on the valuation date. The accrued benefits are the
benefits for service up to a given point in time, whether vested or not.

For 2013/14 a discount rate based on the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent
currency and term to scheme liabilities is to be used. The actuaries for the Police and LGPS pension funds have
advised that a rate of between 4.4% and 4.6% is appropriate.

Property Revaluations

All buildings are revalued on a rolling five-year programme and the estimation techniques used are based on
the “open market value in existing use” or in the case of specialised police properties “depreciated
replacement cost” which is consistent with proper accounting practice. The professional valuer, Mr. C. Smith
of Carigiet Cowen, applied these valuation methods.

Collection Fund

Council Tax is collected from local taxpayers by the billing authorities (district councils). The billing authorities
in England are required by statute to maintain a separate fund for the collection and distribution of amounts
due in respect of Council Tax. The fund’s key features relevant to accounting for Council Tax in the core
financial statements of the billing authorities are:

° In its capacity as a billing authority the council acts as agent; it collects and distributes Council Tax
income on behalf of the major preceptors (County Council and the Police and Crime Commissioner for
Cumbria) and itself.

° While the Council Tax income for the year credited to the collection fund is accrued income for the year,
regulations determine when it should be released from the collection fund and transferred to the
general fund of the billing authority or paid out of the collection fund to major preceptors.

° Up to 2008/09 the SORP required the Council Tax income included in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement to be that which under regulation was required to be transferred from the
collection Fund to the general fund of the billing authority. The Major precepting bodies were simply
required to show the precept received from the billing authority during the year.

From the year commencing 1 April 2009, the Council Tax income included in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement for the year shall be the accrued income for the year. The difference between the
income included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and the amount required by
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regulation to be credited to the collection fund shall be taken to the Collection Fund Adjustment Account and
included as a reconciling item in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

Since the collection of Council Tax is, in substance, an agency arrangement, cash collected by the billing
authority from Council Tax debtors belongs proportionately to the billing authority and the major preceptors.
There will be therefore a debtor/creditor position between the billing authorities and each major preceptor to
be recognised since the net cash paid to each major preceptor in the year will not be its share of cash
collected from Council Taxpayers.

The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement shows the share of cash collected in relation to
Council Tax for the year. A transfer has been made to the collection fund adjustment account to record the
amount due to/from the six districts (billing authorities) as at the year end. The debtors and creditors
contained within the balance sheet now shows the share of Council Tax debtors (less an adjustment for bad
and doubtful debts), Council Tax creditors, prepayments and a recognition of the amounts owed to or from
the billing authorities.

Value Added Tax (VAT)
VAT payable is included as an expense only to the extent that it is not recoverable from Her Majesty’s Revenue
and Customs. VAT receivable is excluded from income.
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INTRODUCTION AND SCOPE OF RESPONSIBILITIES

The Police and Crime Commissioner for Cumbria (the
Commissioner) is responsible for ensuring business is
conducted in accordance with the law and proper
standards, that public money is safeguarded and properly
accounted for, and used economically, efficiently and

effectively.

In discharging this overall responsibility, the Commissioner
is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements for
the governance of affairs and facilitating the exercise of
functions, which includes arrangements for the

management of risk.

The Commissioner has approved and adopted a Code of
Corporate Governance ‘The Code’. The Code gives clarity to
the way the Commissioner governs and sets out the
frameworks that are in place to support the overall
arrangements for fulfilling the Commissioner’s functions.
This statement explains how the Commissioner has
complied with The Code. It also meets the requirements of
regulation 4(3) of the Accounts and Audit (England)
Regulations 2011 in relation to the publication of an Annual
Governance Statement (AGS) which must accompany the

statement of accounts.

PURPOSE OF THE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

The governance framework comprises the systems,
processes, culture and values by which the Commissioner is
directed and controlled and the activities through which the
Commissioner accounts to and engages with the
community. The framework enables the Commissioner to
monitor the achievement of strategic Police and Crime
objectives and to consider whether those objectives have
led to the delivery of appropriate efficient and effective

police and community safety services.

The system of internal control is a significant part of that
framework and is designed to manage risk to a reasonable
and foreseeable level. It cannot eliminate all risk of failure
to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can therefore
only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of
effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an
on-going process designed to identify and prioritise the risks
to the achievement of the Commissioner’s policies, aims
and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks
being realised and the impact should they be realised, and

to manage them effectively, efficiently and economically.

The findings of the review of the system of internal control
are reviewed by the Audit and Standards Committee (23
June 2014) and reported to the Commissioner’s Executive

Board (24 June 2014).
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THE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK AND ITS EFFECTIVENESS

The key elements of the system and processes that
comprise the Commissioner’s governance arrangements are
detailed in this section. The elements are based on the six
core principles of Corporate Governance from the
CIPFA/Solace Governance Framework, the standard against
which all local government bodies, including police, should

assess themselves.

The Commissioner has responsibility for conducting, at least
annually, a review of the effectiveness of its governance
framework including the system of internal control. The
review of effectiveness is informed by the work of Chief
Officers and senior managers who have responsibility for
the development and maintenance of the governance
environment, the Chief Internal Auditor’s annual report, the
annual report of the Joint Audit and Standards Committee,
the view of the external auditor through their annual
governance statement and other review inspectorates. As
part of the review process, the annual governance
statement is prepared, setting out how the Commissioner
has complied with The Code over the previous financial year
and to the date that the statement of accounts are

published.

The Commissioner’s Joint Audit and Standards Committee
has specific responsibility for providing an independent
assurance function in respect of the arrangements for
Governance including Risk Management. The work of the
Joint Audit and Standards Committee over the period of the
Governance Statement contributes to the review process by
providing evidence in support of the effectiveness of

arrangements.

Six Core Principles of Governance

Focusing on the purpose of the
Commissioner and the Force
and on outcomes for the
community, creating and
implementing a vision for the
local area

Leaders, officers and partners
working together to achieve a
common purpose with clearly
defined functions and roles
Promoting values for the
Commissioner and
demonstrating the values of
good governance through
upholding high standards of
conduct and behaviour

Taking informed and
transparent decisions which are
subject to effective scrutiny and
managing risk

Developing the capacity and
capability of the Commissioner
and officers of the
Commissioner to be effective
Engaging with local people and
other stakeholders to ensure

robust public accountability
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The Joint Audit and Standards Committee will also receive
and scrutinise the report of the Chief Finance Office
reviewing the effectiveness of the arrangements for internal
audit. A report of the work of the Committee is produced
annually, as part of that review, and submitted to the
Commissioner’s Executive Board and the Police and Crime
Panel. The report assesses the effectiveness of the
Committee against Chartered Institute of Public Finance and
Accountancy (CIPFA) guidance, and as a contribution to the

effectiveness of overall governance arrangements.

Internal audit perform a range of reviews based on an
agreed audit plan. The plan has regard to risks and
recognises that key financial systems and other areas of
wider business risk need to be reviewed on a cyclical basis
to provide assurance with regard to internal controls and
systems for governance. The work of internal audit
contributes to the review of the effectiveness of governance
by identifying the effectiveness of internal controls and
providing an overall opinion annually on the control
environment. The internal audit annual report for 2013-14
concludes that the Commissioner’s frameworks for
governance, risk and internal control are reasonable and
that audit testing has confirmed that controls are generally

working effectively in practice.

The effectiveness of the internal audit function is assessed

annually against Public Sector Internal Audit Standards and

*Richard Rhodes
Police and Crime Commissioner for Cumbria

*Stuart Edwards
Chief Executive

*Ruth Hunter
Chief Finance Officer/ Deputy Chief Executive

the Internal Audit Charter, to support a judgement on the
effectiveness of the overall arrangements for audit in

contributing to internal control.

The following paragraphs detail how the Commissioner has
complied with the governance framework set out within The
Code to meet of each of the six governance principles. Each
section of the statement includes a commentary on areas
for development and improvement as part of the review
process. These are collated into an action plan at the end
of the statement. This AGS also includes an update on the
implementation of planned actions from 2012-13, and how
these were addressed as shown in the 2013-14

development plan.

The Governance Statement is submitted for examination by
the Commissioner’s Internal Auditors who will report to the
Commissioner’s Executive Board and the Joint Audit and
Standards Committee. The Commissioner will formally
approve any changes to the Code of Corporate Governance
and framework on an annual basis as part of the governance
review. The Code of Corporate Governance detailing the
framework arrangements is published alongside this

statement.

*Signatures have been removed for the purposes of Publication on the website
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Core principle 1: Focusing on the purpose of the Commissioner and the Force,

The Police and Crime
Plan Vision is that
“Cumbria remains a
safe place to live,
work and visit, where
the public has a say
in policing and
organisations and
community groups
work together to
address the causes
of crime, as well as

the consequences”

and on outcomes for the community, and creating and

implementing a vision for the local area

REVIEW OF REQUIREMENTS AND ARRANGEMENTS

The Police Reform and Social
Responsibility Act (PR&SRA)
requires the Commissioner to
produce a Police and Crime
Plan setting the vision and
strategic direction for
policing, crime reduction and

community  safety. The

Commissioner’s first Police

and  Crime  Plan  was
scrutinised by the Police and
Crime Panel and subject to consultation with the public and
our partners before the priorities were finalised and the
plan approved on March 11" 2013. The Plan was refreshed
and re-launched in March 2014 following further

consultation and review. The priorities within the plan are

to:

= Ensure Cumbria remains a safe place to live, work
and visit by keeping crime at low levels, particularly
violent crime and thefts;

= Reduce the impact antisocial behaviour has on our
communities;

= Reduce the impact of alcohol misuse on our
communities;

= Tackle the problem of drug supply in the county;

= Reduce the impact irresponsible driving has on our

communities;

=  Keep our rural communities safe by tackling crime and
disorder in rural areas;

= Provide justice for the victims by detecting crime and
bringing criminals to justice;

= Address offender behaviour to reduce adult and youth
offending and reoffending;

=  Establish a collaborative approach to providing support
and assistance to vulnerable veterans to assist them to
remain clear of criminal activity;

= Reduce harm by targeting domestic abuse and sexual
violence;

= Reduce the harm caused by hate crime;

=  Give due consideration to public opinion in policing
matters;

=  Ensure victims of crime have access to support and
redress;

=  Tackle the increasing incidence of cyber-crime;

= Deliver a county wide CCTV initiative.

Key performance indicators were set with the Chief
Constable at the start of the financial year in support of the
objectives within the Police and Crime Plan. The
performance indicators are supported by a detailed work
programme of actions. During the year crime levels, public
satisfaction and police performance have been regularly
monitored and publically challenged through the
Commissioner’s Executive Board, regular performance
review meetings and alongside audits and visits to
departments. During the course of 2013-14 the

Commissioner’s Executive Board received Constabulary
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reports covering a range of areas of performance including
crime levels, disposals, roads policing, public complaints,
integrity, police officer and police staff numbers and
overtime. These reports enable the Commissioner to hold
the Chief Constable to account for the delivery of the
priorities set out in the Police and Crime Plan and
Constabulary performance in general. They also help inform
the amendment of those priorities to ensure they are
achieving their aims and the setting of new priorities to

meet emerging trends.

The OPCC has chaired a newly established multi-agency
panel which scrutinises police use of out-of-court disposals.
This has provided an effective framework for identifying
good practice and checking on the appropriateness of the
use of out-of-court resolutions, which support the reduction
of reoffending and take account of victims’ views. It has
supported the improvement of processes and policies

within the Constabulary.

The Police and Crime
Plan makes a clear
commitment to the
local priority of ‘visible

policing’. The medium The

term financial forecast . p
Commissioner’s

supports this Police and Crime

Ol 9 Plan can be found

providing funding to on our website at

maintain an .
www.cumbria-
establishment of 1134
pce.gov.uk
police officers and 95

police and community
support officers during

2013-14 and 2014-15.

During 2013-14 the Commissioner commissioned a number
of reviews to identify the areas of focus for his own and
partners’ work in key areas of the Police and Crime Plan:
support for victims, domestic abuse, sexual violence and
youth justice. Working with a wide range of partners, these
reviews identified areas for improvement in services and
developed an evidence base to support future
commissioning activity. This was further supported by two
multi-agency conferences in September and December
2013 that facilitated key partners working together to

explore the issues and help identify solutions.

The resulting action plans have identified clear
responsibilities for making improvements in identified areas
and governance processes have been put in place through
partnership groups alongside the OPCC, to ensure their
delivery. They have already resulted, amongst other areas,
to improvements in service for domestic abuse victims
through changes in the service commissioned during the
early part of 2014 and to the firm commitment of partners
to the delivery of a holistic service to victims of sexual
violence, which will have a significant impact on reducing

the harm caused by such crimes.

At the Executive Board meeting of 22M February 2013 the
Commissioner set his first annual budget and precept in the
context of a 4 year medium term financial forecast (MTFF).
During 2013-14 further work was undertaken to extend and
refine the medium term position in the light of the 2013
Spending Round that announced departmental budget
allocations for 2014-15 and 2015-16. In line with his duty
to maintain the police force, the Commissioner provided the
Chief Constable with a funding agreement setting out a

budget of £102.5m for the 2013/14 financial year.
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The MTFF included over £3m funding for 2013-14 within a
commissioned services budget for community safety and
crime reduction in partnership with the District and County
Councils, Community Safety Partnerships and wider
community and voluntary Sector groups. Funding was also
provided for Police Innovation, supporting investment for
more efficient and effective working within the
Constabulary. Total funding increased to over £4m in year

as a result of prior year underspend.

During 2013-14 the commissioned services budget
supported a range of partnership working to support
services and initiatives to reduce anti-social behaviour and
youth offending. Funding was also provided to support
sexual and domestic violence services. £50k of funding was
awarded to 8 community groups through the
Commissioner’s community fund and over £1m has been
committed to a partnership initiative for a county wide CCTV
scheme. A further £2m of funding was agreed to support
the Constabulary Business Plan, providing investment in ICT
and other initiatives that will support the police to maintain
visibility and services from 2015 when officer numbers will
have to reduce. The Commissioner’s funds and the process
for allocation of grants within them has been developed to
encourage and support the delivery of projects and services

addressing issues identified in the Police and Crime Plan.

A funding or grant agreement is in place with all partners
that have been supported through the commissioned
services budget. Each agreement clearly defines the
purpose of the funding and sets out information and
monitoring requirements to ensure funding is targeted on
the agreed activities that support the priorities and
outcomes within the Police and Crime Plan. The
arrangements for Commissioning and the issue of grants

have been codified within a Commissioning Strategy

approved by the Commissioner at his Executive Board on 27
March 2014. The strategy is supported by a set of

accompanying grant regulations

To promote openness and transparency, all Executive Board
meetings have been advertised to allow members of the
press and publicto attend with agendas and papers

published on the Commissioner’s website.

Following the launch of the Office of Victim Support, the
Commissioner continues to develop his arrangements in
preparation  for the transfer of commissioning
responsibilities for victims support services from October
2014. The approved commissioning strategy and budget
sets out funding for victims services over a four year
timeframe. The strategy and accompanying grant
regulations provide authority to enter into partnership
arrangements, issue grants and procure services for the
provision of support to victims of crime and anti-social
behaviour. A Victims’ Advocate has been appointed with
responsibility for the overall arrangements for victims
including the establishment of a Victims’ Charity. Work is
on-going on a collaborative basis to commission wider
victim referral services from 2015 in partnership with North

West of England Police and Crime Commissioners.

During 2013-14 and in line with legislative requirements, a
stage 2 staff transfer scheme was agreed between the
Commissioner and Chief Constable. The scheme was
formally presented to the Home Office on 21 March 2014.
This scheme had originally been submitted in draft in
September 2013 and the scheme finally submitted was
unchanged from the draft scheme that was approved by the

Home Secretary. The supporting Constabulary budget and
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funding agreement taking account of the transfer was

approved by the Commissioner on 27 March 2014.

From April 1% 2014 all staff, other than one vacant post and
those within the Commissioner’s office, transferred to the
employment of the Chief Constable. To reflect the changes
to governance arising from the transfer a fundamental
review and update was undertaken of all key governance
documents. A special meeting of the Joint Audit and
Standards Committee was convened on February 7 2014 to

review a revised governance framework developed to

support the new arrangements from April 2014.

AREAS FOR FURTHER DEVELOPMENT AND IMPROVEMENT
2014/15

CP1/1: During 2014/15 the Home Office is undertaking a
fundamental review of police funding. To ensure that the
Commissioner is able to fully engage in the national funding
debate, and understand the implications for future
resources, work will be undertaken on the Medium Term
Finance Forecast to model the impact of potential changes

to grant income.

CP1/2: During 2014-15 the Victims Advocate will be tasked
with establishing a charitable trust and putting in place the
arrangements from April 2015 for local commissioning of

victim referral and support services.
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Core Principle 2: Leaders, officers and partners working together to achieve a

common purpose with clearly defined functions and roles

REVIEW OF REQUIREMENTS AND ARRANGEMENTS

The key functions and roles of the Commissioner and the
Chief Constable are set out in the Police Reform and Social
Responsibility Act 2011 (PRSRA) and the Policing Protocol
Order 2011 (PPO). The PRASA and the PPO also set out the
function and roles of statutory officers, namely the
Monitoring Officer (Chief Executive) and the Chief Finance
Officer (CFO). The monitoring officer has specific legal,
financial and governance duties in addition to a statutory

responsibility for the lawfulness of decision making.

The functions and roles set out in legislation and guidance
are codified in the Commissioner’s scheme of delegation.
The scheme was initially approved on November 23 2012
and has been revised during 2013-14 to take into account
the impact of the stage 2 staff transfer scheme. The impact
of the scheme has been to transfer all staff to the Chief
Constable, other than one vacant post and those within the

Commissioner’s office.

The statutory framework prohibits delegations from the
Commissioner to staff of the Chief Constable. Revisions to
the scheme of delegation have therefore removed any
responsibilities delegated to former support staff who have
been subject to the transfer scheme. Delegations from the
Commissioner to his Chief Executive (monitoring officer)
and Chief Finance Officer place responsibility with the roles
of the statutory officers to secure the delivery of support
services. The wider governance framework including
financial regulations and decision making processes codify

how these roles are carried out.

The new arrangements in respect of support have been
codified within the funding agreement between the
Commissioner and the Chief Constable. The Commissioner’s
risk register has been updated on recommendation from
the Joint Audit and Standards Committee to reflect the
increased risk in relation to the effective ‘outsourcing’ of

support services.

During the vyear, there have been reviews of the
administration and operation of the Commissioner’s ICV
scheme. The review has supported the role of ICV’s through
in the introduction of a new version of the ICV Handbook,
revised policies and procedures for dealing with
appointments, termination of appointment, and complaints
and appeals. A new standardised Report Form has been
introduced, where the visitors report issues as they arise
and these reports are collated, monitored and acted upon
by the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner in close

co-operation with the Constabulary.

The wider governance framework further detailing specific
roles and responsibilities has been updated to take into
account the implications of the stage 2 transfer and the
restructure of the Commissioner’s office. In lieu of a formal
constitution document, these arrangements have been
consolidated within a substantially revised Code of
Corporate Governance supported by a schematic that sets
out the governance framework and inter-relationships
between key elements of internal control. The full suite of
revised documents including financial regulations,

procurement regulations, grant regulations and anti- fraud
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and corruption arrangements are available on the

Commissioner’s website.

During 2013/14 the Commissioner entered into secondment
agreements in partnership with Probation, Victim Support
and the Youth Offending Service to facilitate joint work on
strategy and policy on victim services, domestic abuse,
sexual violence and youth justice. Working with a wide
range of partners, these reviews identified areas for
improvement in services and developed an evidence base to
support future commissioning activity. This was further
supported by two multi-agency conferences in September
and December 2013 that facilitated key partners working
together to explore the issues and help identify solutions.
The resulting action plans have identified clear
responsibilities for making improvements in identified areas
and governance processes have been put in place through
partnership groups alongside the OPCC, to ensure their
delivery. This has included the reestablishment of the
Victims and Witnesses Group to facilitate accountability of
the delivery of the Victims’ Action Plan, through partners

reviewing delivery and challenging progress.

During the last year, the Commissioner has continued to
build on partnership working to address priorities in the
Police and Crime Plan, in addition to supporting and funding
local agencies and groups to help tackle some of the priority

areas. These activities have included:

= Continuing the role of Chair of the Safer Cumbria
Partnership Direction Group, to tackle crime and disorder
bringing together public services such as councils, health,
probation and voluntary groups working in fields such as
domestic abuse support.

= Developing a partnership Cumbria Alcohol Strategy to
tackle alcohol harm, alongside a Joint PCC- Constabulary

strategy.

= Working with partners on an action plan to tackle hate
crime.

= Working with leaders and chairs of the county’s key public
and voluntary sector agencies as a member of the
Cumbria Leaders’ Board

= Working to help address alcohol, drug and mental health
issues, often contributing factors in crime, through

membership of the Health and Well-Being Board.

Providing funding for Cumbria’s four Community Safety
Partnerships, who are responsible for bringing together a
range of organisations to identify and tackle local issues in
relation to crime and disorder, focusing on domestic

violence, local crime prevention, and anti-social behavior.

Supporting community groups to reduce crime and tackle
antisocial behavior through a Police and Crime Property
Fund, Community Fund and Innovation Fund. Full details

can be found on www.cumbria-pcc.gov.uk

Signing up to ‘Cumbria Compact’, which is a set of
principles and commitments that underpin good working
relationships between the public sector and the
community covering areas such as equality and diversity,

public engagement and the allocating of resources.

The Commissioner is leading a number of multi-agency
partner initiatives. In order to ensure that there is clear
governance and public messages a communications strategy
is defined which sets out the common vision/objectives, key
messages, roles and responsibilities. The strategies are
regularly updated to take into account key milestones and
to demonstrate the objectives within the Police and Crime

Plan that are being achieved.

The purpose and role of the Joint Audit and Standards
Committee has been subject to review during 2013-14 to
take into account new guidance from the Chartered

Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA). The
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review has resulted in the Committee adopting a new terms
of reference supported by a revised annual work
programme. The terms of reference and work programme
enhance the role of committee in reviewing and monitoring
arrangements for value for money, anti-fraud and

corruption, conduct and the PCC/officer protocol.

During the course of the year a review was undertaken of
decision making by the Executive Board. This has resulted in
meetings being held in public to increase the openness and
transparency of the Commissioner’s decision making and his
holding to account of the Chief Constable. A facility has also
been introduced to enable members of the public to ask
questions of the Commissioner at meetings of the Executive
Board. The local media have attended all meetings of the

Executive Board since the changes were introduced.

During 2013-14 the Commissioner had responsibility for
managing the process in respect of the decision of the
former Police Authority to suspend the Temporary Chief
Constable following allegations relating to serious
misconduct. In respect of that process, and following the
receipt of the report of the investigating officer, the
Commissioner made a decision on 23" August 2013 that
there was a case to answer for misconduct. The decision
determined that the matter would not be referred to a
misconduct hearing on the grounds of public interest and

that management action would be taken.

The Commissioner made a further decision on 23™ August
2013 to suspend TCC Mr Hyde under section 38 (2) of the
Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act. This decision
commenced procedures under section 38 (3) with a view to

calling upon Mr Hyde, as Temporary Chief Constable, to

resign or retire. Mr Hyde’s appointment as Temporary Chief
Constable came to an end on 30th August 2013. As a
consequence, and after that date, Mr Hyde reverted to
Deputy Chief Constable, at which point the Commissioner

no longer had jurisdiction to consider these matters.

The Commissioner has made public the reasons for all
decisions that have been taken. In addition, an executive
summary of the investigation report into conduct matters,
including all the recommendations of the investigating

officer, has been made public to aid transparency.

The recommendations of the investigating officer have been
presented in a report to the Joint Audit and Standards
Committee. The Committee has received action plans from
the Constabulary and Police and Crime Commissioner that
responds to those recommendations and any wider
governance implications. During the year, the Committee
has monitored the implementation of the plans in line with

their terms of reference.

To provide further assurance, the internal auditor
undertook an audit of the integrity arrangements within the
Constabulary and OPCC. The audit included consideration
of the extent to which the recommendations arising from
Her Majesty's Inspectorate of Constabulary (HMIC) 2012
review of police integrity’ had been implemented. The
conclusion of the internal auditor is that the both the OPCC
and Constabulary have satisfactory arrangements in place

for managing integrity.

'HMIC Revisiting police relationships: progress report
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AREAS FOR FURTHER DEVELOPMENT AND IMPROVEMENT

CP2/1: The Commissioner is working with health and local
government partners to improve services for victims of
sexual assault in Cumbria. A jointly funded (OPCC,
Constabulary and NHS) project manager has been appointed
to an 11 month seconded post within the OPCC to work
with partners to deliver a sexual assault referral centre and
joined-up system of follow-up health and emotional support

services.

CP2/2: Building on the work of the OPCC and partners
during 2013-14 to develop a shared understanding of
Restorative Justice, the OPCC will work with partners to
increase the use of quality Restorative Justice through the

development of a multi-agency approach.

o
s'yy

i

CP2/3: During 2014-15 and thereafter, the OPCC will work
with criminal justice partners to deliver improvements in
services to victims in line with the Victims and Witnesses
Action Plan and develop compliance with the Victims” Code
of Practice, including specific improvements in relation to
domestic and sexual violence identified in the ‘Taking the

Next Steps’ review.

CP2/4: The OPCC will develop a prioritised plan for action
and partnership working to make improvements in youth

justice based on the findings of the review of youth justice.

121 |Page

Police and Crime Commissioner for Cumbria — Statement of Accounts 2013/14



Annex B — Annual Governance Statement

Core Principle 3: Promoting values for the Commissioner and demonstrating the

values of good governance through upholding high standards of conduct and

behaviour

REVIEW OF REQUIREMENTS AND ARRANGEMENTS

During 2013/14 the Commissioner and Chief Constable have
implemented action plans addressing integrity issues arising
from the South Wales investigation report. As part of these
arrangements the anti-fraud and corruption strategies of
both entities have been reviewed and subject to challenge
from the Joint Audit and Standards Committee prior to

being formally approved.

The revised arrangements on recommendation from the
Committee have included a greater focus on raising
awareness of whistle-blowing for staff. In support of the
requirements for audit of the 2013-14 financial statements,
the Commissioner has also submitted to the External
Auditor a fraud risk assessment providing further assurances
in respect of the arrangements to protect against fraud and

corruption.

Procedures for the use of corporate credit cards have been
substantially revised to provide more robust guidance and
re-enforce the limited circumstances under which they will
be authorised for use. The procedures have been reviewed
by the Joint Audit and Standard Committee and amended to
take on board members recommendations prior to being
issued to relevant staff. Arrangements have also been put in
place within the Constabulary, with OPCC oversight, to re-
enforce staff awareness of integrity matters within policies

for procurement of hospitality and expenses.

Whilst fraud risk remains low within the OPCC office,
matters of integrity have been re-enforced in support of the
aim of ensuring a high degree of awareness amongst staff in
respect of appropriate conduct and behaviours. The Deputy
Monitoring Officer has issued a monthly reminder to staff in
respect of recording gifts and hospitality and/or supplier
contact. Completed registers are subsequently published
on the Commissioner’'s website on a monthly basis.
Guidance on gifts and hospitality has been strengthened to
specify the value and circumstance of any such offer that

would be deemed to be excessive.

The Commissioner and all staff are required to complete a
register of interests form on an annual basis. The
Commissioner’s, Chief Executive and Chief Finance Officer’s
forms are published on the Commissioner’s website for
openness and transparency. Prior to considering decisions
the Commissioner is required to declare any conflict of

interests which are published along with the decision.

Staff have been asked, where appropriate, to complete
disclosures of related party transactions. These have been
subject to audit as part of the arrangements for the 2012-13

financial statements.

122 |Page

Police and Crime Commissioner for Cumbria — Statement of Accounts 2013/14



Annex B — Annual Governance Statement

As leader of the local policing body the Commissioner is
critical to setting the culture of transparency and ethical
behaviour in which the public can have trust across the
criminal justice system in their area. Since coming into
office the Police and Crime Commissioner has agreed and
signed up to a number of protocols and codes such as a
Code of Conduct, which will enable him to carry out his role

with integrity and transparency.

The Commissioner has approved a commissioning strategy
and supporting set of grant regulations to support openness
and accountability in respect of opportunities for grant
funding. Other than for limited exemptions, the grant
regulations commit to an open process for all grant
schemes. The criteria against which bids will be awarded
and the terms and conditions of funding must be clearly set

out at the commencement of the process.

During the year the Commissioner has undertaken a review
of the process for decision making through the Executive
Board.  That review has resulted in changes to the
arrangements, including the facility for members of the
public to ask questions of the Commissioner at meetings of
the Board. The Executive Board Meeting Protocol was

agreed by the Commissioner on 23 July 2013.

As part of his statutory responsibility the Commissioner
maintains oversight of the Constabulary complaints process.
This is achieved by a quarterly dip sampling process of
Constabulary complaint files and reports are presented to
the public Executive Board for scrutiny of issues or trends.
Complaints received by the Commissioner which relate to
Constabulary issues or services are also monitored ensuring

a satisfactory conclusion.

Members of the Joint Audit and Standards Committee have
reviewed their role against guidance issued by CIPFA in
December 2013°.  That review has resulted in the
Committee’s annual work programme being developed to
include an annual report monitoring the Commissioner’s
work on anti-fraud and corruption. The Committee will also
receive new annual reports from the Chief Executive
monitoring the operation and effectiveness of the

Commissioner’s Code of Conduct and PCC/Officer Protocol.

In respect of the period from 1% April 2013 to the date of
issuing this statement, no issues have been raised with the
Committee in respect of the operation of the
Commissioner’s Codes of Conduct/Protocols and the

Committee has not received any standards appeals.

AREAS FOR FURTHER DEVELOPMENT AND IMPROVEMENT

CP3/1: During 2014/15 the Chief Executive will develop
and present to the Joint Audit and Standards Committee
new reports monitoring the operation and effectiveness of
arrangements for anti-fraud and corruption, the code of

conduct and the PCC/Officer protocol.

> CIPFA Audit Committees\Practical Guidance for Local

Authorities and Police 2013 Edition
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Core Principle 4: Taking informed and transparent decisions which are subject

to effective scrutiny and managing risk.

REVIEW OF REQUIREMENTS AND ARRANGEMENTS

All decision making operates within the specific legislative
and regulatory frameworks that confer on the
Commissioner duties, powers and responsibility.  The
regulatory framework is implemented through the
Commissioner’s decision-making policy and process that
adheres to the Good Governance Standard for Public

Services and the Good Administrative Practice 2.

During the 2013-14 financial year the Commissioner made
49 decisions that have all been recorded and published on
the Commissioner’s website. Of those, in the interests of
openness and transparency, only 13 (26%) were taken as
non-public part two items. The range of decisions made
included finance and budget, estate, policies, police and
crime plan, annual report, policing services and

commissioning.

The Joint Audit and Standards Committee has conducted 5
public meetings during the course of the year. As an
advisory body, the Committee has undertaken a significant
amount of work to review and make recommendations in
respect of the Commissioner’s arrangements for
governance and management of risk. This has included a
special meeting of the Committee in February to consider
the revised stage 2 governance framework, prior to its
adoption by the Commissioner. The Commissioner and the
Chief Constable met jointly with the Committee in
September in order to receive the views of members prior
to authorising the statement of accounts and 2012-13

Governance Statements for publication.

The Chief Executive (monitoring officer) has sought
specialist legal advice with regards to the Commissioner’s
decision making in respect of the former Temporary Chief
Constable.  Specialist and independent advice was also
taken with regards to decision making in respect of the
Commissioner’s appointment of a new Chief Constable. The
appointment panel included representation from the
College of Policing. The Deputy Commissioner of the
Metropolitan Police acted in an advisory capacity. The
appointment, in accordance with regulation, was subject to
further scrutiny by the Police and Crime Panel before a
formal decision and announcement was made on 9 May

2014.

The Office of Public Engagement is instrumental in
influencing key decision making within the OPCC. At a
recent round of surgeries it was raised a number of times
that people and businesses were becoming increasingly
concerned in regard to cyber-crime. As a result the
Commissioner has included this within the revised Police

and Crime Plan.

Another example of people’s and partners views being
listened to and actioned is the Cumbria CCTV project. The
Constabulary and District Councils highlighted the potential
future demise of the existing CCTV system and this together
with a petition in the north of the county demonstrated how
people felt reassured by CCTV and the need to have a

county wide solution. The Commissioner listened to these
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views and a new county wide CCTV system is to be launched

in December 2014.

The Executive Board has received quarterly reports for
scrutiny that detail all complaints received in respect of the
Chief Constable, Cumbria Constabulary, and any quality of
service issues. The types of quality of service issues raised
include Anti-Social Behaviour, Driving/Traffic issues, the
Policing Service provided, Case Handling and Police
Response. In order for the Commissioner to deal with the
matters the issues are raised with the Constabulary and an
appropriate solution or response is provided either directly
to the individual or to OPCC staff to deal with. All responses
are monitored by OPCC staff to ensure they are dealt with in

a timely manner and to a satisfactory conclusion.

Of the 21 complaints received by the Commissioner, 86%
(18) were passed to the Constabulary to deal with as they
did not fall within the Commissioner’s statutory authority,
i.e. they were regarding an officer below the rank of Chief

Constable.

The Police and Crime Panel have met 5 times over the
course of the year. Their role is to hold the Commissioner
to account for providing policing services within Cumbria.
They have scrutinised the Commissioner in relation to his
Police and Crime Plan, Annual Report, and Budget & Finance
decisions. Priority areas for scrutiny by the Panel are
considered in accordance with a programme of reporting
agreed between the Panel and the Commissioner. The
Panel have also considered 9 complaints received regarding

the Commissioner.

To enable the Commissioner to carry out his functions
effectively they must monitor and react appropriately to
risks. To ensure this a Risk Management Strategy was
developed and approved; risks are reviewed on a quarterly
basis and registers are monitored by the Joint Audit and
Standards Committee. Risk management is embedded

within all aspects of the Commissioner’s work.

The Constabulary’s strategic risk register is presented on a
quarterly basis to the Executive Board to enable the
Commissioner to have oversight and scrutiny of the risks

facing the Constabulary.

An annually developed internal audit plan uses risk as the
basis of developing an audit programme to assess the
sufficiency of internal controls and their operational
effectiveness. During 2013-14 internal audit have
undertaken a substantial review of their approach to audit
and risk in line with the new Public Sector Internal Audit
Standards (PSIAS) that came into effect on April 1% 2013.
The review has been supported by an external assessment

by Grant Thornton with the outcome presented to the Joint

Audit and Standards Committee on March 31 2014.

The impact of that review has been the development of a
risk based audit planning process that has a significantly
wider focus across the business than has previously been
the case. The risk based focus recognises that the most
significant areas of business risk can be within non-financial

systems and processes.
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The audit plan for 2014-15 developed using this approach
has been subject to review by members of the Joint Audit
and Standards Committee prior to being signed off by the
Commissioner and Chief Constable. Significantly the plan

includes audit work covering:

= The adequacy and effectiveness of arrangements for data
quality, call handling and dispatch within the new
centralised communication center

= Audit work to provide assurances with regard to the
adequacy and effectiveness of custody arrangements to
minimise the risk of death in custody

= Audits of the arrangements for policy development and
absence management

= Risk based cyclical audits of the financial systems based on

a three year audit interval

Work during 2013-14 as part of this review has also resulted
in the re-design of audit reports to improve the quality and
accessibility of audit judgements. The reports include a

specific section on risk exposure.

The 2013/14 audit plan provided assurance across a range
of areas of audit work. This included the main financial
systems, treasury management, budget management,
payroll and pensions and the capital programme. In
addition to the financial audits, work was undertaken to
review the internal control frameworks in respect of
integrity arrangements, two areas of data quality and
seized/held property. Auditors also provided a report on a
policing incident in respect of the Appleby Fair. Financial
audits consistently achieve a good or satisfactory rating.

Non-financial audits have received satisfactory, fair and

weak assurance. Fair and weak audit assurance reports
have been escalated to the Commissioner’s Executive Board
to ensure the timely implementation of audit
recommendations. The pattern of assurance across non-
financial audits has supported the decision within the 2014-
15 audit plan to place greater focus on wider business risk

with cyclical reviews of the financial systems.

AREAS FOR FURTHER DEVELOPMENT AND IMPROVEMENT

CP4/1: During 2014-15, the Chief Executive plans to run a
risk management seminar supported by the Commissioner’s
risk management advisors (RMP). The seminar aims to
engage all OPCC staff in maintaining an up to date
awareness of the approach to risk management. It will give
consideration to risk appetite and seek to further develop
the OPCC’s understanding of the risks arising from

responsibilities for victims’ commissioning.

CP4/2: During 2014-15 the Chief Executive will develop
and present to the Joint Audit and Standards Committee a
new annual report monitoring the operation of

arrangements for Risk Management.

CP4/3: During 2014-15 the internal audit shared service
will continue to implement the remaining actions arising
from the review of the service by Grant Thornton and
against the new Public Sector Internal Audit Standards.
Further detail of the actions can be found within the Chief
Finance Officer’'s annual report on the effectiveness of

arrangements for audit.
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Core Principle 5: Developing the capacity and capability of the Commissioner

and officers of the Commissioner to be effective.

REVIEW OF REQUIREMENTS AND ARRANGEMENTS

During 2013-14 the Commissioner and the Commissioner’s
officers have received daily APCC briefings in addition to a
number of investigative and review reports and updated
guidance from a range of national bodies and organisations.
These include updated guidance and research papers from
Grant Thornton and CIPFA in addition to HMIC inspection
reports. Significant publications have included the NAQO’s
report on Police Accountability, the Centre for Public
Scrutiny (CfPS) research report on Police and Crime Panels,
HMIC's State of Policing and the Home Affairs Committee

series of reports on Police and Crime Commissioners.

The Chief Executive is further supported through the
Association of Police and Crime Chief Executives (APACCE).
During 2013-14, to strengthen the arrangements for
providing peer support, Chief Executive Members of that
group have worked to develop and circulate a directory
setting out the specialist subject matter areas of each
member. At their regular meetings APACCE have also
provided a forum to deliberate on key issues for the
developing role of Police and Crime Commissioners.
APACCE has also arranged regular meetings for Chief
Executives to meet Home Office officials and arranged a
buddying system for Chief Executives and senior civil
servants. Advice and support is also available through the
regional (North West and North Wales) Chief Executives

Group, which meets on a quarterly basis.

The North West Joint Oversight Committee of Police and
Crime Commissioners continues to meet regularly to take
forward collaboration between forces and OPCCs in the
region. Separate discussions have also taken place with the
Lancashire OPCC with a view to exploring the possibility of
collaborative working on restorative justice, support to
victims and supporting the Transforming Rehabilitation

process.

The Chief Finance Officer continues to receive support from
the Police and Crime Commissioner’s Treasurer’s Society
(PaCCTS) and the associated technical information service.
This has included a number of briefing papers and events
over the year focused on the funding formula review.
Officers within the finance team have also attended a
number of events run by CIPFA and Grant Thornton to
ensure their understanding of the developing issues with
regard to the Commissioner and Chief Constable’s
statement of accounts. In March 2014 CIPFA revised its
guidance on the role of the crFo’ providing further guidance
following stage 2 transfer. The role of the Chief Finance
Officer has been carried out in compliance with CIPFA

guidance (2012) during 2013-14.

® CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Chief Finance Officer
of the Police and Crime Commissioner and the Chief Finance

Officer of the Chief Constable
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Challenges with regard to capacity within the finance
function have been addressed with support from members
of the Joint Audit and Standards Committee. A re-structure
has established a formal assistant CFO post reporting to the
deputy CFO. In addition, a training plan has also been
developed that provides support to and places on a formal
basis arrangements for  professional qualifications
(Association of Accounting Technicians & CIPFA professional
qualification). Both of these measures also aim to support
staff development and succession planning in recognition of
the growing challenges in the recruitment of suitably

qualified and experienced staff within Cumbria.

During the year a tender process has been run to procure
specialist taxation advice and specialist advice in respect of
treasury management services.  Qualitative bids were
received from a number of firms, providing confidence that
the successful tender proposal can provide effective
specialist  support. The specification for Treasury
Management included a new requirement in respect of
advice for borrowing. This is in recognition of the underlying
need to borrow within the Commissioner’s overall financial
position and that consideration needs to be given to the

timing and structure of future borrowing requirements.

Further specialist support has been provided to the office
during 2013-14 through secondment agreements entered
into with Victim Support, the Probation Service and the
County Council Youth Offending Service. The agreements
have provided additional temporary capacity to develop
expertise in support of the priorities within the Police and
Crime plan and prepare for the statutory and regulatory
responsibilities for victims and victim based restorative

justice.

The capacity and skills needed to deliver support in respect
of the Commissioner’s wider responsibilities for community
safety, enhancing criminal justice and supporting victims,
has been recognised through an internal restructure of the
Commissioner’s office. The restructure has placed more
emphasis on partnerships, victims support and victims
advocacy. Job roles have been revised to make
responsibilities clear and ensure staff resources are
appropriately aligned. The structure has included the
appointment of a Victims Advocate to support the transition
from national to local victims support services and

commission services locally.

All staff within the office have undertaken a personal
development review process to ensure they have the skills
to be effective in their roles. Specific training has been
provided for staff in the areas of advanced Microsoft Word,
Excel, freedom of Information, media management,

coaching and fire safety.

The Joint Audit and Standards Committee has conducted a
formal review of its effectiveness against the new CIPFA
guidance for Audit Committees. The overall conclusions
from that review are that the Audit and Standards
Committee is extremely effective in its operation. The
review has demonstrated that within the areas of the CIPFA
self-assessment the Committee can evidence substantial
support, influence and persuasion in carrying out its
functions. These are the elements defined by CIPFA as

being evidence of effectiveness.
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Against the self-assessment checklist the committee
achieves a consistent grade of 4 or 5 (against a maximum of
5) across all areas. For those functions not included within
the checklist, incorporating the wider functions of the
committee, there is evidence to demonstrate compliance
with CIPFA guidance and elements constituting best
practice. In areas where the Committee has not achieved a
grade 5 there are plans to improve and develop the
arrangements within the Committee’s 2014-15 work
programme. The full report of the Committee can be found
on the Commissioner’s website at http://www.cumbria-

pcc.gov.uk/governance-transparency/audit-committee.aspx.

During 2013-14 to date, four Induction Training Courses
have been held for new Independent Custody Visitors
(ICV’s), in Penrith on 5 April 2013; Kendal on 22 November
2013; Workington on 28 February 2014 and Carlisle on 2
May 2014. 23 new ICVs in total were trained during 2013-
14. At the time of writing, membership of each of the
panels stands at: Barrow 11; Kendal 10; North Cumbria 12
and West Cumbria 12.  Barrow and Kendal have decided
not to fill their remaining vacancies at the present time as
they feel they have sufficient members to give an

appropriate balance between workload and resources.

The 2013 ICV Cumbria Conference was held on Saturday 27
April in Kendal and dealt with a range of subjects. This
included the care and welfare of persons detained in Police
Custody as a place of safety under Section 136 of the
Mental Health Act and the use of restraint within Custody.
The 2014 Conference was held on Saturday 26 April in
Penrith and dealt with issues including Human Trafficking

and Sexual and Domestic Violence.

In addition to the Cumbria Conferences, a number of ICV’s
attended the 2013 Regional Conference held on Saturday 21
September at Haydock Park Racecourse. The event covered
a range of issues including Risk Management and the
Prevention of Deaths in Custody; and regional perspectives

on Human Trafficking and Mental Health.

During the year the Commissioner received additional one-
off funding to enhance the capacity and capability of the
voluntary, community and social enterprise sector to
support victims of crime, enhance the capacity within the
office to prepare for local commissioning of victim support
and develop capacity within the arrangements for
restorative justice. The funding has contributed to a
number of schemes through providing grant support to
third sector organisations to grow and train both volunteers
and professional support for victims of domestic and sexual
violence and hate crime. Capacity within the office to
deliver longer term accessible information for victims has
been supported through the appointment of a Victim’s
Advocate and the commissioning of a victims information

portal.

AREAS FOR FURTHER DEVELOPMENT

CP5/1: Over the next financial year the Commissioner will
receive support as a member of North West Employers to
develop internal arrangements for human resource policies

and procedures following from the stage 2 transfer.
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Core Principle 6: Engaging with local people and other stakeholders to ensure

robust public accountability

REVIEW OF REQUIREMENTS AND ARRANGEMENTS

The Policing Protocol Order highlights the accountability of
the Police and Crime Commissioner to local people. It sets
out the Commissioners legal power and duty to provide the
local link between the police and communities, working to
translate the legitimate desires and aspiration of the public
into action.  This responsibility is delivered through an
Office of Public Engagement to ensure a wide range of
engagement approaches so that the Commissioner actively
listens, considers and effectively uses the views of the
people of Cumbria and is accountable. During 2013-14, the

Commissioner has:

= carried out more than 100 public engagement events,

ranging from surgery style events, ‘drop-ins’ at

supermarkets, walkabouts with Constabulary
Neighbourhood  Policing  Teams, attendance  at
neighborhood forums, community meetings, parish
councils, meetings with various groups i.e. disability, LGBT,
and county shows. Attended numerous meetings with

local councillors and MPs;

Hosted two conferences, one on victims and one on

sexual/domestic violence;

Published online and circulated by email and community
messaging, a monthly newsletter, and contributed to

other newsletters;

Taken part in a wide range of media activities and

interviews;

Conducted surveys on rural crime, and policing priorities,
through a mixture of both online and face-to-face

methods during themed engagement events;

Promoted events and activity and maintain a presence

using social media i.e. Twitter and Facebook;

= Launched three funds which invite applications from
community groups for them to tackle priorities in the
Police and Crime Plan: The Property Fund, the Community
Fund and the Innovation Fund;

= Dealt with 112 ‘Quality of Service’ complaints from
members of the public;

= Hosted an on-line webchat about rural crime.

The Commissioner provided the Police and Crime Panel with
his first annual report on 19 July 2013. The annual report,
entitled “Making Cumbria an Even Safer Place”, provided
detail on crime and anti- social behaviour, the establishment
within the OPCC of the Office of Victim Services and the
Office of Public Engagement, policing within Cumbria, how
the Commissioner had responded to issues raised during
community engagement activity and future priorities.
During the course of the year the Panel have scrutinised the
Commissioner in relation to his Police and Crime Plan,
Annual Report, and Budget & Finance decisions. The Panel
have also developed jointly with the Commissioner a
programme to enable the scrutiny of priority areas from
within the Police and Crime Plan and some of the areas
scrutinised have included Hate Crime, youth justice and
adult offending and veterans. The Panel have also
considered 9 complaints received regarding the
Commissioner. Communities in Cumbria have contacted the
Commissioner to make complaints and raise quality of
service issues. In the year 2013-14 the Commissioner
received 112 quality of service complaints from members of
the public.  These issues were than raised with the
Constabulary to deal with the issues and monitored by OPCC

staff to ensure a timely and appropriate solution was found.
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Only 1 issue remains to be completed and mediation is

taking place to resolve the matter.

Of the 21 complaints received by the Commissioner 18
(86%) were passed to the Constabulary to deal with in line
with statutory legislation and authorities. Of the remaining
3 (14%) the complainant was seeking the Commissioner’s
intervention following the conclusion of the Constabulary
dealing with their complaint. In these instances OPCC staff
provided appropriate guidance and advice on appeal

processes available to the individual.

The Commissioner’s first set of audited accounts were
signed on 23 September 2013 and published alongside the
report of the independent auditors (Grant Thornton) on the
financial statements. The auditors opinion was that the
statements provided a true and fair view of the financial
position of the commissioner as at 31 March 2013 and that
they have been properly prepared in accordance with
CIPFA/LASAAC4 Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting. The auditors further confirmed in their annual
governance report on 23 September 2013 a positive

conclusion with regards to securing value for money.

In compliance with the Elected Local Policing Bodies
(Specified Information) Orders 2011 & 2012 and the
guidance provided by the Information Commissioner a
range of information has been made publically available

through the Commissioners website over the course of the

* The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy
and the Local Authority Scotland Accounts Advisory

Committee

year. This has included agenda and reports for the public
Executive Board meetings and the Joint Audit and Standards
Committee, guidance and application packs for the
Commissioner’s three funds, Freedom of Information
disclosure logs, financial information and strategies. The
Commissioner’s monthly Executive Board meetings have
also been opened to attendance by the press and public,
resulting in the decision making process becoming more

open and transparent.

The Commissioner conducted a formal consultation with
staff in respect of proposed change to the OPCC staffing
structure.  This included the opportunity for staff to
feedback on the overall proposal and on changes and
developments in job roles. The staffing structure and role
profiles for the OPCC are publically available on the

Commissioner’s website.
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AREAS FOR FURTHER DEVELOPMENT AND IMPROVEMENT

CP6/1: During 2013-14 CIPFA issued new guidance
specifically aimed at making the statement of accounts
more accessible for readers. During the process for
preparing the 2013-14 financial statements initial work has
been undertaken to consider the guidance and review the
presentation and disclosures made in the statements.  As
part of this work more use has been made of text boxes to
explain technical terms, language and explanations have
been reviewed and where possible revised, non-material
items have been removed to de-clutter the accounts and
the summary financial statements have been re-written to
improve their accessibility to the wider public. This work
will continue during 2014/15 with a view to considering
further changes that can be made, including the increased
use of diagrams and graphics to more easily explain the

financial position and statements.

CP6/2: In line with requirements detailed within the
Specified Information Order work will be undertaken with
the Constabulary to enable the publication of contracts

exceeding a value of £10,000.

To report any concems about
fraud or corruption, please ring
one of the following numbers:

Audit Commission
Whistle Blowers

03034 448346
Chief Executive OPCC

01768 217734

(S wwiteeccom/cumbrispo: [ facebook com/ combrispec

APPENDIX A: 2014-15 DEVELOPMENT AND IMPROVEMENT
PLAN

APPENDIX B: 2013-14 DEVELOPMENT AND IMPROVEMENT
PLAN UPDATE

FURTHER INFORMATION

Further information on the arrangements for Governance
can be found on the Commissioner’s website under the tab

headed Governance and Transparency.

We welcome your views on the Commissioner’s Annual
Governance Statement. You can do this by using the

contact information below:

Office of the Police & Crime Commissioner
Carleton Hall
Penrith

Cumbria CA10 2AU

Telephone: 01768 217734

E-mail:commissioner@cumbria-pcc.gov.uk
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APPENDIX A: 2014-15 DEVELOPMENT AND IMPROVEMENT PLAN

Police and Crime Commissioner for Cumbria — Statement of Accounts 2013/14

Ref Action Responsibility | Deadline
CP1 Focusing on the purpose of the PCC and the Force, and on outcomes for the
community, and creating and implementing a vision for the local area.
CP1/1 Model the impact of potential changes to grant income arising from the review of the|Chief Finance  |31-Mar-15
police funding formula. Officer
CP1/2 Establish a charitable trust and put in place the arrangements from April 2015 for local|Chief Executive |31-Mar-15
commissioning of victim referral and support services.
CP2 Leaders, officers and partners working together to achieve a common
purpose with a clearly defined functions and roles.
CP2/1 Deliver a sexual assault referral centre and joined-up system of follow-up health and|Chief Executive |30-Apr-15
emotional support services.
CP2/2 Work with partners to increase the use of quality Restorative Justice through the|Chief Executive |31-Mar-15
development of a multi-agency approach.
CP2/3 Deliver improvements in services to victims in line with the Victims and Witnesses Action|Chief Executive |31-Mar-15
Plan and develop compliance with the Victims’ Code of Practice, including specific
improvements in relation to domestic and sexual violence identified in the ‘Taking the
Next Steps’ review.
CP2/4 Develop a prioritised plan for action and partnership working to make improvements in| Chief Executive |31-Mar-16
youth justice based on the findings of the review of youth justice.
CP3 Promoting values for the PCC and demonstrating the values of good
governance through upholding high standards of conduct and behaviour.
CP3/1 Develop and present to the Joint Audit and Standards Committee new reports monitoring|Chief Executive |31-May-15
the operation and effectiveness of arrangements for anti-fraud and corruption, the code
of conduct and the PCC/Officer protocol
CP4 Taking informed and transparent decisions which are subject to effective
scrutiny and managing risks.
CP4/1 Implement a risk management development seminar for OPCC staff Chief Executive |31-Mar-15
CP4/2 Develop and present a report to the Joint Audit and Standards Committee on the|Chief Executive |31-Mar-15
operation and effectiveness of the arrangements for risk management
CP4/3 Implement actions arising from the review of internal audit by Grant Thornton and against|Chief Finance 31-Mar-15
the PSIAS Officer
CP5 Developing the capacity and capability of the PCC, officers of the PCC and
the Force to be effective.
CP5/1 Develop the arrangements for human resource policies following stage 2 transfer Head of 31-Mar-15
Communication
s and Business
services
CP6 Engaging with local people and other stakeholders to ensure robust public
accountability.
CP6/1 Improve the presentation and accessibility of the statements of accounts and summary| Chief Finance  |31-Oct-14
financial statements Officer
CP6/2 Work with the Constabulary to fully comply with information publication requirements for|Chief Finance  |31-Mar-15
contracts Officer
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Police and Crime Commissioner for Cumbria — Statement of Accounts 2013/14

Ref Action Action Complete Responsibility |Deadline
CP1 Focusing on the purpose of the PCC and the Force, and on outcomes for the
community, and creating and implementing a vision for the local area.
412 Review all governance| Action Complete — documents reviewed and presented to JA&S | Chief Finance 31-Mar-14
documents and amend for the|on February 7 2014 & approved by the Commissioner on 27 |Officer
implications  of stage 2|March 2014
transfers.
413 Review and amend the funding|Action Complete — Timescales were delayed due to late issue | Chief Finance 31-Dec-13
agreement  between  the|of precept determination. Funding agreement approved by |Officer
Commissioner and|the Commissioner on 27 March 2014
Constabulary to reflect
financial implications of stage 2
transfers.
414 Develop arrangements for the| The Office of Victim Services was launched in March 2013. An|Engagement & 31-Mar-14
Office of Victim Services. independent review of victim services has taken place and the | Media Executive
feedback from victims has been that they wanted to be
treated with dignity & respect. The Commissioner is now
leading a multi-agency action plan to improve support to
victims and this is being supported by a newly appointed
Victims Advocate. Future funding for services to support
victims will be devolved to the Police and Crime Commissioner
in April 2015 and this will enable future commissioning of
services to be undertaken at a local level.
4.15 Develop and implement|Action complete but delivered across mixed deadlines due to|Chief Finance 31-Dec-13
Commissioning  strategies /|capacity issues — Governance in respect of grant funding for | Officer
accountability frameworks. the community fund and innovation fund were approved on
the 6 Nov 13 and 4 Dec 13 respectively. The wider
Commissioning Strategy was approved on the 27 March 2014
with supporting grant regulations approved on 7 May 2014.
CP2 Leaders, officers and partners working together to achieve a common purpose
with a clearly defined functions and roles.
5.20 Consolidate all  governance|Action Complete - The wider governance framework has been | Chief Finance 30-Jun-14
documents into a single|updated to take into account the stage 2 transfer and the |Officer
constitution. Commissioner’s restructure. In lieu of a formal constitution
document, these arrangements have been consolidated within
a substantially revised Code of Corporate Governance
supported by a schematic that sets out the governance
framework and inter-relationships between key elements of
internal control. This was considered to be a more accessible
format that a traditional constitution document. The revised
Code and Schematic were approved on 24 June 2014.
521 Review arrangements for the|Action Complete - The Executive Board and the decision|Engagement & 31-Mar-14
Executive Board / decision|making process was reviewed in summer 2013. As a result|Media Executive
making. Executive Board meetings are now held in public and the
public and media are invited each month to attend. Executive
board papers are placed on the website seven days in advance
of the meeting and the link is sent to all the local media.
5.22 Review Partnership|Action completed — A review of arrangements for supporting | Chief Executive 31-Dec-13
arrangements for Community|and engaging CSPs was undertaken and implemented in
Safety Partnerships. consultation with CSP Chairs, including the development of
grant funding processes to support this.
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Ref Action Action Complete Responsibility |Deadline
523 Develop Partnership strategies|Partnership strategies or actions plans have been developed |Chief Executive 31-Mar-14
to progress Police and Crime|through partnership groups in relation to alcohol harm, victims
Plan priorities. and witnesses, domestic abuse, sexual violence, hate crime. A
partnership group is developing a strategy related to the
Armed Forces Covenant and veterans. A Joint PCC-
Constabulary Rural Crime Strategy has been developed, with
support of many stakeholders. An Out of Court Disposal
scrutiny strategy has been developed and implemented. Youth
justice will be dealt with during 2014-15 and 2015-16 due to
limited OPCC and partner capacity to drive significant change
across a significant number of different issues. An action is set
out in the 2014-15 AGS action plan.
5.24 Develop and implement a joint|Action completed — Integrity Audit undertaken and|Chief Executive 31-Mar-14
action  plan/undertake  an|recommendations actioned. Action Plans to address the
integrity Audit recommendations arising from the South Wales Police
investigation have been developed and largely implemented.
CP3 Promoting values for the PCC and demonstrating the values of good governance
through upholding high standards of conduct and behaviour.
6.11 Audit Committee Review of|Action Complete — formal assessment of the effectiveness of | Chief Finance 31-May-14
effectiveness. the Committee undertaken against the CIPFA guidance and |Officer / Audit
standards set out in the 2013 audit committees\practical | Committee Chair
guidance for local authorities and police was completed May
2014. The outcome of the review was formally reported to the
Commissioner and Chief Constable as part of the arrangements
for governance, on 24 June 2014.
CP4 Taking informed and
transparent decisions
which are subject to
effective  scrutiny and
managing risks.
7.12 Review of decision making and|Action partially complete: Decision making complete — see |Engagement & 31-Mar-14
risk management in the|5.21. Risk management arrangements have been reviewed as|Media Executive
context of new responsibilities|part of the arrangements for reviewing governance and
from 2014/15. implementing a revised risk management strategy. Further
development work will continue in 2014-15. An action has
been included within the 2014-15 AGS action plan.
CP5 Developing the capacity and capability of the PCC, officers of the PCC and the
Force to be effective.
8.12 Review of arrangements for|Action Completed — Access to support regionally and nationally | Chief Executive 31-Mar-14
accessing development|for the Commissioner and staff in place and subject to
opportunities, skill and|continued review.
knowledge updates for the
Commissioner.
CP6 Engaging with local people and other stakeholders to ensure robust public
accountability.
9.9 Arrangements for| Action partially completed — Review of OPCC structure |Chief Executive 31-Mar-14
communication / briefing stafflcompleted but work on the policy framework is still ongoing
on the policy framework and|with support of North West Employers. Action included within
its application following| the 2014-15 AGS action plan.
review.
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Ref

Action

Responsibility

Deadline

9.1

Review publication scheme and
public access to information /
meetings.

Action Complete - The Publication Scheme has been reviewed
on a number of occasions throughout the year to ensure that
all the statutory obligations are met. There is just one area
that the OPCC is unable to meet and this is the publication of
all contracts over £10,000. This has been identified as a future
piece of work. Public access to information has been
significantly improved with the monthly Executive Boards now
being held in public. The website is used as the main source of
information for people and last figures show that more people
are using this as a source of information however, we always
ask people to contact the office directly if they do not have
access to a computer. The Commissioner has a range of
information publications such as the Police and Crime Plan and
Annual Report when he attends any public meetings.

Engagement &
Media Executive

28-Feb-14

Police and Crime Commissioner for Cumbria — Statement of Accounts 2013/14
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About this Publication

This publication contains both the single entity financial statements for the Police and Crime Commissioner for
Cumbria (the Commissioner) and the financial statements for the group position which incorporates those of the
Chief Constable for Cumbria Constabulary.

The Statement of Accounts for A The Statement of Accounts is
2013/14 is available on the also available in printed
Commissioner’s website at format from the office of the
www.cumbria-pcc.gov.uk. Police and Crime

Commissioner for a nominal
The corresponding accounts for fee of £15 per copy.
the Chief Constable can be found Vv W
on the Constabulary website at: o

www.cumbria.police.uk

Alternative Formats

You can get a copy of this document in different formats such

as Iarge print, Braille, audio, or in a different language by
calling 01768 217734

Bengali
9 01768 217734 <% A T S04, e Fann e 95 {2,
TAZH, TEE | GFH G o TETT 92 et aF 0 Fe 7o A

Cantonese

MBERIRAOGZCSUAFHIARFERRA » 41 0 RFERENR ~ 3~ SMECREESHOR - 1§80 © 01768 217734,

Lithuanian
Paskambine telefonu 01768 217734, galite uZsisakyti Sio dokumento kopijg jvairiais formatais, pavyzdZiui,
atspausdintg dideliu Sriftu, Brailio rastu, uZzsisakyti garso jrasg arba gauti dokumentgy, iSverstg j norima kalba.

Polish
Aby otrzymac kopie tego dokumentu w innych formatach, takich jak duzy druk, druk Braille'm, audio, lub w innym
jezyku prosze dzwoni¢ pod numer 01768 217734.

Portuguese
Pode obter uma cdpia deste documento em varios formatos, como por exemplo em Braille, dudio, ou numa outra
lingua. Para tal ligue para 0 01768 217734.

Turkish
01768 217734’u arayarak, bu dokiimanin bir kopyasini bliylk puntolu, korler icin kabartmali, ses dosyasi gibi degisik
formatlarda veya farkl bir dilde edinebilirsiniz
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| am pleased to introduce the financial Statement of
Accounts for the 2013/14 financial year. This is the
second set of accounts for the Police and Crime
Commissioner for Cumbria. On 22 November 2012 the
Police and Crime Commissioner (the Commissioner) and
the Chief Constable were established as separate legal
entities with a requirement for single entity accounts.
The funding and accountability relationship between the
entities meets the definition of a subsidiary for the Chief
Constable.  This results in a requirement for the
Commissioner to produce consolidated group accounts.
This financial statement sets out both the single entity
statements of the Commissioner and the consolidated
group position. They are published in accordance with

the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2011.

The statement provides a breakdown of net spending
during the year and shows the strong overall financial
position of the Commissioner as at 31 March 2014. The
reporting format is specifically designed to meet the
requirements of the Code of Practice on financial
reporting. A series of notes are provided to assist
readers in their understanding of the statement, whilst
the presentational format is designed to make for easier
reading by those who access the document through the
Commissioner’s website: www.cumbria-pcc.gov.uk.
This introduction aims to provide a simplified summary
of the financial statements as part of this publication. It
is also available as stand-alone Summary Statement
document on the same website, together with the single
entity statements of the Chief Constable for Cumbria

Constabulary.

The Commissioner was established as a statutory entity
under the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act
2011 (PRSRA 2011). The PRSRA 2011 provides that there
will be a Police and Crime Commissioner for each police
area with responsibility for ensuring the maintenance of
the police force for the area, securing that the police
force is efficient and effective and holding the Chief
Constable to account. The Commissioner has wider
responsibilities than those solely relating to the police
force. These include responsibility for the delivery of
community safety and crime reduction, the
enhancement of the delivery of criminal justice in their

area and providing support to victims.

The PRSRA 2011 also established the Chief Constable as
a separate statutory entity, distinct from the
Commissioner and with operational independence. The
Chief Constable is responsible for maintaining the
Queen’s peace and the exercise of police powers. The
Chief Constable is accountable to the Commissioner for
leadership of the force, the delivery of efficient and
effective policing and the management of resources and

expenditure for the police force.

The PRSRA 2011 sets out the statutory financial
framework for the Commissioner and Chief Constable.
The legislation provides for the Secretary of State to
issue a financial code of practice in relation to the proper
administration of financial affairs. The Home Office
under the legislation issues a Financial Management
Code of Practice for the Police Forces of England and
Wales. The Code supports the statutory framework
further setting out the financial relationships and

requirements for the Commissioner and Chief Constable.
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This  financial framework provides that the
Commissioner  receives all  funding, including
government grants, council tax income and other
sources of income related to policing and crime
reduction. All funding for the Chief Constable must
come from the Commissioner. This, in addition to the
powers of the Commissioner to set the strategic
direction for policing and appoint and dismiss the Chief
Constable, creates a subsidiary relationship between the
Commissioner and the Chief Constable. As such, the
Commissioner must publish a set of group consolidated
accounts in addition to single entity accounts. The Chief
Constable must publish single entity accounts and
provide information to the Commissioner to support the

publication of group accounts.

The Commissioner incurs both revenue and capital
expenditure, although revenue expenditure is by far the
larger amount. Revenue expenditure can broadly be
described as day to day running costs and includes most
of the costs of operational policing in addition to
expenditure with wider partners on community safety
and crime reduction. It is funded through a mixture of
government grants, the principle of which are the police
grant and formula grant, together with locally raised

income from Council Tax.

Capital expenditure is made up broadly of expenditure
on non-current or fixed assets. These are assets that
have a useful life of beyond one year and include
expenditure on property, vehicles, ICT and other
equipment. Capital expenditure is funded from a home
office grant, capital receipts generated from the sale of
capital assets and by direct contributions from revenue

income.

The combined net revenue budget for the Commissioner
and the Constabulary for 2013/14 of £98.771m was set
by the Commissioner on 22 February 2013. Funding of
this amount came from formula and capital grants
(£65.830m), income from Council Tax and the
Commissioner’s share of District Council’s collection
funds net surplus (£32.941m). The capital budget was
set at £11.961m and included provision for the new

South Territorial Policing Area headquarters at Barrow.

The budget was supported by an increase in Council Tax
of 1.95%, taking the Commissioner’s proportion of the
band D equivalent tax to £204.66 per annum. The effect
of the increase is to support the medium term financial
forecast and mitigate some of the impact of cost
increases and reductions in government funding. The
overall position on income supported by the Council Tax
enabled the Commissioner to maintain the existing
establishment of police officer and police and
community support officer (PCSO) numbers. The Chief
Constable was provided with a budget of £102m to
support policing. The income budget also provided
£4.35m for Commissioned Services, to provide funding
for partnership working across the Commissioner’s
wider community safety, crime reduction and victim

support responsibilities.

The table below shows the summary budget for 2013/14
as set on 22 February, the revised budget (taking into
account budget changes made during the year) and the
provisional outturn position (subject to audit).
References to the PCC relate to the Police and Crime
Commissioner, references to CC relate to the Chief

Constable.
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Constabulary Budget: 102,752 101,696 98,371 (3,325)
CC Managed Budgets 8,002 6,582 6,863 281
Office of the PCC 891 891 890 (1)
C issioned
ommissione 4353 4353 4,343 (10)
Services
PCC Other 2,239 6,679 9,746 3,067
Grants/
19,466 21,430 21,442 12
Contributions (19,466)  (21,430) (21,442) (12)
Net Expenditure 98,771 98,771 98,771 0
External Funding
Government Grants 65,830 65,830 65,830 0
Council Tax 32,941 32,941 32,941
Total External
. 98,771 98,771 98,771 0
Funding

The presentation above is as the figures are reported
throughout the year in the management accounts. At
the year-end a number of technical accounting
adjustments (required by proper accounting practice)
are made. For this reason, the outturn in the table
above will not reconcile directly to the Comprehensive

Income and Expenditure statement.

The constabulary budget is made up of funding for
employee costs (Police Officers £75.8m, PCSQO’s £2.88m,
Police Staff £13m), transport costs of £2.9m and
supplies/other costs of £11m. Chief Constable managed
budgets comprise premises expenditure of £3.7m with
the balance being support staff and other employee
costs including provision for redundancy. These budgets
are managed by the Chief Constable on behalf of the
Commissioner. PCC other budgets combine the costs of
technical accounting adjustments, capital finance costs

and movements in reserves.

The combined revenue
underspend during the year amounted to £3.195m and
of this sum £2.590m (81%) related to reduced
expenditure on police officers and PCSO’s as a result of
operating below establishment. The Chief Constable has
now developed a robust workforce plan which will see
police officer and PCSO numbers operating on or around

establishment throughout 2014/15.

The underspend for the year was forecast early in the
budget monitoring process. This enabled £3m of the
unutilised funding to be included within the 2014/15
budget to support investment in commissioned services.
A commissioned services strategy and programme has
been developed alongside grant regulations to provide a
governance framework that provides funding for
partnership working, supporting victims, community

safety and prevention.

The Commissioned Services budget for 2013/14
provided funding for initiatives in support of a number of
the priorities identified within the Police and Crime Plan.
Funding has been supplemented by contributions from
district councils that has focused on community safety
projects and includes a significant £1.5m Investment in
County Wide CCTV. Funding has also been provided to
Community Safety Partnerships, County Council Youth
Offending and Domestic Violence Advisory Services and
West Cumbria Rape Crisis. £50k has been provided to

Community Groups as part of the Community Fund.

The Commissioner also maintains the Police Property Act
Fund. This fund has been accumulated over a period of
time as a result of the disposal of property coming into

the possession of the police under the Police Property
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Act 1987 and the Powers of the Criminal Courts Act
1973. Community groups and individuals can submit
applications for funding on a quarterly basis. During
2013/14 awards totaling £12k were made. As at 31
March 2014 the Police Property Act fund balance stood
at £56k.

In 2013/14 Capital Expenditure
amounted to £3.311m. The original capital programme
was amended during the year to £8.962m to reflect
changes in respect of the prior year capital outturn, new
schemes approved and the re-profiling of some capital
projects. The final outturn of £3.311m represents only
37% of the adjusted budget being spent in the year with
63% of the budget being re-profiled into future years.
Almost half of the slippage relates to the construction of
a new South Territorial Policing Area headquarters at
Barrow where now that the contract to build the new
premises has been awarded, a revised profile of
payments has been developed. Whilst the payment
profile for the project has slipped the planned
completion date for the scheme remains on target. The
remaining slippage primarily relates to ICT schemes
which have been re-profiled for a combination of
reasons including delays in national scheme
specifications and the development of detailed business
cases to support the projects. Further work has been
undertaken with spending departments during the
budget setting process for 2014/15 with the aim of
reducing slippage and improving the budget forecast for

capital expenditure.

The aim of the financial statements are to demonstrate
to the reader the overall financial position of the
Commissioner at the end of the financial year together
with the cost of the services provided during the year
and the financing of that expenditure. This section of
the financial summary provides an explanation of the
various parts of the statement alongside a high level
summary and narrative on the financial position. The
financial statements for 2012/13 have been re-stated
due to a change in disclosure requirements in respect of
pensions. A full explanation is provided in note 34 to the

accounts on pages 86-88.

The key financial statements are:

The movement in reserves statement (MiRS)

The comprehensive income and expenditure
statement (CI&ES)

The Balance Sheet (BS)

The Cash Flow Statement (CFS)

The Police Officer Pension Fund Accounts
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This statement shows the different reserves held by the
Commissioner, analysed into ‘Usable Reserves’ that that
can be applied to fund expenditure or reduce taxation
and other (principally technical accounting) ‘Unusable
Reserves’. It shows the opening balance on all reserves
at the start of the year, movements in year and the
closing balance. The movements in year comprise
movements arising from the Surplus or Deficit on the
Provision of Services line within CI&ES, other CI&ES
adjustments, accounting adjustments and transfers to

and from earmarked reserves.

The accounting adjustments provide a mechanism
through which charges made within the accounts in
accordance with accounting standards are reversed,
leaving only the statutory amounts required to be
charged for council tax purposes. The Net
Increase/Decrease before Transfers to Earmarked
Reserves line shows the statutory Police Fund Balance
before any discretionary transfers to or from earmarked
reserves undertaken by the Commissioner. The
statement is shown in page 20 in the full statement of
accounts. The table below sets out a summary

movement in reserves statement.

Police Fund 5,149 0 5,149
Earmarked Revenue Reserves 12,705 4,090 16,795
Earmarked Capital Reserves 8,860 2,010 10,870
Capital Receipts 1,188 (145) 1,043
Capital Grant Unapplied 3,765 101 3,866
Constabulary Usable Reserves : (1,042,939) 1,042,939 0
Total Usable Reserves (1,011,272): 1,048,995 37,723
Unusable Reserves 43,011 (1,018,604) (975,593)
Total Reserves (968,261) 30,391 (937,870)

The Chief Constable’s financial statements for 2012/13
included a number of technical accounting reserves as
usable reserves that would normally be treated as
unusable reserves. This accounting treatment was
required as at the time the Chief Constable did not have
the powers of statutory override required to reverse
accounting entries through a movement in reserves
statement. These powers have now been granted and
as such the reserves are now shown as unusable
reserves and a movement between usable and unusable
reserves was effected as at 1 April 2013. This change
accounts for the largest movement in reserves in respect

of an amount of £1,042m.

Reserves are held to manage both planned expenditure
and provide a contingency against unplanned costs in
the future which cannot be accurately quantified at the
time of closing the accounts. The Reserves Statement
shows that the Commissioner’s Police Fund Balance at
31 March 2014 stands at £5.149m. This represents
approximately 5% of the net budget and will be held at
this level pending the 2015/16 grant settlement. In
addition a number of specific earmarked reserves are
maintained to address specific areas of expenditure,
usually of a non-recurring nature, which must be
incurred in future years. Earmarked reserves increased
by £6.100m during 2013/14, primarily as a result of the
underspend on funding provided by the Commissioner
to the Constabulary and the capital reserve for CCTV.
The underspend has been planned into the 2014/15
budget to provide commissioned services. More detail
on earmarked reserves is provided within note 5 to the

statement of accounts on pages 34-35.
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This statement shows the accounting cost in the year of
providing services in accordance with generally accepted
accounting practices, rather than the amount to be
funded from taxation and grant income. The
Commissioner prepares this statement in accordance
with the service expenditure analysis as required by the
Service Reporting Code of Practice (SERCOP). This
provides information on the cost of the different policing

services that have been provided over the financial year

The table below sets out a summary CI&ES statement.

Local policing 48,987 (1,972) 47,015
dealing with the public 7,445 (44) 7,401
criminal justice 9,133 (404) 8,729
arrangements

Road policing 6,953 (956) 5,997
Specialist operations 4,050 (458) 3,592
Intelligence 5,873 (231) 5,642
Investigations 14,012 (291) 13,721
Investigative support 3,142 (56) 3,086
National policing 1,465 (964) 501
Corporate and democratic 1172 2) 1,170
core

Non distributed costs 91 0 91
Exceptional items -

termination costs 671 0 671
Cost of Services 102,994 (5,378) 97,616
other operating expenditure 14,758 (14,838) (80)
Financing and investment 48,856 (3,708) 45,148

income

Taxation and non-specific
grantincome
(surplus)/deficit on the
provision of services
other comprehensive
income and expenditure
Total comprehensive
income and expenditure

0 (105,218): (105,218)

166,608 (129,142) 37,466

0 (67,857)  (67,857)

166,608 (196,999)  (30,391)

The statement shows a net cost of services of £98m,
based on proper accounting practices. This comprises
£103m of expenditure funded by £5m of specific grant
income and income from fees and charges. A further
£15m is spent on pension costs which are supported by
an equivalent amount of specific grant funding. The
overall position on the statement is a surplus of £30m
that is taken to reserves and reflects the accounting

surplus from the CI&ES.

The CI&ES is shown on page 22 of the full statement of
accounts. A subjective analysis that sets out what those
costs are (e.g. staffing, transport etc.) is provided in the
notes to the accounts (note 20b to the statement of

accounts on page 68).

Capital Financing costs on the CI&ES are extremely low
other than those that fund the PFl scheme. This reflects
the Commissioner’s decision to continue to fund the
borrowing requirement arising from the capital
programme internally. This is due to the Commissioner’s
level of cash reserves and the relatively low interest
rates available on investing such balances. At the end of
the financial year £17.357m (inclusive of PFI contract) of
the capital programme is funded by the use of cash
backed internal reserves rather than borrowing from the
open market. At some point during the forward interest
rate cycle, the Commissioner will need to consider taking

up external equivalent borrowings.
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The Balance Sheet shows the value as at the balance
sheet date (31° March 2014) of the assets and liabilities
recognised by the Commissioner. Assets comprise the
Commissioner’s  property, plant and equipment,
including software. These are termed long term assets
and have been valued at £61m. Current assets
comprising investments, debtors and cash have a value
of £34m. Current liabilities reflect amounts owed by the
Commissioner. They include creditors, PFI, pensions and
finance lease liabilities. They are split between short
term and long term liabilities, the short term liabilities
being those amounts due to be paid within 1 year. The
net assets (assets less liabilities) are matched on the
balance sheet by the Commissioner’s reserves. The
balance sheet reserves reflect the position at year end
and therefore match the final position shown in the
movement in reserves statement. The balance sheet is

shown in page 24 in the full statement of accounts.

The table below sets out a summary balance sheet.

Property, plant &
roperty, pian 59,569 60,850

equipment

Intangible assets 1,261 643
Current assets 28,052 34,208
Current liabilities (10,274) (10,822)

Long term liabilities (1,046,869): (1,022,749)

Net Assets (968,261). (937,870)
Usable reserves (1,011,272) 37,723
Unusable reserves 43,011 (975,593)

Total reserves (968,261) (937,870)

Reserves are reported on the balance sheet consistently

with the movement in reserves statement, across two

categories. Usable Reserves result from the
Commissioner’s activities and can be used to finance
future expenditure. The Usable Reserves comprise of
the Police Fund, Earmarked Reserves and Unapplied
Capital Receipts. Unusable Reserves are derived from
accounting adjustments and cannot be spent. The
Unusable Reserves include accounting reserves in
respect of revaluations, pensions, council tax,
accumulated absences and the capital adjustment
account. The movement between usable and unusable
reserves on the balance sheet is explained within the
narrative on the movement in reserves statement (page

7).

The Commissioner’s 2013/14 group balance sheet
includes a combined pensions deficit of £1,017m
(£1,040m in 2012/13) for the Local Government Pension
Scheme (LGPS) and the Police Pension Scheme to which
its employees and former employees belong. However,
statutory arrangements for funding the deficit, through
increased contributions over a period designed to
balance the pensions account and central Government
funding, mean that the financial position of the

Commissioner remains healthy.

The Commissioner has a good collection record in
respect of invoices raised for services provided. During
2013/14 only five sundry debtor invoices totalling
£12,010 were authorised to be written off as not
collectable. The Bad Debt Provision stands at £4,172
(£2,043 in 2012/13) against the future potential that not
all outstanding invoices will prove to be 100%
collectable. See note 12 to the statement of accounts

(Page 47).
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In the Commissioner’s 2012/13 Statement of Accounts, a
post balance sheet event was included in relation to the
continued suspension of Mr. Hyde the temporary Chief
Constable, on 13 September 2012. In September 2013,
Mr. Hyde returned to work in his substantive role as
Deputy Chief Constable. Mr. Lawson the temporary
Chief Constable (seconded from Merseyside Police)
continued in his role throughout 2013/14. Mr. Hyde
retired from his post in December 2013. In April 2014,
the Commissioner undertook a recruitment exercise to
appoint a permanent Chief Constable for Cumbria and
Mr. Graham (formerly the Deputy Chief Constable) was
appointed to the role following confirmation by the
Police and Crime Panel and will take up office on 1

August 2014.

The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and
cash equivalents of the Commissioner during the
reporting period. The statement shows how the
Commissioner generates and uses cash and cash
equivalents by classifying cash flows as operating,
investing and financing activities. The amount of net
cash flows arising from operating activities is a key
indicator of the extent to which the operations of the
Commissioner are funded by way of taxation and grant
income or from the recipients of services. Investing
activities represent the extent to which cash outflows
have been generated from resources which are intended
to contribute to the Commissioner’s future service
delivery. Cash flows arising from financing activities are
useful in predicting claims on future cash flows by

providers of capital (i.e. borrowing).

The statement is shown on pages 25-26 of the full

statement of accounts.

Balance 1 April (4,618) (10,680)
Net cash flow from:

- Operating activity (5,928) (8,453)
- Investing activities (274) 7,737
- Financing activities 140 86
Balance 31 March (10,680) (11,310)

This statement sets out the transactions on the Police
Officer pension fund account for the year. A page of
explanatory notes are also provided within the financial

statements to support the account.

Contributions - Employer (9,987) (9,772)
Contributions - Officers (4,939) (5,277)
Transfers In (180) (298)
Capital Equivalent - Ill Health (231) (469)
Benefits Payable 27,311 30,392
Refunds of Contributions 0 9
Transfers Out 84 173
Net Amount payable 12,058 14,758

Contribution from PCC/Home
Office top Up grant

Net Amount Payable 0 0

(12,058)  (14,758)

The statement identifies a net amount payable for the
year of £14.758m. This is the difference between the
amount due from employer, police officer and other

contributions into the fund and the pension benefits that
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are payable from the fund. The Police Officer Pension
Fund is an unfunded scheme. This means that there are
no investment assets built up to meet pension liabilities.
Any difference between the amounts received into the
fund and amounts to be paid are met by central

government grant.

The key financial statements are supplemented by an
explanation of the accounting polices used in preparing
the statements. They also contain a comprehensive set
of notes that explain in more detail a number of entries
in the primary financial statements. A glossary of terms
provides an explanation of the various technical
accounting terms and acronyms. The statements are
published alongside the Annual Governance Statement
for the Police and Crime Commissioner and the Chief
Constable in accordance with the 2011 Accounts and

Audit (England) Regulations.

The Annual Governance Statement of the Commissioner can be
found at www.cumbria-pcc.gov.uk/governance-
transparency/document-library.aspx or on pages 110-136 of the

full statement of accounts.

The financial statements provide a breakdown of net
spending during the year with the balance sheet
showing the strong overall financial position of the
Commissioner as at 31 March 2014. This has primarily

arisen as a result of underspend on the budget and

positive action on behalf of the Constabulary to reduce
costs in the context of future reductions in government
funding. Whilst the outlook is financially resilient in the
short term, it is expected to become significantly more

challenging over the next few years.

Significantly the budget set for 2014/15 was set in the
context of a four year medium term financial forecast
that is in deficit from 2016/17. Gross income, at the
time of setting the 2014/15 budget, was forecast to be
£122.3m but with an estimated reduction to £118.6m by
2017/18. Whilst income decreases cost will rise due to

the impact of inflation and pay awards.

The chart below illustrates for the next four years, the
current forecast of expenditure compared to funding

available to finance it.

104,000

102,000 —

100,000 /

98,000 —
96,000

= Net Expenditure
94,000

Total Funding

92,000
90,000
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86,000 T T T ]
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The 2015 spending review is expected to make further
reductions in the total level of resources available. At
least £10m of savings will need to be made over those
four years to balance the budget even with annual
increases in council tax. This will mean significant
reductions in police officers and staff at a time where

some crime figures are starting to increase.
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The current financial forecasts exclude the impact of a
£16m risk of funding loss arising from changes to central
government funding formula. The balance sheet
position on reserves is currently being maintained at a
higher than usual level to mitigate against the impact of
this risk. The Commissioner and Chief Constable are
developing a detailed change programme to consider
options that will address the future gap between

expenditure and income.

The financial statements were originally authorised for
issue by me as PCC Chief Finance Officer (CFO), on 25
June 2014. Following completion of the audit, they were
re-authorised by me on 22 September 2014 and were
formally approved by the Police and Crime
Commissioner at a joint meeting of the Executive Board

and Joint Audit and Standards Committee.

In closing, it is appropriate to acknowledge the
dedication and professionalism of Roger Marshall, the
Chief Constable’s Chief Finance Officer, Michelle Bellis,
Lorraine Holme and the wider finance team in again
achieving the closure of accounts and the publication of
these Statements against challenging deadlines and

complex financial reporting standards.

Ruth Hunter

PCC Chief Finance Officer/Deputy Chief Executive

The accounts present a true and fair view of the position of the Police and Crime Commissioner’s Group Accounts as at 31

March 2014 and its income and expenditure for the year there ended.

PCC Chief Finance Officer/Deputy Chief Executive

Ruth Hunter CPFA

Date 22 September 2014

The accounts present a true and fair view of the position of the Police and Crime Commissioner’s Group Accounts as at 31

March 2014 and its income and expenditure for the year there ended.

Police and Crime Commissioner for Cumbria

Richard Rhodes

Date 22 September 2014
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Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts

1 The Commissioner’s Responsibilities
The Police and Crime Commissioner (The Commissioner/PCC) is the recipient of funding relating to
policing and crime reduction and has statutory responsibility for the Police Fund. The Commissioner
is required to:
. Make arrangements for the proper administration of his financial affairs and to secure that one
of his officers has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs. In this organisation,

that officer is the PCC Chief Finance Officer (CFO).

. Manage his affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources and safeguard
its assets.

° approve the Statement of Accounts including annexes to the Statement of Accounts.

2 The Commissioner’s Chief Finance Officer's Responsibilities
The Commissioner’s CFO is responsible for the production of the Statement of Accounts of the
Commissioner, ensuring the receipt and scrutiny of the Statement of Accounts of the Chief Constable
and for ensuring the production of group accounts. The Commissioner’s CFO is responsible for the
preparation of the Commissioner’s Statement of Accounts and the group accounts in accordance
with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting
in the United Kingdom (the Code).
In preparing this Statement of Account, the Commissioner’s CFO has:
° selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently;

° made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

° complied with the local authority code.

The Commissioner’s CFO has also:

° kept proper accounting records which were up to date

° taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Commissioner’s CFO should sign and date the Statement of Accounts, stating that it presents a

true and fair view of the financial position of the organisation at the reporting date and its income
and expenditure for the year ended 31 March 2014.
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Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts

3 The Chief Constable’s Responsibilities
The Chief Constable (the CC) is accountable to the Police and Crime Commissioner for the
management of resources and expenditure by the police force. All funding for the Chief Constable
comes from the Police and Crime Commissioner. The Chief Constable is required to:
. Make arrangements for the proper administration of his financial affairs and to secure that one
of his officers has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs. In this organisation,

that officer is the CC Chief Finance Officer (CFO).

° Manage his affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources and safeguard
its assets.

° approve the Statement of Accounts including annexes to the Statement of Accounts.

4 The Chief Constable’s Chief Finance Officer's Responsibilities

The Chief Constable’s CFO is responsible for the production of the Statement of Accounts for the
Chief Constable and for providing information to the PCC CFO as required for the production of group
accounts. The Chief Constable’s CFO is responsible for the preparation of the Chief Constable’s
Statement of Accounts in accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (the Code).

In preparing the Chief Constable’s Statement of Account, the CC CFO has:

° selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently;

° made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

° complied with the local authority code.

The Chief Constable’s CFO has also:

° kept proper accounting records which were up to date

° taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Chief Constable’s CFO should sign and date the Chief Constable’s Statement of Accounts, stating

that it presents a true and fair view of the financial position of the organisation at the reporting date
and its income and expenditure for the year ended 31 March 2014.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

o Grant Thornton

Leave 4 blank pages for audit opinion
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Leave 4 blank pages for audit opinion
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Leave 4 blank pages for audit opinion

17| Page
Police and Crime Commissioner for Cumbria — Statement of Accounts 2013/14



Independent Auditor’s Report

Leave 4 blank pages for audit opinion
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Core Financial Statements

The Statement of Accounts includes four primary or core financial statements:

Movement in Reserves Statement - This statement shows the movement in the year on the different
reserves held by the Commissioner, analysed into ‘Usable Reserves’ (i.e. those that can be applied to fund
expenditure or reduce taxation) and other ‘Unusable Reserves’. The Surplus (or Deficit) on the Provision of
Services line shows the true economic cost of providing the Commissioner’s services, more details of which
are shown in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. These are different from the statutory
amounts required to be charged to the Police Fund Balance for Council Tax setting purposes. The Net
Increase/Decrease before Transfers to Earmarked Reserves line shows the statutory Police Fund Balance
before any discretionary transfers to or from earmarked reserves undertaken by the Commissioner.

Due to the size of the statements, the positions for the Group and the PCC are shown in separate tables, the
figures for 2013/14 and the comparators for 2012/13 are also shown in separate tables.

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement - This statement shows the accounting cost in the year
of providing services in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices, rather than the amount to
be funded from taxation. Authorities raise taxation to cover expenditure in accordance with regulations; this
may be different from the accounting cost.

Due to the size of the statements, the positions for the Group and the PCC are shown in separate tables.

Balance Sheet — This statement shows the value as at the balance sheet date of the assets and liabilities
recognised by the Commissioner. The net assets (assets less liabilities) are matched by the reserves held by
the Commissioner. Reserves are reported in two categories.

The first category of reserves are usable reserves, i.e. those reserves that the Commissioner may use to
provide services, subject to the need to maintain a prudent level of reserves and any statutory limitations on
their use (for example the capital receipts reserve that may only be used to fund capital expenditure or
repay debt).

The second category of reserves are unusable reserves and relate to those that the Commissioner is not able
to use to provide services. This category of reserves includes reserves that hold unrealised gains and losses
(for example the revaluation reserve), where amounts would only become available to provide services if the
assets are sold; and reserves that hold timing differences shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement
line’ Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under regulations’.

The balance sheet for the Group and PCC are shown side by side and include both 2013/14 figures and
2012/13 comparators.

Cash Flow Statement - This statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Commissioner
during the reporting period. The statement shows how the Commissioner generates and uses cash and cash
equivalents by classifying cash flows as operating, investing and financing activities. The amount of net cash
flows arising from operating activities is a key indicator of the extent to which the operations of the
Commissioner are funded by way of taxation and grant income or from the recipients of services. Investing
activities represent the extent to which cash outflows have been generated from resources which are
intended to contribute to the Commissioner’s future service delivery. Cash flows arising from financing
activities are useful in predicting claims on future cash flows by providers of capital (i.e. borrowing).

The cash flow statement for the Group and PCC are shown side by side and include both 2013/14 figures and
2012/13 comparators.
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Movement in Reserves Statement — Group

The figures for the group in 2013/14 are provided in the table below:

Group

<
u g i v E c S
Figures for 2013/14 > 4] 23 L3 255 2 223 = =4 N
s < 2 5 2 35 $csogw §% g2 52 2 5
5 e 25 3 5 2252 38, 22 g = 3 g
2 o2 T o 88 wZ g <o T v 8 = g o 2
< ol o X o X Q9 — g 5 > - o = o = o
— o Q o g T w® 2 U5 S & T - o —
4= c € o £ T T £ <9 g L9 v 29 v O =5 ™
2 2 S S § 5 EEwg & e G < 3 2
] i o ®© S @© 5 S £ @ @ 0 5 0 G ® &3 &
e S 5 o = @ 2383S S53 5o E c £ @ 3
K] o = 5 g £ 585 ® g [ £ 5 5 @ <
@ = 5 8 2 8 < © = < = o o E o S =
£ £ Zz o - o
£000s 000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s
Usable Reserves : : : : : : : : |
Police Fund Account 5,149: (37,466): 0: (37,466): 43,566: 0: 6,100: (6,100): 0 5,149|
Earmarked RevenueReserves i 12705, O 0 0 S S L0 4090 4090 16795
Earmarked Capital Reserves 8,860 0 0 0: 0 0 0 2,010 2,010 10,870
Capital Receipts Reserve 1,188 0 0 0 (145) 0 (145) 0 (145) 1,043]
Capital Grants Unapplied 3,765 0 0 0: 101 0 101 0 101 3,866
Chief Constable's Police Pension Reserve (1,010,490) 0 0 0: 0 1,010,490; 1,010,490; 0 101049: 0
Chief Constable's LGPS Pension Reserve (28,804) 0 0 0: 0 28,804 28,804 0 28,804 0
Chief Constable's Accumulated Absences Account (3,645) 0 0 1} 0 3,645 3,645 0 3,645 0
Total Usable Reserves (1,011,272) (37,466) 0 (37,466) 43,522  1,042,939) 1,048,995 0/ 1,048,995 37,723
Unusable Rese'ves .......................................................................... - A S
Revaluation Reserve 7,095 0 1,884 1,884 1 0 1,885 0 1,885 8,980
Capital Adjustment Account 36,460 0 0 0: (1,305) 0 (1,305) 0 (1,305) 35,155
Police Pensions Reserve [ 0: 51,350 51,350 (40,260); (1,010,490):  (999,400): 0 (999,400)  (999,400)|
LGPS PensionsReserve (966)! 0 14,623 14,623 (2,192);  (28,804);  (16,373); 0 (16373)]  (17,339)
Collection Fund Adjustment Account 447; 0 0; o (74); 0; (74); 0; 373
Accumulated Absences Account (25)i o} 0 o 308! (3,645) (3,337): o (3,362)
Total Unusable Reserves 43,011 o: 67,857; 67,857 (43,522); (1,042,939): (1,018,604): 0 (1,018604)  (975,593)
Total Reserves (968,261) (37,466) 67,857 30,391 0 0 30,391 0 30,391  (937,870)

The comparative figures for 2012/13 are provided in the table below:

Group -~ @ o o K] < € 3
o = f=4 o
Re-stated Figures for 2012/13 S =l ] 23 B $25% § 8293 =) = (]
~ c QO v 5 > 5 9 © T g ) QX S S [ <
= S 2 S 2 c 2 2ocg 2 525 25 2 2
2 g5 s s < 5 2822 £8 spd F8 5 s
- S0 [SAO] a @ 2 ws o O E S 4 T =] o ~
= o < € o £ T g £25 2o v 2e £ g - ™
= 8 S 5 © E £ ®3 o © © = QO = ~ s
3 2 © o o © s S5£® 2 QO 5 © h © o
= g3 5 2 5 2 383 8 5o E S E ® 3
© = 2 = B 2 £ S 8§ S» G £ 55 S5 o <
3 5 2 5 8 2 3 < © = = § B g @ L} = =2
[} £ £ [y =z o - o
£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s
Usable Reserves -
Police Fund Account 5,149 (1,064) 0 (1,064) 3,704 0 2,640 (2,640) 0 5,149,
Earmarked Revenue Reserves 9,465 0 0 1} 0 0 0 3,240 3,240 12,705
Earmarked Capital Reserves 9,460 0 0 0 0 0 0 (600) (600) 8,860
Capital Receipts Reserve 0 0 0 0 1,188 0 1,188 0 1,188 1,188
Capital Grants Unapplied 3,338 0 0 0 427 0 427 0 427 3,765
Chief Constable's Constabulary Fund 0 (37,898) (125,410) (163,308) 0 163,308 0; 0 0 0|
Chief Constable's Police Pension Reserve (854,730) 0 0 0 0 (155,760) (155,760) 0 (155,760): (1,010,490)
Chief Constable's LGPS Pension Reserve (21,190) 0 0 0 0 (7,614) (7,614) 0 (7,614) (28,804)
Chief Constable's Accumulated Absences Account (3,711) 0 0 0 0 66! 66 0 66! (3,645)
Total Usable Reserves (852,219) (38,962) (125,410) (164,372) 5,319 0/  (159,053) 0 (159,053); (1,011,272)
Unusable Reserves i i ; i i
Revaluation Reserve 7,7555 0 (603)§ (603)§ (57)§
Capital Adjustment Account 41,875! o} ; 0} (5,415) ;
Police Pensions Reserve 0 [ 0 [ oi 0
LGPS Pensions Reserve (712) 0 (210) (210) (44) 0 0
Collection Fund Adjustment Account ¢+ 2 255 (O 0 192 0 0
Accumulated Absences Account (30) 0 0 5 0 0
Total Unusable Reserves .2 /. (B3), 813) (5319 0 (6132 L0 (6132) 43,011
Total Reserves (803,076) (38,962) (126,223) (165,185) 0 0 (165,185) 0 (165,185) (968,261)
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Movement in Reserves Statement — PCC

The figures for the PCC Single Entity in 2013/14 are provided in the table below:

pcc o o @ g T 5 = =
Figures for 2013/14 > 4] 2 32 = 285 c2 ® Ly = = 5

~ L 23 5 S ¢ ® 35 g B 0= > S 2 (3 S

T E 5 55 £45% 23 gsg <3 5 :

g 2 s 2 13 s854 85¢ =58 T8 g =

— o a o a o Ew® 2 5§ =l b ] —

= c € o £ T s £2 5 5<uo 2 £ 8 £ 9 - ™

8 2 86 S & EEDS 2009 g 5% R > <

e 2 5 @ = o 83352 £3 e E EE % g

& s £ E gE 285% % e8s g8k g g

3 Eh O © = O < ® = = = g5 ¢ il S =

£ £ Zz o = o

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s
Usable Reserves ; : : : : : : |
Police Fund Account 5,149: 4,605: o: 4,605: 1,495 o: 6,100: (6,100) 0: 5,149
Earmarked Revenue Reserves 12,705 0 0 0 0 0 0 4,090 4,090 16,795
Earmarked Capital Reserves 8,860 0 0 0: 0 0 0: 2,010 2,010 10,870
Capital Receipts Reserve 1,188 0 0 0 (145) 0 (145) 0 (145) 1,043|
Capital Grants Unapplied 3,765 0 0 0. 101 0 101 0 101 3,866
Total Usable Reserves 31,667 4,605 0 4,605 1,451 0. 6,056 0 6,056 37,723
Unusable Reserves
Revaluation Reserve 1,884 1,884 1 0. 1,885 0 1,885 8,980
Capital Adjustment Account 0 [ (1,305) 0 (1,305) 0 (1,305): 35,155
LGPSPensionsReserve = 475 R f o [ (s63)
Collection Fund Adjustment Account i} o} 0 373|
Accumulated Absences Account 0 0 [ (26)|
Total Unusable Reserves 02,3590 (1,451); 0 43,919
Total Reserves 74,678 4,605 2,359 6,964 0 0: 6,964 0 6,964 81,642

PCC ~ o (9] L T E a
o = f=4 o
Re-stated Figures for 2012/13 b=y 8 23 L3 E25% © 223 =4 = ]
i e 25 2 5 go2e 3 £S5 = 3 5
= < T € El= 2 255 = g2 g =] © =
& 5 g8 £f 2822 2y 2:8 £ g g
< — S x o x 205> 2 -3 = S = o =
— ) o v s 9 c wo 2 OF S u o bl =] S Lo
i c E = £ T c£295 2o 22 29 - ™
Qo S 5 o5 E 32 P 5 U © O = QL = o ®
g @ e S 9 73S0 % g5 g 2 8 3 °
5 8 £k i = 28 % 2EgE EE g g
8 oL 5 8 2 8 < © + = é 2 e @ = o S =
£ £ = =z Qo - o
£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s
Usable Reserves
Police Fund Account 5,149 (1,064) 0 (1,064) 3,704 0 2,640 (2,640) 0 5,149
Earmarked Revenue Reserves 9,465 0 0 0 0 0 0 3,240 3,240 12,705
Earmarked Capital Reserves 9,460 0 0 0. 0 0 0 (600) (600) 8,860
Capital Receipts Reserve 0 0 0 0 1,188 0: 1,188 0 1,188 1,188
Capital Grants Unapplied 3,338 0 0 0 427 0 427 0 427 3,765
Total Usable Reserves 27,412 (1,064) 0 (1,064) 5,319 (i} 4,255 0 4,255 31,667
Unusable Reserves i i i i ; i i i i
Revaluation Reserve 7,755: o (603) (603)¢ (57): o (660): o (660): 7,095
Capital Adjustment Account 41,875 0 0 (5,415) 0; (5,415) 0 (5,415) 36,460
Police Pensions Reserve 0. 0 [ 0 0 0 0 0. 0
LGPS Pensions Reserve (712) 0 (210) (210) (44) 0 (254) 0 (254) (966)
Collection Fund Adjustment Account 255 0 0: 192 0 192 0 192 447
Accumulated Absences Account (30) 0 1} 5 0 5 0 5 (25)
Total Unusable Reserves 49,143 0 (813) (813) (5,319) 0 (6,132) 0 (6,132) 43,011
Total Reserves 76,555 (1,064) (813) (1,877) 0 0 (1,877) 0 (1,877) 74,678
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Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement - Group

Group Group Group Group Group Group
2012/13 2012/13 2012/13 2013/14 2013/14 2013/14
Gross Gross \[:14 Gross Gross Net
Expendture Income  Expendture Expendture Income Expendture

Re-stated Re-stated Re-stated
£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

12,058]  (12,058):
12,058

| iCouncil Tax Grant (Freeze & Support) | | 0 5 0 (4944)i (4944
i _iDCLG Formula Funding P29 | 0/ (33,337)! (33,337); 0! (33,939)! (33,939)
i iRevenueSupportGrant L 29 ] 0 (683)i (663 o 0

| iHome Office Police Grant e o?w(30,544)§ (30,544), oT (31,891)  (31,891)

U SO

JE(SurpIus) or Deficit on Provision of Services 165,322

166,608/ (129,142): 37,466

iSurplus or Deficit on revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment Assets | ;

iRevaluation gains

.

I —

iRemeasurement of the net defined pension benefit (65“,5;5)
gliability/asset |
|Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure IETTCTE] I B BT )
S S N e
:Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure S A o] i 165185, S . (30,391)
P | | [ : | s
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Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement - PCC

PCC PCC PCC PCC PCC PCC
2012/13 2012/13 2012/13 2013/14 2013/14 2013/14
Gross Gross Net Gross Gross Net
Expendture Income  Expendture Expendture Income Expendture
Re-stated Re-stated Re-stated
£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

(955):
(908)

103,613
100,141

73)i

SRR A St S SRR bl et 8 .

(12,058) 0

L@nﬂﬂaﬂm{ﬁ&ezjﬁﬂwﬂ,w___i__;__.QLM-_‘.T_,_@S‘@LW“M%A‘L?A&L_L@@

‘DCLG Formula Funding P29 | 0/ (33,337)! (33,337); 0! (33,939): (33,939)
| iRevenueSupportGrant 129 | 0o (663 (663 0 0 ¢
| {Home Office Police Grant | 29 | o (30,544);  (30,544) oT (31,891)!  (31,891)
| | f (638)
| ‘ (105,218)

R e

JE(SurpIus) or Deficit on Provision of Services - ) 139,817
N NSNS RN
iSurplus or Deficit on revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment Assets | i

iRevaluation gains

Sr—— e

{Remeasurement of the net defined pension benefit
gliability/asset

jOther Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

.

.Totalrr(-:vc;rr;prehénsivé Income and Expernditurre 1 { | : 1,877} - 7 (6,964)

AR [ o o I | :
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Balance Sheet — PCC & Group

PCC PCC Group Group
31 March 2013 31 March 2014 31 March 2013 31 March 2014
Re-stated Re-stated
Notes £000s

Property, Plant & Equipment

Assets held for sale
_{Inventories

_|Cashand Cash Equivalents T T T R P . - 11310
Current Assets i | 34,208

Short Term Creditors (amounts owed by PCC to CC re CC share of external debtors) !
Short Term Creditors (funding balance due from PCC to CC) i 0

_{PFI Finance Lease Liability Due within 1 Year (86)

7

. 15,220)
0

__{Usable reserves

Earmarked reserves (revenue)
Earmarked reserves (capital)

| i Chief CorT;E;)ble's AA-EZumuIaEEE Abseun‘ges Accc}j@ﬁt________

_{Unusable Reserves

Revaluation Reserve

Capital Adjustment Account

Collection Fund Adjustment Account

Accumulated Absences Account

I Total Reserves - : 81,642 (968,261)’ (937,870)
: { : ] !
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Cash Flow Statement — PCC & Group

See PCC PCC Group Group

Note 2012/13 2013/14 2012/13 2013/14
Re-stated Re-stated

Below £000s £000s E200103 £000s

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

g : i 389620 37,466

;Adjustment to net surplus or deficit on the provision of services for 1
inon-cash movements CF1 (8, 335) (4,307): (46, 233) (46,378)

fAdJustment foritems included in the net surplus or deficit on the
Eprovision of services that are investing and financing activities

459

......................................................................

(10,680)
(11,310)

(4618) (10,680)’ (4,618)
(10, 680) (11,310);  (10,680)

ECFI - The Adjustment to net surplus or deficit on the provision of
!services for non-cash movements are made up as follows: ] ] '

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Depreciation & Amortisation - (5, 395) (5, 032)

(5,39 395) (5,032)|

Grants applied to the financing of cap exp
i {Pensmn La|b|I|ty (Contrlbutlons to/from Pensions Reserve) |} 42,452)

..............................................................................................................................................................................................

leedAssetS) b (a9 2260 (149)F 226
Creditors - Adjustment re CC Share of Debtors : 0
| Creditors - Adjustment re Balance of Funding due from PCCtoCC ) T
:Debtors - Change in Balance Sheet m§£2:m (115)]

:Debtors - ChanMe Sheet (Adjustment for Investment

linterest) mmmmmmmmmmmﬁmm“mmmLJFmm_L&“l)meaéimmL&legs_
' ’ 0; 0

{Debtors - AdJustment re CC Share of Creditors o
:Debtors - Adjustment re Balance of Funding due from CC to PCC § 0 0

I St Attt Bttt SRS~ S S S S S S — - a— ]

:Stock - Change in Balance Sheet __13,~m 24
| _[Provisions - Change inBalance Sheet 1 (334): 509
iAdjustment to net surplus or deficit on the provision of services for ! ' '
_inon-cashmovements b (_8_?3_5_) ________ (4..392) ______ (46, _2_3_3)_ ______ (46,378)
E
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Cash Flow Statement — PCC & Group

See PCC PCC Group Group
Note 2012/13 2013/14 2012/13 2013/14
Re-stated Re-stated
Below £000s £000s £000s £000s
{CF2- The Adjustment for items included in the net surplus or deficit ! ] :
on the provision of services that are investing and financing activities
iare made up as follows:
?Adjustment foritems included in the net surplus or deficit on the : ;
. provision of services that are investing and financing activities | | _1__3_4%________.___4_5_??. _________ 1343 459
"'}LEFE - The cash flows from Operating Activities include the following | | - -
| tems: bR
interestreceived [ (199 (107 (193  (107)
nterestPaid 680 (669); 680 669
{CF4 The cash flows from Investing Activities are made up as follows: .
.__E_'_’_‘!_r_?hﬁ:"_‘?__‘?f_PF_‘?_I?_‘?_'V_'FY'__P_'_?F_‘F__a_f‘_q_?_9_9_'_9(‘!‘_‘?_?_'?_??_‘?'_!ﬂf‘.@ﬂ%‘.?'ﬁ?ﬁ?ﬁf‘ﬁ...._____ _________‘_‘_9_2_5_3___________3__95_5_52 _________ 4..9?_3,5 _________ 3,085
...j.'.’.@ﬁ?h??_‘?_ of short-termand long-term investments | | 104, _3{99 wwwwww 7 L%QQE ______ 104, _3’99 ,,,,,,, 71,300
Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment and 1
manglesssets | nam e ) (s)
Proceeds from short-term and long-term investments mmw (653665?4199&%0465,300)
[Other receipts from investing activities 1 (1L059).  (889) (1059  (8%9)
.[Net cash flows from investing activities L. __________(_224_)_ __________ 7, _??eZ __________ (__2__7_4_)___________7__2-?»_?
ECFS The cash flows from Financing Activities are made up as - ]
BSOSO SRS NSRS SO U S
. Cash receipts of short and long-term borrowing 0000 0
{Cash payments for the reduction of the outstanding liabilities relating
_tofinance leases and on-balance sheetPFicontracts | LA S - 77 S 86
fRepayment of short and long-term borrowing f 63! 0} 63; 0
| Netcash flows from financing activities 140; 86! 140 86
N . e
MMIEIMMK B
gfol!evﬁv_%mmm e SN S S S
Bank current accounts ﬂwwﬂwﬂ
|_Short-term deposit with bank (overnight) 11 (2,555)  (89) _(2555)i | (89)]
_Investments in Money Market Funds (available ondemand) | (8,104); (11,205) (8,104): (11,205)
| |Total Cash and Cash Equivalents - - e (10,680): (11,310) (10,680); (11,310)
! ] ] :
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Notes to the Accounts

Index of Notes to the Accounts

Note Title Page

1 Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting POlICIES ......cceecvieiieiiiiie e 28
2 Events after the Balance SNEet Date......coucuiiiiiieiiie ettt ettt st e eaaeesbee e 28
3 Assumptions made about the future and other Sources of Estimation Uncertainty ...........ccccceee..e. 28
4 Adjustments between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis under Regulations...........c.ccceeeecvieeennns 30
5 Transfers to/from EQrmark@d RESEIVES ........oocuviiiiiiiiee ettt ettt eett e s sttt e st e e s sbae e e s sebaaeessanes 34
6 Property, Plant and EQUIPMENT.....ccoi ittt e s e e et e e ssba e e e entaeeeennnseeeeas 36
7 (0 o)) = I 0o 70 0T ' 11 0 =T oL £ PRSP PPR 39
8 INEANEIDIE ASSEES .iiiiiiiiie ittt e e e e e st e e e be e e e aba e e e e nbe e e e e nba e e e e ntaee e e nbaeeeennnaeaeean 40
9 H BT TTAEE ASSOTS. ciiiiiiiiiiitte ettt ettt et ettt e e e e e e bbbttt e e e e e e st ettt eeeeeee s anbbbeeeeeeesesaaabbbeeeeeeeeesannrnnee 41
10 JN Yoy o =] o I o T Y | 1R SPPPPPPOt 41
11 FIN@NCIAl INSTIUMENTS ..eeiiiiiiie et e e e e e et a e e e esbeeeeesbaeeeessaeeeenntaeeeennsseaeans 42
12 ) gl i =T g s g T D =Y o) oY PSPPI 47
13 ) gl g i =T g g @1 1o PSPPI 48
14 L {01V (o] o PP PP PPTUPPPPPRIRE 49
15 =] 1 ] o] o [P PP PP PP PPPPPPPPPPPNRORE 50
16 Private FINaNCe INItiative (PF1)......eeo ottt ettt e et e e et e e e et e e e e eaanreaeean 59
17 T L TSP PP PO P PP PTPPPPPPRORE 61
18 USQDIE RESEIVES ...veieieiieiiiie ettt ettt stte e et e e st e st e e bae e s teeesaeessteeenseeeasseesnseeeseeeanseeeasseesnseeesneesnseennn 62
19 UNUSQDIE RESEIVES ...vvieiiie et eiiee ettt ettt e s tte e st e st e e bteesateeesaeessteeentteeanseeansaeesseesnseeeasseesnseeenseeennsenannn 63
20 Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement .........cccueveeciiieeciiee e e e 67
21 Members AlloWances anNd EXPENSES .....cccicuiiiiieiieie ettt e et e et e e e e saae e e eeaba e e e esabaeeeennnraaeean 74
22 FANE T L T =T PP OPPPPPRt 74
23 MiINIMUM REVENUE PrOVISION ...ttt e e e e e e et et e e e e e e sanbeeeeeeeeeeesannnnnes 75
24 Disclosure of Remuneration for SENIOr EMPIOYEES ......ccoeuviieieiiiieeccieee ettt e 75
25 (00T o] [0}Vl 2T o o [0 a1l =Y o o ISR 78
26 Ll 2= Tol & =TRSO 79
27 TerMINATION PaYMENTS ..ciiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie ettt e e e s s st e e e e e s s st eeaeeeeessasbabeaeeeeesssnsssssneaeeens 79
28 Related Party TranSACiONS ....ccccuieeiiiiiieeecii e ettt ee e ettt e e ettt e e et e e e e abe e e e esbaeeeesaaaeeeessaeeesnnsaaeesansseeenan 80
29 GraNT INCOME ..t e e et e e e e s s e e et e e e e e e s bbb e e e e e e e e e sennnanes 81
30 INCOME frOM COUNCH TAX 1eiutitiriiieiiieeiiteesiee ettt ettt st e ettt e st e e s bt e e sabeesabeeebteesabaeesabeesabeesnbeesabeennns 82
31 CoNtINGENT LiabilitiES....uviieieiiiie e e e e e e e e e e e e e e abe e e e eabaeeeenraeas 83
32 Capital Expenditure and Capital FINGNCING .....cooiiiiiiiiiiiiieee et e e e 84
33 Accounting Standards that have been Issued but have not yet been Adopted .........ccccevvveeiiiieeens 85
34 Prior Period AdJUSTMENT.....coii it e e e e e et e e e e e e e e s atetaeeeeeesesassssaeeeeeeeesnnsnnns 86

The notes to the accounts are provided to aid the understanding of material items within the core financial
statements. Where the figures provided are different for the Group and PCC Single Entity either separate notes will
be provided or a single note will show the respective figures in different columns, these will be headed Group or
PCC. Where the figures are the same for the group and single entity a single note is provided, this is headed up
PCC/Group. As a general rule, the column showing the figures for 2013/14 will be highlighted, whilst the
comparatives for 2012/13 (where provided) will not.

The notes sometimes include terms that may require further explanation. Where possible, explanations are
provided within the note, otherwise explanations are provided within the “glossary of terms” in pages 91-93. Terms
for which an explanation is provided will be depicted by text that is shown in teal coloured text and underlined.
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Notes to the Accounts

1 Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies
In applying the accounting policies as set out in pages 94 to 109 of this document, the Commissioner has had
to make certain judgements about complex transactions or those involving uncertainty about future events.
The critical judgements made in the Statement of Accounts are:

= There is a high degree of uncertainty about future levels of funding for policing. However, the
Commissioner has determined that this uncertainty is not yet sufficient to provide an indication that the
assets of the Commissioner might be impaired as a result of a need to close facilities and reduce levels of
service provision.

= The Commissioner is deemed to control the services provided under the PFl agreement in relation to the
West Cumbria TPA HQ at Workington. The accounting policies for PFI schemes and similar contracts
have been applied to the arrangement. The Commissioner has a number of options regarding ownership
of the PFI building beyond the initial 25 year contract period including the right to purchase the asset for
half of its market value at that time. In accounting for the PFI contract it is assumed that there is
reasonable certainty that the Commissioner will exercise the right to purchase the building. Accordingly
the PFl land and building are recognised as property, plant and equipment in the Commissioner’s
balance sheet at full value of £7.7m. In addition, a liability for outstanding obligations to pay for the
building, which includes the cost of purchasing the asset for half its construction cost at the end of the
PFl period are also shown on the balance sheet. As the PFI contract approaches its end it may be
necessary to reflect an additional liability to recognise that the market value of the asset may exceed the
construction cost.

2 Events after the Balance Sheet Date
A post balance sheet event is an event, subsequent to the date of the financial statements, and for which
International Financial Reporting Standards and the Code require adjustment or disclosure. Consideration
has been given as to whether any events meet the requirement to be disclosed as a post balance sheet event
and it has been concluded that no such matters require disclosure.

The Statement of Accounts was authorised for issue by the Commissioner’s Chief Finance Officer on 22
September 2014. Events taking place after this date are not reflected in the financial statements or notes.

3 Assumptions made about the future and other Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
The statement of Accounts contains estimated figures that are based on assumptions made by the
Commissioner about the future or that are otherwise uncertain. Estimates are made taking into account
historical experience, current trends and other relevant factors. However, because balances cannot be
determined with certainty, actual results could be materially different from the assumptions and estimates.

The items in the Commissioner’s group balance sheet as at 31 March 2014 for which there is significant risk
of material adjustment in the forthcoming financial year are as follows:

Uncertainties Effect if Actual Results Differ from

Assumptions

Debtors

At 31 March 2014 the Commissioner had a
balance of debtors invoices raised of £698k. A
review of significant balances suggested that
an impairment of doubtful debts of £4k was
appropriate. However, in the current
economic climate it is not certain that such an
allowance would be sufficient.

If collection rates were to deteriorate, a
doubling of the amount of the impairment

of doubtful debts would require an
additional £4k to set aside as an allowance.
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Uncertainties

Effect if Actual Results Differ from
Assumptions

Property,
Plant and
Equipment

Assets are depreciated over useful lives that
are dependent on assumptions about the level
of repairs and maintenance that will be
incurred in relation to individual assets.

The current economic climate makes it
uncertain that the Commissioner will be able
to sustain its current spending on repairs and
maintenance, bringing into doubt the useful
lives assigned to assets.

Land and buildings assets are revalued on a
five year rolling basis. Therefore the value of
the assets that have not been subject to
valuation in the financial year may not reflect
the true value of that asset.

If the useful life of assets is reduced,
depreciation increases and the carrying
amount of the asset falls.

It is estimated that the annual depreciation
charge for buildings would increase by £26k
for every year that useful lives had to be
reduced.

Revaluation gains and losses or disposal
proceeds in future years may be
significantly different than anticipated.
However, as all land and building assets are
subject to an impairment review in the year,
the impact of this is thought to be
immaterial.

Provisions

The Commissioner has made a provision of
£495k for the settlement of insurance
liabilities for a number of eventualities which
are not covered by external insurers. The
provision is based on an actuarial estimate but
it is not yet certain that all valid claims have
yet been received by the Commissioner.

An increase over the forthcoming year of
10% in either the number of claims received
or the estimated average settlement would
each have the effect of adding £50k to the
provision needed.

The Commissioner has made a provision of
£45k in respect of termination costs
(redundancy and additional pensions) in
respect of redundancies to which the
Constabulary had made an offer and could no
longer withdraw as at 31 March 2014 which
will take place in 2014/15.

Throughout the period of re-organisation,
termination costs have been met from the
Management of Change Reserve established
for this purpose, any increase in the costs of
termination (over and above that in the
provision) will be met from the reserve.

Any increase or decrease in the actual
amount paid compared to the established
provision will fall to the revenue budget for
2014/15.

The Commissioner has made a provision of
£250k in respect of legal claims that are
currently ongoing.

Any increase or decrease in the actual
liability will need to be met from the
revenue budget.

Pensions
Liability

Estimation of the net liability to pay pensions
depends on a number of complex judgements
relating to the discount rate used, the rate at
which salaries are projected to increase,
changes in retirement ages, mortality rates
and expected returns on pension fund assets.
Two firms of consulting actuaries are engaged
to provide the Commissioner with expert
advice about the assumptions to be applied
for both the Police Pension Scheme
(Government Actuaries Department) and the
Local Government Pension Scheme (Mercer
Ltd).

The effects on the net pension liability of
changes in individual assumptions can be
measured. Examples of the impact of
changes in individual assumptions s
included in the sensitivity analysis provided
in note 15c (pages 56- 57).
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4 Adjustments between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis under Regulations
This note details the adjustments that are made to the total comprehensive income and expenditure
recognised by the Commissioner in the year in accordance with proper accounting practice to the resources
that are specified by statutory provisions as being available to the Commissioner to meet future capital and
revenue expenditure.

The figures for the Group for 2013/14 are set out in the table below:

Group Group Group Group Group Group
Police Capital Capital Total Total Total
Fund Receipts Grants Usable Unusable Reserves

Balance Reserve  Unapplied Reserves Reserves

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

Adjustments primarily involving the Capital Adjustment
Account

Reversal of items debited or credited to the

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
(CIES)

Charges for depreuatlon and |mpa|rment of non-current | : : ‘ :
assets

Revaluation (gains)/losses on Property, Plant &
Equipment

Amounts of non-current assets written off on disposal or :
5.?.'.?_?.?.E?_r_F_‘_’_f_F_h_?_8.?].’]/.'9.5_5__9_?_51_[?_99_5?_!.t?.ﬁhﬁ.‘;!_&_ﬁ_s________.E__________
Statutory provision for the financing of capital investment

Capital grants and contributions unapplied credited to the
CI&ES
Appllcatlon of grants to cap|ta| flna ncmg transferred to

the Capital Adjustment Account

Adjustments primarily involving the Capital Receipts i
RSV e
Transfer of cash sale proceeds credited as part of the
gain/loss on disposal to the CI&ES
Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to fin nance new ca pltal
expenditure P.32a

Contribution from the Capital Receipts Reserve towards !
administration costs of non currentassetdisposals i 6e/20f |

|

credited to the CI&ES %
Employer's pension contributions and direct payments to | |
¢

|

{

(28,583)|

pensioners payableintheyear ..
Adjustments primarily involving the Collection Fund
Adjustment Account i
Amount by which council tax income credited to the CI&ES |

is different from council tax in the year in accordance

with statutory requirements

Adjustments prlmarlly |nvolvmg the Accumulated g
Absences Account -
Amount by which offlcer remuneratlon charged to the g

!

l

|

CI&ES on an accruals basis is different from remuneration |
chargeablein the year in accordance with statutory i ! : H 3 H
(308) 0: 0: (308)! 308! 0

requirements 1 19d
Total Adjustments 43,566 (145): 101: 43,522} (43,522): 0
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The comparative figures for the Group for 2012/13 are set out in the table below:

Group Group Group Group Group Group
Police Capital Capital Total Total Total
Fund Receipts Grants Usable Unusable Reserves
Balance Reserve  Unapplied Reserves Reserves

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

n-current assets written off on disposal or salea
isposal to th ES

Application of grants to capital financing transferred to the Capital
Adjustment Account

Transfer of cash sale proceeds credited as part of the gain/loss on

disposal tothe CI&ES
Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new capital
expenditure 320 0L (139)

Contribution from the Capital Receipts Reserve towards
administration costs of non current asset disposals

Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or credited :
tothe CIES (Note19) |153/19¢

Employer's pension contributions and direct payments to pensioners
payablein the year

Adjustments primarily involving the Collection Fund Adjustment
Account

Amount by which council tax income credited to the CI&ES is
different from council tax in the year in accordance with statutory : :
requirements L__l?_@_/_is)__ e 192)

Amount by which officer remuneration charged to the CI&ES on an é
accruals basis is different from remuneration chargeable in the year ;
in accordance with statutory requirements

l 19d | (5)1 [} o (5)! 5! 0
Total Adjustments ; 3,704 1,188} 427! 5319:  (5,319)! 0
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The figures for the PCC for 2013/14 are set out in the table below:

PCC PCC PCC PCC PCC PCC
Police Capital Capital Total Total Total
Fund Receipts Grants Usable Unusable Reserves
Balance Reserve  Unapplied Reserves Reserves
£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s
Adjustments primarily involving the Capital Adjustment : : ; :
Account I b
Reversal of items debited or credited to the : :

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
(CI&ES)

Charges for depreciation and impairment of non-current | . {7777 ST R
assets 4 6 4395 0 L 4395,  (4395)

Revaluation (gains)/losses on Property, Plant & !
Equipment

Amounts of non-current assets written off on disposal or {
sale as part of the gain/loss on disposal to the CI&ES i\ 6e/10

Statutory provision for the financing of capital investment

Adjustments primarily involving the Capital Grants
Unapplied Account

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------- e

Adjustments primarily involving the Capital Receipts | | T
L= S I S S S S

Transfer of cash sale proceeds credited as part of the
gain/loss on disposal to the CI&ES

Contribution from the Capital Receipts Reserve towards
administration costs of non current asset disposals

credited tothe CI&ES (Note19)  15a/19% 168

Employer's pension contributions and direct payments to
pensioners payablein the year k 15a/19e

Adjustments primarily involving the Collection Fund
Adjustment Account o :
Amount by which council tax income credited to the CI&ES |
is different from council tax in the year in accordance i i i

with statutory requirements i 19¢/30 74 (74)§ 0

Adjustments primarily involving the Accumulated
Absences Account
Amount by which officer remuneration charged to the i
CI&ES on an accruals basis is different from remuneration |
chargeablein the year in accordance with statutory i

requirements i 19d ‘; 1| 0 o 1) (1)} 0
Total Adjustments i 1,495 (145): 101! 1,451  (1,451): 0
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The comparative figures for the PCC for 2012/13 are set out in the table below:

PCC PCC PCC PCC PCC PCC
Police Capital Capital Total Total Total
Fund Receipts Grants Usable Unusable Reserves
Balance Reserve  Unapplied Reserves Reserves

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

n-current assets written off on disposal or salea
isposal to th ES

Application of grants to capital financing transferred to the Capital
Adjustment Account

Transfer of cash sale proceeds credited as part of the gain/loss on
disposal to the CI&ES

Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new capital
expenditure 322 00 (189)

Contribution from the Capital Receipts Reserve towards
administration costs of non current asset disposals

Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or credited :
tothe CIES (Note 19) . 153/19¢

Employer's pension contributions and direct payments to pensioners
payablein the year

Adjustments primarily involving the Collection Fund Adjustment
Account

Amount by which council tax income credited to the CI&ES is
different from council tax in the year in accordance with statutory
requirements

Amount by which officer remuneration charged to the CI&ES on an é
accruals basis is different from remuneration chargeable in the year ;
in accordance with statutory requirements

s 5 o o ® s 0

Total Adjustments ; 3,704 1,188 427! 5319:  (5,319)! 0
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Transfers to/from Earmarked Reserves

5

This note sets out the amounts set aside from the Police Fund balances in earmarked reserves to provide
financing for future expenditure plans and the amounts credited to earmarked reserves to meet Police Fund

expenditure in 2013/14 (and for 2012/13).
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Notes to the Accounts

A narrative description of the purpose of each of the earmarked reserves is provided below for information:

= Insurance —to offset any insurance claims not specifically detailed in the insurance provision.
=  Management of Change —to help manage significant organisational change.

= Operational Contingency — to provide resources both to back up the annual operational contingency
and, in addition, to assist in funding unexpected major events, if necessary.

=  PFl Reserves — to equalise the impact on the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement of
changing levels of grant income and charges over the period of the contract

= Police and Crime Commissioner —to provide a dedicated reserve for the Commissioner’s responsibilities.

= Police and Crime Commissioner Transition — to help manage the potential costs associated with the
transition to Police Commissioners.

= Investment Fund — to invest in initiatives such as technology, equipment and training to meet the
Commissioner’s priorities and to increase the productivity of the Constabulary. Revenue Underspends
amounting to £3m were added to this reserve during the year.

= Past Service Cost LGPS — reserve established in 2013/14 to be used to help meet additional past service
costs chargeable in 2014/15 as a result of the decision to pay 3 years contribution upfront in order to
generate a saving.

= Mobile Data — to support the roll out in relation to the use, benefits and efficiencies offered by the use
of mobile data.

= Police National Database - to offset the revenue costs associated with the implementation of the Police
National Database system.

= Public Holiday - to smooth peaks in overtime expenditure due when bank holidays fall across financial
years.

=  Budget Holders Funds —to support a variety of locally managed initiatives arising from unspent balances
in previous years, granted under the scheme of devolved resource management.

= Capital Reserve — direct contributions from revenue to fund capital schemes within the approved capital
programme. Capital reserves are set at a level to ensure that the programme is fully funded for the life
of the medium term financial forecast (4 years).
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The table below summarises the movements in Property, Plant and Equipment during the year:
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Notes to the Accounts

6.a

6.b

6.c

6.d

Valuations Rolling Programme

The Commissioner carries out a rolling programme that ensures that all Property, Plant and Equipment
required to be measured at fair value is revalued at least every five years. Valuations of land and buildings
are carried out on behalf of the Commissioner by Mr. C. Smith Bsc MRICS of Carigiet Cowen and were carried
out in accordance with the methodologies and bases for estimation set out in the professional standards of
the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors (RICS). Valuations of vehicles, plant, furniture and equipment are
based on historic cost as a proxy for fair value. The basis of the valuations is set out in the statement of
accounting policies on page 102. The table below sets out details of the land and buildings valuations
undertaken over the five year rolling programme.

PCC/Group Total
Land Vehicles IT Furniture Assets Property,
and Equipment Under Plant &
Buildings Technology & Plant Construction Equipment
£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

-31March2014 38075 0L .

38,075
-31March2013 ;8115 0O o0

-31March2012 i 6,586 ... S 0 229 ... 0 6815
-31March2011 i 5100 0 0Of 0 0 510
Total Costor Valuation ' 54,050 7,823 23,170: 2,950: 709; 88,702

..................................................................................................................................................................

Impairment Review

The Commissioner’s professional valuer, Mr. C. Smith of Carigiet Cowen, has made an assessment of the
possible effects of material impairment to land and buildings during the financial year. His assessment was
based on a number of specific criteria, which, in his opinion, could affect the valuation of assets. The
outcome of the assessment process is that the valuer has concluded that there are no impairments.

Property, Plant and Equipment in the Ownership of the Police and Crime Commissioner
A brief analysis of the Commissioner's principal assets as at 31 March 2014 is set out below:

PCC/Group
As at 31 March
2013 2014
Number Number
HQ, TPA HQ & Larger Police Stations

Effects of Changes in Estimates
There have been no material changes in estimates in the 2013/14 accounts.
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6.e Gain / Loss on Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment
The table below analyses the (gain)/loss on sale of property, plant and equipment for the year ended 31
March 2014.

PCC/Group
Net Book Proceeds of
Value Costs of Sale Sale (Gain) / Loss
00003 00003 00003 £000s
Land and Buildings : (448) (29):
: ' (59) (51):
(507) (80):

The comparative figures for 2012/13 are set out in the table below:

PCC/Group
Net Book Proceeds of
Value Costs of Sale Sale (Gain) / Loss
E00103 £000s £000s

iLand and Buildings i (1,323)
: ‘ (88)

Note in 2013/14 £49k (£68k in 2012/13) of receipts from proceeds of sale included in the above table were
individually below the £10k threshold for recognition as capital receipts and have therefore been treated as
revenue income. This explains why the capital receipts recorded in note 4 show £458k (£1,343k in 2012/13)
rather than £507k (£1,411k in 2012/13) as above.

7 Capital Commitments
The Commissioner has outstanding contractual commitments amounting to £8,470k in respect of a number
of schemes from the 2013/14 capital programme (£235k in 2012/13). The capital budget outturn report for
2013/14 was presented to the Commissioner’s Executive Board on 04 June 2014 and is available on the
Commissioner’s website.

Outstanding Capital Commitments PCC/Group
As at 31 March

2013 2014
£000s

%F'”ancea”dBUS'”GSSSVStemSUpgradeProJeCt

| {HQ Roof Repairs
,{Tntffsxats_ﬁﬂu@mén99&1@2@}191&5&%@Uw,,wumwmwww R =1

Jadm Replacements

'South Estate - Barrow

mK/ehicIe Replacement
Jfl’otal

................................................................................................................................................................

{
;
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8 Intangible Assets
The Commissioner accounts for his computer software as intangible assets, to the extent that the software is
not an integral part of a particular IT system and accounted for as part of the hardware item within Property,
Plant and Equipment. The intangible assets include computer software development and acquisitions. All
software is given a finite useful life (5 years), based on assessments of the period that the software is
expected to be of use to the Commissioner. The carrying amount of intangible assets is amortised on a
straight line basis and is charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

A summary of the movements in intangible assets during the year and the position as at 31 March 2014
(with comparatives for 2012/13) is set out in the table below:

PCC/Group
2012/13 2013/14 Intangible Assets are
£000s £000s those which do not
have physical
Balance at start of year substance but are
- controlled as a result
- Gross carrying amount 4,756 4,997 of past events (e.g.
- Accumulated amortisation (3,033) (3,736) software licences)
Net carrying amount at start of year 1,723 1,261 where expenditure is
capitalised when it is
Reclassification Adjustment 0 (66) expected that future
Additions 241 86 economic benefits or
Disposals 0 0 service potential will
flow from the asset.
Amort!sat!ons fgr the period . (703) (637) Amortisation is the
Amortisation adjustment re disposals 0 0 practice of reducing
Net carrying amount at end of year 1,261 643 the value of assets to
reflect their reduced
Comprising worth over time. The
- Gross carrying amount 4,997 5,017 term means the same
- Accumulated amortisation (3,736) (4,374) as depreciation.
1,261 643

PCC/Group
Allocation of Amortisation 2012/13 2013/14 o
£000s £000s The amorfls'at'.‘n‘m in
. the year is initially
Local Policing 317 287 charged to the IT
Dealing with the Public 76 69 Services Department
Criminal Justice Arrangements 79 72 and is then allocated
Road Policing 46 42 across services on a
Specialist Operations 22 20 headcount basis. The
Intelligence 48 43 table to the left
Specialist Investigations 89 81 shows the amount of
Investigative Support 18 16 gmortisation
National Polici 3 = attributable to each
ational Policing service heading.
703 637
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9

10

Heritage Assets

A heritage asset is a tangible asset with historical, artistic, scientific, technological, geophysical or
environmental qualities that is held and maintained principally for its contribution to knowledge and
culture.

The code requires Heritage Assets, which are maintained principally for their contribution to knowledge or
culture, to be separately disclosed.

The Commissioner holds a small number of historical ephemera relating to policing in Cumbria which would
fall under the definition of heritage assets including: a ceremonial chair, four antique firearms, several
trophies, a commemorative plaque, two ceremonial swords and four portraits.

In the opinion of the Commissioner the assets do not have a material intrinsic value in the context of the
Commissioner’s accounts. Due to their historical origin no cost or valuation information is available and
because of their diverse nature specialist valuations would be required to obtain a reliable estimate of their
value. The Commissioner is of the opinion that the costs of obtaining the valuations for these items would
be disproportionate in terms of the benefits gained and therefore no values are included in the
Commissioner’s balance sheet.

Assets Held for Sale

Assets held for sale relate to land and buildings assets that are available for immediate sale in their present
condition subject to terms that are usual and customary for sales of such assets. The assets are being
actively marketed for a sale at a price that is reasonable in relation to its current fair value. The sale is
expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification.

The table below shows the movement on Assets Held for Sale in 2013/14 with comparative information for
2012/13.

PCC/Group
As at 31 March

2013 2014

£000s £000s
Balance outstanding at start of year 181 416
Newly classified as held for sale 2,427 0
Revaluation gains/(losses) (942) 0
Reversal of Impairment losses 72 0
Assets sold (1,204) (416)
De-classified as held for sale (118) 0
Balance outstanding at end of year 416 0
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11 Financial Instruments

Financial Instruments are contracts that give rise to a financial asset in one entity and a financial liability
in another. The term covers both financial assets such as loans and receivables and financial liabilities
such as creditors and borrowings.

11.a Categories of Financial Instrument
The following categories of financial instrument are carried in the balance sheet:

PCC PCC Group Group
Long Term Current Long Term Current

31March 31March 31March 31March 31March 31March 31March 31 March
2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014
£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

Financial Assets
§ Investments
§Loans and receiva

i De btors

12,206, 18,029

Credltors

IO
Flnanual liabilities carried at contract amounts | (7,431) (8,796)

|

]

: ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, \Azr ,,,,,,,,,,,,, F wwwww —— FUNS ,T._, ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,
Total Financial Liabilities i 5,309 1,349)| 1,586, 5,309 5,220 7,516)! 8,885
, e .gw_,: ,__(__,._)T__(_ )I ( ,L ) s (s

11.b Gains and Losses on Financial Instruments
The gains and losses recognised in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in 2013/14
relating to financial instruments are made up as follows:

PCC/Group 2012/13 PCC/Group 2013/14
Financial Financial Financial Financial
Liabilities Liabilities Financial Assets Liabilities Liabilities Financial Assets
Held at PFI/Finance Loans & Held at PFI/Finance Loans &
amortised cost [EL Receivables amortised cost Lease Receivables
£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s
InterestExpense L ' . T . A
mpairment Losses 0 (2)
Bad Debts Provision Increase) @ e
otrz;lrlré)rtr;;enses in (Surplus) or . 2 el o 60 (2 k9 0o 667
'Deficit on the Provision of Services !
nterestincome . 0 o0 (04 (104 0o 0 (148 (148)
Totallncome in (Surplus) or Deficit (148)
onthe Provision of Services i
| Net (Gain)/Loss for the Year ) s
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11.c Fair value of Assets and Liabilities Carried at Amortised Cost
Financial liabilities and assets represented by loans and receivables and long term debtors and creditors are
carried in the balance sheet at amortised cost. Their fair value can be assessed by calculating the present
value of the cash flows that will take place over the remaining term of the instruments, using the following
assumptions:

e Estimated interest rates at 31 March 2014 of 5% for loans from the Public Works Loans Board
(PWLB).

e No early repayment or impairment is recognised

e Where an instrument will mature in the next 12 months, carrying amount is assumed to be
approximate to fair value

e The fair value of trade and other receivables is taken to be the invoiced amount.

e In calculating the fair value of the PFI a discount rate based on the returns of a zero coupon AA
corporate bond have been used to discount future cash flows as this instrument has an estimated
risk profile equivalent to that of public sector PFl schemes.

The fair values calculated are as follows:

PCC PCC Group Group
31 March 2013 31 March 2014 31 March 2013 31 March 2014
Carrying E Carrying ET Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Value Amount Value Amount Value Amount Value
£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

.f._.w
Fnandalassets | L 1L
| iInvestments W_W_WLW  7,603] 7,603,  13,636] 13,636 7,603 7,603, 13,636 13,636
‘Debtors | 4,467 4,467 4,285 4,285 4,603] 4,603 : 4,393
T ARty Ryt ong by et e B : P
: | 12,070 12,070, 17,921, 17,921 12,206, 12,206 18,029: 18,029
15 e e B R S

i i | : |

For financial assets the fair value is shown to be the same as the carrying amount as the investments are for
a short period and there is no option to vary the amount or timing of repayment.

In relation to the PFI, the fair value exceeds the carrying amount as a result of the historically higher level of
interest rates prevailing at the inception of the PFl arrangement and the interest rate implicit within the PFI
agreement.

11.d Disclosure of the Nature and Extent of Risks Arising from Financial Instruments

The Commissioner’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks. The Commissioner’s annual Treasury
Management Strategy focuses on these risks and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the
resources available to fund services. The Commissioner provides written policies within its Treasury
Management Strategy covering interest rate risk, credit risk and the investment of surplus cash balances. A
copy of the current Treasury Management Strategy Statement can be found on the Police and Crime
Commissioner’s website at:
www.cumbria-pcc.gov.uk/media/25573/Treasury%20Management%20Strategy%20Statement%202014-

15.pdf
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Credit Risk

Credit Risk is the possibility that other parties might fail to pay amounts due to the Commissioner.

Credit risk arises from deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit exposures to the
Commissioner’s customers.

This risk is minimised through the application of policies set out in the annual Treasury Management
Strategy Statement (TMSS), which requires that deposits are not made with financial institutions unless they
meet identified minimum credit criteria, as laid down by Fitch and Moody’s ratings services. The annual
TMSS (approved by the Commissioner in February 2013), also imposes a maximum sum to be invested with a
financial institution located within each category. An amendment to the TMSS was subsequently approved
in June 2013 in light of revisions to the cash flow forecasts, which indicated that average balances available
for investment would be higher than anticipated, the change increased the maximum amounts which could
be invested with individual financial institutions and classes of financial institutions. All other investment
criteria remained unchanged.

The credit criteria as set out in the 2013/14 TMSS (and amendments approved in June 2013) in respect of
financial assets held by the Commissioner are detailed below:

Financial Asset Category Minimum Maximum
Criteria Investment
Deposits with major UK and non Short Term: F1/P1 The lower of £3m (per
UK Banks and Building Societies Long Term: A-/Al institution or group).
Support Rating: 3 Maximum of all deposits
£12m.

June 2013 increased to £4.5m
and £18m respectively.
Deposits with Money Market Long Term: AAA £2m per fund. Maximum of
Funds all deposits £10m.

June 2013 increased to £3m
and £15m respectively.

Deposits with Other Local Not credit rated but are legally £2m per authority. Maximum
Authorities required to set a balanced budget. of all deposits — No Limit.
Deposits with Debt Management | Not credit rated but deposits have No limit.

Agency Deposit Facility the best possible credit through the

HM Government guarantee

In February 2014, the annual update to the TMSS was agreed by the Commissioner. At which point, the
minimum investment criteria outlined in the table above was reduced from institutions with a minimum
short term credit rating of F1 to F2. The change was largely as a result of improved stability in economic
conditions, the fact that most banks have had their credit ratings downgraded and the view of the
Commissioner’s treasury advisors that an F2 risk profile would represent a prudent level of risk. The agreed
revised strategy for 2014/15 was implemented with immediate effect for the remainder of 2013/14.

The Commissioner’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its investments in banks, building
societies and other Local Authority’s of £14m at the balance sheet date cannot be assessed generally as the
risk of any institution failing to make interest payments or repay the principal sum will be specific to each
individual institution. Recent experience has shown that it is rare for such entities to be unable to meet their
commitments. A risk of irrecoverability applies to all of the Commissioner’s deposits, but there was no
evidence at the 31 March 2014 that this was likely to happen.
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The following analysis summarises the Commissioner’s potential maximum exposure to credit risk, on other
financial assets, based on experience of default and uncollectability over the last five financial years,
adjusted to reflect current market conditions.

PCC/Group Historical Estimated Comparative
Historical = Experience maximum Estimated
Amount Experience  Adjusted exposure maximum
at of for Market  to default and exposure

31/03/14 Default Conditions uncollectability at 31/03/13

£000s % at 31/03/14 £000s £000s
; ]

iCustomers - Operational Debtors 0.04%

- z

The Commissioner does not generally allow credit for customers. At the 31 March 2014, £231k of the
£1,362k balance of operational debt was past the due date for payment. This sum has increased from the
balance at 31 March 2013 (£74k out of £1,363k overdue), as a consequence the Commissioner has increased
the bad debt provision as at 31 March 2014 from £2k to £4k to reflect a degree of uncertainty around some
of the longer standing debts. The past due amount can be analysed by age as follows:

PCC/Group
As at 31 March
2013 2014
£000s £000s
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Liquidity Risk

Liquidity Risk is the possibility that the Commissioner might not have funds available to meet its
commitments to make payments.

As the Commissioner has ready access to borrowings from the PWLB and had at 31 March 2014 no actual
external debt having financed a number of recent projects through internal borrowing, there is no significant
risk that it will be unable to raise finance to meet its commitments under financial instruments. A more
pertinent risk is that the Commissioner will be required to replenish a significant proportion of its internal
borrowings at a time of unfavourable interest rates. At the balance sheet date the Commissioner is
confident that it has adequate working capital principally as a result of its reserves to mitigate this risk.
Nevertheless, prevailing money market rates are regularly monitored with a view to ensuring that long term
debt financing decisions are made at the optimum time.

All operational liabilities are due to be repaid within one year.

Market Risk

Market Risk is the possibility that financial loss might arise for the Commissioner as a result of changes in
such measures as interest rates and stock market movements.

The Commissioner is exposed to some risk due to movements in interest rates on its loans and investments.
These potential risks are:

e Anincrease in interest rates will result in a fall in the fair value of borrowings and investments.

e Adecrease in interest rates will result in a rise in the fair value of borrowings and investments.

e The value of interest received from investments will rise or fall depending on increases and
decreases in interest rates and will impact on the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement.

As all of the Commissioner’s existing borrowings and investments have been placed at fixed rates, this risk
has to a large extent been minimised.

Borrowings and investments are carried in the Balance Sheet at fair value, so nominal gains and losses on
fixed rate financial instruments have no impact on the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

The Commissioner carries out its borrowing and investment function within parameters set out in its
Treasury Management Strategy, which assesses interest rate exposure to feed into the budget process.
Forecasts are updated regularly throughout the year, which allows any significant changes to interest rates
to be reflected in current budget projections.

The Treasury Management Strategy also advises on the limits for new variable and fixed-rate borrowing for
the year. No new external borrowing was undertaken in 2013/14.
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12

Short-term Debtors

Debtors reflect amounts owing to the Police and Crime Commissioner but not yet received at the end of
the financial year.

A breakdown of the amounts owing to the Commissioner as at 31 March 2014 is set out in the table below:

PCC Group

2013
£000s

As at 31 March
2014
£000s

As at 31 March
2013
£000s

2014
£000s

Central Government Bodies 4,302 3,971 4,302 3,971
Other Police / Local Authorities 532 485 532 485
NHS Bodies 69 68 69 68
Public Corporations & Trading Funds 4 9 4 9
Other Entities and Individuals (*) 5,007 5,269 5,007 5,269
Impairment (Provision for Bad Debts) (863) (866) (863) (866)
Other Entities and Individuals (Net of Impairment) 4,144 4,403 4,144 4,403
Balances Owed From Chief Constable:

- Re CC Share of External Creditors 7,920 8,211 0 0
- Re balance of Funding 2,960 3,204 0 0
Total Debtors 19,931 20,351 9,051 8,936

* The amounts in respect of other entities and individuals are analysed further in the table below

information.

* Analysis of Other Entities and Individuals

PCC
As at 31 March

2013
£000s

2014
£000s

Group

As at 31 March
2013
£000s

2014
£000s

Police Pensioners Prepayment 1,906 2,018 1,906 2,018
Goods and Services 418 354 418 354
Prepayments/Payments In Advance 877 1,027 877 1,027
Employees (accumulating compensating absences) 103 109 103 109
Local Taxpayers (#) 1,703 1,761 1,703 1,761

5,007 5,269 5,007 5,269
Less - Provision for Bad Debts (Goods & Services) (2) (4) (2) (4)
Less - Provision for Bad Debts (Local Taxpayers) (#) (861) (862) (861) (862)

(863) (866) (863) (866)
Other Entities and Individuals (Net of Impairment) 4,144 4,403 4,144 4,403

# The debtors in respect of Local Taxpayers represent the Commissioner’s share of the debtors recorded by
the 6 Cumbrian District Councils in respect of Council Tax. This figure is reduced by the Commissioner’s

share of their respective bad debt provisions.
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13

Short-term Creditors

Creditors reflect amounts owed by the Police and Crime Commissioner for goods and services received
which had not been paid for at the end of the financial year.

An analysis of the amounts owed by the Commissioner as at 31 March 2014 is set out in the table below:

PCC

As at 31 March

2013
£000s

2014
200103

Group

As at 31 March

2013
£000s

2014
£000s

Central Government Bodies (1,913) (1,847) (1,913) (1,847)
Other Police / Local Authorities (897) (960) (897) (960)
NHS Bodies (3) (4) (3) (4)
Public Corporations & Trading Funds 0 0 0 0
Other Entities and Individuals (*) (7,376) (7,922) (7,376) (7,922)
Balances Owed to Chief Constable:

- Re CC Share of External & Employee Debtors (2,760) (2,986) 0 0
- Re balance of Funding (5,428) (5,557) 0 0
Total Creditors (18,377). (19,276) (10,189): (10,733)

* The amounts in respect of other entities and individuals are analysed further in the table below for

information.

PCC Group
As at 31 March

As at 31 March
2013 2014
£000s £000s

2013
00103

2014
£000s

Police and Crime Commissioner for Cumbria — Statement of Accounts 2013/14

* Analysis of Other Entities and Individuals
Goods and Services (2,731) (3,438) (2,731) (3,438)
Receipts In Advance (267) (338) (267) (338)
Employees (accumulating compensating absences) (3,773) (3,471) (3,773) (3,471)
Local Taxpayers (605) (675) (605) (675)
Other Entities and Individuals (7,376) (7,922) (7,376) (7,922)
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14

Provisions

The Commissioner is able to maintain provisions to meet expected future liabilities. The Code of Practice on
Local Authority Accounting advises that the value of any provisions be charged to the appropriate part of the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in anticipation of the liability having to be met in the
future. The classification of provisions is consistent with the Code of Practice.

A brief description of the purpose of the individual provisions as at 31 March 2014 is provided below:

= |nsurance liabilities — this provision has been established to meet a number of eventualities which are
not covered by external insurers. In particular, liability risks up to £25k (per event) are retained by the
Commissioner and met internally.
= Termination Payments - this employee related provision relates to a liability that exists in respect of
termination benefits as a result of a decision made during 2013/14 for which the actual payments will

fall into 2014/15.

= Legal Claims — this provision has been established to cover the potential costs relating to a number of
legal claims that are currently ongoing.

=  MMI Insurance Claims — this provision was established to meet the potential costs arising from the
scheme of arrangement put in place by the Commissioner’s former insurer Municipal Mutual Insurance
Ltd. During 2013/14 a sum of £45k was paid to the County Council in respect of the Commissioner’s
share of the liability arising to January 2014 (see note 31 contingent liabilities for further details).

The table below shows the movements during the year on each of the group provisions and the position as

at 31 March 2014.

Provisions

Balance
as at
01/04/13

£000s

Additional
Provisions
Made 2013/14

0003

£000s

Amounts
Used in
2013/14

£000s

Unused
Amounts
Reversedin
2013/14

Balance
as at
31/03/14

£000s

Insurance Liabilities (593) (52) 150 0 (495)
Termination Payments (532) (45) 194 338 (45)
Legal Claims (130) (250) 122 8 (250)
MMI Insurance Claims (45) 0 45 0 0
Total Provisions (1,300) (347) 511 346 (790)

The comparative information for year ended 31 March 2013 is as follows:

Additional
Provisions
Made 2012/13

Balance
as at
31/03/13

Unused
Amounts
Reversed in

Amounts
Used in
20112/13

Balance
as at
01/04/12

Provisions

2012/13

£000s

20003

£000s

£000s

£000s

Insurance Liabilities (593) (205) 205 0 (593)
Termination Payments (232) (532) 232 0 (532)
Pay Awards (141) 0 141 0 0
Legal Claims 0 (130) 0 0 (130)
MMI Insurance Claims 0 (45) 0 0 (45)
Total Provisions (966) (912) 578 0 (1,300)

The MMI Insurance Claim Provision is the only one included in the Single Entity Statements for the PCC.
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49 |Page



Notes to the Accounts

15
15.a

Pensions

Pension Schemes

As part of the terms and conditions of employment of its officers and other employees, the Commissioner
offers retirement benefits. Although these benefits will not actually be payable until employees retire,
under IAS 19 the Commissioner must recognise its future commitment to make payments, which need to be
disclosed at the time that employees earn their future entitlement. In addition, the financial statements
should contain adequate disclosure of the costs of providing benefits and related gains/losses.

The Commissioner participates in two pension schemes:

= The Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) for Police Staff employees, administered by Cumbria
County Council (outsourced to Lancashire County Council) — this is a funded defined benefit scheme,
meaning that the Commissioner and employees pay contributions into a fund. Contributions are
calculated at a level intended to balance the pensions liabilities with investment assets over the long
term. In 2013/14 the Commissioner made a contribution of 11.1% of pensionable pay supplemented by
a contribution to past service costs for the group of £799k (£279k for the PCC single entity statements).
The contribution rate was last reviewed in March 2013 with revised rates applicable from April 2014.

=  The Police Pension Scheme is an unfunded scheme (i.e. there are no investment assets built up to meet
pension liabilities and cash has to be generated to meet actual pensions payments as they fall due). The
Commissioner and employees pay contributions into a separate pensions fund account administered by
the Commissioner from which on-going pensions liabilities are met. At the year-end any surplus or
deficit on the pensions fund account is paid to or met by the Commissioner who then repays or is
reimbursed by the Home Office. (2013/14 contribution rates for employers were 24.2% of pensionable
pay and was last reviewed in March 2007).

The principal risk to the Commissioner of the schemes are the longevity assumptions, statutory changes to
the scheme, structural changes to the scheme (i.e. large-scale withdrawals from the scheme), changes to
inflation, bond yields and the performance of the equity investments held by the scheme. These are
mitigated to a certain extent by the statutory requirements to charge the Police Fund the amounts required
by statute as described in the accounting policies note.

The cost of retirement benefits is recognised in the Cost of Services within the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement when employees earn them, rather than when the benefits are eventually paid as
pensions. However, the charge required to be made against Council Tax is based on the contributions in the
year, so the real cost of retirement benefits is reversed out of the Police Fund in the Movement in Reserves
Statement.
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The following transactions have been made in the Group Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
and Movement in Reserves Statement during the year:

Group Group Group Group
LGPS LGPS Police Scheme Police Scheme
Funded Benefits Unfunded Benefits Old Scheme 2006 Scheme
2012/13 2013/14 2012/13 2013/14 2012/13 2013/14 2012/13 2013/14
Re-stated Re-stated
£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement ] i ]

Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure
e Net interest expense

Total Post-employement Benefits charged to the
Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services

Other Post-employment Benefits charged to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability
COMPIISING: e

e Return on plan assets (excluding the amount
included in the net interest expense)

o Actuarial (galns) and losses arising on changes in |

demographic assumptions (380)§ (140)5 0 e

- S S-S S

140,560i (28,650); 4,000 (2,050)

e Actuarial (gains) and losses arising on changes in :
financial assumptions :

* Experience (gains) and losses on liabilities (3,665) (25,410): (19,830)§ 380 (670)
P SHE oi SHE oi oi ol 0
Total Post-employment Benefits charged to the {10,722 (9,549): 120; 71i 171,240; 12,550:  7,480: 1,990
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement !
Movementin Reserves Statement S S 5. _______________ SO S S A
e Reversal of net charges made to the Surplus or (51) (46) (56, 470) (61, 170) (3, 100) (4,720)
Deficit for the Provision of Services for post- ] ! ; : ; :
employment benefits in accordance with the Code. ! : : :
Actual amount charged against the General Fund | : i : i : i ;
Balance for pensions in theyear i : B S
e Employers' contributions payable to the scheme 65 65 0i 0 0! 0
« Retirements benefits payable to pensioners ~ :  0i 0 o 0 23,620] 26,600 '""""('é'e'é') """" (970)
Total amount charged against the Police Fund i 2,909 2,888 65! 65. 23620 26,600  (660)i  (970)
Balance for pensions in the year ; F : F : 5 : 5
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The following transactions have been made in the PCC Single Entity Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement and Movement in Reserves Statement during the year:

PCC PCC
LGPS LGPS
Funded Benefits Unfunded Benefits

2012/13 2013/14 2012/13 2013/14
Re-stated Re-stated
£000s £000s £000s £000s

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement . 4)
COStOF SEIVICES | e A
|
e Currentservicecost . 102 45
e Pastservice costs OE 0
. (Galn)/loss from settl ements 3} 0
F/nancmg and lnvestmentlncome and Expend/ture 1: 4’
* Net interest expense B B ! 31 40! 2 1
Total Post-employement Benefits charged to the Surplus or Deficit on | 139 167% 2!
the Provision of Services ; ’ f
i
Other Post-employment Benefits charged to the Comprehensive 1 ; E
Income and Expenditure Statement ; f
Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability comprising: ? ; ;
i ! :
e Return on plan assets (excluding the amountincluded in the net J; (192)s (90)1: 0 0
interest expense) ’ g :
e e e e e e e e e S ,uuuw,‘{,;u,y,u”,u,u.fww
o Actuarlal (gains) and losses arising on changes in demographic 37 80} 0: 0]
assumptions g | f
e Actuarial (gains) and losses arising on changes in financial ; 361 (349)? 2? ()
assumptions N ;
e Experience (galns) and Iosses on Ilabllltles ; 0 (120)7§ 0! 2
- e e e < R S PR .
+ Administration expenses 3 2 3 0: 0
Total Post-employment Benefits charged to the Comprehensive Income 347 (309)E 4! 2
and Expenditure Statement f
et SN (SN S
Movement in Reserves Statement R T o]
e Reversal of net charges made to the Surplus or Deficit for the 3 (139) (167)§ (2)5 (1)
Provision of Services for post-employment benefits in accordance with 3 Z !
the Code. ; s E
i
Actual amount charged against the General Fund Balance for pensions in | g
theyear S AU SR
e Employers' contributions payable to the scheme ; 95 94% 2 2
[ SRS o
e Retirements benefits payable to pensioners ; 0 05 0 0
Total amount charged against the Police Fund Balance for pensions in i 95; 94§ 2 2
the year ‘ } ]
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15.b Pensions Assets and Liabilities Recognised in the Balance Sheet
Under IAS 19, the financial statements should reflect at fair value the assets and liabilities arising from an
employer’s obligation to pay retirement benefits and the funding provided.

The underlying assets and liabilities for retirement benefits attributable to the Group at 31 March 2014 are
as follows:-

Group Group Group Group
LGPS LGPS Police Scheme Police Scheme
Funded Benefits Unfunded Benefits Old Scheme 2006 Scheme

2012/13 2013/14 2012/13 2013/14 2012/13 2013/14 2012/13 2013/14
£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s  £000s

(1, 103)z (988, 130)$ (974, 080) (22, 360); (25,320)
|

(1, 103); (988, 130)$ (974, 080) (22, 360) (25,320)

| | | |

The liabilities in the above table show the underlying commitments that the Commissioner has, in the long
run, to pay retirement benefits. The total group liability of £1.017m (£1.040m at 31 March 2013) has a
substantial impact on the net worth of the Commissioner as recorded in the group balance sheet, resulting
in a negative overall balance of £0.938m (£0.968m at 31 March 2013).

Present value of the defl ned (108 282)

(104,245);
beneflt obligation ]

'('iib'é'ii‘i

Net liability arising from (28,673)! (16, 236)5 (1 097)i
Idefmed benefit obligation |

However, statutory arrangements for funding the deficit mean that the financial position of the group
remains healthy, since:

e the deficit on the local government scheme will be made good by increased contributions and changes
to benefits over the remaining working life of employees, as assessed by the scheme actuary

e finance is only required to be raised to cover police pensions when the pensions are actually paid.

The underlying assets and liabilities for retirement benefits attributable to the PCC Single Entity at 31 March
2014 are as follows:

PCC PCC
LGPS LGPS
Funded Benefits Unfunded Benefits

2012/13 2013/14 2012/13 2013/14
£000s £000s £000s £000s

e

Teey T

.

1

fFairrvrarlLrlerorf plan assets » o0 0
U S S SN ]

| ! e

Net liability arising from defined benefit obligation 3 (930) (527)i (36) (36)
| i
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Reconciliation of present value of scheme liabilities for the group:

Group Group Group Group
LGPS LGPS Police Scheme Police Scheme
Funded Benefits  Unfunded Benefits Old Scheme 2006 Scheme
2012/13 2013/14 2012/13 2013/14 2012/13 2013/14 2012/13 2013/14
Re-stated Re-stated

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

Interest cost

Contributions by Scheme ' (1160): (1124)’ oi 0 (4330)? (4,470)! (610)  (810)
Participants i : :

Remeasurement gains and
(losses):

'
,,_,_,_”wu_,,_,,_,,_,,_,,_,,_,,_,,vywu,_,_,,,_,_,_,_,_,_u,;.uwy o

- Arising from changes in :
. . (1,151); (2,455)
demographic assumptions :

- Arising from changes in
financial assumptions

(6); 8) 3805 1405 0} 10

24} (140, 560)5 28, 6505 (4, 000)E 2,050

- Experiencegains/(losses) | | b'i """" é','éé'é """"""" 6 L) s5aiol 19830 o670

Pastservicecost b0 0 0 0 (20)000

Gains/(losses) on curtallment (181); (91); 0! 0 0i 0! 0

Benefits Paid/Transfers .| ... 20620 18521 63 e 65 27950: 31,070 (50)i __(160)

Balance at End of Year (108, 282) (104,245); (1,097); (1,103); (988, 130) (974, 030) (22, 350) (25,320)
: | | '

Reconciliation of present value of scheme liabilities for the PCC Single Entity:

PCC PCC
LGPS LGPS
Funded Benefits Unfunded Benefits
2012/13 2013/14 2012/13 2013/14 e el bitiras vl
Re-stated Re-stated both the LGPS and
£000s £000s  £000s £000s Police Pension Schemes
: have reduced during
2013/14. The Principal
reason for this

Interestcost f reduction is in relation
Contrlbutlons by Scheme :

{ i : to re-measurement
Participants ] .
S HER St ebiet ahiiehabiiebb- bttt et gains and losses.
Remeasurement gains and 3
(Iosses) { ! :
- Arlsmg from changes in (37)§ (80); 0% 0
demographic assumptions z
TfA?ising fro%ﬁgngesTru ”A(?G“) . 349 ”(2) a Nwi
financial assumptions l L :

- Experiencegains/(losses) | 0 120i O (2)
Pastservicecost w_,,,Q#mei L
)

Gains/(losses) on curtailment (6

Benef'tsPa'd/Transfersé """"" 6 '7'§ """ T 1
.B_a!ans_e_?_t__E_n_d_ef_x_eei_r________________1__ (3518)] __(3,387); ___(3_9)_%__________(_3_@

mu_,,wu_,“
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Reconciliation of fair value of the scheme assets for the group:

Balance at Start of Year

Beneﬁts Paid

Group
LGPS
Funded Benefits
2012/13 2013/14
Re-stated
£000s

Balance at End of Year ’

Group
LGPS
Unfunded Benefits
2012/13 2013/14
Re-stated
£000s £000s

Reconciliation of fair value of the scheme assets for the PCC single entity:

;Employer Contributions

PCC
LGPS
Funded Benefits
2012/13 2013/14
Re-stated
£000s £000s

PCC
LGPS
Unfunded Benefits
2012/13 2013/14
Re-stated
£000s £000s

Nioio

:Contributions by Scheme Participa nts38rmnnnnn§§‘0000m_wmg
_-Beneﬁts Paid (BT (80):(2)(2)
__,!?_a_'_a_n_cs_?_t__'_fnd_e_fle_ar _________________________________________________________ L 2,588 2860 0f . 0
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15.c

The Police Pension Scheme has no assets to cover its liabilities. The Commissioner’s share of assets in the
Cumbria County Council Pension Fund (LGPS) consists of the following categories, by proportion of the total
assets held:

Quoted PCC PCC Group Group
Y/N 2012/13 2013/14 2012/13 2013/14
LGPS Asset Breakdown £000s % £000s % £000s % £000s

_ Overseas Corporate Bonds i Y
Corporate Bonds Pooled

§7UK Government Indexed Pooled

_______________________________________________________ LR il OO0 OO [y defiibed Ity oGS

Property

| PropertyFunds
Alternatives

iCash Instruments
iCash Accounts

|_Net Current Assets

88,009 100.00%

2,860 100.00% 79,609 100.00%.

Basis for estimating assets and liabilities

Liabilities have been assessed on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method, which provides
an estimate of the pensions that will be payable in future years using assumptions about mortality rates,
salary levels, etc. William M Mercer, an independent firm of actuaries, has carried out the assessment on
the Local Government Pension Scheme. These accounts are based on the actuarial valuation undertaken on
31 March 2013. The Police Scheme estimates have been compiled using a valuation model devised by the
Government Actuaries Department.
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The principal assumptions used by the actuary have been:

LGPS Police Scheme
2012/13 2013/14 2012/13 2013/14

i - Other -

Mortality Assumptions: i

_Rate of Inflation (CPI) _

4.15% |

Rateofincreaseinpensions e |.2:40% ;i 240% | 250% :..2:50%_ |
‘Rate for discounting scheme liabilities | 440% } 460% | 430% : 440%
iTake-up of option to convert annual pension into retirement lump sum 50% 50%

The estimation of the defined benefit obligations is sensitive to the actuarial assumptions set out in the table
above. The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the
assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period and assumes for each change that the assumption
analysed changes while all the other assumptions remain constant. The assumptions in longevity, for
example assume that life expectancy increases or decreases for men and women. In practice, this is unlikely
to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be interrelated. The estimations in the sensitivity
analysis have followed the accounting policies for the scheme, i.e. on an actuarial basis using the projected
unit credit method. The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis below
did not change from those used in the previous period.

Sensitivity Analysis — LGPS Pension Scheme

PCC Group
Impact on Impact on Impacton Impacton Impact on Impact on
Defined Projected Projected Defined Projected Projected
Benefit  Service Cost Interest Cost Benefit Service Cost Interest Cost
Obligation for Next Year for Next Year Obligation for Next Year for Next Year
£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

Local Government Pension Scheme

ate of Inflation (increase by 0.1%)
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15.d

Sensitivity Analysis — Police Pension Schemes

Group
Impact on Defined Benefit Obligation Police Police
Pensions Pensions
(o] [¢] 2006
Scheme Scheme
£000s £000s

___ERate of Increasein Salaries (increase by 0. 5%)
iRate for Discounting Scheme Liabilities (|ncrease by O 5%) ] 4

The above tables include the impact of an increase in assumptions, a reduction in assumptions will produce
approximately an equal and opposite change.

Impact on the Commissioner’s Cash Flows

The objectives of the LGPS scheme are to keep employers’ contributions at as constant a rate as possible.
The Commissioner has agreed a strategy with the scheme’s actuary to achieve a funding level of 100% over
the next 19 years. Funding levels are monitored on an annual basis. The next triennial valuation is due to be
completed on 31 March 2016.

The pension schemes will need to take account of the national changes to the scheme under the Public
Pensions Services Act 2013. Under the Act, the LGPS and the other main existing public service schemes in
England and Wales (which includes the Police Pension schemes) may not provide benefits in relation to
service after 31 March 2014 (after 31 March 2015 for other main public service schemes e.g. Police Pension
Schemes). This means that the LGPS will cease to be a final salary pension scheme from 31 March 2014 and
the Police Pension Scheme will cease to be a final salary pension scheme from 31 March 2015. The Act
provides for scheme regulations to be made within a common framework, to establish new career average
revalued earnings schemes to pay pensions and other benefits to certain public servants.

The total group contributions expected to be made to the Local Government Pension Scheme by the
Commissioner in the year to 31 March 2015 are £2,367k (PCC single entity £77k). Expected contributions for
the Police Pension Scheme in the year to 31 March 2015 are £10,070k.

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation for scheme members is shown in the table
below:

2012/13 2013/14
Years Years

Pensions Scheme
cal Government Pen5|on Scheme :
'Pollce Pension-Old Scheme i 921 2]

PoI|ce Pension -2006 Scheme 37 37
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16

Private Finance Initiative (PFI)

The former Police Authority entered an agreement for the construction and subsequent servicing of a TPA
Headquarters facility in West Cumbria in September 2001 under a PFl arrangement. Under the agreement
the PFIl provider constructed the facility, and undertakes to make the building available to the Commissioner
in a specified condition for a 25 year period in return for a monthly unitary charge payment made by the
Commissioner. In addition the provider delivers a range of services in relation to the building which are
specified in the PFl contract. At the end of the contract period the Commissioner has the right to acquire the
building at 50% of its market value.

Prior to 2009/10 the monthly unitary charge payment was treated as revenue expenditure and appeared
within the service expenditure element of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. From
2009/10 in accordance with changes introduced by SORP 2009, the accounting treatment changed
significantly. The PFl asset is now recognised on the Commissioner’s balance sheet along with a
corresponding PFI finance lease liability which recognises the Commissioner’s outstanding liability to pay for
the asset. The PFl asset is depreciated and revalued in the same way as any other asset in accordance with
accounting policies. The unitary charge payment is now split into three components in the accounts as
follows:

e Service Charges — these continue to be charged to the service expenditure element of the CI&ES.

e Interest Payments — these are charged to the external interest payable heading on the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement.

e Repayment of Principal — this charge reduces the outstanding balance sheet liability for the asset.
However, a corresponding increase in the minimum revenue provision is made in accordance with the
Commissioner’s minimum revenue provision policy.

In accordance with the new accounting rules, lifecycle replacement costs are now recognised when they are
actually incurred. The Commissioner receives specific government funding from DCLG as a contribution to
the costs of financing the scheme.

Private Finance Initiatives
(PFI) are arrangements to
receive services where the
responsibility for making
available the property, plant
and equipment needed to
provide the services passes to
the PFI contractor.

West TPA HQ — Hall Brow, Workington
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The following information is disclosed in relation to the PFl asset.

16.a Movement on Fixed Assets
The value and movement in value of the asset held under the PFl agreement is analysed in note 6 above.

16.b PFI Finance Lease Liability
The value of Liabilities resulting from the PFI Agreement are shown in the table below:

PCC/Group
As at 31 March
2013 2014
£000s 00003

;Balance at the start of the year i (5, 449) (5, 382)

16.c Payments Due to be made under PFI Contract
An estimate of the future payments to be made under the PFI contract are shown in the table below. Where
applicable an estimated inflation index of 2% (linked to the GDP deflator) per annum has been applied to the
payments.

PCC/Group
Repayment Interest Service
of Liability Payments Costs
£000s £000s

The repayment of liability figures include a sum of £2,911k between 11 and 15 years which recognises that
there is reasonable certainty that the Commissioner will exercise his right to purchase the PFI building at the
end of the PFI contract period. See critical judgement note 1 (page 28) for further explanation.
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17 Leases

17.a Finance Leases
The Commissioner has no material finance leases to be disclosed.

17.b Operating leases

The Commissioner utilises land and buildings and equipment assets under operating leases. The land and
buildings are typically short to medium term rentals of buildings. The figures do however include the lease
of land at Durranhill from Carlisle City Council upon which the North TPA HQ and custody suite was
constructed. This lease runs for a period of 125 years until March 2132 and the annual lease payments are
currently £30 p.a. The equipment includes livescan fingerprint machines and photocopiers.

The future minimum lease payments due under non-cancellable leases in future years are:

PCC/Group
As at 31 March
2013 2014
£000s £000s

The expenditure charged to the Net Cost of Police Services in relation to these leases was:

PCC/Group PCC/Group
2012/13 2013/14
000 £000s

‘Minimum Lease Payments

There are two categories of leases:
Operating leases are where the risks
and rewards of ownership stay with the
lessor and the annual rental charges are
charged through the CI&ES
Finance leases are where the risks and
rewards of ownership are transferred to
the lessee and where the assets are
recognised on the balance sheet of the
lessee.

North TPA HQ — Durranhill, Carlisle
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18

Usable Reserves

Usable reserves result from the Commissioner’s activities and are available to be spent in future years.

In addition to the Commissioner Police Fund, which the Commissioner aims to maintain at 5% of budgeted
expenditure, the following reserves are maintained and accounted for in line with the Code of practice.

= Capital Receipts Reserve — this reserve is used to hold capital receipts until they are utilised to finance
capital expenditure or reduce borrowing.

= Capital Grants Unapplied Account — this reserve is used to hold capital grants until they are utilised to
finance capital expenditure.

= Capital Reserve — this reserve is a revenue backed earmarked reserve that has been set aside to fund
capital expenditure.

= Earmarked Reserves - The Commissioner has a number of established earmarked reserves and has
created additional reserves at the end of 2013/14. Earmarked reserves exist both to provide a
contingency to cushion the effect of unexpected events and to provide a mechanism to build up funds to
meet expected liabilities. The Commissioner’s earmarked reserves have been formulated in conjunction
with the CIPFA guidance on Reserves and Provisions. Details of the earmarked reserves in existence and
a brief description as to their purpose is included in note 5 to the accounts (see pages 34-35).

The movement in the Commissioner’s Group and Single Entity Usable Reserves is detailed in the Movement
in Reserves Statement (see pages 20 and 21), and the disclosure notes relating to Adjustments between the
Accounting Basis and Funding Basis under regulations (Note 4) and Transfer to/from Earmarked reserves
(Note 5).

In the statement of accounts for 2012/13, in addition to the usable reserves described above, the group
accounts contained a number of negative usable reserves in respect of the Chief Constable. These reserves,
which would ordinarily be classed as unusable reserves had been treated as usable reserves as the Chief
Constable did not at the time have the statutory override powers in respect of certain transactions. The
powers for the Chief Constable to transact the statutory override were granted in the Anti-social Behaviour
Crime and Disorder Act 2014 and the reserves for the Chief Constable are now treated in the same way to
that of the Commissioner. In order to facilitate comparisons with the figures for the previous year, the notes
in respect of the unusable reserves (note 19) include those figures previous reported as usable in the
2012/13 statement of accounts.
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19 Unusable Reserves

Unusable reserves derive from accounting adjustments and are not available to be spent.

Certain reserves are kept to manage the accounting processes for non-current assets, financial instruments,
retirement and employee benefits and do not represent usable resources for the Commissioner.

19.a Revaluation Reserve
The Revaluation Reserve contains the overall gains made by the Commissioner arising from increases in the
value of Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible assets. The balance is reduced when assets with
accumulated gains are:

e revalued downwards or impaired and the gains are lost,
e used in the provision of services and the gains are consumed through depreciation, or
e disposed of and the gains are realised.

The Reserve records the unrealised net gain from the revaluation of non current assets accumulated since 1
April 2007, the date that the reserve was created. Accumulated gains arising before that date are
consolidated into the balance on the Capital Adjustment Account. The balance is made up of individual
credit balances associated with specific assets and will be equal to the difference between the current value
net book value (NBV) and the historic cost NBV for all assets.

The movements on the reserve during 2013/14 and the previous year are set out in the table below:-

PCC/Group PCC/Group
2012/13 2013/14

£000s £000s
tBaIance at Start of Year

fRecIaSS|f|catlon Adjustment
i
1
3

i
i

i
{Upward revaluation of assets 2,173

Write out of Revalued Amount on Impairment

ﬁDifference between fair value depreciation and historical cost depreciation

...‘ ........................................................................................................................................................... *....
gDownward revaluation of assets and impairment losses not charged to the (607) (289)§
__jSurpIus/Deflat on the PrOV|S|on of Serwces ’___
'Surplus or deficit on revaluation of non-current assets not posted tothe ; (603)i 1,884
- §Surp|us/Def|C|t onthe Provision of Servgies ’ 1
: j I ‘s
...4 - mmmama .....‘...

; 1

Accumulated gams on assets sold or scrapped
e —— B

o

1 |
{ {
{ H
! :
=
[ |
RGN
R
i i
i i
; 0
i !
i i
24
H

{Amount written off to Capital Adjustment Account (198) 1
R = 4 _______________________
.......................................................................................................................................... .‘.................... -
_BalanceatEndofYear BT

| s |
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19.b Capital Adjustment Account

The Capital Adjustment Account (CAA) absorbs the timing differences arising from the different
arrangements for accounting for the consumption of non-current assets and for financing the acquisition,
construction or enhancement of those assets under statutory provisions. The Account is debited with the
cost of acquisition, construction or enhancement as depreciation, impairment losses and amortisations are
charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (with reconciling postings from the
Revaluation Reserve to convert fair value figures to a historical cost basis). The account is credited with the
amounts set aside by the Commissioner as finance for the costs of acquisition, construction and
enhancement. The account contains revaluation gains accumulated on Property, Plant and Equipment
before 1 April 2007, the date that the Revaluation reserve was created to hold such gains. Note 4 provides
details of the source of all the transactions posted to the account apart from those involving the revaluation
reserve.

The movements on the account during 2013/14 and the previous year are set out in the table below:-

PCC/Group PCC/Group
2012/13 2013/14

0/003 £000s
+Ba|ance at Start of Year
’Reclassmcatlon Adjustment
cReversal of items relating to capital expenditure debited or credited to the
cComprehenswe Income and Expendlture Statement

rCharges for depreC|at|on and |mpa|rment of non- current assets

""('Zr'éé"z')}r"_:
rRevaIuatlon gams/(losses) on Property, Plant and Equment

(2 993)§

- \Amort|sat|on of Intanglble assets (703)s

;galn orlosson dlsposal to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

gStatement §
...}, .......................................................................................................................................
B (9,592)1
7 . . .
cLAdJustlng amounts written out of the Revaluation Reserve 198 (l)t
INet written out amount of the cost of non-current assets consumed in the (9,394) (4,949);
i
tvear R { B 2
|
,,_) e S .
rCap|taI flnancmg applled inthe year ,
EUse of the Capltal Recelpts Reserve to finance new capltal expendlture 1 139r 600-§
! !
T I SN L]
ECapltaI grants and contributions credited to the Comprehensive Income and | 510 739;
]

{Expenditure Statement that have been applied to capital financing ‘ § ‘
0 SRR s S
;Application of grants to capital financing from the Capital Grants Unapplied 1221 49

{Account ?
U SO nnnnnvvmv_jL_y
cStatutory provision for the financing of capital investment charged against 377 383E
‘the General Fund ;
T e -
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19.c Collection Fund Adjustment Account
The Collection Fund Adjustment Account manages the differences arising from the recognition of Council Tax
income in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as it falls due from Council Tax payers
compared with the statutory arrangements.

The end of year balance on the account reflects the Commissioner’s aggregate share of the Surplus/(Deficit)
on the Collection fund operated by each of the 6 district councils (or billing authorities) that has yet to be
distributed. The movements on the account during 2013/14 and the previous year are set out in the table
below:

PCC/Group PCC/Group
2012/13 2013/14

ﬁBaIance at Start of Year L
cAmount by which council tax income credited to the Comprehensive { 192

glncome and Expenditure Statement is different from council tax income
Ecalculated for the year in accordance with statutory requirements
c

1EBleanc; at End of Year ”U“N“”““ %b “75"""""' ,Y317Y3* _
C
¢ { H

19.d Accumulated Absences Account
The short-term accumulated absences account absorbs the differences that would otherwise arise on the
Police Fund balance from accruing for compensated absences earned but not taken in the year, e.g. annual
leave, flexi leave, time off in lieu and rest day entitlements carried forward at 31 March. Statutory
arrangements require that the impact on the Police Fund Balance is neutralised by transfers to or from the
Account.

PCC PCC Group Group
2012/13 2013/14 2012/13 2013/14

£000s £000s 200103 £000s

tBaIance 31 March 2013 per 2012/13 Statement of
cAccounts (Unusable reserves)

.................................................................................................................................

EAdJustment re reclassification of Chief Constable's
;reserves as outlined in note 18 (page 61)

cBalance at the start of the year

________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

fSettIement or cancellation of accrual made at the

I_end of the preceeding year

R e

EAmounts accrued at the end of the current year

§Amount by which officer remuneration charged to
Ethe Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

§Statement on an accruals basis is different from :
'remuneration chargeable in the yearin accordance !

wi i | ; i
-jwithstatutory requirements B T30
R A e e e e A A U A Y s BB..... e B
_BalanceatEndofYear i____________(_?_-‘_’_) _____________ (_2_6_)_ _______ (3670);  ( 3__39_2)_

!

;
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19.e Pensions Reserve

The Pensions Reserves (LGPS and Police) absorb the timing differences arising from the different
arrangements for accounting for post-employment benefits and for funding in accordance with statutory
provisions. The Commissioner accounts for post-employment benefits in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement as the benefits are earned by employees accruing years of service, updating the
liabilities recognised to reflect inflation, changing assumptions and investment returns on any resources set
aside to meet the costs. However, statutory arrangements require benefits earned to be financed as the
Commissioner makes employer’s contributions to pension funds or eventually pays any pensions for which it
is directly responsible. The debit balance on the Pension Reserve therefore shows a substantial shortfall in
the benefits earned by past and current employees and the resources the Commissioner has set aside to
meet them. The statutory arrangements will ensure that funding will have been set aside by the time the
benefits come to be paid.

PCC Group Group
LGPS Pensions LGPS Pensions Police Pensions

2012/13 2013/14 2012/13 2013/14 2012/13 2013/14
Re-stated Re-stated Re-stated
£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s
:Balance 31 March 2013 per 2012/13 | (712)i (968): (712)§ ’
EStatement of Accounts (unusable i
= : s
!

’Reserves)

..........................................................................................................................................

Adjustment re reclassification of Chlef i (28, 802) (854, 730) (1,010 490)
IConstabIe s reserves to usable as
‘outlined in note 18 (page 62)

iAdjustment re Prior Period
’Adjustment as outlined in note 34
(page 86-88)

e P, _,A.,.,A_, SRR e ) -L_, R——— MWA_,.,A

{Remeasurement of the net defined (210) 475 (6 470)g 14, 623‘ (119, 150) 51, 350
‘pension benefit liability/asset ' : ]

EReversaI of items relating to : i
iretirement benefits debited or : j
‘credited to the Surplus or Deficit on i
Ethe Provision of Services in the

:Comprehensive Income and :
| Expenditure Statement (141 ( 168) (4,372)} (5, 1@5) (59 ggl _ (65,890); | 890)

IEmponer s pension contributions and | ( | I
;direct payments to pensioners payable ! 97! E 3 974% y 953 - 960 . 630
. | :

s
'%
%
!
%
!
!
e
!
e
!
e
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20

20.a

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

This account summarises the resources that have been generated and consumed in providing policing and
crime reduction services during the year. It includes all day to day expenses and related income on an
accruals basis, as well as transactions measuring the value of fixed assets actually consumed and the real
projected value of retirement benefits earned by employees in the year.

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement Categories

The Code requires the Commissioner’s financial statements to show the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement in a form as recommended by CIPFA Service Reporting Code of Practice (SERCOP).
This is designed both to provide more meaningful information about how resources are utilised and also to
allow more meaningful comparison amongst policing organisations. SERCOP has reaffirmed the concept of
Total Cost, which requires consistent appropriation of support costs and overheads to defined areas of front
line policing activity. This is also consistent with the Police Objective Analysis (POA) that was introduced by
the Home Office and is used as a basis for reporting service expenditure. The defined areas, together with
some explanations as to their content, are set out below:

Police Services, this includes the following activities:

e Local Policing — neighbourhood policing, incident management, local investigation, community liaison,
local command team and support overheads.

e Dealing with the Public — local call centre/front desk, central communications unit.

e Criminal Justice Arrangements — custody/prisoner handling, criminal justice arrangements, Police
National Computer, civil disclosure/criminal records bureau, coroner assistance, fixed penalty
scheme/central ticket office.

e Roads Policing — traffic units, vehicle recovery, road safety partnership

e Specialist Operations — central operations command team and support overheads, underwater
search/marine support, dogs sections, level 1 advanced public order, firearms unit, civil contingencies.

e Intelligence — central intelligence command team and support overheads, intelligence/threat
assessments, covert policing.

e Specialist Investigation — crime support command team and support overheads, major investigations
unit, economic crime, serious and organised crime unit, public protection.

e Investigative Support — scenes of crime officers, external forensic costs, fingerprint/DNA bureau,
photographic image recovery, other forensic services.

e National Policing — secondments (out of force), counter terrorism/special branch, ACPO
projects/initiatives.

Corporate and Democratic Core Costs:

e Democratic Representation and Management — all member expenses; officer time spent on appropriate
advice activities; subscriptions to local authority associations etc.

e Corporate Management — costs of head of paid service; maintenance of statutory registers; statutory
returns and statistics; external audit and inspections; treasury management; bank charges.

Non Distributed Costs:
e Pension costs — past service costs, curtailments and settlements.

e Depreciation costs and impairment losses in relation to assets under construction and surplus assets
held for disposal.
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20.b Subjective Analysis of Income and Expenditure - Group
The revenue income and expenditure account is shown below on a subjective basis for information.

Group Group Group Group Group Group
2012/13 2012/13 2012/13 2013/14 2013/14 2013/14
Gross Gross Net Gross Gross Net
Expendture Income  Expendture Expendture Income  Expendture
Re-stated Re-stated Re-stated
Notes £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

Total Employee Costs

__iPremises
Transport

T

External Interest

A

Support Services

Gross Operating Expenditure
ncome from Fees & Charges

ncome from Grant & Contributions - Other

Gain of Loss on Sale of Non Current Assets
(688): (688)
Pensions Top Up grant (Home Office) ) - (14,758)§ (14,758)
t Operating Expenditure (24,612): 141,996
: 383
ensions Adjustment | (42,452)
Capital Financing Adjustment :
Revenue Contribution to Capital
Transfer to/(from) Earmarked Reserves (Revenue)
Transfer to/(from) Earmarke
ransfer to Capital Grant Un
Transfers to/(from) Collection Fund Adjustment A/c

ncome from Council Tax (32,867)
R e
neral Government Grants

(31,891)

CLG Formula Funding
Total

Police Fund Balance Brought Forward

Police Fund Balance Carried Forward
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Notes to the Accounts

20.c Segmental Income and Expenditure - Group
The income and expenditure of the Commissioner’s principal segments is recorded in the budget reports for
the year as follows:

The figures for 2013/14 are as follows:

Section/Department Expenditure Income
Employee Other Total Fees, Government Total
Expensses Operating Charges & Grants

Expenses Other
£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

Police and Crime Commissioner

Cumbria Constabulary

- Territorial Policing Command

zCrimeCommand o S L
- Corporate Support .87 _lagey
- Corporate Improvement SN NORIE S L
- Professional Standards BN T ey

8yl 633

 (L940)0 97,120

Total

sy

The comparative information for 2012/13 is as follows:

Section/Department Expenditure Income
Employee Other Total Fees, Government Total
Expensses  Operating Charges & Grants
Expenses Other

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

Police and Crime Commissioner

-OfficeofthePCC . L ............ 851
- PCCOther (including Transition) | 0 0 0 0 0 .0
- PCC Commissioned Services 0
Cumbria Constabulary e
- Territorial Policing Command 8,0545 61,1295 - - (1,327); 59,802

-CorporateSupport | 6975, 10123 17,098

- Corporate Improvement

Total 21,238 101,763
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Notes to the Accounts

20.d Reconciliation of Segmental Income and Expenditure to Cost of Services in the Comprehensive

20.e

Income and Expenditure Statement — Group

CcC cC
Restated

2012/13
£000s

2013/14
£000s

Net Expenditure in Service Analysis (above) 99,802; . 97,120
Add services not included in main analysis 765 3,488
Add technical accounting adjustments (not reported in management accounts ) 36,067 39,152
Remove amounts reported to management not included in Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (37,937) (42,144)
Net Cost o/f”;Services in Co}ﬁprehensive I;come and Expré;nditure State/l;;ent 98,69; 97,618

Reconciliation to Subjective Analysis - Group

This reconciliation shows how the figures in the analysis of segmental Income and Expenditure relate to a
subjective analysis of the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services included in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement.

The figures for 2013/14 are as follows:

Group
Service
Analysis

Group
Services not in
Analysis

Group
Technical
Adjustments

Group
Not included
in CI&ES

Group
Net Cost of
Services

Group
Corporate
Amounts

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s
Fees, charges & other service income (1,187) (2,815) 0 0 (4,002) (10) (4,012)
Interest and investment income 0 0 0 0 0 (148) (148)
Income from council tax 0 0 0 0 0 (32,866) (32,866)
Government grants and contributions (753) (622) 0 0 (1,375) (87,109) (88,484)
Total Income (1,940) (3,437) 0 0 (5,377) (120,133) (125,510)
Employee expenses 76,941 6,091 39,652 (42,144) 80,540 44,637 125,177
Other service expenses 22,119 834 0 0 22,953 14,757 37,710
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 0 0 (500) 0 (500) 0 (500)
Interest Payments 0, 0 0 0, 0 669 669
Gain or Loss on Disposal of Fixed Assets 0 0 0 0 0 (80) (80)
Total operating expenses 99,060 6,925 39,152 (42,144) 102,993 59,983 162,976I
(Surplus) or deficit on the provision of services 97,120 3,488 39,152 (42,144) 97,616 (60,150) 37,466|

The comparative information for 2012/13 is as follows:

Group
Service
Analysis

£000s

Group
Services not in
Analysis

£000s

Group
Technical
Adjustments

£000s

Group
Not included
in CI&ES

£000s

Group
Net Cost of
Services

£000s

Group
Corporate
Amounts

£000s

Police and Crime Commissioner for Cumbria — Statement of Accounts 2013/14

Fees, charges & other service income (1,859) (1,758) 0 0 (3,617) (7) (3,624)
Interest and investment income 0 0 0 0 0 (104) (104)
Income from council tax 0 0 0 0 0 (35,782) (35,782)
Government grants and contributions (102) (3,837) 0 0 (3,939) (79,207) (83,146)
Total Income (1,961) (5,595) 0 0 (7,556) (115,100) (122,656)
Employee expenses 80,525 5,146 33,074 (37,937) 80,808 42,800 123,608
Other service expenses 21,238 1,214 0 0 22,452 12,058 34,510
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 0 0 2,993 0 2,993 0 2,993
Interest Payments 0 0 0 0 0 680 680
Gain or Loss on Disposal of Fixed Assets 0 0 0 0 0 (173) (173)
Total operating expenses 101,763 6,360 36,067 (37,937) 106,253 55,365 161,618
(Surplus) or deficit on the provision of services 99,802 765 36,067 (37,937) 98,697 (59,735) 38,962,
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Notes to the Accounts

20.f Subjective Analysis of Income and Expenditure - PCC
The revenue income and expenditure account is shown below on a subjective basis for information.

PCC PCC PCC PCC PCC PCC

2012/13 2012/13 2012/13 2013/14 2013/14 2013/14
Gross Gross Net Gross Gross Net
Expendture Income  Expendture Expendture Income  Expendture
Re-stated Re-stated Re-stated
Notes £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s
) lice Staff Pay & Allowances ; : :
Other Employee Costs

|__iNon Cur Charges
Funding from PCC to reimburse expenditure by CC
Income from Fees & Charges
Income from Grant & Contributions - Other
Non Distributed Costs

PFl Grant
Pensions Top Up grant (Home Office)

Pensions Adjustment

Transfer to/(from) Earmarked Reserves (Revenue)
Transfer to Capital Grant Unapplied

Transfers to/(from) Accumulated Absences A/c

- Home Office Police Grant

- Revenue Support grant

DCLG Formula Funding

(Surplus)/Deficit for the Year

Capital Receipt Transferred to Police Fund
lice Fund Balance Carried Forward
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Notes to the Accounts

20.g Segmental Income and Expenditure - PCC
The income and expenditure of the Commissioner’s principal segments is recorded in the budget reports for

the year as follows:

Section/Department

Expenditure

Income
Total

Government

Police and Crime Commissioner

Employee
Expensses

£000s

Other
Operating
Expenses

£000s

Funding
provided by
PCCto CC

£000s

£000s

Fees,
Charges &
Other
Service

£000s

Grants

Net
Total

£000s

- Office of the PCC

- PCC Other (including Transition)

Cumbria Constabulary

- Corporate Support 203 531 0 734 0 0 0 734
- Legal Services 5 3 o} 8 0 7 0 0 s|
Total 764 1,609 103,613! 105,986 (4,003) (1,375); | (5,378): 100,608

The comparative information for 2012/13 is as follows:

Section/Department Expenditure Income
Employee Other Funding Total Fees, Government
Expensses Operating provided by Charges & Grants
Expenses  PCCto CC Other
Service
£000s £000s £000s £000s
Police and Crime Commissioner
- Office of the PCC 442 4% 0: 938; (4) (83) (87) 851
- PCC Other (including Transition) 0: 160 106,6185 106,778 (3,613): (3,856) (7,469) 99,309
Cumbria Constabulary B B B P B i o B e
- Corporate Support . vz 2200 O 397 0 ] 0 0 397
- Legal Services 4 6 o 10, i) ) o 10
Total 623 882 106,6185 108,123 (3,617) (3,939) (7,556): 100,567

20.h

Reconciliation of Segmental Income and Expenditure to Cost of Services in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement — PCC

Police and Crime Commissioner for Cumbria — Statement of Accounts 2013/14

PCC PCC
Restated
2012/13 2013/14
£000s £000s

______ 8
Add technical accounting adjustments (not reported in management accounts ) 3,040; (395)
Remove amounts reported to management not included in Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (41): (72)
Net Cost of Serv-i-t-:;s“in Comprehensive Inco-t-'r;c-e-;nd Expenditure Staten:v;l:i-t“ 103,566 100,141
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Notes to the Accounts

20.i

Reconciliation to Subjective Analysis - PCC
This reconciliation shows how the figures in the analysis of segmental Income and Expenditure relate to a
subjective analysis of the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services included in the Comprehensive

Income and Expenditure Statement.

The figures for 2013/14 are as follows:

PCC
Service
Analysis

PCC
Technical
Adjustments

PCC
Not included
in CI&ES

PCC
Net Cost of
Services

PCC
Corporate
Amounts

Fees, charges & other service income (4,003) 0 0 (4,003) (10) (4,013)
Interest and investment income 0 0 0 0 (148) (148)
Income from council tax 0 0 0 0 (32,866) (32,866)
Government grants and contributions (1,375) 0 0 (1,375) (87,109) (88,484)
Total Income (5,378) 0 0 (5,378) (120,133) (125,511)
Employee expenses 764 104 (72) 796 40 836
Other service expenses 1,609 0 0 1,609 14,758 16,367
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 0 (499) 0 (499) 0 (499)
Interest Payments 0 0 0 0 669 669
Funding provided by PCC to CC 103,613 0 0 103,613 0 103,613
Gain or Loss on Disposal of Fixed Assets 0 0 0 0 (80) (80)
Total operating expenses 105,986 (395) (72) 105,519 15,387 120,906
(Surplus) or deficit on the provision of services 100,608 (395) (72) 100,141 (104,746) (4,605)

The comparative information for 2012/13 is as follows:

PCC
Service
Analysis

PCC
Technical

Adjustments

PCC

Not included

in CI&ES

PCC

Net Cost of

Services

PCC

Corporate
Amounts

Police and Crime Commissioner for Cumbria — Statement of Accounts 2013/14

Fees, charges & other service income (3,617) 0 0 (3,617) (7) (3,624)
Interest and investment income 0 0 0 0 (104) (104)
Income from council tax 0 0 0 0 (35,782) (35,782)
Government grants and contributions (3,939) 0 0 (3,939) (79,207) (83,146)
Total Income (7,556) 0 0 (7,556) (115,100) (122,656)
Employee expenses 623 47 (41) 629 33 662
Other service expenses 882 0 0 882 12,058 12,940
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 0 2,993 0 2,993 0 2,993
Interest Payments 0 0 0 0 680 680
Funding provided by PCC to CC 106,618 0 0 106,618 0 106,618
Gain or Loss on Disposal of Fixed Assets 0 0 0 0 (173) (173)
Total operating expenses 108,123 3,040 (41) 111,122 12,598 123,720
(Surplus) or deficit on the provision of services 100,567 3,040 (41) 103,566 (102,502) 1,064
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21 Members Allowances and Expenses
The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting requires the disclosure of the total amount of members
allowances paid in the year. This is set out in the table below together with a comparative figure for the
previous year.

PCC/Group PCC/Group
2012/13 2013/14
£000s £000s
Basic Allowance '

From November 2012 the former Police Authority was abolished under the Police Reform and Social
Responsibility Act 2011. The above table includes for 2012/13 the part year effect of 17 Police Authority
members for the first part of the year (up to November 2012) and then 4 appointed members of the Joint
Audit and Standards Committee from that point and throughout 2013/14.

A full disclosure of allowances and expenses paid to individual members can be found on the Police and
Crime Commissioners website at:
http://www.cumbria-pcc.gov.uk/governance-transparency/allowances.aspx

22  Audit Fees
In 2013/14 the Commissioner and Chief Constable incurred the following fees relating to external audit
services provided by Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Group Group
2012/13 2013/14

£000s £000s

Amounts Relating to The Police and Crime Commissioner

'
B e e Tt L et e T R i e g

Fees payable to Grant Thornton UK LLP with regard to external audit : 45: 40!
services carried out by the appointed auditor. : : :

Rebate from Audit Commissioninyear. i (3)i  (6)

1{ a2, 3
Amounts Relating to The Chief Constable i
Fees payable to Grant Thornton UK LLP with regard to external audit : 205 20:
services carried out by the appointed auditor. : : '

{RebatefromAudltComm|SS|on inyear. 0T @b

S, NN _ . _
1

_________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Total External Audit Fees for Year : 615 52;
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Notes to the Accounts

23

24

Minimum Revenue Provision

Regulations 27 and 28 of the Capital Financing and Accounting Regulations 2003 require Authorities to make
a provision from revenue for the repayment of any undischarged credit liabilities. This is referred to as the
Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP). Additional voluntary contributions are permitted, which have the effect
of reducing an authority’s Capital Financing Requirement.

In line with the Capital Finance and Accounting regulations a Statement of MRP Policy was approved in
February 2012 as part of the Treasury Management Strategy Statement. The policy states that MRP will be
calculated using the regulatory method for debt incurred prior to 1 April 2008 and on the asset life basis for
debt incurred after this date. In respect of PFl assets brought onto the balance sheet under the 2009 SORP,
the MRP provision will match the annual principal repayment for the associated deferred liability.

The Minimum Revenue Provision charged for the year 2013/14 (and comparatives for 2012/13) is made up
as follows:

PCC/Group PCC/Group

2012/13 2013/14
£000s £000s

S U Sy Sy USSRy USROS U, SO USSR e —1

Minimum Revenue Provisions (MRP)

ECore MRP
PFIMRP v

I R IR e R

R I o R

Total MRP for Year 377 383;

Disclosure of Remuneration for Senior Employees

The following tables sets out the remuneration disclosures for Senior Officers and Relevant Police Officers
whose salary is less than £150,000 but more than £50,000 per year. The first table provides the information
for 2013/14 and the second provides comparatives for 2012/13.

The tables below include the costs of the temporary Chief Constable (A) who was suspended on full pay in
September 2012 and remained under suspension until September 2013, at which time he returned to his
substantive role as Deputy Chief Constable before retiring from service in December 2013.

A Temporary Chief Constable has been seconded from Merseyside Police to cover the role but continues to
be paid by the Police and Crime Commissioner for Merseyside. Merseyside have recharged costs of this
secondment amounting to £206k to the Police and Crime Commissioner for Cumbria for the period April
2013 to March 2014, these costs are included in the accounts of the Police and Crime Commissioner for
Cumbria as third party related expenditure rather than as employee costs and are therefore excluded from
the table below.
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The comparative PCC and Group figures for 2012/13 in £000s, are set out in the table below
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Notes to the Accounts

25 Employee Remuneration
The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting requires the disclosure of the number of employees and
senior police officers (defined as those holding a rank above that of superintendent) whose remuneration,
excluding pension’s contributions, exceeded £50,000 in 2013/14 in bands of £5,000. This is set out in the
table below:

2012/13 2013/14
PCC CcC CcC Group PCC CcC CcC Group
Remuneration Band Police  Police SnrPolice Police  Police SnrPolice
Staff Staff Officers Total Staff Staff Officers Total

oirio
oioio

£65,000 to £69,999

_ {£70,000 to £74,999

Q2.

oo
=)

A e A R A R A R A A R A R R AR R A R A R R AR ARG,
(=3=)

=

In the above table the PCC column includes staff employed by the Commissioner and for whom decision
making rests with the Commissioner’s Chief Executive. A number of these staff provide support on a shared
service basis to the Commissioner and Chief Constable and are recharged between the single entity
statements. From 1 April 2014, in accordance with the stage 2 transfer process the majority of these staff
transferred to the legal employment of the Chief Constable, where shared services are still provided (in
respect of support functions) a similar recharge process will occur between the single entities.

The table above includes those employees and senior police officers that are also required to be disclosed on
a more detailed individual basis. Please see note 24 for more information.
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Notes to the Accounts

26

27

Exit Packages
The numbers of exit packages with total cost per band and a total cost of the compulsory and other
redundancies are set out in the table below:

Exit package cost band Number of Number of other Total Number of Exit Total cost of exit
(including special payments) Compulsory Departures Agreed Packages by cost band packages in each band
Redundancies

2012/13 2013/14 2012/13 2013/14 2012/13 2013/14 2012/13 2013/14

Headcount Headcount Headcount Headcount Headcount Headcount £000s £000s
5
! !
l} {
! ‘
£40,001 - £60,000 H 1: 1 2i 2! 3 3 142} 161
m,w,m,w,m,w,m,w,V.J;m,w,m,+,W,W,,.;Lm,w,m,%y,wW,W,+W,W,W,VJ;,W,W,W,W,W;W,W,W rrrrr ennnnnnnnnns]
£60,001 - £80,000 : 1: 1: 03‘ 1; 1; 2 62; 122
£80,001 - £100,000 : 1: 0: 02 O’ 1 0 941 0
I S A S .
£100,001 - £150,000 1 0 0f 0] 1 0 122§ 0
;v...w-W-WMMWAMWMMWMMMMM“T,WMM#MM WMWMMMTAMW~
! ! | f
: 7 : 3 2 2 ;
Total 10| 17| 14] 21| 24§ 38! 833% 820

Termination Payments

During 2013/14 the contracts of a number of employees were terminated incurring termination payments
amounting to £671k (£1,134k in 2012/13). As this amount is significant in terms of the 2013/14 accounts the
amount has been shown as a separate item on the face of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement (page 22).

This amount is made up exit packages paid in 2013/14, offset by the provision made in 2012/13 to fund
some of these costs and a provision for exit packages to be paid in 2014/15 where the decision to terminate
employment has been made in 2013/14.

The exit packages amounted to £820k (£833k in 2012/13). The exit packages can be further split into
compensation for loss of employment £645k (£389k in 2012/13) and enhanced pension benefits £175k
(£144k in 2012/13). The redundancies are as a result of the Constabulary’s change programme. The Exit
Packages note above (note 26) provides details of the number and total cost of exit packages per band and
include those exit packages paid in 2013/14 and those agreed for individuals in 2013/14 but paid in 2014/15
for which an_accrual was made in the 2013/14 accounts.

A further amount of £45k (£532k in 2012/13) has been set aside in a provision to pay termination costs as a
result of decisions made in principle in 2013/14 but where there was some uncertainty over the individual
staff or timing of the termination but for which a reasonable estimate can be made of amount of the
probable obligation. This amount is netted down by costs charged against the provision in respect of
2012/13 decisions provided for at the year-end where the payment was actually made in 2013/14 of £194k,
providing a net movement on the provision of -£149k.
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28.a

28.b

28.c

28.d

28.e

Related Party Transactions

The Commissioner is required to disclose material transactions with related parties — bodies or individuals
that have the potential to control or influence the Commissioner or to be controlled or influenced by the
Commissioner. Disclosure of these transactions allows readers to assess the extent to which the
Commissioner might have been constrained in his ability to operate independently or might have secured
the ability to limit another party’s ability to bargain freely with the Commissioner.

Chief Constable for Cumbria Constabulary

The Police and Crime Commissioner has direct control over the Chief Constable’s finances, providing funding
for all running costs and taking responsibility for funding of all pensions' liabilities. The Commissioner is
responsible for setting the Police and Crime Plan. The Chief Constable retains operational independence and
operates within the funding arrangement set by the Commissioner, to deliver the aims and objectives set
out in the Police and Crime Plan.

Central Government

Central government has effective control over the general operations of the Commissioner — it is responsible
for providing the statutory framework within which the Commissioner operates and provides the majority of
its funding in the form of grants. Grants received from government departments are set out in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (page 22). Government Grants included within the Net
Cost of Services are detailed in note 29 below, the extent to which these grants are outstanding at the end of
the year is recorded in short-term debtors note 12.

Members

The Commissioner now has 4 appointed Member’s who serve on the Joint Audit and Standards Committee
and are required to declare any direct financial relationship through outside bodies or companies with the
Commissioner. No material transactions have been reported in respect of the 2013/14 financial year. The
total members allowances paid in 2013/14 are shown in note 21.

Officers and Employees

Employees of the Commissioner and senior officers and staff of the Constabulary were asked to declare any
direct financial relationship through outside bodies or companies with the Commissioner. No material
transactions have been reported in respect of the 2013/14 financial year.

Other Public Bodies
The Commissioner’s transactions with the Cumbria Local Government Pension Scheme (administered by
County Council) are shown in note 15.

The amounts received in respect of council tax income from the 6 Cumbrian District Councils are detailed in
note 30.
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29

Grant Income
The Commissioner credited the following grants and contributions to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement in 2013/14.

PCC/Group
2012/13 2013/14
£000s £000s

|

Credited to Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income

e —— e e

ic

* Note the Home Office Police Community Support Officer grant has been merged into the general Home
Office Police Grant from 2013/14.
** Note the Revenue Support Grant is now incorporated within the DCLG Funding Formula amount.
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30 Income from Council Tax

Precept- The demands made by the Police and Crime Commissioner on the district councils who are the
billing authority in relation to the collection of council tax.

The income from Council Tax for 2013/14 is received as precept from the six district councils as set out

below:
District PCC/Group
Precept Adjustment Income
Paid Re Debtors/ from
2013/14 (Creditors) Council Tax
£000s 00013
Allerdale District Council 6,110 (210) 5,900
Barrow Borough Council 3,609 87 3,696
Carlisle City Council 6,340 (12) 6,328
Copeland Borough Council 4,044 8 4,052
Eden District Council 3,932 11 3,943
South Lakeland District Council 8,906 42 8,948
32,941 (74) 32,867

The comparative information for 2012/13 is as follows:

District

Precept
Paid
2012/13
£000s

PCC/Group
Adjustment

Re Debtors/
(Creditors)

Income
from
Council Tax
£000s

Police and Crime Commissioner for Cumbria — Statement of Accounts 2013/14

Allerdale District Council 6,424 97 6,521
Barrow Borough Council 4,301 41 4,342
Carlisle City Council 6,993 9 7,002
Copeland Borough Council 4,486 26 4,512
Eden District Council 4,133 18 4,151
South Lakeland District Council 9,253 1 9,254

35,590 192 35,782
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Contingent Liabilities

Insurance Claims

A number of claims are being pursued against the Commissioner, the majority of which will be contested.
The Commissioner maintains provisions to meet the costs of uninsured liabilities and legal costs and
considers that there is no need to make further provision for these claims.

Prior to 1992, the former Police Authority was insured through Municipal Mutual Insurance Ltd (MMI) as
part of Cumbria County Council’s wider insurance contract. In September 1992, MMI ceased underwriting
operations and a scheme of arrangement was put in place to achieve a solvent run off of the company’s
assets in meeting future claims arising from the period where MMI provided insurance cover, in which
Cumbria County Council agreed to participate.

On the 13 November 2012 the directors of MMI announced that, following a supreme court judgement
against MMI relating to their liability for asbestos related claims where they were the insurance provider at
the time of exposure, achievement of a solvent run off would not be possible. As a result the directors
triggered MMI’s Scheme of Arrangement (the Scheme), which sets out the arrangements for the
administration of MMls liabilities in the event that a solvent run off was not achieved.

The Scheme provides that following a ‘trigger event’ a levy may be imposed on all claims settled on behalf of
Authorities since 1993 and that future claims will be settled at a reduced rate. Following an actuarial review
of potential liabilities, Ernst and Young, the Scheme’s administrators, have determined that an initial levy at
the rate of 15% will be imposed. Based on the position at the 31st March 2013 the Commissioner’s liability
was calculated at £45k, for which a provision was made in the 2012/13 accounts, during 2013/14 this liability
was settled with the result that the provision was fully extinguished.

An actuarial review of insurance liabilities as at 31 March 2014 has indicated that based on the latest claims
information the Commissioner has not incurred any further liability in relation to historic MMI claims.
However, the Commissioner will be liable for the levy of 15% from future claims attributable to him and
there is the potential that the levy percentage will need to be revised, dependent on the overall level of
future claims, which would further impact on the Commissioner’s liability. The Commissioner maintains an
insurance reserve to meet unknown insurance liabilities which, will be used, in part, to meet further
liabilities arising from the MMI Scheme.

Redundancy Costs

In response to future reductions in government funding it will be necessary to further reduce the number of
police staff. It is anticipated that the reduction will be primarily achieved through a combination of
voluntary and compulsory redundancies. Redundancy costs arising from decisions made up to 31 March
2014 have been recognised in the 2013/14 Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, however a
number of reviews are currently ongoing which could give rise to further redundancy costs, although no firm
decisions have been made as yet. It is anticipated that future redundancy costs will be met from the
earmarked reserve set up for management of change costs the balance of which stood at £1,677k at 31
March 2014.

Injury pensions

A tribunal case regarding the payment of injury pensions to a retired police officer has highlighted a conflict
between police (injury benefits) regulations and social security legislation. The implication of the ruling is
that police injury benefits should no longer be reduced by entitlement to social security benefits. At this
stage it is unclear if the decision will have a retrospective impact on police organisations or if the change will
be implemented on a future claims basis only. In the absence of further guidance from the Home Office and
Department for Work and Pensions, this matter has been treated as a contingent liability in the 2013/14
statement of accounts.
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32 Capital Expenditure and Capital Financing
The total amount of capital expenditure incurred in the year is shown in the table below.

PCC/Group

2012/13  2013/14
£000s £000s

Technology Schemes

Command and Control 20 45
Communications Centre ICT Upgrade 0 59
Computer Hardware & Infrastructure 703 994
CycComms (NW Regional Intelligence System) 0 36
Enhanced Video Conferencing 146 0
Executive Platform 5 44
Finance & Business Systems Upgrade 103 131
Holmes Il 9 0
ICCS - Integrated Command & Control System 81 0
ICT Delivery 85 26
Information Security 20 23
Mobile Working 122 49
Pentip (Fixed Penalty System) 0 36
Police National Database 8 28
Scanning & Retrieval 0 4
WiFi 0 49
1,302 1,524

Vehicles Replacement Scheme 988 636

Building Schemes

Allerdale Rural Deployment Centre 672 1
Fire Behavioural & Public Order Training Facility 4 1
Headquarters - Communications Centre Refurbishment 0 303
Headquarters - Central Services Refurbishment 1 0
Headquarters - Roof Repair/Replacement 28
Ambleside Police Station Alterations 18 0
South Estate - Kendal 136 50
South Estate - Barrow 430 590
Whitehaven Interview Suites 35
Miscellaneous Property Works 0 0
1,261 1,008
Equipment Schemes
Automatic Number Plate Recognition 27 19
CID Specialist Equipment 60 0
Promat (Custody Digital Identification) 0 39
87 58
Intangible Assets
ICCS - Integrated Command & Control System 117 0
Chronicle (Public Order System) 0 26
Computer Hardware & Infrastructure 61 7
Finance & Business Systems Upgrade 63
Mobile Working 0 0
Pentip (Fixed Penalty System) 0 48
Police National Database 0 1
WiFi 0 3
241 85
Total Capital Expenditure 3,879 3,311
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33

The table below illustrates the resources used to finance capital expenditure. Where capital expenditure is
to be financed in future years by charges to revenue as assets are used by the Commissioner, the
expenditure results in an increase in the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR), a measure of the capital

expenditure incurred historically by the Commissioner that has yet to be financed. The CFR is analysed
below:

PCC/Group
2012/13 2013/14
£000s £000s
Opening Capital Financing Requirement 17,931 17,690
Capital investment
Property, Plant and Equipment 3,638 3,226
Intangible Assets 241 85

Sources of Finance

Capital receipts (139) (600)
Government grants and other contributions (632) (788)
Sums set aside from revenue:

- Direct revenue contributions (2,972) (1,873)
- Minimum revenue provision (377) (383)
Closing Capital Financing Requirement 17,690 17,357

Explanation of Movements in Year

Increase in underlying need to borrow (unsupported by government
financial assistance) (241) (333)
Increase/(decrease) in Capital Financing Requirement (241) (333)

Accounting Standards that have been Issued but have not yet been Adopted
For 2013/14 the following accounting policy changes that need to be reported relate to:

e |FRS 13 Fair Value Measurement (May 2011) (implementation has been deferred until 2015/16);
e |FRS 10 (amendments) Consolidated Financial Statements (May 2011);

e |FRS 11 Joint Arrangements (May 2011);

e |FRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities (May 2011);

e |AS 27 Separate Financial Statements (as amended in May 2011);

e |AS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures (as amended in May 2011)

e |AS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation — Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (as
amended in December 2011) and

e |AS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements (as amended in May 2011).

In the Financial Statements for 2014/15, the effect of the change will be assessed and where necessary, the
comparative figures restated.
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Prior Period Adjustment
A prior period adjustment has been made to the Commissioner’s 2012/13 published financial statements
In relation to the following.

IAS19 Change to Accounting Standard

There have been several significant changes in relation to the international accounting standard IAS19
Employee Benefits. This has resulted in changes to accounting treatment for financial years starting after 1
January 2013. This means that the accounting statements for 2013/14 are presented on a revised basis and
as a consequence the comparators for 2012/13 have been re-stated. There is no impact on the balance
sheet however, the main changes are as follows:

Expected Return on Assets — Under IAS19, the expected return on assets is replaced with “Interest on
Assets”. This is the interest on assets held at the start of the year and cashflows occurring during the year,
calculated using the discount rate at the start of the year. The pension cost recognised in the CI&ES under
IAS19 sees the interest cost and expected return on assets replaced with “net interest cost”. This is
calculated as interest on pension liabilities (substantially the interest cost recognised previously) less the
interest on assets. The expected return on assets excluding amounts included in net interest on the net
defined benefit liability (asset) is now part of the “Re-measurement of the net defined pension benefit
liability/asset” which is a new line in CIES which also includes actuarial gains/losses.

Asset Disclosures - IAS19 requires a much more detailed breakdown of the pension fund assets. The values
of the assets, broken down into different classes that distinguish between the nature and risk now need to
be disclosed. A further breakdown is also needed showing those assets which have a quoted market price
and those which do not. The disclosure included in the Commissioner’s 2012/13 published financial
statements only showed the main categories of equities, bonds, property and cash as required. As a result
of the change some of these categories are split further (see note 15b, page 56).

Disclosure Presentation - In order to be consistent with the new requirements of IAS19 the disclosures in
relation to the Commissioner’s defined benefit pension scheme have changed from those published in
2012/13. By making these changes to the accounting standard, it is intended that the presentation of the
information is easier for the user to understand (see pension notes 15, pages 49-57).

In addition to the above changes in respect of a change to the IAS19 accounting standard, a change to adjust
a rounding discrepancy on the split of the Local Government Pension Scheme between the single entity
statements of the Commissioner and the Chief Constable has also been made. This change has seen the
Commissioner’s proportion of the LGPS scheme deficit as at 31 March 2013 reduce from £968k as reported
in 2012/13 to £966k and the Chief Constable’s share increase from £28,802k as reported in 2012/13 to
£28,804k.

The changes made impact on the core financial statements and the disclosure notes in relation to pensions
(note 15, pages 49-57). Where figures in the statements and notes have been amended, the relevant
column will include the word “re-stated” in the column heading.
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A summary of the changes made to the 2012/13 pension figures is shown below:

PCC
Amount per
Per 2012/13

Accounts
£000s

- Arising from changes in de
assumptions

graphic

- Arising from chnages in financial assumptions !

Administration Expenses
Employer Contributions

PCC PCC
Amount Change
Re-stated in
for 2012/13 Amount
£000s £000s

Group
Amount per
Per 2012/13

Accounts
£000s

Group Group
Amount Change
Re-stated in
for 2012/13 Amount
£000s

(1,160)
(12,318)

(1,160)5

(29,770)

A summary of the effect that the above changes have made on each of the core financial statements

shown below:

PCC
Net Exp
Per 2012/13
Accounts
£000s

Comprehensive Income & Expenditure
Statement

Corporate and democratic core
buted costs
Exceptional Item - Termination Costs
ided by PCC to CC
CostofServices
Net Interest on the net defined benefit liability !
(asset)

Total Comprehensive Income & Expenditure

for 2012/13

S

PCC PCC
Net Exp Change
Re-stated in
Amount
£000s

Group
Net Exp
Per 2012/13
Accounts
£000s

Group Group
Net Exp Change
Re-stated in
for 2012/13 Amount
£000s £000s

165,185
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PCC PCC
Amount per Amount
Per 2012/13 Re-stated

PCC
Change
in

Group
Amount per
Per 2012/13

Group
Amount
Re-stated

Group
Change
in

Accounts for 2012/13
£000s £000s

for 2012/13
£000s

Amount
£000s

Accounts
£000s

Amount
£000s

Net (Surplus)/Deficit on the provision of
Services b 059 1,064
Adjustments to net surplus or deficit on
the provision of services for non-cash

movements

Movement in Reserves Statement
Police Fund (Usable) i
Balance 1 April 2012

Surplus or (deficit on the Provision of
Services i (1,059)
Adjustments between accounting basis
under regulations

Net increase or decrease before transfers !
to earmarked reserves i
Transfer to Earmarked Resreves

Balance as at 31 March 2013

CC Constabulary Fund (Usable)
Balance 1 April 2012

Surplus or (deficit on the Provision of
Services e OO
Other Comprehensive Income &
Expenditure b0
Transfers to other Usable Resreves »
Net increase or decrease before transfers |

to earmarked reserves :

Balance as at 31 March 2013

CC LGPS Pension Fund (Usable)

Balance 1 April 2012
Transfers to other Usable Resreves

Net increase or decrease before transfers |
to earmarked reserves :

PCC LGPS Pension Fund (Unusable)
Balance 1 April 2012

Other Comprehensive Income &
Expenditure

Adjustments between accounting basis
under regulations

Net increase or decrease before transfers :
to earmarked reserves
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Police Officer Pension Fund Account

Fund Account

This statement provides information on transactions on the Police Pension Fund Account for the 2013/14 financial
year together with comparative information for 2012/13.

Group Group

2012/13 2013/14
301003 £000s

Contributions Receivable
Employer
_.-Contributions at 24.2% of PensionablePay L (9,987) ... (9,772)
Officers' Contributions
- 1987 Scheme Member Contributions (see narrative for rates) (4,325) (4,467)
...2006 Scheme Member Contributions (see narrative forrates) | (614) . (810)
(14,926) (15,049)
_Transferees infrom OtherSchemes (180) (298)
ECapitaI Equivalent charge forill-health schemes (231) (469)
(a11) (767)
Benefits Payable
‘Recurrent Pensions 21,515 22,791
‘Commutations and Lump Sums 5,796 7,601
27,311 30,392
Payments to and on Account of Leavers
Refund of Contributions 0 9
Transfer out to other schemes 84 173
84 182
Net Amount Payable for the Year 12,058 14,758
:Additional Contribution from the Police & Crime Commissioner (12,058) (14,758)
§Net Amount Payable (Receivable) for the Year 0 0

Net Assets Statement

This statement shows the net assets and liabilities of the scheme as at 31 March 2014.

Group Group
2012/13 2013/14
00003 £000s
CUTENEASSEES e
Pensions Benefits paid in advance 1,906 2,018
Current Liabilities
Amount due to the Police & Crime Commissioner (1,906) (2,018)
0 ol
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Accounting Policies

The Police Pension Fund Accounts have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Police Pension
Fund Regulations 2007 (SI 2007 No 1932). The Pensions Fund Accounts are administered by the Police and Crime
Commissioner and have been prepared on an accruals basis.

Operation of Police Pensions Schemes

The Commissioner operates two Pensions Schemes for Police Officers. These are unfunded schemes, meaning that
there are no investment assets built up to meet the pensions liabilities, and cash has to be generated to meet actual
pension payments as they fall due. The second scheme was introduced in April 2006 with the intention that joint
contributions of employers and employees would finance the full costs of pension liabilities. All Police Officers
recruited from April 2006 onwards automatically become members of the new scheme and the previous scheme has
been closed to new members. Officers who are members of the old scheme are allowed by regulation to become
members of the new (2006) scheme if they so wish. Members’ contribution rates for 2013/14 were between 10.7%
and 12% (10.1%-10.75% in 2012/13) for the new scheme and between 13.5% and 14% (12.25%-12.5% in 2012/13)
for the old scheme. The financial statements for the Police Officer pension fund account do not take account of
liabilities to pay pensions and other benefits after the period end. Details of the Commissioner’s long term pensions
obligations can be found in the main accounting statements (see Balance Sheet page 24). Detailed disclosure notes
regarding the Police Pension schemes can be found in note 15 to the core financial statements (pages 50-58).

Funding of Police Pension Schemes

In 2006/07 a new arrangement was established to fund Police Pensions. This revised arrangement is for both new
and existing police officer schemes, but has no effect on the benefit structures of either scheme. The purpose of the
change is to smooth fluctuations in costs that would previously have been charged to the Commissioner’s
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on a ‘pay as you go basis’ and to more clearly show the effect of
the liability as opposed to current pension payments. Under the revised arrangements the liability for payment of
police pensions is removed from the Commissioner and replaced with an employers’ contribution, currently set at
24.2% of pensionable pay, which, along with the employee contributions and any transfer values, is paid into the
pensions account. The employees’ and employer’s contribution levels are based on percentages of pensionable pay
set nationally by the Home Office and are subject to periodic revaluation by the Government Actuary’s Department.
Pensions are then paid from this account. The pensions account is balanced to nil annually, with any shortfall met by
a top up from the Commissioner, or vice versa. However, the Home Office indemnify the Commissioner against any
financial liability arising from a deficit on the Pension Account by providing a grant to the Commissioner equal to the
Commissioner’s top up. Similarly, any surplus on the Pension Account is ultimately repayable to the Home Office.
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Accruals

The concept that income and expenditure are
recognised as they are earned or incurred, not as money
is paid or received.

ACPO
The Association of Chief Police Officers.

Actuarial Valuation

A valuation of assets held, an estimate of the present
value of benefits to be paid and an estimate of required
future contributions, by an actuary, on behalf of a
pension fund.

Agency Costs

Services which are performed by or for another
authority or public body, where the agent is reimbursed
for the cost of the work done.

Amortisation

The practice of reducing the value of assets to reflect
their reduced worth over time. The term means the
same as depreciation, though in practice amortisation
tends to be used for the write-off of intangible assets,
such as goodwill.

Budget

A statement of the Police and Crime Commissioner’s
plans in financial terms. A budget is prepared and
approved by the Police and Crime Commissioner before
the start of each financial year and is used to monitor
actual expenditure throughout the year.

Capital Adjustment Account

The CAA records the balance of resources set aside to
finance capital expenditure (i.e. Capital Receipts,
Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP), Direct Revenue
Contributions (DRC) and Deferred Grants Account
(DGA)) and also the consumption of resources
associated with the historical cost of acquiring, creating
or enhancing non-current assets over the life of those
assets (i.e. depreciation/impairment).

Capital Expenditure

As defined in section 16 of the Local Government Act
2003 and regulation 25 of the Capital Finance and
Accounting Regulations 2003, but broadly expenditure
on the acquisition of a non-current asset or expenditure
which adds to and not merely maintains the value of an
existing non-current asset.

Capital Financing Requirement (CFR)

The CFR is a measure of the extent to which the
Commissioner needs to borrow to support capital
expenditure. It does not necessarily relate to the actual
amount of borrowing at any point in time.

Capital Receipt

Monies received from the sale of capital assets, which
may be used to finance new capital expenditure or to
repay outstanding loan debt as laid down within rules
prescribed by Central Government. Capital Receipts
cannot be used to finance revenue expenditure, with the
exception that up to 4% of sale proceeds may be
transferred to the General Fund to finance costs directly
associated with the disposal of the asset.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash is represented by cash in hand and in bank
accounts. Cash Equivalents include demand deposits
with financial institutions which are highly liquid in that
they are repayable without penalty on notice of not
more that 24 hours.

Ccc
The Chief Constable for Cumbria Constabulary.

CCCFO
The Chief Constable’s Chief Finance Officer.

Chief Constable
The Chief Constable for Cumbria Constabulary.

CIPFA
The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and
Accountancy. The main professional body for

accountants working in the public services.

Componentisation

Identifying and depreciating the components of an asset
separately if they have differing patterns of benefits
relative to the total cost of the asset.

Contingency
A sum set aside to meet unforeseen expenditure.

Creditors

Amounts owed by the Police and Crime Commissioner
for goods and services provided which had not been
paid for at the end of the financial year.
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Glossary of Terms

Debtors
Amounts owing to the Police and Crime Commissioner
but not received at the end of the financial year.

DCLG

The Department for Communities and Local
Government, responsible for funding elements of the
Police and Crime Commissioner’s specific and external
grant aid.

Depreciation

The measure of the wearing out, consumption, or other
reduction in the useful economic life of a non-current
asset, whether arising from use, passage of time or
obsolescence through technological or other changes.

Direct Revenue Contributions (DRC)

Resources provided from the Police and Crime
Commissioner’s revenue budget to finance the cost of
capital projects.

Earmarked Reserves
Those elements of the Police Fund that have been set
aside, “earmarked”, for specific purposes.

Fair Value

In accounting and economics, fair value is a rational and
unbiased estimate of the potential market price of a
good, service, or asset.

Hedge Funds

A hedge fund is a pooled investment vehicle
administered by a professional management firm, and
often structured as a limited partnership/ limited liability
company. Hedge funds invest in a diverse range of
markets and use a wide variety of investment styles and
financial instruments.

Heritage Assets

A tangible asset with historical, artistic, scientific,
technological, geophysical or environmental qualities
that is held and maintained principally for its
contribution to knowledge or culture.

HMIC

Her Majesty’s Inspectorate of Constabulary who are a
government agency responsible for monitoring the
standards and performance of Constabularies.

Impairment
A reduction in the value of a non-current asset below its
carrying amount on the balance sheet.

Leasing
A method of financing expenditure over a period of
time. There are two main types of lease:

e Finance Lease - where the risks of ownership are
transferred to the lessee and where the assets are
recorded in the Police and Crime Commissioner’s
balance sheet at a current valuation.

e Operating Lease - where the risks of ownership stay
with the leasing company and the annual rental
charges are made via the Revenue Account.

Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP)

The minimum amount which must be set aside in the
Revenue Account each year as a provision for credit
liabilities.

Non-current Assets
An asset, which will yield a benefit to the Police and
Crime Commissioner for a period of more than one year.

PCC
The Police and Crime Commissioner for Cumbria.

PCC CFO
The Police and Crime Commissioner’s Chief Finance
Officer.

Pension actuarial gains and losses
For a defined benefit scheme, the changes in actuarial
deficits or surpluses that arise because:

e events have not coincided with actuarial
assumptions made for the last valuation
(experience gains and losses) or

e the actuarial assumptions have changed.

Pension — current service costs

The increase in the present value of a defined benefit’s
liabilities expected to arise from employee service in the
current period.

Pension — defined benefit scheme

A pension or other retirement benefit scheme other
than a defined contribution scheme. The scheme rules
define the benefits independently of the contribution
payable, and the benefits are not directly related to the
investments of the scheme. The scheme may be funded
or unfunded.
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Glossary of Terms

Pension assets — expected rate of return

For a funded defined benefits scheme, the average rate
of return, including both income and changes in fair
value but net of scheme expenses, expected over the
remaining life of the related obligation on the actual
assets held by the scheme.

Pension — interest costs

For a defined benefit scheme, the expected increase
during the period in the present value of the scheme
liabilities because the benefits are one period closer to
settlement.

Pension - past service costs

For a defined benefit scheme, the increase in the
present value of the scheme liabilities related to
employee service in prior periods arising in the current
period as a result of the introduction of, or improvement
to, retirement benefits.

Police Objective Analysis (POA)

The Police Objective Analysis (POA) is a model
developed by the Home Office for analysing individual
policing areas expenditure. It has been developed to
support the need for understandable, accurate and
consistent costing information to allow internal and
inter-force comparisons.

Precept

The demands made by the Police and Crime
Commissioner on the district councils who are the billing
authority in relation to the collection of council tax.

Private Equity Funds

A private equity fund is a collective investment scheme
used for making investments in various equity (and to a
lesser extent debt) securities according to one of the
investment strategies associated with private equity.

Provision

An amount set aside to provide for a liability which is
likely to be incurred, although the amount and date of
that liability are uncertain.

Public Works Loan Board (PWLB)

A Government agency which provides longer term loans
to Local Authorities at interest rates which are only
slightly higher than those at which the government itself
can borrow.

Reserves

An amount set aside for a specific purpose and carried
forward to meet expenditure in future years. The Police
Fund represents accumulated balances which may be
used to support future spending.

Revaluation Reserve

The revaluation reserve records the unrealised net gain
from revaluation of non-current assets made after 1
April 2007. The balance is made up of individual credit
balances associated with specific assets and will be
equal to the difference between the current value net
book value (NBV) and the historic cost NBV for all assets.

Revenue Support Grant

A grant from the Department of Communities and Local
Government (DCLG) towards the cost of Police and
Crime Commissioner services.

SERCOP

The CIPFA Service Reporting Code of Practice. It was
introduced as part of the Best Value Regime to bring
about more consistent accounting treatment of costs
and to facilitate more meaningful financial comparisons
between Authorities.

The Commissioner
The Police and Crime Commissioner for Cumbria.

TPA
Territorial Policing Area.
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Annex A - Statement of Accounting Policies

1 General Principles

The Statement of Accounts summarises the financial transactions for the 2013/14 financial year and the
financial position at the 31 March 2014. The Police and Crime Commissioner and Chief Constable are each
required to prepare an annual Statement of Accounts (single entity) in accordance with the Accounts and
Audit Regulations 2011 which stipulate that the statements be prepared in accordance with proper accounting
practices. Those practices primarily comprise the CIPFA/LAASAC Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2013/14 (the Code) and the Service Reporting Code of Practice 2013/14
(SERCOP), supported by International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and statutory guidance issued
under section 12 of the 2003 act. The Commissioner is responsible for combining the single entity statements
to form a set of consolidated group accounts.

The accounting convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts is principally historical cost, modified by the
revaluation of certain categories of non-current assets.

2 Accruals of Income and Expenditure
Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash payments are made or received.
In particular:

° Revenue from the provision of services is recognised when the percentage completion of the
transaction can be reliably measured and that it is probable that economic benefits or service potential
associated with the transaction will flow.

° Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed — where there is a gap between the date
supplies are received and their consumption, they are carried as inventories (stock) on the Balance
Sheet.

° Expenses in relation to services received (including services provided by employees) are recorded as

expenditure when the services are received rather than when payments are made.

° Interest receivable on investments and payable on borrowings is accounted for respectively as income
and expenditure on the basis of the effective interest rate for the relevant financial instrument rather
than the cash flows fixed or determined by the contract.

° Where income and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been received or paid, a debtor
or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the Balance Sheet. Where debts may not be settled,
the balance of debtors is written down and a charge made to revenue for the income that might not be
collected.

° An accrual is made in respect of employee benefits payable during employment (see accounting policy 7
below for further details).

3 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash is represented by cash in hand, imprests (petty cash) and demand deposits with financial institutions
repayable without penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value. Cash and cash equivalents may also include overdrawn balances at the bank where
they are an integral part of cash management. Generally, cash and cash equivalents will comprise, cash in
hand, bank account balances, overnight deposits and deposits with Money Market Funds which are repayable
on demand without penalty or loss of interest.
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In accordance with the Commissioner’s funding arrangement with the Chief Constable, the Chief Constable is
funded on a cash basis, accordingly all cash and cash equivalent balances are recorded on the balance sheet of
the Commissioner.

In the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that are repayable on
demand or form an integral part of cash management.

4 Exceptional Items
When exceptional items of income and expense are material, their nature and value is disclosed separately,
either on the face of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement or in the notes to the accounts,
depending on how significant the items are to an understanding of financial performance.

5 Prior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Policies and Estimates and Errors
Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or to correct a material error.
Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively, i.e. in the current and future years affected
by the change and do not give rise to a prior period adjustment.

Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting practices or when the
change provides more reliable or relevant information about the effect of transactions, other events and
conditions on the financial position or performance. Where a change is made, it is applied retrospectively
(unless stated otherwise) by adjusting opening balances and comparative amounts and notes for the prior
period as if the new policy had always been applied.

6 Charges to Revenue for Non-Current Assets
The cost of services are debited with the following amounts to record the cost of holding non-current assets
during the year:

° Depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant services.

° Revaluation and impairment losses on assets used by the services where there are no accumulated
gains in the Revaluation Reserve against which the losses can be written off.

° Amortisation of non-current assets attributable to the services.

Council Tax is not required to be raised to fund depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses or
amortisations. However, an annual contribution from revenue is required towards the reduction in its overall
borrowing requirement equal to an amount calculated on a prudent basis and determined in accordance with
statutory guidance. This contribution is known as MRP (Minimum Revenue Provision). Depreciation,
revaluation and impairment losses and amortisations are therefore replaced by the contribution in the Police
Fund Balance, by way of an adjusting transaction with the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in
Reserves Statement for the difference between the two.

In accordance with the Commissioner’s funding arrangement with the Chief Constable, the Commissioner
holds all non—current assets. Accordingly, all depreciation, revaluations and impairments are recorded in the
Commissioner’s single entity financial statements. However, the Commissioner makes a charge to the Chief
Constable for the use of non-current assets, which is equivalent to his share of depreciation.
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7.2

Employee Benefits

Employee Benefits payable during Employment

Short-term employee benefits are those due to be settled within 12 months of the year-end. They include
such benefits as salaries, paid annual leave and paid sick leave, bonuses and non-monetary benefits (e.g. cars)
for current employees and are recognised as an expense for functions in the year in which employees render
service. An accrual is made for the cost of holiday entitlements, time off in lieu, flexi leave and rest days in lieu
earned by employees but not taken before the year-end, which employees can carry forward into the next
financial year. The accrual is made at the salary rate applicable at the balance sheet date. The employee
accrual is then reversed out through the movement in reserves statement so that it is not charged against
council tax.

Termination Benefits

Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision to terminate an individual’s employment
before the normal retirement date or an officer’s decision to accept voluntary redundancy and are charged
(on an accruals basis) to the relevant service line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Where termination benefits involve enhancement of pensions, statutory provisions require the Police Fund
balance be charged with the amount payable to the pension fund or pensioner in the year, not the amount
calculated according to the relevant accounting standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement,
appropriations are required to and from the pensions reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for
pension enhancement termination benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the pension
fund and any such amounts payable but unpaid at the year-end.

Post Employment Benefits

General

There are two pension schemes for police officers and a single scheme for police staff. They are all defined
benefits schemes.

All accounting entries relating to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and the subsequent
liability for Police Officer pensions are wholly recorded in the single entity statements of the Chief Constable.
For Police Staff all Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement entries and subsequent balance sheet
liabilities in relation to pensions are apportioned between the Commissioner and the Chief Constable single
entity statements on a head count basis. All accounting entries for Police Officer pensions and Police Staff
pensions are consolidated in the group statements.

The liabilities of each of the pension funds are included in the Balance Sheet on an actuarial basis using the
projected unit method —i.e. an assessment of the future payments that will be made in relation to retirement
benefits earned to date by employees, based on assumptions about mortality rates, employee turnover rates
etc and projections of earnings for current employees. Liabilities are discounted to their fair value at current
prices using a discount rate (see assumptions set out in note 15c, page 56).

The change in the net pensions liability is analysed into the following components:
° Current service costs — the increase in liabilities as a result of years of service earned this year —

allocated in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement to the services for which the
employee worked.

° Past service cost — the increase in liabilities as a result of a scheme amendment or curtailment whose
effect relates to relates to years of service earned in earlier years — debited to the Surplus or Deficit on
the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of Non
Distributed Costs.
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8.2

Net interest on the net defined pension benefit liability (asset) — i.e. the net interest expense for the
organisation — the change during the period in the net defined pension benefit liability (asset) that
arises from the passage of time charged to the financing and investment income and expenditure line of
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement — this is calculated by applying the discount rate
used to measure the defined pension benefit obligation at the beginning of the period to the net
defined pension benefit liability (asset) at the beginning of the period — taking into account any changes
in the net defined pension benefit liability (assets) during the period as a result of contribution and
benefit payment.

Remeasurements comprising:

Return on plan assets-excluding amounts included in the net interest on the net defined pension liability
(asset) — charged to the pensions reserve as Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.

Actuarial gains and losses — changes in the net pensions liability that arise because events have not
coincided with assumptions (demographic and financial) made at the last actuarial valuation or because
the actuaries have updated their assumptions —charged to the Pensions Reserve as Other
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.

° Contributions paid to the pension fund — cash paid as employer’s contributions to the pension fund in
settlement of liabilities; not accounted for as an expense.

In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the Police Fund to be charged with the amount
payable to the pension funds in the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting
standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement, this means that there are transfers to and from the
Pensions reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for retirement benefits and replace them with
debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable but unpaid at the
year-end. The negative balance that arises on the Pension Reserve thereby measures the beneficial impact to
the Police Fund of being required to account for retirement benefits on the basis of cash flows rather than as
benefits are earned by employees.

Note 15 to the primary financial statements provides further information about the pension schemes.

Police Officers

As outlined above, the single entity statements of the Commissioner do not include any accounting entries in
relation to the Police Officer Pensions funds as these are wholly recognised by the Chief Constable. The group
accounts however include all relevant accounting entries in relation to Police Pension Funds.

The original Police Pension Scheme (PPS) is governed by the Police Pension Regulations 1987 (as amended)
and related regulations that are made under the Police Pensions Act 1976. The new Police Pensions Scheme
(NPPS) is also governed by the Police Pensions Act 1976 (as amended by the Police Pension Regulations 2006).

Both schemes are unfunded which means there are no investment assets built up to meet pensions liabilities
from pensions or other retirement benefits for former employees.

The funding arrangements for police officers pensions changed on 1st April 2006. Before April 2006 pensions
of former employees were required to be met on a ‘pay as you go’ basis with the cost charged to the revenue
account. From April 2006 onwards there is an employer’s contribution rate set by the Home Office (currently
24.2% of pensionable salary), which is charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Also from 1st April 2006 legislation required the operation of a Pension Fund Account (shown on pages 88-89).
The amounts that must be paid into and out of the fund are specified by regulation. Officers’ contributions
and the employer’s contributions are paid into the pension fund account from which pension payments are
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8.3

made. Any shortfall on the pension fund account is met by a contribution from the police fund. A Home
Office Grant is received to cover this contribution. Conversely, a surplus on the Pension Fund Account would
result in a contribution to the police fund, which would then be recouped by the Home Office.

Police Staff

Police staff, subject to certain qualifying criteria, are eligible to join the Local Government Pension Scheme
(LGPS), which is a funded defined benefit scheme. Pensions and other retirement benefits are paid from the
fund. Employers and employees make regular contributions into the fund so that the liabilities are paid for
evenly over the employment period.

Actuarial valuations of the fund are undertaken every three years to determine the contribution rates needed
to meet its liabilities.

The assets of the LGPS pension fund are included in the Balance Sheet at their fair value:

° Quoted securities — current bid price

° Unquoted securities — professional estimate
° Unitised securities — current bid price

° Property — market value

The Accounts show the full implementation of IAS19 (Employee Benefits). IAS19 requires organisations to
recognise retirement benefits in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement when they are
earned, even though the benefits will not be payable until employees retire. However, as statutory procedures
require the charge against Council Tax to be based on the amounts payable to the pension fund during the
year, an appropriation is made within the pensions reserve equal to the net change in the pensions liability
recognised in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The neutralising entry is made through
the Movement in Reserves Statement. The Balance Sheet discloses the net liability in relation to retirement
benefits. The figures are based on the Actuary’s latest estimate.

There are restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement benefits in the event of early
retirements. Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an award to any member of staff are accrued in
the year of the decision to make the award and are accounted for using the same policies as applied to the
LGPS.

Events after the Balance Sheet Date

Events after the balance sheet date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur between
the end of the reporting period and the date the Statement of Accounts is authorised for issue which have an
impact on the financial statements and are treated as follows. Two types of events can be identified:

° Those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period — the
Statement of Accounts is adjusted to reflect such events

° Those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period — the Statement of
Accounts is not adjusted to reflect such events, but where a category of events would have a material
effect, disclosure is made in the notes of the nature of the event and their estimated financial effect.
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Financial Instruments - Financial Liabilities

Financial Liabilities are initially measured at fair value and carried at their amortised cost. Annual charges to
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for interest payable are based on the carrying amount
of the liability, multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument. For borrowings this means that
the amount presented on the Balance Sheet is the outstanding amount of principal repayable and interest
charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is the amount payable for the year in the
loan agreement. Borrowing is undertaken and accounted for in accordance with the Treasury Management
Strategy. Where a payable (i.e. creditor) has a maturity of less than 12 months the fair value is taken to be the
principal outstanding, or the billed/invoiced amount. In accordance with the funding arrangement between
the Commissioner and the Chief Constable, all financial instrument liabilities, including borrowing and trade
creditors are held by the Commissioner.

Financial Instruments - Financial Assets
Financial assets are classified into two types:

° Loans and Receivables — assets that have fixed or determinable payments but are not quoted in an
active market. Trade debtors and investments are classified as loans and receivables.

° Available-for-sale assets — assets that have a quoted market price and/or do not have fixed or
determinable payments. There are no available-for-sale assets.

Loans and receivables are initially measured at fair value and carried at their amortised cost. Annual credits to
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for interest receivable are based on the carrying
amount of the asset multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument. Where a receivable (i.e.
debtor) has a maturity of less than 12 months, the fair value is taken to be the principal outstanding or the
billed/invoiced amount. Investments are shown in the balance sheet at cost. Where investments are fixed
term deposits, accrued interest owing at the balance sheet date is included in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement.

Where assets are identified as impaired because of a likelihood arising from a past event that payments due
under the contract will not be made, the asset is written down and a charge made to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement. An example of such a charge would be the adjustment made to the
debtors balance as a provision for bad debts (see note 12, page 46).

Investments are undertaken and accounted for in accordance with the Treasury Management Strategy.

In accordance with the Commissioner’s funding arrangement with the Chief Constable all financial instrument
assets including investments and trade debtors are held by the Commissioner.

Government Grants and Contributions
Whether paid on account, by installments or in arrears, government grants and third party contributions and
donations are recognised as due when there is reasonable assurance of:

° compliance with the conditions attached to the payments, and

° the grants or contributions will be received.

Amounts recognised as due are not credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement until
conditions attached to the grant or contribution have been satisfied. Conditions are stipulations that specify

that the future economic benefits or service potential embodied in the asset acquired using the grant or
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contribution are required to be consumed by the recipient as specified, or future economic benefits or service
potential must be returned to the transferor.

Monies advanced as grants or contributions for which conditions have not been satisfied are carried on the
balance sheet as creditors. When conditions are satisfied, the grant or contribution is credited to the relevant
function line (attributable revenue grants and contributions) or Taxation and Non-Specific Grants Income
(non-ringfenced revenue grants and all capital grants) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement.

Where capital grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, they are
reversed out of the Police Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. Where the grant has yet to
be used to finance capital expenditure, it is posted to the Capital Grants Unapplied reserve. Where it has been
applied, it is posted to the Capital Adjustment Account. Amounts in the Capital Grants Unapplied reserve are
transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account once they have been applied to fund capital expenditure.

In accordance with the statutory responsibility of the Commissioner to maintain the Police Fund contained
within the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011, all grants are recognised in the accounts of the
Commissioner.

Intangible Assets

Expenditure on non-monetary assets that do not have physical substance but are controlled as a result of past
events (e.g. software licences) is capitalised when it is expected that future economic benefits or service
potential will flow from the intangible asset. Intangible assets are initially measured at cost amounts and are
only revalued where the fair value of the asset can be determined by an active market. The depreciable
amount of an intangible asset is amortised over its useful life (usually 5 years) to the relevant function(s) in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Where expenditure on intangible assets qualifies as capital expenditure for statutory purposes, amortisation,
impairment losses and disposal gains and losses are not permitted to have an impact on the Police Fund
Balance. The amortisation, impairment and gains and losses on disposal are therefore reversed out of the
Police Fund in the Movement in Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital Adjustment Account and (for
any sale proceeds over £10,000) the Capital Receipts Reserve. An asset is tested for impairment, whenever
there is an indication that the asset might be impaired — any losses recognised are posted to the relevant
service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

In accordance with the terms of the Commissioner’s funding arrangement with the Chief Constable, all
intangible assets are held by the Commissioner.

Inventories

Inventories (stocks) are included in the balance sheet at historic cost. This is a departure from IAS2 which
requires inventories to be valued at the lower of cost or net realisable value. However, for many stock items,
particularly uniforms, net realisable value would be minimal and would not accurately reflect the value of
holding these assets. As inventories predominantly relate to operational stocks (uniform and consumables)
these are reported in the single entity statements of the Chief Constable and as such are consolidated into the
Commissioner’s group accounts.

Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of the property, plant or equipment from the lessor to the lessee. All other
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15.2

15.3

15.4

leases are classified as operating leases.

Where a lease covers both land and buildings, the land and building elements are considered separately for
classification. Agreements that do not have the legal status of a lease but convey a right to use an asset in
return for payment are accounted for under this policy where fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on
the use of specific assets.

Finance leases (as Lessee)

Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases is recognised on the Balance Sheet at the
commencement of the lease at its fair value measured at the lease’s inception (or the present value of the
minimum lease payments, if lower). The asset recognised is matched by a liability for the obligation to pay the
lessor. Initial direct costs are added to the carrying amount of the asset. Premiums paid on entry into a lease
are applied to writing down the lease liability. Contingent rents are charged as expenses in the periods in
which they are incurred.

Lease payments are apportioned between:

° A charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property, plant or equipment — applied to write down
the lease liability, and

° A finance charge (debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement).

Property, plant and equipment recognised under finance leases is accounted for using the policies applied
generally to such assets, subject to depreciation being charged over the lease term if this is shorter than the
asset’s estimated useful life (where ownership of the asset does not transfer at the end of the lease period).

Council tax is not required to be raised to cover depreciation or revaluation and impairment losses arising on
leased assets. Instead, a prudent annual contribution is made from revenue funds towards the deemed
capital investment in accordance with statutory requirements. Depreciation and revaluation and impairment
losses are therefore substituted by a revenue contribution in the Police Fund balance, by way of an adjusting
transaction within the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement for the difference
between the two.

Operating Leases (as Lessee)

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as
an expense of the functions benefitting from use of the leased property, plant or equipment. Charges are
made on a straight line basis over the life of the lease.

Finance Leases (as Lessor)
There are currently no finance leases as a lessor.

Operating Leases (as Lessor)

Rentals received under operating leases are credited to the other operating expenditure line within the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, except where the property has been classified as an
investment property, in which case the income is shown in the financing and investment income and
expenditure line.
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17.1

17.2

Treatment of Overheads

The costs of overheads and support services are charged to those that benefit from the supply or service in
accordance with the costing principles of the CIPFA Service Reporting Code of Practice 2013/14 (SERCOP). The
total absorption costing principle is used — the full cost of overheads and support services are shared between
users in proportion to the benefits received, with the exception of:

° Corporate and Democratic Core — costs relating to the status as a democratic organisation.

° Non Distributed Costs — the cost of discretionary benefits awarded to employees retiring early and
impairment losses chargeable on assets held for sale.

The two cost categories are defined in the Service Reporting Code of Practice (SERCOP) and accounted for as

separate headings in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of Cost of Services.

Under the Commissioner’s funding arrangement to the Chief Constable premises costs (except where they are
directly attributable to the Chief Constable) are initially recorded in the accounts of the Commissioner and a
recharge is made to the Chief Constable in the single entity Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statements on an appropriate basis. Transport and supplies and services costs (except where they are directly
attributable to the Commissioner) are initially recorded in the accounts of the Chief Constable and a recharge
is made to the Commissioner in the single entity Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statements on an
appropriate basis.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the production or supply of goods and services, for
rental to others, or for administrative purposes and that are expected to be used during more than one
financial year are classified as Property, Plant and Equipment.

Recognition

Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of Property, Plant and Equipment is capitalised on an
accruals basis, provided that it is probable that the future economic benefits or service potential associated
with the item will flow and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Expenditure that maintains but
does not add to an asset’s potential to deliver future economic benefits (i.e. repairs and maintenance) is
charged to revenue as an expense through the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement when it is
incurred.

De-minimis levels have been set for capital projects at £25,000. No de-minimis level is set for individual items
within capital projects.

Measurement
Assets are initially measured at cost, comprising:

° The purchase price

° Any costs attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable
of operating in the manner intended by management

Borrowing costs incurred are not capitalised whilst assets are under construction.
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Assets are then carried in the Balance Sheet using the following measurement basis:

Category \ Basis of Valuation

Land and Buildings (Specialised) Depreciated Replacement Cost

Land and Buildings (Non Specialised) Existing Use Value

Vehicles, Plant, Furniture and Equipment Depreciated Historic Cost (as a proxy for fair value)
Assets Held for Sale Market Value (or carrying amount if lower)

Assets Under Construction Historic Cost

Assets included in the Balance Sheet at fair value (i.e. not valued at historic cost) are revalued sufficiently
regularly to ensure that their carrying amount is not materially different from their fair value at the year-end,
but as a minimum every five years. Increases in valuations are matched by credits to the Revaluation Reserve
to recognise unrealised gains. Gains are to be credited to the relevant function line(s) in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement where they arise from the reversal of a loss previously charged to a
function up to the amount of the original loss, adjusted for depreciation (if material) that would have been
charged if the loss had not been recognised. Valuations are carried out by Mr. C. Smith BSc MRICS, Carigiet
Cowen, Telford House, Riverside, Warwick Road, Carlisle CA1 2BT.

Where decreases in value are identified, they are accounted for as follows:-

° Where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the carrying
amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the accumulated gains).

° Where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the carrying amount of
the asset is written down against the relevant function lines(s) in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement.

The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April 2007 only, the date of its formal
inception. Gains arising before that date have been consolidated into the Capital Adjustment Account.
Revaluation gains and losses are not permitted to have an impact on the Police Fund. The gains and losses are
therefore reversed out of the Police Fund in the Movement in Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital
Adjustment Account.

Impairment

Assets are assessed at each year-end as to whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired.
Where indications exist and any possible differences are estimated to be material, the recoverable amount of
the asset is estimated and, where this is less than the carrying amount of the asset, an impairment loss is
recognised for the shortfall.

Where impairment losses are identified, they are accounted for as follows:-

° Where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the carrying
amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the accumulated gains).

° Where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the carrying amount of
the asset is written down against the relevant function line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement.

Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently by a revaluation gain, the reversal is credited to the
relevant function line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, up to the amount of the
original loss, adjusted for depreciation (if material) that would have been charged if the loss had not been
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17.5

recognised.

Impairment losses are not a charge against Council Tax. The balance on the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement arising from an impairment loss is appropriated to the Capital Adjustment Account
through the Movement in Reserves Statement.

The impairment reviews are carried out by Mr. C. Smith BSc MRICS, Carigiet Cowen, Telford House, Riverside,
Warwick Road, Carlisle CA1 2BT.

Depreciation

Depreciation is provided for on all Property, Plant and Equipment assets by the systematic allocation of their
depreciable amounts over their useful lives. An exception is made for assets without a determinable finite
useful life (i.e. freehold land) and assets that are not yet available for use (i.e. assets under construction).
Depreciation is calculated on the following bases:

° Land and Buildings - straight-line allocation over the useful life of the property as estimated by the
valuer up to a maximum of 50 years

° Vehicles — straight line allocation over the estimated useful life (3 to 10 years)
° IT Equipment — straight line allocation over the estimated useful life (5 to 8 years)

No depreciation charge is made however in the year of acquisition but a full year charge is made in the year of
disposal. A full year’s depreciation charge is made in the year of revaluation of any asset.

Depreciation also has to be calculated on revaluation gains and is represented by the difference between
depreciation calculated at current cost and depreciation calculated at historic cost. The difference between
the two values is transferred each year from the Revaluation Reserve to the Capital Adjustment Account.

Where an item of Property, Plant and Equipment asset has major components whose cost is significant in
relation to the total cost of the item, the components are depreciated separately (see accounting policy 17.7
below).

Disposal and Non-Current Assets Held for Sale

When it becomes probable that the carrying amount of an asset will be recovered principally through a sale
transaction rather than through its continuing use, it is reclassified as an Asset Held for Sale. The asset is
revalued immediately before reclassification and then carried at the lower of this amount and fair value less
costs to sell. Where there is a subsequent decrease to fair value less cost to sell, the loss is posted to the
Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Gains in fair
value are recognised only up to the amount of any losses previously recognised in the Surplus or Deficit on
Provision of Services. Depreciation is not charged on Assets held for Sale.

If assets no longer meet the criteria to be classified as Assets Held for Sale, they are reclassified back to non-
current assets and valued at the lower of their carrying amount before they were classified as held for sale;
adjusted for depreciation, amortisation or revaluations that would have been recognised had they not been
classified as Held for Sale, and their recoverable amount at the date of the decision not to sell.

Assets that are to be abandoned or scrapped are not reclassified as Assets Held for Sale.

When an asset is disposed of or decommissioned, the carrying amount of the asset in the Balance Sheet
(whether Property, Plant and Equipment or Assets Held for Sale) is written off to the Other Operating
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or loss on
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disposal. Disposal costs are shown in other operating expenditure in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement. Receipts from disposals (if any) are credited to the same line in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement also as part of the gain or loss on disposal (i.e. netted off against the
carrying value of the asset at the time of disposal). In line with Statutory Instrument 2010 No 454, disposal
costs of up to 4% of the sale proceeds are financed from capital receipts. Any revaluation gains accumulated
for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account. The written-off
value of disposals is not a charge against Council Tax, as the cost of non-current assets is fully provided for
under separate arrangements for capital financing. Amounts are appropriated to the Capital Adjustment
Account from the Police Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

Capital Receipts

Amounts received for a disposal in excess of £10,000 are categorised as Capital Receipts. The balance of
receipts is required to be credited to the Capital Receipts Reserve, and can then only be used for new capital
investment or set aside to reduce the underlying need to borrow (the capital financing requirement). Receipts
are appropriated to the reserve from the Police Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

Component Accounting

Under the IFRS based code, separate recognition, depreciation and derecognition of parts of assets is
required. This is often referred to as componentisation. Componentisation is a change that has to be applied
prospectively which means that it only needs to be considered for any non-current assets, acquired, improved
or revalued after 1 April 2010. A componentisation policy has been established whereby all land and building
assets with a value in excess of £1m will be assessed to see if they contain a significant component. A
significant component is defined in the policy as one which exceeds £200k in value and has a different life to
the remainder of the asset. Where a component of a non-current asset is replaced or restored, the carrying
amount of the old component shall be derecognised and the new component reflected in the carrying
amount. Each significant component of an item of property, plant or equipment is depreciated separately.
Depreciation is calculated on the balance brought forward at the start of each year. Depreciation on the
componentised assets will therefore only become effective in the year following revaluation and subsequent
split for componentisation.

Under the terms of the Commissioners funding arrangement to the Chief Constable all property, plant and
equipment is held by the Commissioner. Accordingly, all accounting entries in relation to the acquisition,
enhancement, revaluation, impairment, depreciation and sale of such assets are recorded in the single entity
accounts of the Commissioner. As noted in policy 6 the Commissioner makes a charge to the Chief Constable
for the use of such assets which is equivalent to the Chief Constable’s share of depreciation.

Investment Property

Investment properties are those that are used solely to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation. The
definition is not met if the property is used in any way to facilitate the delivery of services or production of
goods or is held for sale.

Investment properties are measured initially at cost and subsequently at fair value, based on the amount at
which the asset could be exchanged between knowledgeable parties at arm’s length. Properties are not
depreciated but are revalued annually according to market conditions at the year-end. Gains and losses on
revaluation are posted to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement. The same treatment is applied to gains and losses on disposal.

Rentals received in relation to investment properties are credited to the Financing and Investment Income line
and result in a gain for the Police Fund Balance. However, revaluation and disposal gains and losses are not
permitted by statutory arrangements to have an impact on the police fund balance. The gains and losses are
therefore reversed out of the police fund balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement and posted to the
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Capital Adjustment Account and (for any sale proceeds greater that £10,000) the Capital Receipts Reserve.

Investment assets are not generally held, however, in some circumstances where a surplus property no longer
meets the strict criteria to be classified as “held for sale”, it must be classified as an investment property.

Private Finance Initiative (PFI) and Similar Contracts

PFl and similar contracts are agreements to receive services, where the responsibility for making available the
property, plant and equipment needed to provide the services passes to the PFl contractor